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“To be the most preferred financial institution providing
premium financial service world-wide and consistently
delivering quality products and services to our Clients,

business partners and society.’
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Mr. Kamal Poddar

MANAGING DIRECTOR
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LETTER FROM
MANAGING

DIRECTOR
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With best wishes,

\

/28

KAMAL PODDAR
Managing Director
DINMNe: 01518700
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Director's Report !

BOARD OF
DIRECTORS CA Ajay Ko

Executive Director

Mrs. Hemlata Poddar
Non - Executive Director

Mr. Kanhaiyalal Berwal
Independent Director

&
While innovation influxes a CHANGE

Mr. Bharatkumar Shah
Independent Director

in the system, It's the leadership that

distinguishes you from being a ME TOO §

& become 1:|T:|Q93|'g

Mr. Ashok Kumar Thakur
Independent Director

CA KAMAL PODDAR
Managing Director
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C5 Karishma Shah

Lompany Secretary i My
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CA Manoj Singhania
Chief Financial Officer
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CORPORATE OVERVIEW:

W/s. Choice international Limited or "CH

BHICES SINCE a5t Iwo decades Wilh the wvision Of ass:s

FINANCIAL SUMMARY & HIGHLIGHTS:

the Company's Finanaa! Kesufts fo

Particulars

Revenue from Operations
Other Income
Total Incomea

Less : Expenses

a) Operating Expenses

b} Employee benefit expenses

¢} Finance Cost

d) Depreciation & Amortisation Expenzes

'-:': C’Ehr:'r Eu;}ur..}cn:_

Total Expenses

Standalone

Year Year

ended ended
31.03.20 31.03.19

87588 1275625
26.1% 21.97
202.07 1298.22
/837 121.36
154.31 5&4.95
73.72 77.80
299.45 513.08

605.85 1277.19

Frofit before Tax & Exceptional lkems 29622 21.03
MNet Profit before Tax 29622 21.03
Met Profit After Tax 19742 43.30
Share of Profit from Associate

Loss on Sale of Associate

Net Profit after Taxes and Share of Profit from Assodiates 197.42 43.30
Paid Up Equity Share Capital 2000.48 2000.48
Reserves excluding Revaluation Reserves 10422 56 7699.98
Earing Per Share

Basic 0.99 0.22
Diluted 093 0.22

FONCE INTERMATI

MAL L IR

Board Repart

1% e 3 _: ils =1 =3
I &7 Qe e
(" in Lakhs)

Consolidated

Year Year
ended ended
31.03.20 31.03.19

12,695.73 11660.28
53%9.86 470.M
1323559 1213119

2696.58 2182.56
4745614 4390.88
1729.76 203452

3145.54 316.6%
1897.20 198064

11415.24  10905.2%

1820.35 122590
1820.35 122590

1243.10 BBO.BZ

(12.41)
279.05
1243.10 58934
2000.48 200048

1514%.41 1118299

6.21 4.40
5.84 4.40
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Board Report

COMPANY PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW

During the Financial Year 2019.20, the tumover of the Company on
consolidated basis has increased from Re.12131.19 {Lakhs) 10
R, 13235 59 Lakhs) with agrowth of 9,10 %,

There are no material changes ar commitmants affecting the financial
position of the Company which have occurred between the end of the
financial yoar and the date of this Report.

IMPACT OF GLOBALCRISIS-COVID 19

In March 2020, the Company withessed lockdown on the outhrezak of
pandemic COVID 2019. The economic activities globally were
confronting turbulent times. The commercial activities all over were
enduring with a slow pace.

Your Company "Chaoice® catoring In to financial services wera
efficacious in coping up with the on-going Pandemic by adhering 1o
the stern “Work from Home Policy” as the safety of our employees was
the prime focus & concern for the Company. The Company has made
effective use of the technology 1o enable the employees to have
innocuous working emvironment.

Your Company is glad to inform you that, duning the on-going
Pandemnic the Company has not haled its Business Operations at any
point of time.

Further the Management of the Company do not anticipate any
madium to long term risk in the company’s ability to continue as a
going concern and mestings it labilities as an when due. An
elaborative narration on the impact of COVID - 19 s detailed in note
to the Finsncial Statement,

MATERIAL CHANGES AFFECTING THE COMPANY

1} As communicated earlier, the Company “Choice imternational
Limited® has transferred its entire * NBFC" Business to its
subsidiary M/ Choice Finservy Private Limited”. The Company is
now awasting the Cancellation of #ts "NBFC Status™ from the
"Reserve Bank of india”. On cancellation of its NBFC status the
Company shall stand as Helding Company to its subsidiaries.

Z] During the Year under review the holding of the Company in the
balow mentioned Non Material Subsicliaries has been transferred
o MVs. Chaice Equity Broking Private Limited to serve aur Retall
Clignts more efficiently:

* M5, Choice Corporate Services Private Limited

* M/, Choice Retail Solutions Private Limited

* s, Choice Wealth Management Private Limited

* W/s. Choice Tech Lab Solutions Private Limited

The said transfer of holding shall not lead to change in
management of the sbove mentioned subsidiaries, as M/s.
Choice Equity Broking Private Limited is the whally owned
subsidiary of the Campany M/s, Cholce International Limited,

3} During the Year under review, the Company on the approval of the
Members of the Company at the Extra Ordinary General Mesting of
the Company held anDecember 23, 200 & onthe raceiprof inpringipal
approval from the exchange * BSE Limited * has allotted 1,98,00,000
Wisrrants to be converted in o equivalant Number of Equity Shares
within 18 Months of afiotment ata Price of Re. 51 /- perwarrant.

4) The Company "M/ Choice International Limited * had applied
to the Company * M/s, Paramone Concepts Limited = for
reclassifying its status from = Promaoter * 1o * Public™ category as
the Company does not hold any shares inthe Company.

5] Pest the Financial Year end, the Company on meetings its
eligibility criteria & on approval of the Members of the Board of
Directors, the Company has applied to the * National Stock

Exchange Of India Limited * for Listing of its existing securitieson
NSE * maln Board platform.

&) Postthe Financial Year ended March 31, 2020, our subsidiary M/s.
Chalce Equity Broking Private Limited had applied to “Insurance
Regulatory & Development Authority of Indis” (IRDA) for
scquisition of an "IRDA” Registersd Company to complete its
ontine package of Financial Services to cater its Retail Clients:

There are no material changes or commitments affecting the financial

position of the Company which have occurred between the end of the

financial year and the date of this Repon.

DIVIDEND

In arder 1o conserve the resources of the Company considering the
current econamic scenarie, your Directer's do not recommend any
Dividend for the year ended March 31, 2020,

TRANSFER TO RESERVE

The Board of Directors has decided to retain the entice amount af
Prafits for FY 2019-20in the Profit & Loss account.

SHARE CAPITAL

PAIDUP CAPITAL:

The Paid up Equity Share Capital of the Company as on March 31, 2020
stood at Rs. 200048 Lakhs. During the year under review, on the approval
of Mambers of tha Board st their held on November 20 2019 &
the approval of the Shareholders of the Company et the Extra Ordinary
Ganeral Meeting of the Company held on December 23, 2020 |, the
committes of the Board at their meeting held on January 02, 2019 had
allotted 1,98,00,000Warrants ata Price of Rs.51/- perwarrantinduding a
premivm of (Rs, 41/ ) per warrant 1o be convened inte Equivalert number
of Equity shares within 18 Months of the issue of warants,
AUTHRORISED CAPITAL:

During the year under pursuant 1o issue of warranis the Authorised
Share Capital of the Company with effect from December 23, 2020
was increased from RS, 20,10,00,000/ { Rupees Twonty Crores Ten
Lakhonly | 1o Rs. 40, 10,00,000/- | Rupees Forty Crores Ten Lakhonly ).

DEBENTURES

s on March 31, 2015 & a5 on Year anded March 31,2020 there are
no outstanding Debertures to be redeemed by the Company, The
Company has duly paid the Principal amaunt along with interest to the
Debenture Holder, except Payment for Seven Debentures of Face
Value of Rs, 100,000/-each bearing interest of 57 % on redemption 1o
ane of the Debenture Holder who has passed away & the Company is
in process of transferring the Funds to the Legal Claimants of the
deceased holder on due verification.

PUBLIC DEPOSIT

Your Company being in Possession of itd “NBFC” status as on March 31,
2020 has net accepted any Public Deposit during the Yearunder reviaw,

INVESTOR EDUCATION & PRTOTECTION FUND

Inaccordancs with the applicable provisions of Companes Act, 2013
reead with Investor Education and protection Fune { Accounting, Audit,
Transfer and Refund | Rules, 2014 ( * IEPF Rules*) , all unclaimed
dividends are required to be transferred by the Company to the IEPF
JAftee completion of seven (7) Years . Further according to IEPF Rules
the shares on which dividend has not been daimed by the
shargholders for seven [7) consecutive years of more shall be
transferred to the demat account of the IEPF authority. The details
relating to amount of dividend transferred to the IEPF  and
corresponding shares on which dividend s were unclaimed for seven
(7] eonsecutive years , are provided In the General Shareholders
Information section of this Annual Report.

(19| CHOME INTERNATIONAL UMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2020

FINANCIALACCOUTING

As mandated by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the Financial
Statamerits tor the Year ended on March 31, 2020 has been prepared
in accordance with Provisions of the Sec 133 of the Companies Act,
2013 read with the Companies [Accounts) Rules, 2014 as amended
from time to time. The estimates and judgements relating to the
Financial Statements are made on a prudent basis, 3o asto reflectinag
true and fair manner, the form and substance of transactions and
reasonably present the Company's state of affairs, Profit and cash fiow
for the Year ended March 31, 2020.

SUBSIDIARIES & ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
Financial Performance:

Fursuant to Sectlan 129 (3)of the Companims Act, 2013the
Consolidated Financlal Statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries , associates and Jeint Ventures , prepared in accordance
with the relevant Accounting Standard specified under Section 133 of
the Act, read with Rule 7of the Companies [ Accounts) Rules , 2014,
formes a Pant of the Annual Repon.

Purzuant to the provisions of the said section, a statément comaining
the salient features of the financial statemems of the Company's
subsidiaries, Joint Ventures & Associates in Form ADC -1 is given in the
Annual Report.

In accordance with Section 136 of the Comparies Act, 2013 the
Financial Statemants of the Subsidiary Companles are available for
inspection by the Mermbers at the Registered Office of the Campany
during Business Hours on all days except Saturdays | Sundays and
Public Holidnys up to the date of the Annual General Meeting * AGM™.
Any member desirous of cbtaining a copy of the sald Financial
Statements may write to the Company Secretary at the Registered
Office of the Company.

The Fingncial Statements including the Consolidated Financial
Statements, Separate Audited Finandial statements along with other
relevant documaents required to be attached 1o this report have been
uploaded on the website of the Company www. choiceindia.com.

The company's policy for determining material subsidiaries may be
sccessed on the website of the company atwww.chaiceindia.com
The detail of Material Changes in the Operationa’ Mature of the
business of the Subsidiaries during the Financial Year 2019-20 have
been highlighted down below, The impact of such changes, If any has
been adequaely disclosed in the Financial Sttements, As on March
31,2020 the Company has % Subsidiaries inits group out of which 4
are step down subsidiaries . Each of the subsidiary in the group
provides diverse linancial services sach forming vital component of
group “Choice”

Details of Services Offered by the Subsidiaries:

1) M/s.Choice Equity Broking Private Limited - Wholly
owned Subsidiary
The Equity & Commodity Braking Business along with
Dustribution Business of the gioup is routed through our Whaolly
Cwned Subsidiory MYs, Choice Equity Broking Private Limited
"CEBPL " is a Mamber Broker with MSE, BSE, MSEI, ICEX, NCDEX,
MCX and a Depository Participantwith COSL& NSDL
“CEBPL" is one of the leading Securities Broking house in the
Industry with the cliental base ol 2.10 Lakhs , The subsiciary has
48 Branches & 1250 Number of Franchise across India.

2) M/s.Choice Finserv Private Limited - Subsidiary

The “NBFC " Business of the group is carried out through our
subsidiary M/s. Choice Finsary Private Limited. M/s. Choice

3)

4)

3)

&)

Board Report ‘

Finserv Private Limited" had secured its Reglistration as an
"Mon- Deposit Taking Mon- Banking Financial Company” with
effoct from January 12, 2018,

As on March 31, 2020 the Company hobds, 88,12% stake in the
“Choice Finserv' & the balance 11.88% stoke s held by M/s.
Chaoica Equity Broking Private Limited which is the whaolly owned
subsidiary of the Company.

M/s. Choice Portfolio Management Services Private
Limited

The Portielio Management Services of the group is catered to the
clients through our Subsidiary MYs. Choice Portfalio Management
Services Private Limited a SEBI Registered Portfolio Managers.
The Company M/s. Choice International Limited holds 52.61 %
stake In the Company M/s. Choice Portfolic Management
Services Private Limited & the balance 47.39% stake |s held by
M/s. Choice Equity Broking Private Limited which is the whaolly
owned subsidiary of the Company,

M/s. Choice Capital Advisors Private Limited -
Wholly Owned Subsidiary

The Irvestmant Banking & Merchant Banking services of the
group is catered through our wholly owned Subsidiary Mis.
Choice Capital Advisors Private Limited {Choice Capital
Advisors). Choice Capital Advisorsis a SEB| registered category-l
marchant banker, offering services such as IPO advisory,
valuations, carparate finance etc,

M/s. Choice Consultancy Services Private Limited -
Wholly Owned Subsidiary

The group operates #ts consultancy business through s

whally owned subsidiary Choics Consultancy Services Private

Limited ("CCSPLY) . The subsidiary is renowned consultant in the

sectors such as Road, Highways and Bridges Development,

Water Management, Affordable Housing, Solid Waste

Management, Public Financial Reforms, Urban Development

and sustainability, Information Technology, E-lwarming, Smart

Education, Management Consultancy eic,

The various Joint ventures initiated by the company and

associates of the Comparny as.on March 31, 2020 & as on date of

the report are as follows:

i} Thoughts Consultants Jaipur P L in JV with Choice
Consultancy Services P L

i} VSC Consulting Private JV with Choice Consultancy Senvices
Private Limaed

ili} Infra Dev Consultants in JV with Choice Consultancy Services
PvtlLid

vl SamekitLearning Management Private Limited

Further as an date of the report, the Company is partnering two

LLP'S namaly "Cholce Soft Skills Trainings LLP* & “Cholce Science:

Edubub LLP " for eanducting its Business modal of smart Education.

M/s. Choice Wealth Management Services Private
Limited - Step Down Subsidiary

The group prevides its mutuasl fund distribution services through
its subsidiary Mfs. Choice Weaith Management Services Private
Limited. The Company M/s. Choice Wealth Management
Services Private Limited (Choice Wealth) is registared with the
“Association of Mutual Funds of india” [AMFI) as a Mutual Fund
Distributor and is empanslied with various Mutual Fund Housas
to distribute their services to the end elients.

CHOICE INTERNATIONAL LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2020 | 10




M/s. Choice Corporate Services Private
Step Down Subsidiary

Cpamant O

8 Lifruta

Choice Retail Solutions Private Limited
Down Subsidiary

the entire ho |'|||'|_ f DNy

olution” was transtered to i

DISPOSITION OF SHAREHOLDING IN THE SUBSIDARY

Buring the ) Company's holding in M/, CI

2)

4)

5)

6)

Board Reparn

By R B Iy 11— ] T Re— . —T - | Pl Ta 'l p. L e e 1
ol tne ooarg ol LJ eCiors OF 1[=4! mpany as o ' March ..II 2UL20 & as or ne gate ol

Mr. Kamal Poddar. a2 Fellow Member of the Institute of Chantered Accountants of Indiais a

d s currently working on the vision of creating Country's first Nation laved

financial services hub. His vision has resulted in the rapid and multifold growth of Choice

Group. He has been instrumental in converting a CA practice lirm inte tull egge hinancia

il the fmancial services toits clients

service hub providing

Mr. Ajay Kejriwal - Executive Director

With an experience of over two decades, our Executive Directar Mr. Ajay Kejriwal has been
very influential in steering the Technological advancement of the group "Choice”. His
distinguished knowledge & experience in the field of Finance, Taxation & Management has
played a pivotal role in the progress of group "Choice”. Mr. Kejriwal a SEB| Registared
“Investment Adviser”, is a Chartered Accountant by profession & also holds a degree of

DnLSAssued by LC AL

Mrs. Hemlata Poddar - Non Executive Director

Mrs. Hemlata Poddar our Non - Executive Women Director holds a post-graduate degree in
political science from Rajasthan University and has extensive exparience in managemant

and adgdminustrative ?-|.r:r_'.‘.-;_1r"=_~ Hear areas ol interast include |||.|'|.|l.:l:{"||f-'|1| reliin rl-:_:: ang

Mr. Ashok Kumar Thakur - Independent Director

Mr. AK Thakurwas the G

yeral Manager of Union Bank of India and has expenenced more

than 40 years of several and varied areas like Banking services, HR functions

Markot ng, an dman ment sernces

Mr. Kanhaiyalal Berwal - Independent Director

M ':_-31':"'..:;!'.(5': 1 Si_'_*"..'.';—,' s a refirad | ::-\ ang ar i " -".-ri"' OEr O " it r{.'-_.l't" daf i-':.!-- i .c:t""-' {e
Commission (R.P5.C). Presently he is the D.G. Dr. B.R. Ambedkar foundation. He is

associated with many Ngo's

nt of SC/51 and other backward communities
especiallyin the tribal area of Rajasthan
Mr. Bharat Shah - Independent Director

Mr.Shah has an apt over the Managerial aspects of the running the Business. His decades of

EXpDenencain |.|I"||'1L.1‘.|'l.' Business hausesis benaficialinthe cor |||'r.LI|'-,-"~- Interest
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Board Report

RETIREMENT BY ROTATION & SUBSEQUENT
REAFPOINTMENT

In accordance with the Provisions of Section 152 & other Applicable
provisions if any of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies
(Appointment and Qualification of Directars) Rules 2014{ including
any statutory modification(s) or re-enactmentss) thereof for the time
being in force ) and the Aricles of Association of the Company , Mrs,
Hemlata Poddar Non - Executive Director [ DIN Mo : 02931322) liable
to retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual Genaral Meeting and being
ehgible offered herself for reappointment.

The Board recommends her re - appointment for consideration of
Members at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the
Company, Appropriate resalutions for his re - appointmant s baing
placed for the approval of the Members along with his. Brial Resume
and other related information has been placed in the Notice
convening the 27th Annual General Meeting of the Company,

I aceordance with the provisions of the Act read with the Rules issoed
thereunder, the Listing Regulations and the Articles of Association of
the Company, Independent Directars and the Managing Director of
the Company are not able to retire by rotation.

CHANGES IN THE DIRECTORSHIP DURING THE YEAR
2019-20

On completion of tenure for serving as Indepandent Director of the
Company, Mr. Deb Kumar Goswami [ DIN :02320068) ceazed to be

the Indepandent Directar of the Company with effect from September
27,2019,

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMP)

The fallawing are named persennel are the KMP'S of the Company as
on March 31, 2020 as par Sec 203 of the Companies Act, 2013

DECLARATION FROM INDEFENDENT DIRECTOR

The Company has receved declaration from all the Indepandant
Director's canfirming that they meet the critena of independence as
prescribed undertha Provisions of the Companies act, 2013 read with
the Schedules & rules issued thare under, as well as clause (b} of sub
regulation {1 }of Regulation 16 of the Listing Regulations,

The Independent Directors: have also confirmed that they have
camplied with the Company's Code of Business Conduct & Ethics, In
terms of Requlation 25(8) of the Listing Regulations; the Independant
Directars have canfirmed that they are not aware of any circumstances
or situatian, which exist or may be reasonably anticipated. that could
impair orimpacttheir ability to discharge their duties

In terms of requirements of the Listing Regulations, the Board has
identified core skills, expertise and competencies of the Directors in
the context of the Company's businesses for effective functioning,
which are dataited in the Corporate Governance Report.

Bazed on the confirmations / dizclosures received fram the Directors,
the following Mon - Executive Directors are indepeandent as-on March
31,2020

iV Mr Ashok Kumar Thakur
i) Mr.Kanhaiyalal Berwal
i) M. BharatShah

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs [(MOA] vide Motification Mo, G.5.R
804 Eldated October 22, 201 7 and effective from December 01, 2019
has introduced the provision relating to inclusion of names of
Independent Directors inthe Data Bank maintained by Indian Institute
of Corporate Affairs (NCA'). All Independent Directars. of your
Company are registered with HCA, In the opinion of the Board, the
indepandent directors postess the requisite ntegrity, experiance,
axpartisa, praficiancy and qualifications.

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

Five meetingsof the Board of Directars were held during the Financial
Year 2019:20. The details of the maatings of the Board of Directors of
the Company during the Fnancial Year 2019-20 are given in the
Corporate Governance Report which forms part of this Annual Report,
The Company has complied with the applicable Secretarial Standards
issuad by the Institute of Company Secretaries of india:

COMMITTEES OF THEEOARD

The Board of Directors has the fellowing Committess as en March 31,
2020:

1 AuditCommittee

) Nomination & Remuneration Committas

I} Stakeholder Relationship Committas

IV} Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

The detaifs of the above mentioned committes alomg with their

Composition, Mumber of Meetings, held and attendance at the
meetings are provided inthe Corporate Governance Report

For the lucid & competent working the Company had constituted
various lnternal Committess consisting of the Executive, Independent
Director of the Companies along with the involvement of the Senior
Level Management in the Committes for the amooth operations of the
Company , the details of the Committees constituted by the Company
are as follows:

i) Fimance Committes
il Investment Cormmittee
1t} Securities Allotment Committee

The meatings of the above mentioned Committess are held at
Raguiar Intervals for the smooth operations of the Company and
decisions undenaken are the set of collectve people on the consent
af the majortity af the members of the Committes. The
Pranouncaments of tha Cammitteas arg venfied by the Board in their
subsaquant Meatings,

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION POLICY
&COMMITTEE

The Board of Directors has framed a policy which lays down-a
framework in relation to remuneration of Directars, Key Managerial
Parsonnel and Senicr Management of the Company. The Palicy
broadly lays down the guiding principles, philosophy and the basis of
paymentof remuneration,

The policy also provides the criteria for determining Cualifications,
positive attributes and Independence of Directars and criteria for
appointment of Key Managerial Personnel, Senor Management and
performance evaluation which are considered by the Momination and
Remunaration Committea and the Board of Directors while making
selection of the candidates.

The Company hasa Nomination and Remuneration Committes (NRC),
which is responsible for formulating the criteria for appointment of
Diirectars on the Board of the Company and persons halding Seniar
Management positions in the Company including their remuneration
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and other matters as provided under Section 178 of the Companies
Act, 2011 3 and thie Listing Regulations. The role of the NRC Committee
encompasses conducting & gap analysis to rafresh the Board an a
pericdic basis, including each time a Directors appointmeant or re-
appointment is required, The MRC Committee is also responsibla for
reviewing the Profiles of Potential candidates the reguired,
competendes and due diligence and meeting of potential candidates
priorte making recommendations of thair nomination to the Board,

Criteria for Determining Qualifications, Positive Attributes and
Independence of a Directorn:

In terms of the Provisions of Section 178(3) of the Act, and Reguiation
19 af the Listing Regulations, the NRC has formulated the criteria for
determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of
Diractars, the key features of which are as follows:

Qualifications: The Board Momination process éncourages diversity
of thought, experignce, knowledge, age and gender. [t dlso ensures
that the Board has an appropriste blend of functional and industry
expertise,

Positive Attributes: Apart from the duties of Directors as prescnbed in
the Act the Directors are expected to demonstrate high standards of
ethical behaviour, communications skills and independant
judgement. The Directors are expected to abide by the respactive
code of conduct as applicabletothem.

Independence: A director will be considesed indepandent if / sha
meats the criteria lald down in section 149 (6) of the Act, the Rules
frames thereunder and Regulation 161(1 b} ofthe Listing Regulations
Evaluation Process:

Choice Internatignal Limited believes in wvalue for its stakehelders
through ethical process and integnty. The Board plays a very imponant
rols in ensurnng the Company’s perfarmance to monitor and provide
timely inputs to enhance the Compary's Performance and =at right
direction far growth. Hence it s important that everny indivdual Board
Mernber affectively contributes inthe Board deliberations.

At "Cholce” we follow annual evaluation for our Key Manageral
Persons and other aligible employees including the senior
management bearm. A process sculptied on this method has been
desigred for evaluation of Directors under this process, the company
managemeant will:

*  Farmulatethe process lor evaluating and rating Directors

= [esign the evaluation template / questionnaire and implementation
process

*  Pagrreviewof each Director

» dnatyse feedback received from each Director

+ Weighting the Bvaluation summary of each Directar,

Key Evaluation Criteria:

o Artendance and contributien &t Board and Committee meetings

* His'her stature, appropriate mis of expertise, skills, bahaviour,
experience, lsadership gualities,

* Sense of sobriety and understanding of business, strategic
direction to align company's value and standards,

* Histher knowledge of finance, accounts, legal, investment,
marketing, fareign exchange/ hedging, internal controls, sk
management, assassment and mitigation, business operations,
processes and Corporate Governance.

*  [His‘her ability to create a performance culture that drives value
creation and a high guality of debate with robust and probing
discussions.

s Effective decisions making ability to respond positively and

Board Report

constructively to implement the same 1o encourage more
transpa I'EI'I{._'".

* Qpen channels of communication with execotive managament
and athér colleague on Board ta maintain high standards of
integrity and probity.

* Recognize the role which he/she is expected fo play, intermal Board
Relationships to make decisions objectively and collectively in the
best interest of the Company to achieve organizational successes
and harmonizing the Board,

* His/her glebal presence, rational, physical and metal fitness,
broader thinking, vision on corporate social responsibifity ete.

* Quality of decision making & understanding financial statemants
and business performance, raising of finance, best source of
finance, working capital requirement, fores dealings, geopolitics,
human resources etc.

*  His/her ability o monitor the performance of management anc
satisty himself with integeity of the financial contrels and systemsin
place by ensuring right level of contact with external stakeholders,

= His'har contribution to enhance owverall brand image ol the
Company,

Criteria for Determining Remuneration of Dinector’s, Key Managerial

Persennal and Particulars of Employeas:

The Remuneration paid to the Directors Is in accordance with the
Memination & Remuneration Policy formulated in accardance with
section 178 of the Act and Regulation 1% of the Listing Regulations
(including any statutery Madification{s) or re- enactment{z) theresf for
the time baing in force
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AUDITOR'S

Statutory Auditor's

M/s. Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP. Chartered Accountams Mumbai
{Registration Moo 1173660 W-100018) are the Statutory Auditors of
the Company for the year ended March 31, 2020.

Mis. Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLF, Chartered Accountants (Firm
Registration Mo, 117366WW-100018) were appointed as the
Statutory Auditors of the Company at the 24th Annual General
Maeting of the Campany held on Saptember 18, 2017, to hold office
until conclusion 5 years from the date of the said Annual General
Meeating held on September 18, 2017 on a remuneration mutually
agreed upon by the Board of Directors and the Statutory Auditors,
The appaintment of Statutany Auditor was subject to ratification by the
Members at every subsequent AGM held after the AGM held on
September 18, 2017, Pursuant ta the amendments made to Section
139 of the Act by the Companies {Amendment} Act, 2017 effactive
fram May OF, 2018, the requirement of seeking ratification of the
Members for the appointment of the Stattory Auditors has been
withdrawn from the Statute, Hence the resalution seeking ratification
of the Members for continuance of their appointrent at this AGM is
not being sought.

Mis. Deloitte Haskins & Seils LLP have confirmed that they are not
dizsqualified fram continuing as the Statutory Auditorofthe Company.

The Auditors of the Company have issued an unmodified opinion on
the Financial Statements forthe Financial Yearended March 33, 2020.
The Auditor's Report for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2020 on
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the Fimancial Statements {Standalone & Consolidated}) of the
Company is part ofthis Annual Repaort

Secretarial Auditor

The Board of Directors of the Company has appainted M, R M
Mimani & Associates LLP, practising Company Secretaries (CP No
11601} as the Secretarnal Auditor of the Company for the Financial
Year2020-21.

The Secretarial Audit Report for the Financial Year ended March 31
2020 under CompaniesAct, 2013, read with Kules made thersunder
under Listing Regulation 24 A of tha Listing Regulations | including
any Statutory Modification{s ) or re- enacimeni{s) thereof for the time
being inforce is setoutinthe Annexure tothis Report

The Secretarial Compliance Report for the Financial Year ended
March 31, 2020 in relation to Compliance of all applicable SEBI
Regulations, Circulars / guidelines issued thereunder | pursuant to
requirement of Regulation 24 A of the Listing Regulation, abtained
from Ms. Anjana Sharma & Associates ( Company Secretaries) is set
Sutin Annexure to this Report The Secretarial Compliance Report has
bean voluntarily disclosed as a Part ol Annual Report as good
disclosure practice

Internal Auditor

The Board of Directors of the Company has appointed M/ Gupta
Shyam & Co. Chanerad Accountants (Registration No! 103450W) a5
the Internal Auditor of the Company far the Year 2020-27. The reports

submitted by the Internal Auditor have bean reviewed by the
Statutory Auditor's and the Audit Committes on regularintarvals,

PARTICULARS OF LOAN , GAURANTEES OR
INVESTMENTS BY THE COMPANY

Details ol Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the
provisions of the Compames Act, 20713 along with the applicable
Rufes of the Act are given in the notas to the Financial Statements
forming part of this Annuwal Repart,

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIOM

All Contracts / arrangements’ transactions entered in 1o by the
Company during the Year under review with the Related Parties ware
in ordinary course of business and on arm's length basis interms of the
provision of the act

All Refated Party Transactions are placed before the Audit Committes
for approval; Omnibus approval was obtained on a yearly basis for
transactionswhich areof repetitive nature. All the transactions with the
related parties wera reviewed and approved by the Audit Commities
andl ara in accordance with the palicy an dealing structure of Ralated
Farty Framework adopted by the Company

Al related party transactions that were estered during the financial
year 201920, were on arm's length basis and in ordinary course of
business. The Company's policy on dealing with and materiality of
Related Party Transaction is available on the website of the Company
www choiceindia.com .

The Company in terms of Regulation 23 of the Listing Regulations
subsmits within 30 days from the date of Publication of its Financial
Results for the Halt Year end, disclosures of related party transactions
on a consolidated basis; as per the lormat specilied in the relevant
aceaunting standards for annual results o the Exchange . The Said
disclosures can be accessed on the website of the Company at
woww.choicaindia.com

Thiz details of the transactions with related panies during FY 201920
are providedin the accompanying financial statements.

The details of Related Farty transactions ara et out in notes to the
Financial Statements. Form AOC -2 pursuant to Section 134 3KR) of
the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rulesizsetoutinthe Annaxureto
thisrepor & alse forma a part of the Financial Statements .

Curing the year under review there are no materizl related party
transactions with the Directors. Promoters & key Managerial Persons
of the Company.

REPORTING OF FRAUDS
Thersware nomnstances of Fraud arcused during theyvearunder review,

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDER PASSED BY THE
REGULATORS OR COURTS

Mo significant and material arder has been passed by the regulatars,
courts, tribunals impacting the going concern status and Company's
operation’s in futura.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYIS REPORT

The Management Discussion and Analysis Repornt on the operations
of the Campany, as required under the SEBI [Listing Obligation &
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 [heren referred 1o as
“Listing Regulations™is provided in a separate section and forms a Part
of this report. The section covers the overallindustry structure, glokal
and domestic econamy, development in Business Operations &
perfarmance of varicus segments of the Company’s Busingss.

Board Report

CORPORTAE GOVERMNANCE

As per Regulation 34(3) read with schedule ¥ of the Listing
Regulations, a separate section on Corporate Governance practices
followed by the Company together with a certificate from the
Secretarial Auditor confirming Complisnce forms an integral part of
the Report,

EXATRACTS OF ANNUALRETURN

Tha details forming part of the extracts of the Annual Return in Foarrm -
MGT -2 as required under section 92 of the Act | s annexed az
Annexura which forms anintegral part of this Report.

BUSIMNESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT

Regulation 34{2) of the SEBI Listing Regulations . 2015 interalia
provides that the Annual Report of the top 1000 listed entities based
on market capitalisation [ calculated on March 31 every financial year
shall include Business Responsibility Report (BRR) as part of the
Repaort

YWour Company does nat fall within the purview af the above
mentioned Regulation, howsver in arder to follow the best practices
and in the interest of the Shareholders your campany has adopted itz
Business Responsibility Repart | BRR) which iz enclosed as Annexure
tothe Director's Repart,

CEO/CFO CERTFICATIONS

i termeof Regulaticns 1 7(8) of the Listing Regulations, a cartificate az
prescribed in Part B of the said Regulations, from Mr, Kamal Pocddar
Managing Director of the Company and Mr. Manoj Singhania , Chief
Financial Officer of the Company | for the Financial Year 2019-20 with
regards to Financial statements and other matters ara reguired under
the Listing Regulations forms pand of the Report on Corporate
Govemance,

POLICIES ADOPTED BY THE COMPANY

To follow the best practice of Good Corporate Governance &
Transparency In its operations, the Company has set rules for its
intarnal working and smooth functianality of its operations
embedded the Companys policy. The policies adopted by the
Company are as follows:

#  Whistle Biower Policy

* Policy on Matenal Subzsidiary

» Policy on Ralated Party

#  Policy on Materiality of Events

=  Policy on Archival of Information

= hlomination &Hermunaeration i-"nli{:,l

» Codeof Conduct for the Board Members and Senior Managerial
Employeas

*  Codeof Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Prce Sensitive Information
* CodeforEmployees

* Policyon prevention of Sexual HarassmentatWaork Place

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY /VIGILMECHANISM

The Company has a robust wigil mechanism threugh its Whestle
Blower Folicy approved and adopted by the Board of Directors of the
Company In compliance with the provisions of Section 177 af the
Companies Act & Regulation 22 of the Listing Regulations.

the Company has in place the structure to repart ganuine concerns or
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DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY & STATEMENT
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& in the preparation of the annual acocounts for the financial year
ended March 31, 2020 the applicable accounting standarcls have
breen followed along with proper explanation relating to material
departuresifany

b, the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied
them consistently and madea |'.H:ige-r'1-5!r|rs and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent so as to give true and fair view of tha state
of affairs of the Company asat March 31, 2020 and of the profits of
the Lompany forthe Financal Yearended March 31, 2020
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APPRECIATION & ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Company's achievement would not have been possible without
the support of our employees at all levels bacause of whose hard
work and support at this moment of crisis, the Company could sustain
this turbulent times due to the ongeing pandemic.

The Board of Directors place their sincere appreciation, for the
contribution made by all our employees
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On behalf of the Board of Directors

Sel/- Sd/-

Kamal Poddar Ajay Kejrival
(Managing Directar) |Director)

DIN Ne: 01518700 DIN No: 03051841

Mumbal: September 05, 2020
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Annexure to Director's Report

ADC-2

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS/ARRANGMENTS

MADE WITH RELATED PARTIES

Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3} of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of
the Companies [Account) Rules, 2014

Form for disclosure of particulars of contract! arrangements entered into by the company

with related parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm
length transaction under third proviso thereta

Details of contracts or arrangements or transaction not at arm's length basis:

I. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

i CiM

ii Registration Date

fii Mame of the Company

(1] Category of the Company
Sub-rategory of the Company

Anneaure to Director's Report

FORM NO. MGT 2
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

as on financial year ended on 37.03.2017%
Pursuant to: Section 92 {3} of the Companies Act, 2013 and nife 1201) of the Company (Management & Administration | Rules, 2014,

LAT190MH1993PLE0T 1117
12/Man23

CHOICE INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
Company limited by Shares
Mon-gowvt company

Annexure to Directar's Repaort

There were no confracts or arrangements of transaction enterad in to during the year ended March 31, 2020, ¥ "Address of the Registered office & contact details® égg;’gﬂ:%’;;Ri’fi:;?:ﬁf‘??f:‘f:' i
Wh|l'.h were not at arm's I‘ﬂl'lgth hﬁﬁfﬁ. NAGAR AHDHEHI ‘IEAST]. MUf'-."lB.ﬂnl d":;{!' Gl?'?
Wi Whathar listed company YES
Details of material contracts or arrangements or transaction at arm's length basis: Gh Name , Address & contact details of the Registrar SHAREX DYMNAMIC IINDIA)PRIVATE

& Transfer Agent, if any.

LIMITERURNIT N, 1, LUTHRS INDUSTRIAL
PREMISES, AMDHERI-KURLA RCAD, SAFED
POOL, ANDHER [EAST], MUMBAI - 400072

Il. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated
I
Name & Description of main produ: MIC Code of the %% to total turmoves
Cheice Equity Subsidiary Offica Rent + 10 Yaars Lease Rent for May 29, 2019 24,651 400 Product of the company
Brakin Compan Suppor Service oifice Premises+
# B 1 NBFC 74 10.71%
Private Limitod Charge Service Charge
. Brking & Distributian 74 54 5%,
3 Consulting & Out Jourcing 74 19.7%%
Shon icdi b & 1 1
Choice Wealth Subsidary Office Rent + 10 Years Lease Rent for May 29, 2019 115,700 4 i 74 5 apd
Management Company Support Service office Premizes4
i 2 Cithar unallocable 74 0.03%
Private Limited Charge Sarmvice Charge
Choice Capatal Subsichary Office Rant + 10 Yaars Lease Rent for May 29, 2019 3.992.900 Il PARTICULARS OF HOLDING i SLUBSIDIARY & ASSQOCIATE COMPANIES
Adwisors Company Support Service office Premizes+ !
Private Limited Charge Senvice Charge |
1 Choice Equity Broking Private Lim ted UESFFIMH20TIOPTCISE714  Whally owned Subsidiary 101 2[87)
Chaice Consultancy Subsidiary Office Rent + 10 Years Lease Rent for May 29 2019 13,877,100 z Chaorce Capital Adwisors Private Lmited USSIFOMHZOTOPTCI98262  Whally owned Subsidiary 10 2(87)
. ] 3 Choice Wealth Managemant Private Lirmited UaEFIMH2D OPTCTIRESFE Step Down Subsicdiany = 287
Services Company Suppornt Services office Premizes+ X )
4 Chaice Portfobo Mansgement Senices Pivate Lmaged  U74140MH2007PTCI 7075 Subsidiary 5261 2H8T)
Frivate Limited Charge Service Charge 5 Choce. Consultancy Services Private Limited UT2F00MH20T10PTCTYE403  Whally owned Subsidiary 1180 2087
6 Chence Corporate Sernces Prvate Limited USTTFOMH20TTFTCZ14515  Step Down Subsidiary - 2087
7 Chaice Fir Pr: s Limited U74999MH201&PTCZ2B1908 . Saubsidiary a8.17 (&7
Choice Gorparate Subsidiary | Office Rent + 10Yesrs | Lease Rentior May 29, 2019 242 500 S 4 G _ * 218
] ) ) ) ) i ) B Choice Tech Lab Solutions Private Limited U74999MHZN 6FTC 286302 Sten Down Subsidiarny - 2i8T)
SEEeED Company S A office Premises+ 9  Choice Refall Solutions Private Limited U74999MHZO15PTC268858  Step Down Subsidiary - 287
Frivate Limited Charge Service Charge 10, Choice Peers International Private Limited The Company has Disposed of the entlre helding In Mfs. Chaice Peers Internasonal
Private Lirmited on June 25, 2015
ke

11 Buring the paas the tl-_ﬂp—‘ll!lrhiﬂtllmfﬂrflﬂ anariting hioldineg ininns whsly seeneid Nqﬁ M atisnal slilsmidinp e marrially Mys Chelies li".aq.am‘::'mruh.n F'!'iuu!u Limiiteed, My Chaici ﬁntqll
Salutions Privete Lenided M Chojoe Weelth Sangement bendices frivate Linited | W Chosca Tach Lab Salulions Prisete “Licited bo s sholly osnmed subsdiong Wéc Chonen Equity
Presicing Prevate Lirlled ' it ' '
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(IV) SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share capital Break up as % to total Equity)

Dt

Phiysical Tiatai

A af Total
Shares

Dermat

Physical Testal

Shares

% af Tevial

A Promoters

11 Indian

a} IndividualfHUF

b} Central Govt.or State Gowt,”
c) Bodies Corporates

d] Bank/FI

e) Any other

14300071

J8e5ET

SUB TOTAL:(A) (1) | 12686538
{2} Foreign

al MRI-Individuals

b} Other Individuals

t] Bodies Corp

d) Banks=/Fl

g} Any ather

SUB TOTAL (A] (2}

Total Sharsholding of Promoter | 14484538
{A)= (AKTIHAKZ)

B. PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING

{1} Institutions

a} Mutual Funds

b} Banks/Fl

o) Cenntral govl 150
d} State Gowt

&) Venture ﬂ.g;_'-l'..d Fisricd

fi Insurance Companias

gl FliS

h} Foreign Venture Capital Funds

iy Cthers (specify)

SUB TOTAL (BH1):

{2 Mon Insthutions

al Bodies corporates

Wmdian

jilverseas

Imedividuats

1} Individizal shareholders
|‘:}'c§-r|!.3 rewring share hlru'l:.ﬂ
upto Rs. 1 lakhs

i} Individuals shareholdars
haoiding raminat share capital
inekxcess of s 1 lakhs
Dthers {specity)

Clearing Member

OCE

MR LT

28460730

=

1147003

1158139

C

2619
SUB TOTAL (BN2k 6245710

Total Public Shareholding
(B)= (B 1)+{BHZ)

a2458460

. Shares held by Custadian for
GDR: & ADRs"

Promaoted & Promoler Grq}up
Pulafic

Grand Total (A+B4C | 19932398

| 14300011

386527

14685538

‘ | 14486538

2000 | 2842730

0402 1 1237405

{ 1158139

2619
57219
| 72402 | s318112

: 72402 | 5318112

‘. 72402 l’ 20004800

71.48

1.93

7342

F3a2

517

572

000

b2e

2657

26.57

100

14300011

386527

146846538

| 14484538

3092

2708475
1215307
1213949
L4145
55252

5247148

5200260

19536798

14300071 T1.48

386027 153

-| 14586538 | 7342

.| 14588538 | 7342

4 3092 0.0%

2710495 13.55

A&4002 | 128730% b4l

0| 121349 .07

54165 027
55252 028

6EDO2.| 5315170 2657

65002 | S3tTd26d 20,58

ol :
&8002 : 20004800 100

0,00

(.00

GO0

.00

0

T

021

027

o

fr.28

-I},_EH
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(i1) SHARE HOLDING OF PROMOTERS

Annexure to Directar's Repaort

| Moofsharss | %oltaral | %ofshanis | Mook shares| %ottotal | % of shores
shares of the|  pledgad | { sharasof the|  pledged
campany | ancumbenad company | encumberad
| | to total sharas to potal shares L
1 Mrs. Vinita Sunil Patodia 1,575,000 787 (NR RN 1.612.500 804 0.7%
4 Mrs. Hemlata Kamal Poddar 850,000 425 000 850,000 425 0.00
3 Mr. Sunil Kumar Patodia 1,100,000 5,50 [.00 1,238 500 619 0.4%
a ir. Kamal Poddar 2,500,011 12:50 (.00 25000011 1250 0.00
5 Wi, Kamal Poddar HUF 225,000 142 .00 225,000 1.12 000
& Mir. &run Kumar Poddar 2, 100000 10.50 [.00 2,700,008 10,50 0,600
7 M=, Shree Shakambhari Exirns 384,527 1.93 000 386,527 153 0.00
Private Limited
g rs, Sonu Poddar 1,250,000 &8.25 .00 1,260,000 4,25 .04
G M= Arunkumar Poddar HUF 225,000 112 [:00 225,000 112 0.00
10 Mr. &nil Chotmal Patedia 1,708,000 5.50 .00 1,100,000 5.50 0.00
11 s, Suril Chotmal Patodia HUF 304,000 1.54 .00 300,004 1.50 0.04
12 Mirs. Archana Anil Patodia 1,575,000 787 0.00 1,575,000 7.87 0.00
13 M5, Al Chiotrmal Patodia HUF 300,000 1.50 (BRG] 300,000 1.50 .00
14 M. Suyash Patodia 300,000 1.50 0.00 300,004 1.50 Q.00
15 M. Shreya Patodsa 200,000 1.50 0.00 124,000 0.62 (.88
=] M. Aayush Anil Patodis 300,000 1.50 0.00 300,008 1.50 .00
17 hés. Aastha Anil Patadia 00,000 1.50 .00 300,004 1.58 Q.00
i Total 14,686,538 | 73.42 - 14688538 7342 | : | 0,00

(iii) CHANGE IN PROMOTERS' SHAREHOLDING

Date of Event Mo of Shares % of total shaves Mo, of Shares % of total shamas
of the company of the company
1 Me. Sunil Kurar Patodia 1B/06&/2019 11000 5.50 1238500 &:19
2 Mes: Vinita Patadia 1EAOE201Y 1575004 r.ar 1612500 B.0&
3 s, Shreya Fatodia TR/062M9 300,000 1,50 12

4.000.00 D62
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<

her than Direcors. Promot % Holders of GDRs & ADRs)

ar14212
Baaton Datals . ) : 150000
Kirod! Mal 8o
Sunita Modi : : 044
1 Mataddin y = 027
Govind Patodia HUF
Bhira) Lalpuria
Jitendra Kurmar Bhagat
R

h Kuimar Agarwal

Snahlata P"""'Tl aria S0000

Sunil Kumar Bagaria

Sandeep Mandawewala

Mitesh Agarwal

harehold of Directors & K

i the beginmng ol the yes 010452019
iy thaer Ve dr

3110353
010 850.000

B50,000

At the |.ll.'l;;llll'.||lll| of the year
Change |_||_|r|:|.'_:| i
At the end of the year 10,000 10,000 0.05

a3
(=]
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Annexure to Director's Report Annexure to Directar's Report

(V) INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtadness of the Company including interest outstanding/accnied but not due for payment (Standalone) O REMUNERATION TG KEY MAMNAGERIAL PERSOMNMEL OTHER THAN MO/MANAGER/AWTD
1 Gross Salary Company CFQ TOTAL
Secratary

Indebtness at the beginning of the financial year Karishma Shah | Manoj Singhania
I} Principal Amioui 4,530,083 EER 4,531,014 {a} Salary as per provisions containad m saction 1701} of the Income Tax A, 1941, 1,190,154 1,740,000 2930156
I} locerast due Ut novpsll (b} Value of perquisites ufs 17(2) of the Income Tax Act, 1541
i) Interast accrued but not due 4,505 538 - 4,505,538
Total (i+ii i) | 505,621 31 9,037 483 {c ¥ Profits.in lisu of salary under section 17(3) of the Income Tax Act, 1941

' - 2 tock Optio
Change in Indebtedneass during the financial year Heck Option
Additions 95 614,959 137.377 337 §32.992 294 3 | Sweat Equity
Reductian 2035621 . 035,621 4 Commission
Net Change 86,579,338 137,378 268 231,478,248 R Chpnahy
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year y

; ) othars, specify

i} Principal Amaunt 94,100 004 137,378 2448 231478 248
il Interest due but not paid 3 Othars, plaase specify
i) Interast accrued but not due 1,514,959 . 1,514 259
Tatal {i+ii+iii) | 95,614,959 137,378,268 232,993,227 Total 1,190,156 1,740,000 2,930,156

(VI) REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole time director and/er Manager:

g | (VIl) PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPPOUNDING OF OFFENCES
Tetal fomma t
:.".'|r:ll 5o Panal
1 Gross salary Cormpan ot | Llescrintn Punishenent
(@) Salary as per pravisions contained in section 171} of the Inceme Tax, 1741 2,221,500 2,231,500 Campaunding
() Value of perguisites w's T7(2) of the Income tax Act, 1941 :
1) Prafits in lleu of salary Under section 17(3) of the Income Tax Act, 1961
2 | Stock option
3 Swiat Equity A, COMPANY
C TIES
el i e Penalty NIL NIL NIL MiL NIL
as % of profit
others {specily) Punishmerdt MIL MIL MIL MIL MIL
5 | Others, plaase specily : Compounding ML ML ML ML hIL
Total (A) 5,251,500 5,251,500 il Niik Nl Nl il
Ceiling as per the Act
B. Remuneration to other directors: B.DIRECTORS
Penalty I WAL I ML M|
Purishmmert ML ML MIL AL MIL
Compoundmg MIL MIL MIL MIL MIL
| . D K. Goswami Independent Dinecror 200,000 200,000 MIL NIL MIL MIL MIL
2 Mr Kanhaiyvalal Berwal Independent Direcior 200,000 - 200,000
3 Mr. Ashok Kumar Thakur Independant Director 200000 - 200,000 C.OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Pernal MIL MIL MIL ML MIL
4 Mrs, Hemilata Poddar Mon Executive Directon il
Punishment ML ML ML ML MIL
- Mr. Ajay Kegriwal Executive Director ’
Compounding ML ML ML i MIL
& Mr. Bharatkiemar Shah Independent Director
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Annexure to Director's Report

Business Responsibility Reports

The group "CHOICE" believes in’ ecological developmeant of its
Business, in this constantly changing Business environment. The group
catersinto "Financial Services”, nonethelass there are continuous efforts
by the Managament team, for sustainable devélopment of all our
Business segments. The company aspires [0 make optimal
consumption of natural resources for its eperational sctvitios,

Preface:

Az mandated by the Seclurities and Exchange Board of india [ SEBL) has
mandated | India's top 1000 companies listed on BSE and N5E based
on market capitalisation are required to  submit * Business
Responsibility Report ™ BRR}along with thelr Annual Repaort . Although
wour Company i$ not in the leagus of Top 1000 Listed Companies, Your
Company voluntarily aims 1o adopt the guidelines issued by SEBI with
respect 1o Business Responsibility statement to adhere to best
philosophies of ethical principles to run a company and to abide to the
Corporate Governance practises in truslettar & spirit,

“Choice International Limited” of *Chaice” your Company voluntarily

for the Financal Year 2019 .20 presents ts BRRE in ling with Mational
Voluntary Guidelings on Social, Environmental and Economic
Responsibilities of Business (NVGs) and the BRR Requirements of
SEBL The Husiness Responsibility Performance of the Company is
assessed annually by the Board of Directors of the Company.

The Company is at a very nascent stage to adhere to the regulations
stipulated for addressing the Business Responsibility Report) the
Company is in the process of adopting structured policies to adhere
tothe Principles of Business Responsibility Reporting

Your Company believes in the soul of the quiding Principtes. which
shall lead us to the path of shouldering cur responsibilities towards
the society inwhichwe practice.

Your Company “Choice International Limited" along with its
subsidiaries and step down subsidiaries are purely engaged in
Service " industry , the exercise is to follow the drill of making
optimum utilisation of environmental resources & adhere to the
moral principles of social responsibility towards the society at large
intrue letter & spirit.

As per Clause 34 (f) of the SEB| Listing Obligation & Disdosure Requirement Regulation, 2015

ABDUT THE COMPANY

1 Corporate identification Mumber
Z Mame of the Company
3 Registered Address

Website

Email Address

Financial Year repored

Sectors)that the company is engaged in
Three kay products! services manufactured/
provided by the company

(= BT R O T -

9 Tatal Numbar of locations where business activity is
undertaken by the company
10 Markets served by the company

Paid up Capital

Tatal Turnover

Total Profit after Tax

Tatal spending on C5R as percantage of PAT (%)
List the actiwities in which expenditure in 4 above
has been incurred

Lo L By —

1 Does the Company has any subsidiary
Company ¢ Companies?

2 Do the Subsidiary Company’ Companies participata in
the BR Initlatives of the parent CompanyT I Yes, than
indicate the number of such subsidiary company {5)

3 Do any other antity/ entities { ag. Suppliers, distributor ete, )
that the company does business with | participate in the
BR initiatives of the Company 7 If yes, then indicate the
percentags of such entity! entities!.ess than 30%.,
30-60%, Mora than &0 %)

LeT190MH1993PLCOT1117

Cholce International Limited

Choice House, Shree Shakambhari Corporate Park, Plat

Mo 154 - 158, 1B, Nagar, Andhari { East), Mumbai - 400099
wiww. choiceindia.com

info@choiceindia, com

Aprit @1, 2019 wo March 3%, 2020

Firrancial Services

Broking & Distribution

Management Consultancy-

Invastment Banking
48

Domeastic

Rs.20.,00.48,000
Re.12695.73 Lakhs
5124311 Lakhs

Ml

Educational Frogrammes,
Rural Development,
Enviranmant Sustainability

Yas

The Company has Ming whally owned subsidiarnes as on
March 31, 2020

Yes

Met applicable
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1 Detalls of Directors) responsible for BR
a Details of the Director responsible forimplementation of the BR Palicy
CHM Mo 01518700
Mame tamal Poddar

Dresignation
b Dratails of the BR h=ad
CHM Mumber (f applicable)
Mame
Designation
Talephans Numbear
Emall Addrass
2 Priniciple -wiza BR Policy/ Palicies
Governance related 1o BR

Managing Director

Manoj Singhania

Chief Financial Officer
022-67079999
manoj.singhania@choiceindia.om
Ircluded in the Repaort

Included in the Report

MNFORMATICN

1 Frincagle- Wise Performance

Included in this repa

Principle 1:
ETHICS, TRANSPERANCY & ACCOUNTABILITY

The Company believes that good corporate govermance has to be
wovien i the DA of the organisation helping to build a distinctive
cultirs from top to bottom. Therefare the practices of your company
extend heyond legal provisions and woluntarly embracing set of
strong govarnance principhes.

Choice Group considers Corpora Governance as an integral part of
good management and is committed to aching professionally, fairly
and with intagrity in all its dealings.

The Standard on ethics, transparency and sccountability are sfated
undertha Company policy on Code ol Conduct. Code of Conduct is
the statementof values and represents the standard conduct on which
avaryone associated with your company s expected o cbser in all
business endeavours, Your Company also hasaWhistle Blowsr Palicy
which allows employeesto bring to the attention of the Management |
promptly and directly any unethical behaviour suspected fraud or
irragularity inthe company practises which is not in line with the Code
of Conduct of the Company, Adequate measures are in place o
ensure safeguards against victimization foremployees who reportany
unethical behaviour,

Ethics:

Thiere is @ robust system to protect the confidentiality of unpubiished
price sensitiveiniormation. The system works theough processes that
nat enly ensures compliance with the re quirements prescribed under
Securities and Exchange Board of India{ Prohibition of Insider Tradina)
Regulations, 2015; as amended fram time to time, by making timely
disclosures to stock exchanges, declarations by designated persons,
but also mowes ahead with the help of the Companys Code of
Practices and Procedures for fair diselosure of Unpublished Price
sensitive Information. The Code is apphicable to those employees of
the Company, its subsidianes and joint ventures, who may be deemed
tohave accesato unpublished price sensitive infarmation

Me Stake holders complaints with respect to the Company's code of
conductand whisthe Blower Policy were received in the reparting year,

Transparency:

Transparancy and fairness in dedling with clients and othear stake
holders is one of the eprite of the company's practice & policy. The
Company considers that translucent warking in all the strata of the
ofganisation isthe most vital aspact of the company's growth story

The Company regularly through its corporate announcement
practice, communicates to its Mambers B other stake holders about
any new development & viigl infermation on the Company's
Parformance & growth,

Accountability:
Your Company's operations are managed by Professionals, where the

Company has embedded the Policy of Makar - Checker, which leads
to decline of negligence on part of any officials of the Company

The Campany has in placa tha mechanism for dealing with investar
services & resolving the same on priority basis, The detall of lnvesto
Complain fecelved during the year is provided in the Corporate
Goverpance Report,

Principle 2:
FRODUCT LIFECYCLE SUSTANABILITY

Busitess should provide goods and services that are safe and
contribiuts to sustainability thraughout their life eyebe,

Choice Group s entirely in catering financial services including s
subsidiaries and 5 nat engaged in any kind of manufacturing activity
orsendcesunder the purview of BRER,

The Core business ares of the group s financial services divided in to
four reportable segments comprising of Equity Broking &
Bistribution, Commuodity Broking, Wealth Management, FPortfolio
Managemant, Investment Hanking and Adwvisary , Retall Loans,
Management Consultancy ,Cross Border Consultancy, Non- Bankmg
Financial Sarvices & [T Solutions,

The group directly |s not engaged inany kind of manufacturing
achivity al work place whera the Company needs any diraet
cansumption of Raw Material | however your company encourages
praperliss warking and upgrading itsellwith the technalogy
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Principle 3:
EMPLOYEES WELL BEING

Business should premote the well -being of all smployess

The Company truly balieves that Our Tolks are our assats and are of
primary Importance to our business. On the outhreak of the pandemic
COVID - 19, the only primary abjective of the Company wasthe health
& safaty of its employes.

The Company by all possibile means have tried 1o accommoidate thei
amployess by encouraging them with aur "Work from Policy * & also
by providing Financial sids to the pean in need.

The Choice group has in all 908 emplaymes as a part of Choice family,
during the ongaoling pandemic best utilisation of time was done by
conducting Webinar on regular basts to updatis & train the employess
with chunging Business modules & mgulations

The Company an regular basis conduets, induction programmas for
The new employees, o wtor and traln them on the Company's Vision &
Mission | the Working strategies, policies adopted by the Company,
the business conducted by the company, the Code of conduct
adopted by the Company, the svailability of Whistle Blowsr
Mechanism of the Company  the policy on seaual harassment

The Company appreciates the efiorts taken by the employees inwriting
the: Growth story of the Company. The Campany strives not only to train
the employes for their business needs but ot a large the employses are
inall tralnwd for the Development of thelr overall personality,

The Campany did not recaive any complaint melating o child labeur,
forced labour, inveluntary labrour or sexual harassment during the
yaar 01%- 20 and are not pending as of March 31, 2020,

Principle 4:

STAKEHOLDER ENAGAEMENT

Business should respect the interest of, and be responsive towards all
stakoholders, espedially those who are disadvantaged, vulnerable
and manginalised

The Company's code of Canduct strives for equal opportunity at work
place and also provides a route map for Interacting with its various Stake
Holder on regular basiz. Staksholder participation and interaction js
crucial to the overall progress and transfarmation of the Company.

Employees: At “Chaice” all employees ar treated fairly & uniformiy, all
smployses have equal opportunities for thelr growth & developmiant
The Remuneration practices are based on ment without regard to the
person'sethnic background or gender discrimination.
Shareholders and Investors

Your Company regulathy interacts with s Sharcholders snd nvestons
through results, anncuncement, annual reports, Updates an
Company Websites and other tranaaction specific Disclosures in
public domain. The Annual General Meating gives the sharehalders
an opportunity 1o directly sddress the Baard of Directors and the
Managemant during the mesting. The Board Members directly
engageswith the shareholders during the Meating.

Your Company has a designated e- mall address for shareholders the
griwvance if any can be emailed &t the mall address, Efforts are made
la resolves the Sharsholder Complaing if any on immediaste bass

Clients

Your Company being & Financial Service provider is required 1o be
upcated on any changes in the policy and procedures by the statutory
suthonties and needs to update the client on the same. Your Company
constantly seeks to understand the needs of the clients and brings in
technology to ensure that the dients are kept informed and engaged
aboul any policy changs or procedural change.

Stock Exchange

Your Company being a Listed Company on BSE Limited abides by the
guidelines as stated by the exchange. Timely disclosures and
reparting are made bythe Company tothe Exchangs,

Principle 5:

HUMAN RIGHTS

Busingss should respect and promote human rights

The group does rat bave any specilic policy on humasn rights. The
firma adheres to all statues which embodies the principles of human
rights auch as prevention of Child Labour, prevention of sexual
harassment, equal employment opporunities etc. The group is
cammitted to 2 work environment in which all individuals are treatad
with respect and dignity

The group has decided to uphold the human nghts of ail its
employeas and it strictly ensures compllances with all applicable laws
of the land pertaining to human rights

Thit Company did not receive any complaint relating 1o violation of
human rights during the year 2015 .20,

Principle &:
ENVIRONMENT

Buniness should respect, protect, and make efforts-to restore the
envirenmeant

Your Company promaotes green energy and energy saving inltiatives
armongst ks employess. The Company Has installed s roof tap solar
plant at its corporate office which leads 1o savings in ©O2 emission.
Our offices have been designed such that they are equipped with
enorgy efficient air conditioners, LED Lights and other energy
conseration measures. We sl Cholos have sdopted Solar Power plant
1o have an eco-Inendly environment
The Company has installed various software’s which leads to
opermimnal ease and thus your Company propagates = Paperless
working, to reduce paper consumption, we emphasise the use of
alternate communicaton Channels such as emall The Company's
Annual Report 2018- 19 was sent to marm than 1500 Sharehaldars via
amall, thus saving tons of paper and as g measure of protecting the
OV MGRT Saing many trees,

Your company sttempts towards absorbing graen sustamable
pradudts, processes, policies and practices. We af Cheice promote
cost efficient ervironment -friendly meswres snd build swarenass
and consclousness of our environmant among employess.

Wie have also requested the Sharsholder to register theiremail IDs ta
g#t Annual Reports and other Communications through email instesd
of paper mode.

Principle 7:
POLICY ADVOCACY

Business, when engaged in influencing public and regulatery policy,
should dasa in s responsible manner

Your Company's approach 1o ddvocacy I8 guided by the Business
Principles. The Company truly believes that any contact by the
Company or its business assoristes with government, legisiators,
regulators or NGO's must be done with honesty, integrity, openness
ant in complisnce with applicable laws. Only autharized and trained
officials can interact with thess organisations

Your Company participates i multi stakeholder engagements and

when relevant, respands to public consultations, The groug support
ind participates in various discussions and initiatives taken by the
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gavarnment, regulatars and various associations for davelopment or
advancement ol linance services industry.

Principle 8:

INCLUSIVE GROWTH

Business should suppon inclusive growth and equitable development
The Company "Choice International Limited” hias voluntarily adopted
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities. The CSR activities of
the group express posithve confribution towards economic. sooall
environment well - being of commumities through [1s CSR actrvitiec.

Principle 9:
CUSTOMER VALUE

Buzinesses should engage with and provide value to their customers
and consumers in a respansible manner

Your Company understands its client's needs & sxpactations | the
effors are madas to deliver unique sohstions as per their expectation .
Theinterest ol the clients is the primary foous for serving them better,
The group understand its client’s nesids, address them and deliver
ungue solubions as pertheir expectations.

Annexura 1o Director's Report ‘

Responsible Marketing & Communications:

Yaur Company is cormmitted to bullding trust through responsible
practices and through transparent communication both directly to the
ehients and indirectly through other key stakehaldars

Its yiir Company's responsibility to give disclosures to the client
befare entaring in to any kind ol agreement,

Your Company uses a combination of channels, which snclude
websites, customer care numibrers and leaflets to communicate openty
with itz clients

On behalf of the Board of Directars

Sdf- sd/- _

Kamal Pocldar Ajay Kejriwal
(Managing Directar ) (Director}

DINNo: 01518700 DIN No: 03051841
Mumbai

Date: September0S, 2020
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Form Mo, MR-3
Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended on March 21, 2020
[Pursuant to Section 204{1} of the Companies Act, 2012 and Rule No.¥ of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration Personnal) Rules, 2014

The Membaers

Choice International Limited

[CIN: LEF190MH1223PLCOTI11T7]
Shrae Shakambhari Corporate Park,

156 1 Chakravorty Ashok Society,

J.B. Magar, Andheri{E) Mumbal 400099

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adharence to good
carparate practices by Choice Intermational Limited hereinafter called {"the Company” for the financial year ended 31st
March, 2020 [*Audit Pariod']. Secretarial Audit was conducted In a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts/statitory camplances and expressing sur epinion thameon,

Based on our venfication of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and retums filed and other recards as
maintained by the Company and also tha information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized
representativas, axpianation and clarification given and representation made during the conduct of secretaral audit, we
hereby repon that inour epinon, the Company has, during the sudit pericd complied with the statutory provisions [sted
hereunder and alse that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-machanism in place to the extent, in
themannerand subjecttotha reperting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minutes' boak, Torms and returns filed and ather records as malntained by the
Company for the financial year endad on 31stMarch, 2020 according to the provisions of!

The Companies Act, 201 3 {the “Act"}and the rules made thereunder including any re-enactment theraof;
The Securities Contracts [Regulation) Act, 195&{"SCRA" land the rules mada thereunder;
The Dapositories Adt, 1996 and the redulations and bye-laws framed thersunder

Fareign Exchange Managerient Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder 1o the extent of Faraign
Direet invastment;

The following Regulations and Guidalines prescribed under tha Securities and Exchange Boand of Inclia Act, 1992
(*SEBI Act”), tothe extent applicable;

i} TheSecuritiesand Exchange Board of Indial Listing Dbligations and Disclosure Requirements | Regulations, 2015;

il TheSecurities and Exchange Board of India (Substantizl Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Requlations, 2011;

i} The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading | Regulations, 2015;

iv] The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars toan [ssue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 19%3;

vl TheSecuritiesand Exchange Board of India (zsue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Reguiations, 2018;

B R

w

& Laws specifically applicable tothe Industry 1o which the Company belongs, as identified and compliance whereof
as confirmed by the managemeant, thatistosay;

il TheReserve Bankof India Act, 1724

i} Rules, regulation and guidelines issued by the Rezerve Bank of India as are applicable to the Mon-Banking
Finarial Company (MBFC)

We have alzo examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the Secratanial Standards for Board Meatings [55-
1 anddor Ganeral Mestings (55-2) issued ba the |nstitute of Company Secretaries of India.

During the audit peried, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, et
as rentioned above.

During the audit period, provisions of the following regulations were not applicabla to the Company;

il TheSecurities and Exchange Board of India { Delisting.of Eguity Shares | Regulations, 2009; and

it TheSecuritiesand Exchange Board of India ( Buyback of SecuritiesRegulations, 2018;

i} TheSecuritiez and Exchange Board of India(lssue of Debt Securties ) Reguiations, 2008

iv] The Securities and Exchangs Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase
Scheme)Guidelines 199%

Managementand Auditor Responsibility:

il Maintenance of secretaral records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is
to express an opinon on these secratarial records bazed on our audit;

i} We have followed the audit practices and the processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance
about the correctness of the coments of the secretanal records. The varification was done on test basis toensure
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thiat corract facts are reflectad in secretarial recands. We belisve that the processes and practices, we followed
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion;
iif) Whiarever our Audit has requirad our examination of books and records maintained by the Company, we have
alsorelied upon electranic versions of such books and records, as provided to us through gnline communication.
Wheravarfor the purposes of our Audit, there was a need for physical access 1o any of the places of business of the
Company; the same basnot been uniformly possible in view of the prevailing lockdown, .
We have not venfied the carectness and appropriateness of Minancial records amd Books of Accounts ol the
Company &5 wall a5 correctneas of the yalues and figures reported in various disclosures and returms as megquirad
1o be submitted by the Company under the specified laws, though we have relied to a cartain extent on the
information furnished insuch returns;
v) Wherever required, we have obtained the Management Representation about the compliance of laws, rules and
requlations andhappening of events ete.;
wi} The compliance of the provisions of Carporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations; standards is the
raspansibility of management. Cur examination was fimited to the verification of procedure on test basis;
will Due 1o the inherent limitations of an audit including internal, financial, -and oparating contrals, there = an
unavoidable risk that some misstate ments ormaterial non compliances may not be datected, even though the
auditis properly plan ned and parformed in accordance with audit practice;
witl) Thee Secratanial Audit report is neithar an assurance as te tha future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or
effectiveness with which the managerment has conducted the affairs ofthe Company,
We further repart that:
= TheBoard of Directors of the Company lsduly constitited with proper balance of Exscutive Directors, The changes in
the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the perdod under review were carmod out in
complance with the provisionsof the Act,
= Adequate notice is given fo all the Directars to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detalled notes on agenda
were sent and there was no formal system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on
the agenda items before the meating for meaningful participatian at the mesting,
* [ecisions at the meetings of the Board or Committes thereof were carried out with requisite majority, while thare
were norecordedinstancesof dissentin Board or Committes meetings:

We further repor that based anthe information provided and representation made by the Company and also on the review
of compliance reponts of the respective department duly signed by the department head and Compliance Certificatels) of
the Managing Director/Com pany SecretanyCHO taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Company, in our opinion
systemn and process exists in the company required to be strengthan to commensurate with the size and operations of the
Company te monitar and ensune compliance with theapplica ble laiws, riles, regulationsand guidelines.

We further report that during the Audit Penod, thie Company has not undenaken any specific event/action thatcan have a
rajor bearing on the company's compliance responsibility in pursuance of the above refarred laws, rules, regulations,
guidelines, standards except as lollow:

The Company has issued 1,98,00,000 warrants convertible inta same number of equity shares at a price of Bs, 51/ per
shara to promaoters and non-promofers.

For B M Mimani & Associates LLP
[Company Secretanes]
[Firm Registration M. 1200TMH250300)

Mana) Mimani
{Partner)

ACS Mo 17083
CPMo: 114601

Flace: Mumbai
Dated: September 05, 2020

LIDIN; A1 T083IBO004T 1154
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Anjana Sharma & Associates
Company Secretaries

The Board of Directars

Choice International Limited

[CIN: L&7190MH1993PLCO71117]
Choice House

Shree Shakambhari Corporate Park,
PlotNo,156-158, J.B.Magar, Andheri{East),
Mumbai - 400099

We have been engaged by Choice International Limited (hereinafter reterred to as 'the Company’) whoze equity
shares are listed with B5E Limited {Security Code: 531358} to conductan audit in terms of Regulation 244 of SEBI
{Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended, read with SEBI's Circular No.
CIR/CFD/CMD1 /2772019 dated February 08, 2017 and toissue Annual Secretarial Compliance Report thereon.

It is the responsibility of the managemant of the Company to maintain records, devise proper systems 1o ensure
compliance of the provisions Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ("SEBIl Act”), the Securities
Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1954 {"SCRA"), and all applicable Rules, Regulations and circulars/ guidelines issued
there underfrom time totime and to ensure that the systems are adequate and are operating effectivaly,

Our responsibility is to verify compliances by the Company with provisions of all SEBI Act, SCRA and all applicable
Rutes, Regulations and circulars/ guidelines issued there under from time totime and issue a report therean,

Our audit was conducted in accordance with Guidance Mote on Annual Secretarial Compliance Report issued by
the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and in @ manner which involved such examinations and verifications
as considered necessary and adequate for the said purpose, subject to the limitation that due to lockdown and
social distancing guidelines issued by the Ministry of Home Affairs for containment of spread of Covid-17, the
Company has provided registers, minute books, forms, returns and other records maintained by it by electronic
means for our verification as required for the purpose of issuance of this report and have not been physically
verified by us. However, the management of the Company has confirmed that all documents provided by
electronic means are trueg and correct copies of ariginal documents.

Annual Secretarial Cormpliance Reportinthe format prescribed is enclosed herewith.
Far Anjana Sharma & Associates

Company Secretaries

Anjana Sharma
Proprietor

ACS 1A3B190
CPNo.: 17742

Place: Mumbai
Dated: July 31, 2020

LD AD3E8190BO00534701
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Anjana Sharma & Associates
Company Secretaries

Secretarial Compliance report
of
Choice International Limitedfor the year ended March 31, 2020
[Under regulation 24A of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015]

We have examined;
{a) all the documents and records made available to us and explanation provided by Choice International
Limited {"the listed entity”),
(b} thefilings/ submissions made by the listed entity to the stock exchanges,
(c) website ofthe listed entity,
(d} anyotherdocument/ filing, as may be relevant, which has been relied upon te make this cernification,

forthe year ended on March 31, 2020 ("Review Period "} in respect of compliance with the provisions of:

a. the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (“SEBI| Act”) and the Regulations, circulars, guidelines
issued there-under; and

b. the Securities Contracts {Regulations) Act, 1954 ("5CRA"), rules made there-under and the Regulatons,
circulars, guidelines issued there-under by the Securities and Exchange Board of India("SEBI");

The specific Regulations, whase provisions and the circulars/ guidelines issued there-under, have been examined,
inclucle:-
(a) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirernents) Regulations,
2015;
(b} Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Dizclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018;
(c) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations,
2011;

(d} Securities and Exchange Board of India [Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018; [Not applicable as there
was no reportable eventduring the review period]

(e} Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulstions, 2014; [Not
applicable asthere was no reportable event during the review period]

(f}  Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issuwe and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008; [Not
applicable asthere was no reportable event during the review period]

(g} Securities and Exchange Board of India (lssue and Listing of Non-Convertible and Redeamable Preference
Shares) Regulations, 2013; [Not applicable as there was no reportable event during the review period)|

ih) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015: and

and circulars/guidelines issued there-under; and based on the above examination, we hereby report that, during
the Review Periad;

B-112, Shiv Mahal Co-op. Hsg. Soc. Ltd., R. N. P Park, Next to Jesal Park, Bhayandar East, Thane - 401105
Email Id: esanjanasharma@gmail.com Mobile No.: +91-23215 74194
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Anjana Sharma & Associates

Company Secretaries
{a) Thelisted entity has complied with the provisions of the above Regulations and circulars/ guidelines issued

there-under,
{b) The listed entity has maintained proper records under the provisions of the above Regulations and

circulars/ guidelines Issued there-underinsofar as it appears fram our examination of those records.

{c} Mo actions was taken against the listed entity/ its promoters/ directorsd material subsidiaries either by SEBI
or by Stock Exchanges (including under the Standard Operating Procedures issued by SEBI through
various circulars) under the aforesaid Acts/ Regulations and circulars/ guidelines issued there-under;

{d] The listed entity has taken the following actions to comply with the abservations made in previous reports
[Not applicable, as there was no observation made in previous report.]

{e} The listed entity has complied with the provisions of SEBIl circular CIR/CFD/CMDAM 1442019 dated f’
October 18, 2019, in tarms of para 4{A) and 4(B) of the zaid circular and has suitably modified the terms of ‘

appointment of statutory auditor.

For Anjana Sharma & Associates
Company Secretaries

AnjanaSharma l

Proprietor ‘

o LT
e | - SRRy FEE st unecye,
Place: Mumbai ' - FEas. . iE “3 zggs‘éﬁi
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OUR UPCOMING SERVICE

INSURANCE BROKING

Joup % KT D i_"_._|'l'l|:r."! s il Dy assrsting IhdErm ify SERC ng

the Hight Ingurance Pobces

The viston = o ensure 8 contented and secure futuire for owr clents
by prowiding them the best rsk trensfer mechanism In the most
transparent manner at optimom cost. The mission s 1o provide

relevant risk solutions. to ensure & reward NG ENpErreEnCE during all

customer interaction, to acheve sustamable ethciencies and
lirdncials returns tocreate positive synergy @ the community we sere

I'ne group's Froduct Frofiie shall be astollows

Life Insurance

Lite insurance offers you risk coverage and takes carne ol monetary
reedts of your family after your dedsth & inatility tosarn

& TarmAssurance

*  Whale lifa Plans

*  MoneyBack Plans

« ChildrenPlan

*  Joint Life Plans

¢ Pansion Plans

General Insurance
Property Insurance:

Fropafty Insurance is a pobcy that provides financial reimbursement 1o
thie o ol @ struciure and ifs contenis, (n the eventof da rse of theh

*  Fireand Special pernils

* LossofProtns

*  [Electronic equipmentinsurance
- mctustral Al Rk -":',in:_.

& Machinery breakdown msurance
&= Burglary msurance

Marine insurance:

y that covers Business QOO O peersana!

ioadiing t

- Irdand transt iInsurance

- Ei|;::_|'|‘||r';‘:-;|'rll"_-.lr':.'"_'E
& Salesturnoverinsurance
Engineering Insurance:

Engineermg insurance refers to the msurance that provides economic
..|.‘='-:":l jard to tha risk faced =1 thie ongomg construction project

Installation project and machines & egul prmant in projact operathon
L ':-anﬂg:e cum araction

*  Contractorsall nsk

s Eractionall risk

«  Contractors Plant & Machinesy

Liability Insurance:

Liabdmy nsurance prodects the insured from the rsks of Gabskies
Freprce I:".l' .I-'\|'|-| 4 arad ardad el . I protects &

#vinit ha o ohe i sued for clairms st come within the co

IMSLIrANCH |
*  Director'sand Offices’s Liabilizy
& Public Liakility Insurance

*  Product Liability Insurance

= Frofessional indemmity

& Employess Compansation
Personal Insurance:

Personal Ingurancd ks a type cover that praovides financial security to
you and your family in the svent of a seriaus injury or illness, loss of
ability o earn; total and permanent disablement af death

o Poryamdl Aceldam

& lndivigual / Family Mediclaim

o Ovarseas Trivel

& Motor Car lnsurance

insurance far emplayee banafits:

Insurance foremployee benelit covers a defined group of people, for

example the members of a society or professional association, or the
amploysas of a particular amployer

o Group Perseonal Accident

L f_pl|_|u||"|_-||1 iIfSurance

o GioupMediclalm

o  Retirement & Pension schema

 Group gratuity scheme

Package insurance:

Package imurance o & tingle insurance policy that combines several

COWETS DITWIOUERY '.|1.l:' b . .l!_'r"l:l-.g

o OWicw Packan

* Shophkeeper's Package
* Householder s Fackags

L] Jewelor's Block Insurance

L] _-1'--!"-' '.;!.|-5-||J_l |l nurancs
s Haoteliar's Package Inturancs

o Corporate Trave [I':II:':f
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® Mutual Fund Distnbution
* Razearch insights of funds & there

s Assistance from certified nvestment/

Management Discussion & Analysis Report

OUR CURRENT RETAIL SERVICES

* Online Trading via webasite & o
mobile application

s Assistance in implementing —_—
fraching snralﬁgqes
* Dedicated Research Team I

* Home Loan

= Personal Loan

& Business Lean

# | aan against Praparty

performance

Wealth Counselor

» Loan aganst Property
* Loan against Securities

» Customized Portiolio Managemeént on
# Business Loan

basis of Risk appetite

Financal Planning is an ares whare o kot of investors get overwhelmed and disorgenized. Hence, we created "Optimo” to Bring o sirmipiified fall-
WIMW!mmhminm.m'wrmmw‘lﬁ:’hﬂsmmﬂﬁmﬁdﬁmamﬁnpl.ufmm.
full- linareisl planning platform with the launch of "Optime” the Rabo Advisor as ohe of the mott peominent feature of the application *

Tha Key prabdem anea in financial planning space |y kew 10 crertea plan tha will addoess all the major lite sagesand whare 1o invest s genarate
Irdaticer Eﬂdngmmwng identifind this, we crsated *Optime® that is & i of firancial planning and investmentadvitory, hisnce an end to
end solution {or investoam,

The investars who sre planning the me investments s well as investors who are reviewing thelr existing inkestments will be able to use
“Optimo” for unigque insighta on financial planning and Investrmanta.

Key features of our lnvestmant Adviser; OPTIMO

* |nsurange Planning = Rerremen Planning
= Emergency Fund and Expanse Mansgemant  « Geagl Planning
* AasebAnalysis

As we go ahead, we plan to enhanee “Optima” turthern 1o make (tinclusive ol &l the ﬂnanqﬂ'pr«'t_:ﬂu‘j:ti'aﬂﬂ to coiver cither important
pfuﬂn]ngi-_:l-ﬁaﬂs like tax-planping and ostate planning, As this name says, Dptimo. Cptimisation of Money! & th end goal wie want t
achieve for allof eur nvestors, :
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* PO
« FPC
 Right Issue

* Private Placernent

Managemen Discussion & Analysis Repon

OUR CURRENT INSTITUTIONAL SERVICES

= Dialyt Syndication ®

* [mfrastructure Consultancy
* Urban Development Consultancy
* Sofid Waste Management

. E-Iearmng
& Smant Education

o

* Web Development

* Mohile &App Development

* Systemn Integration &
Solutions

)
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OUR RETAIL SERVICES

As you are aware, that your Company M/fs. Choice International
Limitad is the Listed Holding Company & the services of the group are
provided through each of its spedialized Subsidiaries, The Group =
profound to be "One Stop Fnancial Hub" for ane's all kind of Financial
needs,

Below mentioned are the “Retail Services” provided by the group toits
Directend custamer, which are detailed below:

A) BROKING & DISTRIBUTION

The group's Broking & Distribution Business is channalized through
our subsidiary M/s. Choice Equity Broking Private Limited hergin
referradto as "CEBPL". “CEBPL" iz a membarof NEE, BSE, MSEI, MCX
NCDEX, ICEX andisa Depozitary Participant with COSL& MNSOL.

"CEBPL" has been a trusted partner in creating wealth for its Clients,
The aroup extensively focuses on research and technology asits cora
competency 1o nurture its growth with increasing client satisfaction,
The graup has bullt a rebust structure te meet the requirement of the
client and simultanecusly adhere to the Regulatory Protocal,

"CEBPL" as an data of this report has 48 branches across India & 1200
Business Associates.

"CEBPL" has always bean prompt inadopting new technologies, by
reducing the operational hassle for smooth functioning of its
emplovee and stress-free conduct by the client’s of thair own account.
The group accurately adopted the speedier account opening Tacility
by through adherence to the rules stipulated by the authorities, the
rules stipulated by the authorties: the rules stipelated by the
authaorities.

Cur In house Back End Seftware “Neuron”

Meure is a multi-faceted back-end system developed entirely from
starch by our in house Tech team "Choice Techlab®. Neuron, the
application was developed to address the pressing need to organize
various operational activities with seamless management between
employees and customers, The platform provides an acocurate view of
the business with comprehensive reports, real-time updates,
analytics, inslghts and visual reparts, Neuron has helped reduce tha
operation time by 40-50 percent. Critical operations like RMS, Back
Office, Payment Gateway, KYC System and Cn boarding for Jiffy and
Invastica have been streamiined with @ central system fNeumn}
instead of multiple standalone solutions.

* Better data organization with all customer infarmation; leads and
updates ina central location, Track sales and engagemant with
EusStomens

* |ifiproved customer conversion, aurturiag apd retantion with
instant data retrievaland support features

* Empowering the sales team with the tools they need to manage
their entire sales pipeline to ensure “nothing falls through the
cracks,

* Accelerstes employee productivity and streamlines processes
ACrOES departments a5 customer intaraction is key

= Easily share infarmation by giving the team access to the sama
resources through selective data share

* In-depth analytics and comprehensive reports with filtering and
customization

* Keeping track of overall sales; it also helps to quickly address any
potential challenges withthe data avallabla

TRADE EASY,
TRADE FAST

JIFFY

By [hoess Broiong
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Our evolvement story:
Turnover Analysis: Online / Offline Trade Ratic:
700 -
600
100 -
500
80 L il
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o il
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200 *1 i
100 2 e
g . . . o+ " 1:' .,.* I % <4 .. . . ¥ .
P27 Fy- 2018 P20y 2028 Fr2021 - - e R | F . . ]
‘ : Patricad PSR EESTEELSS
B Cash B Curiency B SumofOfine Batlp 11 e depicted on guarterly basis
B EquityDerivative [ Commodity B Sum of Gnline Ratio

From the abowe grid it can be very well construed that "Choice Broking” has
faldy done well an year on pear basis. Though the Compairy bas faced
operational challenges in the last quarer of the Firancial Year 201%-20 due
to.the ongoing Pandemic COVID-19, *Choice Broking® has out peformad
splendidly

Tha Group has always kept use of technological know:how:at torefront.
Through our anling Trading Platform Uity out valued customer are
encouraged to “Trade by Self. Onfine tredes by the cuttamer themseles
leads to decrease In operational cost, time and srror, Reasonable Increasa in
the anling Trade can be seon from the above able,

Increase in Clianteles Increase in Authorised Persons

300000

2000
250000

200000 1500

150000 - x 100
100000

50000 508

I - )
FY201T FY-2018 F2019 Y2020 FY-2007 F-2018 F-2019 F¥-2020

Effarts are made to securs the confidence of our cfient's by providing them end to end services at mursmal cost The increase innumberof Authorised Person
has irarked the hersss fg pradonts af *Chodce MH.Q-' AGIonE |nvr.h'h. The gr‘uwing rurnher of Clignts and Authorsed Pereon's has Booapsd  immenss
assurance o the company its s1ake holdes in the company's ability to conguer in the ever changing dynamics of the Markets.

Qur Branches

* Bdumibiai ¢ Bada v Secunderabad  » Pakakkad
¥ Dthi ¥ Sural ¥ Visakhapatnam  » Thrgsur
¥ Kalkata ¥ Raipur v Rajahmundry  » Raloor

¥ Indara ¥ Magpur b Coleribalons ¥ Anganmialy

+ Bhopal b Cuwahatl  » Salemn ¥ Aluva

* Jaipur ¥ Ranchi * Trichy * Kanjirppaily
* Sikar ¢ Patna ¢ hadurai » Kottaramattom
* Jhunjhurno ¥ Bangalore ¢ Tiunslveli » Kottayam

¥ Pune ¥ Mysore ¢ Chennad » Pala

» Kalhapur ¥ Mangalore  # Edappally ¥ Tiruvalta

¢ Aurangabad  » Hubli b Pannur ¥ Trivandrim

v Ahmedabad ¢ Hyderabad ¢ Kozhikods ¥ Gl

48 Bram;hes
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Our Research Coverage

For Investor-Long Term

ECONOMIC OUTLOOK

and important economic events,

INDUSTRY REPORTS

We issue this report every month which  In Industry report we analyze the whole

gives an overall picture of the economy landscape of the industry, demand and

supply situations, peices of savw materials
and commaodity prices

COMPANY REPORTS
It's a detall report on a compary which We issue these updates once in a quarter.
includes recommendations of
BUY/SELL or HOLD with typical thme
frama of 12-18 manths.

EARNING UPDATE

This report is prepared for our coverage
companies only. We revisit our
recommendations while analyzing the
company s perlormance

AAJ KATREND
Thils is o dasily rrorming newsletters an
commipdities which covers vesterday's
ewents and briefs investorsfraders on
what to-expect In the market today.

TECHNO BUY / SELL

These reporis consists our
posibonal calls on Eguities, Cammadities

—

and Lumency

IPO ANALYSIS

PICK OF THE WEEK

Oiffers insight on the IPO company with W pichk ane stock évery wieek for this

recommendations bo sulscrite ar to
aveld. This report i widaly coverad by
the print media across the country

For Traders-Positional

EQUITY BAZAAR

This is our daily newslatter on equibes
which 15 aimed at briefing Investors an
what 1o expect in markets Today,

report. These reports are
based on technical research and
haree a tinse horizan ol 15-25 days,

COMMODITY INSIGHTS

Commodity Insights is a fundamental
cum techrical report of two commodities
providing a positional outlook for
one to twa months
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B) WEALTH MANAGEMENT

SERVICES

The group offers its Wealth Management Services through our
subsidiary Mfs. Choice Wealth Management Private Limited. The
segmentmajorly focuseson Mutual Fund Gistribution

Choice Wealth Management is represented by its brand name
Investica” 1o the marketplace as a ong-stop solution 1o plan, transact
and track mutual fund investrments. Over last one year, the number of
active investors on investica grew by 28%,

Investica has received an extremely positive response from its-users
which can also be seen by its reviews on Play Store & App Store. The
Investica platform continues to be one of the highest ratad Mutual
Fund Invastment plattorm.

Upcoming Launches:

Currantly Investica is limited to distribltion of rmuteal funds, but that
will change soon by imtreduction of NPS e, National Pension Scheme
onthe platform, NP5 is picking up the traction interms of the preferred
ratirament investment tool. We will also be facilitating investments in
MPS =0 that any investar who wishes to invest in any of the NP5 related
scheme can do so using Investica. All such investments can also be
tracked using theapp

One of the core feature we have besn working on for Investica is
Rebalancing of the portfolic. While it s important te know wherg 1o
invest, it iz equally impartant to understand what changes are required
in the porticlio. A lot of investors struggle with making changes inthe
portfolic based an fund guality. Hence, we aim 1o address this with our
automated recommendation tool that will suggest suitable funds to
Investorswith the cost implications of the actions

Aswe have already launched "Optima™ with basic fimancial planning
prnciples, wa plan to enhance it further weth a launch of tax planning
Taxation is an important aspect of personal finance that a ot of
investars find complicated. Herce, we will simplify the tax planning for
investors with recommendation on how they can save tax by utilising
yariousincome tax sections;

‘Way Forward:

We see Investica becoming the most preferred application for
Investors' Persenal Finance Needs in the near future. All the existing
festures of Investica are helping us get valuable insights froem aur
sers and we are constantly developing our platform to make it one of
the best investment platformain India. We believe that we will be able
to get & significant market share of Fintech industry with all the
developmants thatwe have plannad for Investica

Management Discussion & Analysis Repor

Say helloto an

MUTUAL FUND
APP INVESTICA

of investing in

131,36

1037 e
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C) PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT SERVICES

Cur Portfolio Management Services are provided through -our
Subsidiary M/s. Choice Portfolio Management Senvices private Limited™
“Choice " we manage existing portfolios as well as build new distinet
partfolins for you based on your investments objecfives and risk
appetite, forwhich we offer a wide range of strategies including some
focused thematic strateqgies, which aims at maximizing the investars
wealth while making investments in diversified sectors which have a
potential to grow at a faster pace, with a sustainable management &
corporata governance standards, Our Prime focus is to create wealth
for the clients & our axpertise in the areas of extensive rasearch, highly
qualified investrment team and a nch expenance of over two decades
inthe financial service space, enables usto achivve this goal for you
Owr Distinctive Services:

= Expenenced & Professional Fund Mnagement

= HighLevel ot Transparancy

= Finley Cradved Investment Philosophy

=  Exhaustive InHouse Research Dask

*  Timely review of Fund Performance

s Davotd Relationship Manager foraChant

*  Quality Selection of Stocks, with balanced dversification

W at Cholce PMS truly believe in Reaching the Financial Goals s
abways fasterwith the Right Mix of Investments

D) DISTRIBUTION OF RETAIL LOAN

The retal Loan distribution Services are provided through our
subsidiary Mfs. Choice Corparate Services Private Limited [CCSPL).
Cholce corporate services private limited is a narme that is eamimon in
day to day life: We at CCSPL believe in serving the customers on
priority. We undarstand the necessities and craving for those who are
[eoking for affiordable and flexibla loans,

COSPL - & corporate: D56 working PAN India, senving peaple for
atfordable loan service such as - Homa Loan, Parsonal Loan, Business
Loan and Loan against property are a few to count, Our motto is o
offer betrar RO for loans in comparisan to prevailing market structure.
We understand customers needs therefore empaneled with
voluminous Bank & NBFC all over India, aiding in getting maximum
loanamauntwith minimal rate of interests

CCSPL s an Indian company located in various lacatans of indis &
headguartered in Mumbal, We are a reputable name In the loan
offering industry with an aim to offer user-fiendly loan senvice to our
valuable customers; wa have an expert team of weall-trained staff that
helps you In getting loan guickly. and without any hassle. Cur team
work togetyouthe best loan and aimto obtain com petitive rates

We ansure you have the monsy you need when you need it!

Business performance in the last year

In FY-201%9-20 wa were operaticnal i varous locations in PAN India
and disbursed Rs. 42,74 Crs.

Mew Launches

In this digital @ra, we will lack behind if we are not going upgrade our
salt an digital world. In FY 2019.20.we have launched our platiorm
Choice Connect which provides opportunity to any persan to
generates refer business for Retail Loans where every leads will be
tracked and manitar on daily basis o as tomaintein TAT

In the current financial year company is also planning tointrad uce new

loan products ie Gold Loan & Vehicle Loan in the retail [oan division.

Comparisen with the peergroup

Today's market being competitive, wa neod 1o take primitiva

measures to stay ahead of our competitar's here are some reasons

why people rely on us

# Foremost Is that we offer, personal assistance Instead of any
automated answering machines robots

* There are wvanous competitors such as Direct Sales agents,
Chamered accountants as well as small time agents/connecions
who work on reference basis for dmall commission

* There ara also few onlineg portals who invite customer onling 1o apply
forioans and thereby pass the same lead to bankers and NBFC s,

= ‘We are currently working on Offline model and plan to compete the
online team players of the market too in near future. Butwea have our
in house online group platform “Choice connect” for tracking,
manitonng and generation of leads.

Qur Standing in the industry

We have a long list of satisfied and happy customers. As we are always

ready tooffer the bestof best services to ourvaluable customers -

We provide E2E services to gur customers from loan documentation

till the disbursement of chegie.

Way forward Statement

Infarth.coming years we are targeting to serve people in the remotest

Ipcations of India and for that we are aggressively working and

bullding a team of supporting members through our ONLINE portal

and also as a way forward strategy we are in talks with banks to

integrate their AP| with our Choice connect system so that

disbursement TAT will be minimize.

E) NBFC SERVICES

“NBFC Services” of the group are routed through our subsidiary M/s,
Choice Finsery Private Limited . The Segment provides both Retail
services aswell as caters to the Institutional Clients.

Choice Finsery Private Limited "CFPL" is 3 RBI registered Non deposit
taking Mon-banking financial imstiture (NBFC), engaged in Providing
Loan against shares, loan against Froperty and Business ioans

MBFC business, which was howsed in Choice [nternational Limited
[Farant company| previously, was transferred to "CFPL" with effect
fram Jdune 1, 2018, Ason March 31, 2020, "CFPL" had loans and
sdvances outstanding of Bs 121 Crore, which comprised Loan-agamst
shares (LAS) (17%) loans against praperty (LAP) [23%) loans to
related garty (9%); and Business loans | 52%), which has an average
yield of approx. T4 % PA

“CFPL" is externall rated as A3 by CRISIL. On an average the segment
maintains more than 25% of EBITDA Margin.

Tha Loan Book of “CFPL" has increased from INR 96 Crin FY 201910
INR 120 CrinFY 2020.

Product details

Inorder to meet your short-term financial needs, Loan against shares
offers a good choice as you do not have to sell your stocks to fulfill
these neads, |tis the ideal way to raize funds without liguidating your
stacks: [f you dre a business ownear reguiring immediate funds, LAS is
the most appropnate financing solution for you, Salaried individuals
in nead of immediate kquidity may alse opt for this financing solution,
Loan Against shares may also be taken for specific personal goals ke
marriage, haliday or for achild's education

Lesan against securitios s available inthe form of an overdratt facility. i
halps you gat loan against the secunties that you have, for the tima
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being, merely pledged without salling them off in haste. Thevalue of

the overdratt limit that s advanced to you (s determined on the basis

of the securibes like aquity shares, mutual funds, bends & insurance

thatis pledged by you

The advantageous part of pledging youwr secunties is one that you are

able to get steady cash easily at the time you nead it most and

secondly you would not ba devoid of the benefits as a shareholder.

This means that you can enjoy your rights of recalving dividends and

banuses alang with gaining from the price movemants in the shares

for which you have availed the loan from the bank

CHOICE LAS ADVANTAGES

* Largest pool of approved securities

* |nterast charged only on the actual amount and for the time it's
utilized

* Anytirne anywhere facility

* Competitive interest rates

* MNoneedforathird party ora guarantor

o Sacurity Coverage of 2 times as perRBLNoms

Loan against Property (LAP)

Loan againgt fully constructed, freahold residential and commercial

properties for: Business Needs; Marriage; medical expenses and

other personal needs for salaned or Self-employed,

Management Discussion & Analysis Repor

Choice LAP Advantages

» Mo end use of the fund to be i nsisted upan

* uick Loan disbarsal with minimal documeantation

= Borrow upto 75%of propery value

& Longerterure, smaller EMPs{Loanfenures up to 20 vears)

Business Loan

Harnessindia's unigue position as the next glebal superpowsr, Raalize
dreams and change the world with Choice Finserv's business loans.
Wse the funds 1o invest in infrastructure, expand operations, upgrade
to tha latest plant and machinery, maintain imventory, o o increase
working capital. These castomized loans can give your business the
miuch-neaded boost to help your enterprise scale new heights with
enhanced competitiveneass and profitabality,

Business Loan benefits with Choice Finserv:

* |nstant Loan processing

» Ouick disbursalswith minimal documentabion

= Flexible Repayment methods

* Lowint@rest rates

* Mo Collateral

= Good credit rating scorein credit bureau
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OUR INSTITUTIONAL SERVICES

The Group also provides its services to Institutes { B2B) Business,
The details of which are as follows:

A) CAPITAL ADVISORY - INVESTMENT
BANKING

Capital Market & Debt Syndication service is roated through our
subsidiary “Choice Capital Advisars Private Limited” harein referred
as "CCAPL". We cater to aur Institutional Clients with our "Capital
Advisory Services”

Services Offered:

Choice Capital Advisors Private Limited, Category-Mearchant Banker,
is an investment bank offering integrated solutions consists of equity
capital markets services and financial advisory services! Debt
Syndication that cater to corporate clients, The Company is familmar
with its clients’ business models and the financial solutions ara tallored
to meetthairneads atdifferent stages of development.

O the Capital Market front, CCAPL affers entine bouguet of services
which include Initial Pubslic Offer (IPCH) - Main Board & SME Platform,
Further Public Offer (FPD). Rights |ssues, Private Placement Pra-|PO
Placement, QIF, Direct Listing, Delisting, Buy Back, Takeover, Mergers
and Acquisitions, ete.

CCAPL's growth s driven by strong focus on IPO readiness and (PO
co-ardination services forthe Main Board, Valuation services provided
to various sectors of the industry has also added vaiue to the
aperationaland financial performance of the Company, We promote
Companies in improving their compliance and corporate governance
through ouradvisary and consultation services lad by a team ot axpeant
professionals, yielding optimum results for our clients.

On the Dabt Syndication front the team has successfully created a
robust and vibrant edge through its initiative on advisory for working
capital and project finance segmernt We have an in-house team of
professionals competent to structure, advise and execute the debt
proposalsinthe best possible TAT We are well networked with the top
managemaent teams in almaost all inancial institutions in the country
incloding Banks, MBFCs and Fund Houses, We wunderstana the
requirement of the client conduct internal due diligance, prepare, and
circuiate the Information Memarandum ensuring coordination with all
lenders and investors with an objective to achisve consensual terms
and conditions

55 | CHOICE INTERMATICINAL LIMITED | &

B) MANAGEMENT & GOVERNMENT

CONSULTANCY

The Management & Consultancy segmeant of the group caters to jts
Institutional Clients through our subsidiary M/s. Choice Consultancy
Services Private Limited.

The global as well as Indian aconomy has shown weakening trend
from the mid of 2018 which is due to:nsing trade and geapolitical
crisis which continued to linger 2017, Although the Government has
taken several steps to boost the infrastructure develppment,
digitization, &-Education etc., the end of 20N%? shadowed by an
uncertainty which ledentire world to a stand-still in 2020

The spread of Coronavirus {Covid 1) around the world led almast all
the major econemies including India to undergo forced leckdown 1o
reduce the impact of pandemic on the health of the people. The
lockdown had severe implications on the economic and financial
stability,

Several economicand fiscal stimulus packages have beenintreduced
by the Government of India and are anticipated to boost the
confidence, once the effect of the pandemic and economic
disruptions start weari ng off.

Business Overview:

The Company operates its consultancy business through s wholly
owned subsidiaty Cheice Consultancy Services Private Limited
{"CCSPL"L The Company is recognizec as: consultant in the sactors
such as Road, Highways and Bridges Development, Water
Management, Affardable Housing, Solid Waste Management, Public
Firancial Retorms, Urban Development and sustainability,
Infarmation Technology, E-leaming, Smart Education stc CCSPL
enjoys a strong presence across several states In India. The core
business activities includes surveys & investigations, planning,
fq-.a,r.ihﬂ-.h' stiidy, detailed project report, project management
consultancy, autharity engineer, independent anaineer, constrizction
supervision, quality contral and road sabety audit,

During the year under review, the consultancy vertical has sean
decling in revanue by 14.4% % and margin of profit hasincreased by 1
Seompared to the previsusyear of reporting

Being cansidered as the year of sconomic slowdown by many, the
Infra sector aswell as firms associated with it struggled financially due
to slow financing of ongoing infra prajects and less tendering by the
Government. However, CCSPL was able to beat the odds by
effectivaly managing Inflow ol consultancy Fees from ongaing
projacts,

Opportunities and Outlook

[r the current scenario rise in demand of education has encouraged
the elearning companies to. impart aducation through digital
platform. The Company. has agaressively entered into the online
education industry by developing a wehsite and learning
smartphone app which offer an online live interactive classroom with
digital learning content which is highly effective, adaptive and
engaging, This e-learning platform of the Company aims 1o the serve
the schicol students as well a3 students of competitive exams such as
IIT @nc NEET,

Im infra sector CCSPL ensure its relevance in the market by
continuausly engaging with various stakeholders and gauging pulse
of infra sector. The infra sector is expected to witnéss growth in the
lamter part of the year, Considenng focus of this Governmant on
developing warld class infrastructune across the country, growth is
expected in intra sector on long term basis which prowded ample
rinway for the future growth of the orgarnization. CCSPL s currantly
focusing of investing its resources in grabhing projects which wifl turn

Management Discussion & Analysis Report

frurthul for the Company interms of economy as well as credentials.

The key opportunities include projects relating to water management
[Govarmment funded water projects incloding Jal Jeevan Mission)
feasibility study and Detailed Report for Roads and e-Educatian, The
Company will continue to emphasis on timely execution, prompt
cenification and receipt of fees

Threats

The current financial year (2020-21) s expected 1o throw up more
challenges. Various factars like the ecanomic slowdown, liguldity
crisis and adversa impact of lockdown due to the pandemic are some
of the challenges faced by the aconomy, Further, availability of limited
rissourcesinthe hands ofthe Central and State Governiment is ikely to
affect spend on infrastructure projects in the near future, 4 dalay 1=
expected in the finalisatlon of major infrastructure projects. Margins
are-expectad to remain under pressure while the Company foceses on
cost raduction.

Comparsenwith Pear Graup

Since the infra sector is currently regling under severe stress of
liquidity erises and weak investment. Almast all firms angaged m infra
consuftancy face liguidity crunch due tolimited flow of funds from the
Government for ongoing projects and limited spending on upcoming
infra projacts, Despite facing these isspes CCSPLIS able to manage its
operations effectively due to optimum utilisation of avaifable funds
and efforts for timely realization ot tunds from the clients,

C) ITSOLUTIONS

The *IT Solutions” services-of the group are routed throwgh our
subsidianies * M/, Choice Techlab Solutions Services Private Limited”,
Chaolee TachLab Solutions Pet. Lid, (IS0 9001:2008, I1SO/AEC
27001:201 3, CMM| Level 2 cartified) is a Software Deveiopmaent and [T
Service Providerin India

Some of the main services offered by Choice TechLab include -
Froduct Design and Develapment (Webk App Davelopment, Mobile
&pp Development, ERF/CREM, System Integration: & Solutions
Architecture ), Automation and Integratvan | CevOps Autamation & 04
Testing and Auvtomation) and DevOps [Database Sarvices, Disaster
Recovery and Site Configurations, Data Backup Management & Cloud
Engineering].

The Technology Spectrum includes Microsoft (Microsoft, MNET, NET
Core), Java (Hibernate, Maven, Spring Booth Mokile &pp (I05,
Android, lonic/Cross-Platlerm), PHP {WordPress, Magento, Laravel,
Lumen, Codelgniter), Othar Technalogies (Angular, Node.js),
Databases (Microsoft 30L Servar, MyS0L, PostgreSC2L MongoDE)L
CevOps (Google Cloud, Apache, Jenkins, Grayleg, Ngins, MNagios,
Amazon Web Services, Stackland Data Scienca {Dala Studio, Gaogle
Big Cuery),

Mew Launches:
GST Reconciliation Software

Under the Goods and Services Tax, it is essential for tax-paying
businesses to reconcile their tax invoices with that of therr suppliers
Without this G5T reconciliation, a legitimate tas-paying businass
cannot claim an input tax credit. Additionally if not done aceurately,
there are chances of Intemalf’extamal records golng miszing or data
mismatch, Any mistake in GST Reconciliation can prove costly for
businesses. Therefore, we developed a cloud-based G5T appheation
that helps optimize the reconciliation process. It invelves the
recancilizton of the Book of Accounts and G5TR 24 file with status
codes: The software enables the team to avail maximum [TC with
minimal effart as well as maximal exact matches using smart rules. The
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INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND POLICY

Effective internal control reduces the risk of asset loss, helps 1o ensure
that infarmation is complete and accurate, financial statements are
reliable and reported sccurately in a timaly manner, and aperations
are conducted in accordance with the provisions of applicable laws
and regulations.

The Company maintains adequate internal control systems
commeansurate with the nature of business, size and complexity of itg
operations, The Campany has well established processes, guidelings,
and procedures to augment intermal controls, Adherance o these
processas is ensured through frequant intarnal audits. Any deviations
are reported to the Management. T

Internal Auditors review systems and operations of the Company and
ensure that the Company s functioning in accordandce with all the
applicable statutas, &ny internal control weaknesses, non-compliance
with statutes and suggestions for improvemeants in existing practices
are raported by the Internal Auditors.

The Iaternal Audit Report is reviewed by Statutory Auditors while
performing audit functions to confirm that there are no transactions
conflicting with the interests of the Company and regulatary
stipulations. The Audit Committes reviews tha Internal Audit Repart
and the guarterly Compliance Report placed before the Committes
and ensures that observations pointed out in these reports are
addrassed in atimely and structured manner by the Managemeant. The
Audit Committee reviews an Action Taken Report (ATR) which states
the points needing correction and the action taken on the same

Adequate Intemal Contral system te commensurate with nature of
husiness and size of nperations for ensuring includes:

Crderly and efficient conduct of Business

Adherence to company's policies and procedures

Safeguarding all our assets against loss from unauthorfsed use ordisposal
Prevantion & detection of traud & errar

Accouracy and completeness of accounting standards

HUMAMN RESOURCE

Human Resource Development is the framework for helping
employees develop theirskills, knowledoe, and abilities, whichin turn
improves a0 organization’s effectiveness

The focus of all aspects of Human Resource Development is on
developing the maost superlor warkforce so that the organization and
individual employess can accomplish their work goals in service 1o
CUSTOMErs,

HRED s needed by any arganization that wants to be dynamic and
growth-criented or to succeed in a fast-changing -environment,
Organizations can become dyramic and grow only through the afforts
and competencias of their human resources, Personne! policies can
keep the morale and mativation of employees high, but these efforts
are nat enough to make the crganization dynamic and take it in noew
directions, Employee capabiliies mugt continuously be acquired,
sharpenad, and used, For this purpede, an “anabling” erganizatianal
culture iz essantial. When employees tse thaie initiative, taka nsks,
experiment, innovate, and make things happen, the crganization may
be said to have an“enabling” cultire:

We at Choice, follow the below ideas to manage and improve
employes parformance in ourorganization.

1. Communicate clear expectations
Making sure employees are clear about their work assignments

means communicating those expectations well, Continue to
manage what is expected through frequent communications.

2. Yearly performance appraisals
Regular and timely appraisals ensure employees know where they
stand at all times. Conducting performance appraisals regularly
helpsinkaeping goals inthaforefront of daily tasks

3. Wemake employee development a priority.
W wark closely te fill any skill gaps which will help them achieve
long-term. goals in return helping the arganization ta fulfil
business objectives

4. We make sure to take the below steps towards improving morale

Employees perform better when they are satisfiad with their job.
We constantly review things such as;

= Work enviranment
» Employee Benefits

* Employee understanding of the mission and vision

Employees who undarstand how ther role helps the company
succeed often give their best,

5. Weempower employees to dotheir jobs well

Wae have an open work environment which helps employees in
taking quick decisions and the same results in faster cutput

6. Use of right technologies

Implament technolagy platforms that drive perfarmance and
engagement daily. Technalogy iscrucial intoday's workforce

Organizational success thrives when the right rules and systems are in
place. Simply wanting to know how to improve employes
performance without including employes considerations may not
hefprto achisve the sat goals.

RISK EVALUATION & MITIGATION

& Risk-Management Policy for the Company has been adopted by the
Board of Directors. The Board sets, approves the charter and
objectives for Risk Management and Risk Philosophy, The Risk
Management Commimee of the Board isset up to 2ssist the Board inits
aversight of various risks, review.and analyse the risk adposure relatad
o specilic ssues provide ovarsightof nsk acrossthe orgamisationand
review the risk profile of subsidiaries.

Risk iz an integral part of the Business which sims at delivering
superior shareholder value by achieving an appropriate . balance
bBatweean risks and returns, & comprehensive Enterprise Risk
Management Framework has been adopted which lays down the
guidalnes tor nsk identification, assessment and monitaring in line
with the strategies business operations of entitiesin the group.

Teday's Financial services company operate m an increasingly
complex competitive and continuougly evalving regulatory
environmeant, where the ability ta manage risks across geographic
boundaries, products | customer segments is of supteme impartanice
forthe effective growth of the organization.
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The Company being an Holding Company with no oparating Business
an standalong basis derive its income mainly from dividena, interest
and capital gains and hence is not dinectly exposed to many risks: The
risk for the Company is mainly associated with the business of its
various operating segment through its subdidianes operating within
thegroup

The group Business s exposed to many internal & external risks, &

team of experienced people within the orgamsation identify &

marital these risks as an on-going process 1o monitocand cantral tha
same to keep the risks at minimum level. On- going monitermg by our
officials help inidentifying the Risk at an early stage, The reports of the
internal auditar s is reviewsd and discussed by the Audit Committas
af the respective aperating companies including the review by your

Company's Board,

1} Regulatory Risk: Regulatory risk is the risk ansing out of a change

in laws and regulation governing business. It could alzo arise on
account of inadequate abservance of regulatory requirements ar
differences ininterpretation of regulations vis-a-vis the regulators
Mew laws or regulations or changes inthe enforcement of existing
laws and regulations may adversely affect business/
revanue/profits,
Risk mitigation: The Company has a team of experienced
professionals who take care of compliance with applicable laws,
rules, regulations, and guidelines affecting our business, The team
iz strangly supported by our Corporate Funcbons tearm W guickly
calibrate the action in case of a change in regulation. All the new
guidelines, circulars, notitications are camplied with. Formulation
of the policies as well as its impiementation is taken due care of.
Internal audit is also carded out to monitor compliance with best
practices, approved policies, and applicable regulations

2) Liquidity Risk: is th= risk ansing due to unavalability of adequate
funds at appropriate prices or tenure, It alsa rafers to the risk that
arizes from the difficulty of selling assets without high impact cost,

Risk Mitigation: We have strong inancial postion: and. all our
businesses are adequately capitalised, have appropriate credit
lines available to address liquidity nsks. We alsa maintain a partof
ourcapital in liguid assatsto manage any sudden liguidity needs.

3) MarketRisk/ Price Risk

Market risk iz the risk arising from the adverse movements in
market price for varlous securities, which may impact valus of
portfolio of investments In securities, which may impact value of
portfolio of investmentsinsecurities

Risk ‘Witigation: Cur Portfolios and collaterals f securities are
continuously manitoned.

4) Product risk: Product risk refers (o the nsks ansing out of the
products a company offers to its customer in the market,
Risk mitigation: The group offers its customers & well-diversified
product ranae in line with customers need and market conditions
The Company offers brokerage, rmutual fund distribution and
portfolio management to its custarmers, This diversification and
product range helps the Company reduce rsks arising out of
products,

5) Operational Risk : can result from variety of factors including
failure 1o oblain proper internal authorizations, ImMmproperly
documentad ransactions, failure of cperational and information
security procedures, computer systerms | software of equipments
fraud, in adequate training and employes errors. Our businesses
are dependent an people and processes. Shorrcomings or failure
in intermal processes. or systems may have material adverse
impacton the financial position as well as affectits cperation,

Management Discussion & Analysis Repor

Risk Mitigation: Well defined policies, operational processes and
systams have been devised for our operations, Regutar audit are
done by intermal auditors to manitor the adherence of policies
and processes, Maker/ Checker machanism has been put in place
to ersute complance with laid down systems and procedures in
afl araas of functioning of the Company.

Mdso the Company's key management team consists. of
professionals of high level of commitment and the team s well
wversad In tha key isswes relevant te the halding company
siruchurg

&) Business Continuity Risk : [n the evant of disription in the conduct
of business due to incidents like fire, natural calamity, breakdowns
of infrastructure ate, We are axposed o risk of loss data, clients o
businessthat can adversely affect our fimancial results.
Risk Mitigation: Policies on Preservation of documents and
records are laid down by the Com pany and the internal checks are
kapt atregularintenvals

CAUTIONERY STATEMENT

Statermoents |n this Management Discussion and Analysis Repart
describing the Company’s ebjsctive, projections, estimates and
expectations may be “forward looking Statements’ within the
meaning of applicable laws & regulations. Actual results might differ
substantially armaterially from those express or implied,

On bahalf of the Board of Directors

&d/- Sd/-
Kamal Poddar Ajay Kajriwal
{Managing Directar} {Director)

DINMNe: 01518700 DIN MNo: 03057841

Mumbai: September05,2020
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Corporaté Governance 4 concerned with holding the batance

between economic and socal goals betweaen mdvidual and

communal Go wrawvark 18 thens te

The gowem

the efficient use of resources and equally 1o require accountability fos

thie l.1n..-..~||._::'.l'.||; of thote resources. The aim & 10 al gn a8 nearly as

oossible th interests of mdividuals, corportions and society

Ferhaps one ol the most impartant principles ol carporate
govarnance i the recognition of its shareholders. By tollowing the
good governanca practice, the organmation can aid s Shareholdars

batter

Corporate Governance reler 1o the way a corporabon (s governad, |1
15 thi technigue by which companies are directod and managed

Goaod Corporate. Governance encompasses a wet of systems and
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b

s
practices loensune that the Company's allairs are baing managed ina

manner which ensures accountability, transparency and fairmess in all

the wransact:ons in the widest sense

To safeguard the intensst of all its staksholders, embedding a strang

Corporate governance policy isindispensable. The eminence of the
Company's Corporaté govemance standards ylects e risks andg
value, Effective, EIrGNg COrporalE GOVernance is essent al lor tha

efficient .'.:JH:I-U"HW!_] of markets.

The Board of Directors hereby present the Company’s Repon an
Corporate Governance pursuant to-the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reguirmements)
Regulations, 2015 ('Listing Regulations') as amended for the year
ended March 31,2020

COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE
GOVERMANCE

A1 “Cholce” Corporaie Governance is all about undentsing the
Busimvess ThroLDg e |

transparency

tial for us to
ranSDareEnl rmannen wikh .a hirim Oomamotmasnd

Mz
hl their obligations , the

med the Dast practxes ot

apErnant -~ ars Ihi

Corporate ( ¥ s5is of its four pillars e

Transparency, Accountahiiity , Disclosures & Financial Controls

Thie Company believes that strong gowernance standands, focusing

on fairness, transparency, accountability and respansibility are vita

not only for the hale and heanty corporate sector growth, but alsa for

inclusive growthof the economy

W at “Choice” believe in retaining and enhancing stakeholder trust

for sustained corporate growth, We truly believe in adherence to the

law not only in letter but in spirit of doing the Business in a right way.

Standard Criteria of our Carporate Govamance Philasophy

*  Hawing strong systems and processes to ensura full and timaly
compliance with all legal and regulatory requiremants,

governance stractures thal estabilshes
chacks and balances and dlf—!l‘-gafﬂ-'u decision |'r'l|;|k|'|l_r fe

* Daeploying wall e

nppropriate levels inthe organisation;

# Respect, accountahility and faimess towards all stakeholders

* Engaging a diverse and highly expenenced Board ol Directors,

with expartise in industry, inance, managemaent and the law

#  Clear commumcation of relevant information and high degree of

dinelosure leyeks

&  Create value for all stakeholders without compromising on ethical

savours to leverage
ts human and capital resources 1o translate oppotfurities into reality,
craato. awareneszs ol corporate vision and spark dymamicm and

erireprEndursinp ot all ievals

Corporate Governance at “Choice “has been an incessant voyage
with the overall objective of the Company’s growth with consistenthy
shouldering its responsibility toward the community at large. The
Company has in place measures to periodically review and revise the
Corporate Governance practices by subjecting business processes to
audits and checks that measures up to the required standards.
"Chowce” 15 1 full compliance with the Corporate Governances
practices, norms & disclosuras with respect to Listing Regulations with
the Stock Exchange. The company has a practice
Financial results and other relevant disciosures! develppments in a
clear and timely mannerthrough printand electronic media,

f reparting the

Carparala Gosrsinancs K Epacl

sOVERNANCE STRUC

LRE

Your Company has lmd a strong foundation for bwilding Corporate

.o
Governance 31 & methodology 1o oreate vallie for s investor's. The
Rale of the *"Management” in the Company’s operabonal acthalres
trarscribes the future of the Comprany

= ol own S Ta P
ot e L oamipa _-'i\"-\_'

on the path of

ChFE  RITDTED CNTEeChDn

MBS ETTIEr 1 pvorsees tha interests of 2

COrDoratle BOlCIes, © il PeEftGiTTaAnieE

SAROAras &nd OINgr g Nt argas o I_';-I'-f:'::""'l'l

COTpoT

governance and reqgulsory

mplisnce

THE ROLE OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

It is often said that, the Board of Director's are responsible for
providing oversight, insight & foresight. The Role of the Board of
Director's Is very crucial in this ever changing, volatile & multifarious
business environment.

The Board of Directors faces persistent challenges in aligning the
Intereit of all its stakeholders. The Board of Director's are the link
between those who provide the capital and those are employed in
order to managa them.

The Baard |||.1-,|'. n dominant .'-I||1.|||..’||":,r anid l'El_'._]L:l?:'!Dr-,' rale In the
Corporate Governance structure, provides leadership and guidanics
to the management and oversess the execution of the strategles
Furthar the Board 15 also emtrustec with the "F".|'||'||"|‘.|h||iT',' to estahlish
the eultures, values ane othics inthe reots E:-H."H.'CL'I-"IILIL-‘T:,'

A1 “Choice” tha Board s entrusted for the ultmate respans:bility of
e Mar Tt Chrections and |'|--"r.-r|n.1|'.r_1-' ot it .--l:_I'l"lll_'ln.'I':\.l As its
principal el baing fiduciary in nanire , the Board provides leadership
strateg quidance, obiactive and independent view 1o the
C ormpany’s management wh le chscharging its 'I-_"'_-|,::_'"I"'.I|:_l'iI|!I_"_- thus

ansuring adhams to athics | tranaparency and disclosures. The Bosrd

reviews Corporate Policies, overall Perlormance, accountng and
raporting standards and other significant areas of Management

Comorate Govarnancs &ndl regulstory comphancs

At * Cholce * the Board has an optimal combination of Executive and
Mon - Executive Director (Independent Director’s) who hawve
considerable expertise in their respective fields as per the
requirement of Company’s Business.

Specihc mallors mseryed 1o 1he Boand
are a% fal (s

T - ap { v + §=
. o determing the Lompany s obp

policed and businass plans ang monid

& To s&! sppiophiate policies W manage risks in pursn of the
Company'ds strategic ol ectives

# To ensuro the integrity of the Group's accounting and financial
reporing system and compliance with the redevant laws and
standards. and that ARpProprEte miEnal control Systems ars m
place, including systema for risk management, as weall as inancal

and o ticnal control

s Toappoint key senior axecufives

&  Toensure timely and accurate disclosure 1o and communications
with stakeholders

*  To ensure the adequacy of resources, and staff qualifications and
gxperionce of the Group's accounting and financial reporting

function
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COMPOSITION OF BOARDOF DIRECTORS

A= an the date of this Repaort, the Board Comprises of &1(5ix | Directors
af which 3 (Three Jara MNon - Executive Indapendant Directar (1100e
is & Mon- Executive Women Directar and 2 {Twa) Executive Director
out of which ane is 2 Managing Director. The Indepandent Directar's
constitute 50% of the Total Members of the Board of your Compary,
The compositionand size of the Board is reviewed pariodically,

The Board is entrusted with an ultimate responsibility of the
Management, Directions and Performance of the Company, The Board
Pariodically evaluates the need for change in size and Composition,

The Compaosition of the Board of Directors of the Company s in
eanfarmity with Regulation 17 of the Listing Regulation read with
section 147 of the Companies &ct, 2013,

During the Year Under réview, Mr. Deb Kumar Goswami, Independent
Directar of the Company ceased to ba the Director of the Campany
with effect from September 27, 2019 on completion of his tenure on
conclusion of the 2éth Anpual General Meating of the Campany,

INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR & THEIR ROLE

In the recent times, Indian corporate law administrators, appears to be
clouded by a plethora of cutrages due to Mismanagement of funds &
corporate dues, The regulators all over have beeninstigating a series of
policies designed to instil the raots of corporate governance, ensuring
that companies follow ethical rules of business.

The needforthe independent directors can be established by the fact
that they are expacted to be independent from thie management and
act as the trustees of shareholders, It s increasingly recognized that
the Independent Directors have an important role to play in the
progress of the Company. They are considared as bath a =afeguard
and a significant source of competitive advantage.

Independent Director acts as a guide, eoach, and mentos ta the
Company, their rale includes improving corporate credibility and
governance standards by acting as a watchdog. The rationale behind
having Independent directors 15 that it would increase the gquality of
board supervision and reduce tha possibility of damaging conflict of
interast, The role of Independent Director s to act as guide bo the
Company and atthe sametime secure the interest of the Shareholders:

The Company has on its Board, prominent Independent Directors

who have brought independent Judgement to Board's

contemplatian, The Independen Diractors have played a preatal role

insafequarding the interest of all stakeholders.

The majerrole ofindependent Directors is as fol lows|

= Toreview the performance of non-independant directars and tha
Board as awhele:

* To determine remuneration of executive Directors & Key
Managerial Parsanneland Sentor Management Tearm;

#* To recommend for appointment, remuneration and terms of
appointment of auditors of the Company;

* To review and manitar the asditor's independence and
perlormance, and effectiveness of audit process;

= Toapprove &considertheFinancial Results |

+  Azcerain and ensure that the company has an adequate and
functional vigil mechanism and the interests of 2 person who usaes
such mechanism are not affected onsccountof such use!

* Repor about enethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud ar
violation of the company’s code of conduct ar ethies polizy;

INDEPEMNDENT DIRECTCGRS MEETING

During the Year under review, the Indepandent Directars mat on
Fabruary 14, 2020 intaraliato

« review the performance of the Mon- Independent Director and the
Board asawhaole,

*  meview the performance of the Managing Director of the Company
tzking into account review of the Executive and Mon-Executive Dractors

*  weigh the quality, quantity & timelines of flow of information betesen
the Compary's management and the Board that is necessany for the
Board 1o eflectively and reasonakly perfan the duties,

INMDEPENMDENT DIRECTOR'S DECLARATION
Declarations:

Al independent Directors have given declarations thar they maet the
critenia ot independence as laid down under Section 149(4) of the At
and Regulation 16{1}{b}ofthe Listing Ragulations.

Tha Directors have alse given declaration under Rule 6{1) and [2) of
the Campanies (Appaintment and Qualification of Directors) Rules,
2014, thattheir names are registered inthe databank az maintainad by
the Indian Instituze of Corporate Affairs (IHCA), In terms of Section 150
of tha Act read with Rule &(4) of the Campanies (Appaintmant &
Clualification of Directars) Rules, 2014, the Independent Diractors, if
applicable, are required to undertake online proficiency self-
assassmant test conducted by the ICA within a period of ane (1) year
from the date of inclusian of thairnames in the data bank ar such time
asamended by the Central Government,

Based on the Declarations received from tha Independent Directors,
the Company has verified the accuracy of such disclosures and
confirm that the Independent Directors fulfil the conditions of
Independence specified in the Listing Requlaticns and are
independent of the management of the Company. The Campany has
issued formal appointment letters ta all the Independent Director in
the manner provided under the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules
issued thereunder. 4 sample letier of appointment / re- appaintment
comaining the termis and conditions issued to Indepandent Directors,
i posted onthe Company’s website s choicaipdia.com,

NUMBER OF INDEFENDENT DIRECTORSHIP

A5 per Regulation 17 & of the Listing Regulations; based on the
Intimations! disclosures received fram the Directors, none of the
Independent Diractor serve as an Independent Directar in more than
sewan Listed Company. The Managing Director of the Company does
notserve asan Independent Directorinany Listed Company,

FUNCTIONAL EXPERTISE OF DIRECTORS

CAkamal Poddar
CAAjay Kejriwal

Finance & Business Management

Finance, Taxation & Managemeant Practicas
Mirs. Hemlata Poddar  Human Resource

hir.AshokKumar Thakur  Finance & Management

Mr. Kanhaiyalal Berwal  Soclal Responsibility &Human Resource

Mr, Bharat Kumar Shah  Business Development

BOARD MEETING

T'he Board Meets at regular intervals to discuss and adopt the business
strategies, policies, risk management, financial results / performance
of the Company and its subsidiaries. The Board Mastings: are pre
scheduled and a tentative annual calendar of the Board Meeting s
circulated to the Directors well in advance to facilitate them to plan
their schedules accordingly. in caze of business constraints the Boards
approval is taken through circular reselutions. The circular resolutions
aremoted atthe subseguaent Board Meeting.
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The notice and detalled Agenda along with relevant notes and other
material information are sent in advance separately to each Director
and in exceptional cases tabled at the meeting with the approval of
the Board. This ensures timely and informed decisions by the Boand.
The Board reviews the performances of the Company in comparisan
tosettargets/ available resources.

The Board Meeting are generally held at the Registered Office orin
the nearby vicinity of the Registered Office of the Comparny. Five

Carporate Governancs Repod

Board Meetngs were held during the Financial Year under -review Le
2019-20.The dates of these Board Meetings are 2%th May, 2077, 30th
Aug 2015, 13th Sept 2018, 25th Mov 2019 and 14th Feb, 2020, The
Meeatings were held at least once in a gquarter and the time period
between two meetings did not exceed 120 days. The details of
attendance of the Directer ot the Board meetings held during the
financial year 2019-20 and st the last Annual General Mesting are
givenbalow :

MName of the Director Mumber of Board

Meeting Held

Mr, Kamal P‘uddf'tr

Mr. Apay Kejnwal

Mrs. Hemiata Poddar
Mr. Debkumar Goswami
M, Ashok Kumar Thakur
Mr. Kanhaiyalal Berwal

5
3
3
3
]
5
3

Mr. Bharat Kumar Shah

*During the Year Under review, Mr. Deb Bumar Goswami independant
Director of the Company ceased to be the Director of the Company
with effect from Saptember 27, 2019 an completion of hig lenune an
conclusion af thie 26th Anmual General Maeting of the Company.

FLOW OF INFORMATION

The agenda items for Board! Committee meetings are finalised by the
Company Secretary in consultation with this Chairrman, The detailed
Agenda, satting out the business to be transacted at the Board/
Committes meetings supported with relevant presentations,
explanatory Aotes and execulive simmaries is sont to each Directar at
least seven days befare the date of the meetings. In addition to the
iterns which are required to be pleced Before the Board for its noting
and/ or consideration / approval. Infermation is provided on various
significant items

With regards to matters requiring the approval of the Board, all the
concerned person communicate with the Company Secretary in
advance to enable inclusion of such matters in the agenda for the
Board/ committee meetings: Where it is not practicable to circulate
any document or if the agenda item is of a confidential nature, the
same is sent separately or tabled atthe meeting, as the case may bea. In
special and exceptional clrcumstances, cansideration of additional or
supplementary items is taken up with thie penmission of the Chairman
and with the consent of the majonty of the Directors presant at the
tMeeting. The senior officials of the Grosp are invitad ta the Board
meatings in respect of the items concerning tham 1o provide
additional inputs asand when necessany.

The Agenda for the Mestings of the Board and its Commitiees are
circulated in advance to the Directors to ensure sufficient time s
provided to Director to prepars for the meatings. The Board misets at
least once in a quartar inter slia to review quarserly standalons and
consolidated financial results | compliance report(s) of all laws
applicable to the Company , major legal issues or regulatory
development | minutes of tha Board Mestings of Subsidiary
companies, significant rransactions and arangements emarad in to
by the unlisted subsidiary companies, risk management, barrowings,
Joint ventures or any ather proposal from the management regarnding
mergers, acguisitions, restructuring of investments ete

Mumber of Board Attendance Attendance at the
Meesting previous Annual General Mesting

Attendance Held in the Year 2019

48 B LA RY I LA LA
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Tha draft Minutes of the Baard and Committee meetings are crculated
are circulated amongst the Directors! Members for their perusal and
comments Juggestion if any, recerved from the Directors’ Membersare
suitably incorporated In the draft Minutes, in consultation with the
chairman of the Boardf Cammittee Minutes are generally signed by the
Chairman of the Boand? Comemittes a1 thie nest meeting,

The Company has an effective post meeting follow up review and
reparting Process. The decisions taken by the Board! Committeas are
communicated to the respective departmental heads for ther
implementation. The implemeantation of the decisions of the previous

Board Mesting is placed in the next Board Meeting
AVAILABILITY OF INFORMATION TOTHE BOARD

The Board has unrestricted accessto all Company related information,
At Board Meetings, managers and representatives who can provide
additional ingsights in to the items being discussed are invited, A1 the
Board Mestings, presentations are made by the Senlor Managemant
& the Business Heads of tha Company and its subsidiaries, The Board
periodically reviews and take: note of, all the compliances
confirmations in respect of laws and regulations applicable to the
company. The annual operating & Capital expanditure plans and
budgets, unaudited /audited financial results, minutes of the board
hMeetings of the unlisted subsidiares inchiding the summany af the
key decisions taken by their respective boards, significant transactions
and arrangements antared in to by the unlisted subsidiary companies,
risk mamagement update / reports, minutes of meetings. of the
committees of the board etc. are placed hefore the Board.

FAMILARISATION PROGRAMME OF INDEPENDENT
DIRECTOR

The independent Directors have been familiarised with the Company,
their roles and responsihifities in the Company | their roles and
respansibiiities i1 the Company, nature of the industry in which the
Company operstes , busingss model of the Company ete. During the
Y 2019-20, Independent Ciractor's were taken through various
aspects of the Company's Business and operations, Tha details of the
familiarisation programme imparted to the [ndependent Directors
during FY 2017-20 are put up on the website of the Company and can
bo aceessed ot weww choicaindia.com
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At tha time ot appainting a Director, | aformal letter of appointment is
given tothe Directar, which imer alia explains the role, function, duties
and responsibilities expected from him as a Director of the Company,
The Dirgctors are also explained in details the Compliance required
from him under Companies Act, 2013, the Listing Regulations and
othervarious statues and an affirmation isobtained,

SUCESSION PLANNING

The Company belisves that sound succession plans for the Board
members and senior leadership are very impamant for creating rolust
future for the Company, The Nomination and Remuneration Committes
and the Board, as part of succession planning exerciss, periodically
review the composition of the Board to ensure that the same is closely
alignad with the stratagy and lang e needs of the Company.

GOVERMANCE CQDE
Code of Conduct & Ethies:

The Company has adopted the Code of Business Conduct & Ethics
{"the Code ") which is applicable to the Board of Directors and Senior
Managarment team (One Level below the Board of Directors) of tha
Company. The Code requires Directors and Emiployees to act
hanestly, fairly, ethically-and with integrity, conduct themselves in
professional, couneous and respectiul manner, The Code is displayed
on the website of the Campany www.choiceindia.com,

All Members and Employeas have affirmed compliance with the said
coda for the year ended March 31, 2020, A declaration to this effect s
signed by the Managing Director is given below:

DECLARATION ON CODE OF CONDUCT
Az provided under Regulation 26(3) of the SEBI [ Lsting Obligationand
Dizclasure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, all Board Mermbers and
senior Managemerit Personnel have affimned compliance with code of
eonduct fortheyearended March 31, 2020,

Place ; Murnbai S

Date: September &, 2020 Kamal Poddar
Managing Dhirector
DIN Mo 01518700

Insider Trading Code:

The Campany has adoptad an “Internal Code® of conduct for
Regulating, Menitoring and Reparting Trades by Designated Persans
{* the Code'} in accordance with the SEBE [Prohibition of Insider
Trading Regulations, 2015{ the PIT Regulations).

The Codeis applicable to Promoters, Mambers of Pramaters Group,
all Directors and. Designated Persons who are expected to have

Mame of the Director Category

Drire

Mumber of
rship in d in ather

other Companies

access to. unpublished price sensitive information relating to the
Company. The Company has formulated the Code of Practices and
pracedures for fair Disclosures of un published price sensitive
information incompliancewith FIT Regulations:

A structured digital database s being maintained by the Comparny, which
contains the names and other particulars as preseribed of the persons
covered under the Codesdrawn up pursuanttothe PIT Regulations

The Company Secretary has heen appointed as the Compliance
Officar far ensuring implamentation of the codes for fair disclosure
and conduct: The Board, designated persons and other connected
persons have affirmed compliance with the Code,

BOARD EVALUATION

Cine of the Key functions of the Board is to menitor and review the
Board evaluation framewark. The Board works with the NMomination &
Remuneration Committes to lay down the evaluation criteria for the
performance. of the Chairman, the Board | Board Committeas and
axecutive / Mon- executive Independent Director through peer
avaluation, excluding the Directors being avaluated.

The Board carmed out an Annual Performance evaluation of its own
performance, the Independent Director individually as well as the
avaluation of the working of the committees of the Board, The
Performance evaluation of all the Directors was carried out by the
Momination and Remuneration Committes,

A structured questionnaire was prepared after taking in te
Consideration inputs received from covering varous aspects of the
Board's functioning such as adegquacy of the compesition of the
Board and its committees, Board Culture, execution and perfarmance
of pacific duties, obligations and governande.

The Perfarmance evaluation of the Managing Director and tha Man
Independent Diractors was caried out by the Independant Directors
The Directors expressed theirsatisfaction with tha evaluation process.

MEMBERSHIP OF THEBOARD

he information refating to the number of other directorship and
committes chairmanships! membership held by the Directors in other
public companies as on March 31, 2020 s detailed below, Other
Directorship incudes directorship of Private Limited Companies and
Companies under section & of the Companies Act, 2073, The
infarmation pertaining to the Chairmanship/ membearships of the
cammittes of the Board held by our Directors include audit
Committes and stakeholder relationship committea as reguired
underthelisting Regulation

Number of Committee Mo, of Equity Shares
held in * Choica

International Limited™
as on March 31, 2020

M, Kamial Paddar

Mr. Ajay Kejriwal Executie Diractor

Mrs. Hemlata Poddar Mon - Executive Director
Mr. Azhok Kumar Thakur  Independent Directar
fr. Kanhaiyalal Barwal Independent Director

Mr. Bharat Kumar Shah Independent Director

Executive Director 14

- - 2500011
- - 102000
- - B50000
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11 Directorship includes Private Limited Companies and Section 8 Companies

2] Chairmanship / Membership of Committee anly include Audit Committes. and Stake Holder Relationship Committes in Indian Public
Campanias, Members of the Board of the Company do not have membership of more than 10 Board level committees or chairman of more

than five such committess.
A} Mr.Kamal Paddar & Mrs. Hemlata Poddar are reiated to each other:

4] Brief Profila of each of the above Diractors are available on the Cormpany's website www.cholceindia.com
5] Thedetsils provided consist of the Directar's Holding Birectorship in the Company as on March 31, 2020,

COMMITTES ©@F THE BOARD

The Board has constituted vanous committees of the Dineclors totake
informed decisions in the best intarest of the Company which caters io
specific areas and activitias. The Committess constituted are in line
with the Companies Act, 2013 & Listing Regulations. Following are the
Cormmittow constituted by the Baard of Directors which comprises of
the members of the Board & Senior Management of the Company.

A) AuditCommittes

BY MNomination & Remuneration Committee

C} StakeHolder Relationship Committes

) RiskManagement Committes

El Investment Commitles

F] Firance Committas

G} Securities Allotment Committes

H} Corporate Soclal Responsibility Commitiee

The above menticned Committes meetings ame held at Regular
Intervals to track the day to day affairs of the Company, The decisions

taken by the Committees are reviewsad by the Board of Directors at the
Board Meeting conducted for each quarter.

All the decisions pertaining to the constitution of the Committess,
appaintment of Members and fiking their terms of referenced role of

W ET T T : ¥ Podition

Meamber

Mr. Debkumar Goswami Independent Director Chalrrrar®
hlle. ALK Thakur Independent Director Chairman®
hlr. Ajay Kajriveal Executive Director Misrn bt

b, Bharat Kumar Shah Independent Director Merriber®

committes ans taken by the Board of Directors, Details of the role and
camposition of these Commitments including the numbar of
meetings held dunng the financial year and attendance at- meetings
are provided below.

AJAUDIT COMMITTEE

The Primary objective of the Audit Committea is to monitor. 2nd
provide an effective supervision. of the Management's tinancial
reporiing process, to ensure accurate and timely disclosures, with the
highest levels of transparency, integrity and aquality of financial
reporting, The Committes oversees the work carried out in the
hnancial reporting process by the Management, the Intermal auditors
andthe Independent auditors,

Az on March 31, 2020, the Audit Committee comprises of three
Directors, the majority of which are Independent Directors. All the
members of the Coammittes are financially literate and holds a vaned
expanenceintha Financial Market

Theapdit committes maet faur times during the year Le on 201920 May
29, 2019, September 13, 2019, November 29, 2017, & February 14,
2020, The maximum interval between any two consecutive Meetings
weas wall within the maximumallowed gap of 120 day. The Minutesof the
rmaetings of the Audit Committes are noted by the Board. The details of
the compasition of the Committee, mestings held, stendance at the
meeting are givan in the below mentioned tabls:

Prasence at the
Previous Annual
General Meeating held

Ma, of Mo, of
Meetings Meetings
held attended

in September, 2019

4 2 J
4 4 H,
4 4 J
4 , )

*Mr, Ashok Kumar Thakur was appointed as the Chairman of the Audi
Commitbes with effect from 2%tk November 2019, in place of Mr.
Dabkumar Goswarmi whose office was vacated on the conclusion of
the Annual General Meeting of the on the Company held on
Septemberdy. 2019,

**r. Bharat Kumar Shah, the Independent Directar of the Company
wat indycted as the Mamber of the Committes with effect fram 2%th
MNovember 2019,

The Company Secretary of the company acts as the secretary to the
commithas.

The terms of reference of the Audit Cormmittes ans in canformity with
the requirements of SEBI Listing Regulstions and Section 1714} of the
Companies Act, 2013, Further, the Audit Commites has powers which
ara in lina with SEBI Listing Regulations. The terms of reference of the
AuditCommittee include tha following:

il Cwversight of the listed entity's financial reponing process and the
dizclosure of its financial infarmation to ensure that the financial
statemantis correct, suthiciont and credible,
it Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of
appoimtmentof auditors of the listed entity;
] Approval of payment to statutony auditors for any other seraces
rendered by the statutory auditors.
iv] Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial stateaments
and auditors reparis thereon before submission to the board for
approval, with paricular reference to:
al Matters requiredto bhe included inthe Director's responsibility
staternant to-be included in the board's reportin terms of (clof
subzection (3} of section 134 of the Companies Act, 20135

bl Changes if any, In accounting policies and practices and
regsonsfarthe same
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cl Major accounting entnes involving estimates based on the
exercise of judgements by management.

d} Significant adjustments made in the financial statements
arising outof audit finding;

e) Cempliance with listing and other legal requirements relating
tofinancial statements;

fi  Disclosure of any related party transactions;
) Madifisd Options inthe draft audit repon,

vl Reviewing, with the management, the gquarterly financial
statements before subrmission to the board for approval;

vi) Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses /
application of funds raised through an issue (public issue, rights
issue, prefarential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilzed for
purpases other than those stated in the offer document /
prospectus / notice and the repert submitted by the monitoring
agency manitaring the utilisation of proceeds of 2 publicor rights
issue, and making appropriate recommendations to the board 1o
take up steps inthis matter,

wii) Rewviewing and monitaring the auditor's independence and
sffectiveness of audit process.

vili} Approval ar any subséguent modification of transactions of the
listed antity with related parties if any ;

i) Scruting of inter-corporate loans and investments;

x]  Maluabon of undertakings or assats of the listed entity, wherever it
ls necassary;

wi) Evaluation of imernal financial contrals and risk management
systems;

xil} Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and
internal auditors, adequacy of the internal control systemas;

wiil] Reviewing the adequacy of intarnal audit function, if any,
including the structure of the internal audit department, staffing
and seniority of the official heading the department, reparting
structure coverage and freguency of intamal audit;

wiv} Diigcussion with internal auditars of any sigrificant findings and
follow up there on;

wv} Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the
imternal auditors into matters where there s suspected fraud or
irreqularity or & failure of internal control systems of a material
nature and reporting the matter to the board;

wvi] Discussion with statutory auditors before the sudit commeances,
shout the nature and scope of audit as well as post-audit
discussion to ascertain any area of concarn;

avii] To look into the reasons for substantial defaults if any in the
payment to the depositors, debenture holders, shareholders (in
cast of non-paymant of declarad dividends) and creditors;

wvini) To review the functioning of the whistle blower machanism;

i) Approval of appointment of chief financial officer after assessing
the gualifications, experience and background, etc. of the
candidate;

The audit committes shall mandatorily review the following information;

*  Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and
results of operations;

»  Statement of significant related pany transactions {as defined by
the audit committee), submitted by managemerit;

*  Management letters / letters of intemal control weaknessesissued
by the statutery audors;

v |ptemal sudit reponts relating ta internal control weaknesses; and

»  the appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the chiaf
internal auditor shall be subject to review by the audit committes.

v Statement of deviations:

Cluarterly staternant of deviation(s) including report ot fmanitaring
agency, if applicable is submitted to stock exchange(s) in terms of
Regulation 32(1).

EYNOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Prominent features of the Memination and Remuneration
Committes has been formulated in accordance with the Companies
At 2013 and Listing Regulations and the role of the cammittas |nter
alia includes is to assist the Board in-ensuring that the Board and
Exgcutive Commitiee retain an appropriate structure, size and
balance of skills to support the strategic objectives and valkes of the
firm. The Committee assists the Board in meeting its responsibilities
regarding the determination, implementation and oversight of senicr
remuneration arrangements to enable the recrultment, motivation,
Board Membership and retention of partners generally, The
Committee also assists the Board by reviewing and making
recommendations in respect of the remuneration policies and
framework for all staff

The Momination & Remuneration Committee comprisas of three
Directars, all being Non - Executive Director as on the date of the
Report the Committes constitutes of twa Indepandent Director & ane
Mon - Execotive Director. The details of the Members of the
Committes & the Committee Meetings held during the year under
review arementicned belowinthe table:

Mame of the Member Category

*Wr. Debkumar Goswami Indepandent Director

*Mr. Ashok Kumar Thakur Independeant Director

hire, Hemlata Pocdar Mori- Executive Director

Wir. Kanhalyalal Berwal Independent Director

TheCompany Secretary acts asa Secratary tothe Committes:

*Mr. Ashok Kumar Thakur was appointed as the Chairman af the
Momination & Remuneration Committes with affect fram 29th
Movember, 2019, in place of Mr. Debkumar Goswami whose offica
was vacated on the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting of tha
onthe Companyheld on September 27, 2019

Pasithon No. of Me etings

Chairman 2 1
Chairman 2 1
Meen ber 2 "
Member 2 1

Mo. of Meetings

hald attended

The Composition & role of the Nemination & Remuneration
Committes is in compliance with the provisions of Section 178 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules issued thereunder and
Regulatiaon 19 read with Fart D of Schedule || of the Listing
Regulations, During the Financial Year 201920 the Committes
meeting was held on August 30, 2019 and February 14, 2020,
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Terms of reference:

The Broad terms of reference of the Momination & Remuneration
Committes asapproved by the Board are as follows:

*  Formulation of the critera for determining qualifications, positive
attributes and independence of a directar and recommend tothe
Board of Directors a policy refating to the remuneration of the
Directors, kay managerial personnel and ather amployees;

*  Formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of
Independent Directors and the Board of Directars;

*  Dewvising apolicy on dwversity of Board of Directors,

= Identifying persons who are qualified to becorme Directors and
who may be appointed in sericr management inaccordance with
the eritena laid down, and recommenid to the Board of Directors
their appointment and removal,

s Whether to extend or continue the term of appointmeant of the
independent director, on the basis of the report of the
performance evaluation of Independent Directors,

*  Reviewing the oversll compensation policy, service agraements
and other employment conditions of Managing / Whole Time
Directors and Senior Management Employees.

= Tocreate an evaluation framewark for the Independent Directar
and the Board,

*  Toprovide necessary reports tothe Chairman after the evaluation
processiscompleted by the Directors

Criteria for Performance Evaluation of Directars

A separate exercise was carned out to evaluate the performance of
individual Directars including the Managing Director were evaluated
on parameters such as level of angagement and contribution,
independence: of judgement, safeguarding the interest of the
Company and its shareholders. The performance evaluation of the
Managing Directar and the Executive Directors and the other Man-
Independent Directors was carried qut by the Independent Directons,
The Diractors expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation prociess.

Evaluation Criteria:

*  Linderstanding the Business in connation with the Risk appetite of
the Business and Regulatany requiremants;

*  Leadershipand Managemant Skills

*  Attendznce at the Board Meetings and active participation inthe
discussion of Business Performance.

+  Nurtunng Leadership & Strateqse Mandgament Skillz
*  Managing the Conflicts inthe Board Discussion
= Managingthe Potential Conflict of inerast,

Board Membership:

The Mormination & Remuneration Committee shall formulate the criteria
for appointmient of a Directar and review the said criteria for determining
the qualifications, skills, positive atiributes necessary for inducting
members of the Board. The Committee is also responsible for screening
the candidates who meet the criteria, reviewing thedir appointment’ re -
appaintrnant and making recammaendationata the Board in this regard

Few of tha parameters considered by the Nomination &Remuneration
Committee while recommending the appointment of a Director te the
Board, include!

= Composition of the Board
*  Boord Diversity
»  Appropriate Balance of skills & exparience and krowledge

*  Professional qualifications, expertise and experience in specific
dreaof business;

= any presentor potential conflict of interest;

*  ahility to devete sufficient time and attention to his professional
obligation informed and balanced decigion;

»  ability to uphold ethical standards of integrity and prabity in
accordance with the Company'svalues.

Carparate Govetnancs Repod

Remuneration Policy:

In determining the remuneration of the [Nectors, Key Managernial
Fersonnel (KMP) and other employess of the Company, a Remuneration
Folicy lkas baan framed by the Momination & Ramuneration Commitas
and approved by the Board with the following broad objective:

*  Ensuring that the level and compensation of Remuneration is
reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate Directors
of the quality required to run the Comipany Successfully,

*  Mativate the Ke;' Managerial Personnel and Senipr Management
b achieve excalience in thair pedormance.

#  Relationship of Remuneration to performance is clear and meets
appropriate perlormance Benchmarks,

*  Enzsurmg that the remuneration to Dhrectors, KMP & Senior
Maragement involves a batance betwean fixed & incentive pay
reflecting between fised & incentive pay refiecting short & lang
term performance shisctive appropriate ta the working of the
Company and its goals,

Emphass on efficiencyand pay lor parlarmance has beean the toundations
of the Company’s philosaphy on réwards. The Company values jts
intangible assets in the forms of its employes and o retain them, the
Cermpany ragulary benchmarks the rermuneration leved in the industey and
makes necessanychanges in its pay struciure to retain their employees.

a) Remuneration to Mon - Executive / Independent Directors:

The Man-Executiva/ Independent Director of the Board shallbe
entithed to sitting fees for attending the meeting of the Board &
Committess thereof. The sitting fees paid 1o the Dirsctors-ars
within the lirit prescribed under the Companies Act, 20713,
Tha independent Directors shall not be #ligible for any stock
option plans and further shall aleo not ba eligible for any share
bazad nents The Indepandent Directors ck not have any
material pecuniary relationship ortransactions with the Company,

b} Remuneration to Managing/ Executive Directors

The appaintment and remuneration of Executive Directors
including Managing Director is governed by the
recammendation of Nomination & Remuneration Commities,
Resolutions passed by the Board & Shareholders of the
Compary. Payment of repruneration to Executive Directors is
govarned by the respactive agreement executed batween the
Directar and the Company,

The remunaration payable to the Managing Director is broadly
divided in to fed and varable component. The fixed companent
compnses of salary. allowances, perquisites and the variable
compoenent comprises of performance benus and may incude
cormmmiission subjectto theappraval of thie mambsars,

The remuneration policy is directsd towards rewarding perfarmance
based, to retain the talent. The detall of Remunération to the
Managing Director during the year is as follows:

owances & Pe

2019

Mame of the Director

| FAr. Kamal Paddar Ra. 40 00, GO0,

Mole: Tha aboes msihionsd Ramuneration paid 10 the Madaging Diteclor hes been
approved by the Mambam sTthe Chmpsny al,rS'u:rﬂ\:mu.alGaral.ul'!\.dq;o_-lmgq’.l:lml::umpany
hald on Septamber 27, X6 whion tha me - appointrmsnt of the Managing Direcioralong
wnithvhis bried profile torming pan of the Resolution: was put to sote

c) Remuneration to Senior Management Employees

The Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel and Senior
hanagement shall consist of fixed pay & incentive pay incompiiance
with the provisions of the Comparigs Act, and In accordance with
Company's Policy, The fixed pay-shall include monthly remuneration,
employer’s contribution to provident fund, pension schemes stc as
amended from time to tme, The incentive pay shall be declded based
on the balance between performance of the Company and
Perfarmance of the Key Managerial Personnel and Senior
Management , 1o be decided annually or such intervals as may be
considered appropriate,
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C) STAKEHOLDERRELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

The Stake Holder Relationship Committes comprises of three Directors: Detailled below in the table is the Constitunion & details of the

Maeting held during the year.

Details of the Meeting & Members of Stakeholder Relationship Committee

Mame of the Member

Mrs Hemiata Poddar Mon- Executive Director

Mr. Ajay Kejriwal Executive Director

Mr. Bharat Kumar Shah

Independent Diractor

Mo, of Meetings

MNo. of Meetings

held attended
Chaimman Fi 2
Member 2 2
|
Mermber 2 2

The Company Secretary acts as a Secretany to the Commitres

The Committee met two times during the Financial Year 201%-20 on
Augrist 30, 201 % and February 14, 2020,

Tha Company obtains hall yearly certificate from a Company
Secretary in Practise under Regulation 40{%)of the Listing
Regulations, confirming the issue of certificates for transfer , sub
division . consolidation etc: and submit 2 copy thereof tothe Stock
Exchange in terms of Regulation 40010} of the Listing Regulations,
Further the Compliance Cenificate under Regulation 7(3) of the
Listing Regulations, confirming that all activities in relation to both
physical and electronic share transfer facifity ‘are maintained by
Registrar and Share Transter Agant registered with the Securities
and Exchange Board of India is also filed with the Stock Exchangs
ona half yearly basis,

In accordance with Regulation 535 & af the 5EBI{ Depositones and
Particlpants | Regulations |, 1994 and SEB| Circular Mo, I & CY
FITTC/Cir- 18/2002 dated Dacermber 31, 2002 a Qualified Practising
Company Secretary carried out 2 Share Capital Audit to reconcile tha
total admitted Equity Share capital with MSDL & CD5L and the total

issued and paid upshare capital isin agreement with the total number
af shares in physical form and the total number of dematenalized
shares hald with NSO and CDSL

The terms of reference of the committes include:

o approval of transfer of Shares! debenture and ssue of Duglicate
fsplitfconsalidation /subdivision of Share,

» tofivrecord datef haok closure of Share! debentura transfer book
of the Company from timeto tme

v Monitoring expeditious redrassal of investor grievance matters
recaived from stock exchanges, SERl, ROC atc;

* o cary out any other duties that may be delegated to the
committee by the Board of Directors from time to time

The Secratarial Department of the Company and the Registrar and

Transfer Agent, Sharex Dynamics (India) Private Limted attend to all the

grievances of the Shareholders recaived directly or through SEBI, Stock

Exchanges, Ministry of Carporate Affairs, Rogistrar of Companies, ete

Eftorts are made to ensure that the grievances are redressed
axpaditiously to the satisfaction of the Investars.

Details of Shareholders Complaints received & redressed during the year 2019- 20 are as follows:

D) RISKMANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Risk Management Committee constituted by the Board of

Directors is bound to adhere to the Roles & Responsibility as defined

by the Board of Directars in the Policy.

Term-of reference of Risk Management Committea:

*  |dantfying the Company's Risk appotite

* Raview the risk management practises and structures and
recommend changes to ensure thair adeguacy

*  Framinga Risk Managerment Policy

= Approve and review the risk management plan putin place by the
managermant

= Such other activities as the Board of Directors may determine
frorm tieme to tirme.

The Committes 5 respansible for the overall risk managemem
process & to address the uncerainties f any to be aroused in the
operations of the Company,

The Risk Management Committes maats at Regular Interval. The Risk
Management Committes comprises of the Senior Management Team
atthe Company and the Executive Directors,

EHNVESTMENT COMMITTEE

The Investment Committes isantrustad with the dayto day operations
with reapect to investments to made in the name and on behalf of the
Company. The maximum amount up towhich the Investment shall me

mada by the |nvestment Committes & almady predefined by the
Board of Directars:
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The decsions taken by the Investment Committes with respect to the
Investments made on behalf of the Committee are reviewed by the
Board of Qirectors at the Board Meeting; the decisians taken by the
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The Investment Committes constituted by the Board comprises of
Executive & Independent Directors. The details of the Committes
Meating held during the Year along with the Constitution of the

Committee are detailed asfollows:

Irvastment Committes can be altered by the Board of Directors.

Mame of the Member Categary Position Mo. of Meetings Mo. of Meetings
attended

Mr. Kamal Poddar Managing Director Chairman . 3

br. Ajay Kejriwal Executive Director Member 3 3

M. A K Thakur Independent Direcior Member 3 3

Themeeting of Committes was held on June 29, 2019, January 02, 2020 and March 390, 2020 during the year under review.

FIFINANCE COMMITTEE

The Finance Committes is entrusted with responsibility of day to day business activities and taking  decisions on bohalf of the Company in
respectof Financlal matters pertaining to gwing Guarantee, availing loan facility from Banks, Financial institutions, Monitoring adherence to
the Budget | setting  Finance goals along with the funding strategies to achieve them, Presenting Finance goals to the Board of Director for
approval, Creating, approving, and updating policies that help ensuretha assets of the-organization are protected, Ensuring approved Finance
policies and procedures are belng followed by the Company,

The maximum amount up to which the ioans to be given or to be availed by the Company is predefined by the Board of Directors of the
Company. Tha decisions taken by the Finance Committes with respect to the Financial decizions on behall of the Committee are reviewed by the
Board of Directors atthe Board Meating; the decisions taken by the Finance Committee can be altered by the Board of Directors.

The detailsof the Committes Meeating hisld during the Year along with the Constitution of the Committes are detailed as follows:

Mo. ot Mestings

Mr. Kamal Poddar Managing Diractor Chairman ¥ 2
Mr. Ajay Kejriwal Executive Directo Membar 2 2
M. Manoj Singhania Chief Financial Officer Membar 2 2

The Meeting of the Finance Cormmittee was held on August 30, 2019, and February 14, 2020 during the year under review

GISECURIMESALLOTMENT COMMITTEE

The Securities Allotment Committee is entrustad majorly with therole of considenng and approving the allotment of Shares! Debentures ansing
araccount of any Corporate sction e beinitiated by the Company,

The Securities Allotmant Committes Meeting was hald on January 02, 2020 during the Year undes review for the allatrment of 1,98.00.000
warrantsto be converted into Equivalent number of Equity Sharas

The Constitution of the Securities Allotment Committee is as follows:

Narme of the Member Category Pasition Mo, of Meatings Mo, of Mestings
held attended

Mr. Kamal Poddar Managing Director Chairman 1 1

Mr. Ajay Kajriwal Executive Directar Member 1 1

Mz Karishma Shah Company Secretary Mermtyer 1 1
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H)}CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 does not imply 1o your company, nonetheless your Company understands the importance of its
respansibilities towards the society under which we cater our services. Your Company has voluntarily adopted the C5R Policy to shoulder its
raspansibilities towards the socfety and has also constituted the CSE Committee to ascertain the activities undertakan by the Company in the
bt interastof the Society,

The Canstitution of the Corporate Social Responsibility Comemittes isas follows:

Mame of the Member Category Position MNo. of Meetings No. of Mestings
held attended
]
| hir. Kanhaiyalal Berwal Independsnt Diractor Chairman 1 1
| hir. Karmal Poddar Managing Directar Mamber 1 1
| M. Ajay Kejriwal Executive Director Member 1 1

MNote : The Committes Méating was held on February 14, 2020 during the year under review.

Terms of reference of the Committee are asfollows: ¢} Vigil Mechanism/ Whistle Blower Policy

Pursuant to Section 177{7)& (10) of the Companies-Act, 2013 and
Regulation 22 of the Listing Regulation -, the Company has
formulated Whistle Blower Palicy for Vgl Mechanism of Directors
and Employees to report to the management about Unethical
behaviour, fraud or vielation of the Company's Code of Conduct,

= Formulating and recommending to the Board , C5R Policy which
shall indicate the activities to be undertakan by the Company as
specified in the Schadule Vil of the Act,

*  Making recommendation an the amount of expanditure to be
incurred anCSR activities:

The Company has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy and an
affactive Vigil Machanism system to provide  tormal maehanism
to'its Directars, Employees and Business Assaciates to raise thair
concerns in 8 responsible and effective -manner regarding
suspected unethical matiers Involving serious malpractice or
wianyg daing within the organisation and also to safeguard
against victimization. The Mechanizm provides adequate
satequards against victimization of employess and Directors who
uge such mechanism and makes provision for difect access 1o the
chairman of the Audit Committes in exceptional cases,

Ir aceordance with the provisions of Regulaten 2&(6) of the
Listing Regufations , the Key Managerial Personnel | Directons)
and Promater(s) of the Company have affirmed that they have not
aenterad in to-any agreemant for themselves or on bahalf of any
other person, with any sharehalder or any third party with regard
The Related Party Transaction undertaken by the Company wers to compensation ar profit sharing in cannection with dealings in
in compliance with the provisions set out in the Companies Act, thesecurities of the Company,

2013 read with rules issued there under and Regulation 23 (1ol d) Details of Non - Compliance by tha Company, Fenalties and
the Listing Regulations, strictures imposed on the Company by the Stock Exchangas or
The Audit Committee during the Financial Year 2019-20 has SEBI or any statutory authority, on any matter related o Capital
approved Related Pary Transactions while: granting omnibus Markets during lastthree Financial Year

approval in line with the policy of dealing with Related Party
Transactiors-and the spplicable provisions of the Companies Art,
2013 read with Rules issues thersunder and the Listing
Regulations [including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactments thereal far time beingin force, deviations it any to the
sait] process have been brought to the attention of the Audi
Committas.

#  To monitor the implementation of the actvities to be undertaken
bythe Company.

AFFIRMATIONS & DISCLOSURES

a) Compliance Framework

The Company s in compliance with all mandatory
reguiremants uncer the Listing Reautations;

b) Related Party Transaction

Alitransactions entered in to by the com pany with related parties,
during the financial year 201%: 20, were in ordinary course of
business and on arms -length basis. The details of the Related
Party Tramsaction are ser outl in the hotes to the Financial
Statement In accordance with “IND AS" forming part of this
Annual Repart,

The Company has complied with all requirements specified
under the Listing Regulations as well as other Regulations and
guidelines of SEBI, Consequently, thare ware no strictures or
penalties imposad by either SEBI or Stock Exchange or any
statutory authority for non - compliance of any matter related to
Capital Markets during the last three Financial Years,

e) Policy Determining Material Subsidiaries

Pursuant to requiremants of Regulation 14 and Regulation 23 of
the Listing Regulations the Company has adopted the policies far
determining material subsidiaries and on related party
transactions and the said pelicles are avakable on the Company's
Wabsite at www.choicaindia.com,

Thi related party transactions entered in to by the Company
pursuant to the omnibus approval granted by the Audit
Committes is reviewed ot lgast on a gquarterly basis by the said
Committes.

The related party transaction palicy has been placed and can be
accessed on the company's website www.choiceindia.com.There
ara no materially significart Related Party Transactions of the
Company which have potantial conflict with the interest of tha
Company atalarge,

During the year under review, the policy tor determining material
subsidiaries was suitably modified to be at par with the recent
amendmentsto the Listing Regulations.
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The Minutes of the Board meeting of the subsidiary company are
placed atthe Board Meeting of the Company on perindical basis,
All significant transactions and arrangements sntered i to by the
unhisted subsidiary if any are brought to the notice of the Board of
Directors ofthe Company.

The Policy for determining materal subsidiaries has been
uploaded and can be accessed an the Company’s wehsite at
given link: www choreaindia.com

Disclosure of Accounting Treatment

In the preparation of the finandlal statements the Company has
followed the Accounting Standard's referred to in Section 133 of
the Companies act, 2013, The significant accournting policies
which are consistently applied are set out in the Notes 1o the
Financial Statemients.

Risk Management

Business Risk Management is an on-going process within the
Company. The assessmentis perodicslly examined by the Compary.

Website

The Company ensures updating the applicakle information
under Regulation 44(2) of the Listing Regulations on the
Company's websiba (www.choicaindia.com), A separate tab on
“Investor Relations™ on the website containa details relating mthe
financial results declared by the Company, Shareholding Fattemn,
Corporate Gavernance, and such ather News and
Announcements made by the Cormpany to the exchange under
the tab "Mews & Announcemsnts”,

Sacretarial Compliance Report

SEBI Vide its circular No. CIR/ICFDICMD /2772019 dated
February 08, 2017 read with Regulation 24(4) of the Listing
Regulation, direct listed entities to conduct Annuwal Secretarial
Campliance Audit From a practising Company Secretary of all
applicable SER Regulations and Circulars! guidelines issued
thereundar, The sald secratarial Compliance repar is in addition
to the Secretarial Audit Report by practising Company Secretaries
under Form MR - 3 and is required to be submitted to the
exchange within A0 days of the end of the Financial Yaar

The Company has obtained the certificate from Anjana Sharma &
Assooates [Company Sﬂtr‘ﬂt_ariés}.

Artached is the Secretaral Compliance Repon as Annexure
fnrming Part of the Board Report.

Certificate from Practising Company Secretary

iertificate a= required under Part C of Schedule V of Listing
Regulations, received from M/s. B M Mimani & Assocates LLP
(Company Secretaries) [ Firm Registration Ne . 12007MH250300)
that rone of the Diractors on the Board of the Company haz been
debarred ar disqualified from baing appointed or continuing as
directors of the Company by the Securities and Exchange Board
of India ./ Ministry of Corporate Alfairs ar any such authority was
placed before the Board of Directors at thelr mesting held on
September 05, 2020

Recommendations of Committees of the Board

There were no instances during the Financial Year 20719-20
wherein the Board has not secepted recommendations made by
any committes of the Board.

Total Fees Paid to the Statutory Auditars of the Company

Total fees of Re.51,00,000/- was paid by the Company and its
subsidiaries, on a conselidated basis, 1o the statutary auditor and
ol ontitios in the network firm / network entity of which the
statitory auditar is a partfor the Financial Year 2019-20.

M)

IH

K)

M}

Carparate Govetnancs Repod

Disclosure relating to Sexual Harassment of women at Work
Place (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013

The Company has in place an effective mechanism for dealing
with complaints refating to sexual harassment at work place. The
details relating to the number of complaints received and
disposed of during the fimnancial year 200 9-20 are as under;

a. Mumberot Complaintsfiled during the financial year: Wil

k. Number of Complaints disposed of during the Financial Year:
il

¢ Numbar al Complaints pending ason end of the Financial Year
=Ml

Code of Conduct

The Company has adopted a Code of Canduct for all employees
including the mambers of the Board and Senfor Managemant
Farsannel, Al mambers of the Board and Senior Managemant
Personnel have affirmed Complance with the said Code of
Canduct for the Financial Year 2019-20, The declaration frem our
Managing Director, Mr. Kamal Poddar affirming the same forms
the partof this repart

SEBI Complaints Redress System (SCORES)

Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEB} administers a
centralised web based complaints redress systemn [SCORES). It
enables investorsto lodge and follow up complaints and track the
status of redressal online on the website www scores.govin. |t
also anables the Company to receive the Complaints from
Investar against them, redress such complaints and repart
redressal. All the activities starting from lodging the camplaint till
its dieposal are carried anlime in an automated enviranment and
the status of every compliant till s disposal are carried anlins in
an automated environment and the status of every complaint can
ba viewed onling at any time. The Company has registerad itself
on Scores and endeavours to resobve all investor complain
received throughscores,

Disclosure on Commodity Price Risk and Commaodity Hedging
Activities

The Company has in place s mechanism to infarm the Board
Membars about the Rizk assessment, mitigation Plans and
peradical reviews faced by the Company: Risk based internal
audit plan is approved by the Audit Committes which also reviews
addeguacy and effectivaness of the Company's internal finangial
controls.

The Company doas not involve in commodity hedging activities.

Detatls of Utilization of Funds raised through Preferential
Allotment or qualified Institution placement as specified under
Regulation 32{7A):

On fanoary 02, 2020, the Sacurities Allotmeant Committes of the
Company had allotted 1,98,00,000 warrants to be converted into
Equivalent number of Equity Shares within 18 months of
allotment &t & Price of Rs. 51/ per warrant 1o the Promoter 8
Person's ather than the Fromoter group on the terms & conditions
prescribed under the SEBI lssue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018 and ather applicable faws,

The Partial amount received on altorment of tha warrants is fully
utilized for the working capital reguirement of the Company &
othergenetal corporate purpose.

Means of Communication

Effective Communication of information is an essential
componant of Corporate Gavernance. it is process of sharing
infarmation, ideas, thoughts, opimons and plans to all stake
holders which promote management - shareholders relations,
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5] The Disclosure of the Compliance with Corporate Governance requirements speciflied in Regulation 17 to 27 and Regulation 44{2)

Regulations Brief Description Compliance

of the Regulstion Status

Board of Directors LR Complied
172 Compbed
I3 Complied
a4 popoantments Complied
IS Complied
1H& -‘.Z:i'-';:- d
1T ileced belara the Board Complhied
it Compliance Cenificate od
179) Risk Assessment & Management Comphed
Y0 Performance Evaluatior Comphed
£ Audit Cammittes T8{1) Composition of Audin Camminee & Presence of the

sirman of the Coeme it the Annual General Mesting Complied
Meeting of Audit Comr Qe Complied

Role of the Cammines and review of information
by the committen Complied
i Momination & Eemuneratian THT & (2D Composrtion of Nemination and Remuneration Committes Complied

Commities
T3] Presence of Sudit Committies chalrman at the

Annual Generml Meating Complied
154 4) Role of the Cammittes Complied

X _ \ 1 i Stakeholder Relationship 201) ,20(2] Composition of stake holder relationship committes Complied
The Company reguls Ci ). N s 'throug ' Committes B20(3)
multiple cf d 1 G ! ! 204} Role of the Committes

vt tha stack axe hanoei . 5 Risk Managemaent Committea 2101}, Composition of Risk Managamant Committes Not Applicable
an stock exchang (2 & (3

i} Quarterly Rasult 2714) fiole of the Committes Mot Applicable

& '\-'i'._Jl Mechanism 22 Formulation al '-.n':|||:r'.-“|.'-- hanizm for Direciors l_“|'|.‘|‘||‘|iifl-|']
and Employees

! Eelated Party Transaction 231), 2345) Policy for Related Party Transaction Complied
2306), 2300
238}

23121 & 23(3) Chnnthius GV iy thas Audit Coirvmities l_'_'__.-|||_-|'.r_-|_'j

B it of transactiorn
5

234) Approval of matarial related pany transaction Complied

8 Subsidiaries of the Company i of Director of matoral Comphed

tipulated under the megulations Comphed

ship & Tenure Compilied

VIO S Comphied

arce ot lndep apil i'_ L m (] |:'“._,_=_| I

ke pinchenl [ ol

remar e e Camermine

et fioe Hi | ol Dhrectors ::_:.-;_, ol

B

TANaement Complied

Complied

v} Price Sensitive Information = .
12 1 2 b d 5 .':I'.-.'|-|r|.|-'-||".-..r.|!'|'..--n'|'.'|r|-ll'|l o Independent Complied

T Y

Compoeltion of various committee aof Board of Directors l’_'fr‘r\-pi el
Code of conduct of Board of Directars and senlor Complied
management personnal

Details of sstablishment of vigll meachanism Complied
Criteria for TR NG [y e to Mon - Exgcutive Directors L-_n-np!led
Policy on dealing with rala party transactian Complied
Prdit ¥ Fiss Lin'r1-|=|||'||. L] M.:r---|.|i '.||||'I il 1A '.'_'ﬁ’n|‘|!i|'ﬂ_‘|
Aé (2)101) Details of familiarisation programmes imparted to Complied

irdapengont Dirsctor
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O} Details of Compliance with Mon- Mandatory requirements:
il Duringthe year under review, there is no audit gualfication on the Company's financial statements. The Company continues to adopt the

best practisesto safeguard the practice of Unmodified auditopinion.

i) Thelnternal Auditar hasa direct access to the Audit Committee, he participatas in the Audit Committee Mestings and presents his reports

with the observations to the Audit Committes.

GEMNERALSHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

I} CompanyRegistration Details:

The Company isregistered in the state of Maharashtra, India, under the jurisdiction of Registrar of Companies, Mumbai,

Corporate Identity Mumber (CIN Noj : L&7190MH1993PLCOT1117

Iy Financial Year April 1, 2019 to March 31, 2020

i A} 27th Annual General Meeting for the Financial Year 2019- 20

financial year 2012-13 or for any subsequent financial years, ane
requestad 1o claim the same from the Company. Additionally,
pursuant o sub-section {6} of Section 125 of the Act read with the
IEFF Rules, all shares in respect of which dividend has not been
claimed for the past seven consacutive years shall be transferred
by the Company in the name of IEPF Authonty by way of credit o
the Demat Accournt established by the IEPF Autharity on or befare
Septamber 23, 2020 or such other date as may be specified by the
Central Government in this regard.

Any member whose shares are thus transferred to |EPF may claim
hesfherdits shares under prowiso to Section 1246 o the Act by
fallowing the process given under Rule 7 of the IEPF Rules. Interms

Carporate Govermanos Heport

date of the Twenty Third Annual General Meating (8GM) held on
September 20, 2076, on the website of the Pursuant to the
provisions of Sections 124 and 125 of the Act, the Company has
transferred an amount of Hs, 58,453/ Rupees Fifty Eight
Thousand Four Hundred and Fifty Three Gnly |, being the
unclaimed dividendforthefinancial year 20111210 lEPFin 2019,

During the year under review, the Company had sent individual
notices seeking action from shareholder, whe has not claimed
Dividend &whose shares have bean transferred to |EPF,

Shareholders may note that both the unctaimed dividend and

corresponding shares transferred to IEPF can ba claimed from
IEPF {following the procedures prescribed in the IEFF Rules,

Dayand Date Wednesday , Septembar 30, 2020 of the relevant |IEPF Rules, the Company has uploaded the Sharehalders whase unclaimed Dividend and Shares have bean
Time 11,004 information in respect of the Unclaimed Dividends {Final transferred to |EFF can claim the same from IEPF by filing Form
Mode Through Video Conferencing f ather AudioVisual Means as set out inthe Notice convening Annual General Maeting Dividend)forthe financial years fram 2011-12102015- 15 s enthe B anhh hsiEFEMEhar b

Fimancial Year 201920

Given below are the dates of declaration of dividend and corresponding last dates for clamming unpaid Dividend.

Book Closure Dates Seplember 24 202040 Seplember 30, 2020 both days inelugive)

Fimancial Year Date of Declaration of
Il B} Dietails of Extra Ordinary General Meating during the Financial Year 201920 Dividend

Type of Dividend

Last datefor calming

unclaimed Dividend

During thaYear under review, the Company has conducted ane Extra Ordinary Ganeral Meeting.

2001112 Final September 28, 2012 October 05,2017
Day and Date Menday, December 23,2020 2012-13 Final September 16,2013 September23, 2020
Time 100 AM 2013-14 Final Sepramber 27, 2014 October 3, 2021
Venue Satyanarayan Goonka Bhavan, ). B Nagar, Andheri{ East), Mumbai - 400059 2014:15 Final September 24, 2015 Octabar 1, 2022
5 ! Resoluti o it
Detailz of Special Resolution Passed Issue of Warrants on Freferential Basis 201514 fizal Septerber 20, 2044 October?, 2023

IV} Listing Details vii] Detalls of General Body Meetinags of Last threo years

Stock Exchange onwhich Sharesara Listed BSE Limited {Bombay Stock Exchange)

Financial Year

Special Resolutions ifany

Stock Code | 531358 20617 september 18,2007 1200PM.  Anchorage Hall, Hotel Subalnternational,
|- o . 211, Chakala Sahar Road, Andhen | East),
| Sty [ CHGSEIN Mumbai - 400099 .
| ARRE | st | 201718 September®7, 2018 11.00AM.  Anchorage Hall, Hotel Subainternational

L2117, ChakalaSahar Road, Andberi{ East),
Mumbai - 400099

20718-19 Septamber 27,2017 T2 30RM. Hotel Radisson, X-22, MIDC , Central Park,
Hanuman Magarn Andheri] Basth Mumbai-400053

v} Dividend History

Re - appointment of
Mr, Kamal Poddaras the
Managing Directorafthe Company

Financial Year Date of Declaration Dividend Per Share of the

Type of Dividend

Face Value of Rs. 10 each

VIl Market Price Data

20112 Final September 28, 2012 105
201213 Final September 16,2013 10% Maorith Choice Choice Low ClosePrice BSE Sensex BSE Sensex BSE Sensex
201314 Final September 27, 2014 10% High (BSE) { BSE] [BSE) High Lowy Close
[ 214-15 Final September 26,2015 0% April, 2019 B5.30 58.70 Frely 39.487.45 38,440.25 39.031.55
| 2015-14 Final September 200, 20146 100%: May, 201% HBOLRD GBL&D &880 40,124 %6 36.956.10 A9 714,20
261617 Gividend Not Declared Jure, 2019 70.00 47.15 50.15 46,312.07 38,870.96 39,394 64
Jul L X ) ’
2017-18 Diidind Not Badlaise uly, 2019 JO.85 4020 44,00 40,032.49 3712824 37 481.12
e 't 00 August, 2019 55.00 35.10 40.44 37,807.55 34, 102.35 37, 332.7%
icderd hot Daclar
i N September, 2019 56.95 35.08 50.00 39.441,12 35,987,680 3866733
Vil Unclaimed Dividend Account opened In pursuance of sub-section (1) of the said Cerobaer, 2019 54.460 38.65 50.10 40,392,227 37,415.83 40,129.05
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 124:of the Companiss dct, iec:'on_'s ;E?"’":;d I"DJ_E:" o nﬁ;trid :;J :hedhwmh;r Ed”_"'ah”r.: ar-n::_ Mavember, 2019 E’?'m 4[?!. 10 24,95 “'-”5.“4."-"'? 40,014.23 40,793.81 |
2013 (the Act) read with the Investor Education and Protection e LE N st g s December, 2019 76.80 45,00 7225 41,809,596 40,135.37 41,253.74
[ Aty e putin A, Tralyl wih Renl o ARSI I“' :.E "_"I' o 2o o5 January, 2020 97.75 72.00 90.00 42,2738 4047655  40,723.49
ereinafter called “the IE ufes"), tha amount of dividen Accordingly, the unclaimed dividend in respect of the fimancial
which remain unclaimed or unpaid for a period of seven years year 2001 2-13 isdue for transter to the IEFF in September 23, 2020 RARMAG Y 2020 S5 sl LD Eiyya e B
from the date of ransfer of such amount to the Unpald Dividend Members, wha have not yet claimed their dividend for the Marchk, 2020 28.30 7375 7605 39.083.17 25,638,940 2945849
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Comparison Chart Xl) Categories of Shareholderas on March 31, 2020
Category of Shareholder Total Mo.of Shares % of Total Shares
(A}  Shareholding of Promoter & Promoter Group
100 - - 45,000 a  Individuals 14300011 71.48
90 - E m'(m b Bodies Corporate 386527 1.94
Total Fromoter Sharehalding (A} 146,846,538 7342
80 - - 35,000 (8) PublicShareholding
?ﬂ' o 8 Instituticns
i 304.@' I, Mutual Funds/uT)
Eﬂ " ii_Financial Institution/ Banks -
i -2 5,Em iii. Foreign Pertfolio Investor
50 | 2{1@ i Insurancea Cc:-n-upanie.s .
40 - v Fareign Financial Institution
B wi, Foreign Mutual Fund .
30 _ 15’cm Sub'Tu:}tSlfHa:l -
20 - - 10,000 b Mon-Institution
i.Bodias Corporate 2710495 13.55
10 1 — ChOICE o BSE Sensex [ srcm i Individual Sharehaldar nominal Share Capitalupto Rs. 7 Lakh 1111344 5.55
0 . . 0 ii.b Irdividual Sharaholdar nominal Share Capital imascess of Re 1 Lakh 10546903 529
€ MR 55252 0.28
4’0‘, P) ‘Eh &? ﬁ'&? % &} .: 2 l' 2 0(': 2 2 Qﬁ "‘J; d  Clearing Members 54145 0:.27
O Y29 "9 O19 <019 ﬂJg Qp "Dy Oy e HUF 221011 116
1 IEPF 3092 ATy
q Director & Relatives 106000 .53
Sub Total [Bb)
1X) Renistras & Shara Transter Agent Total Public Shamholdlng{ﬁ} (Ba+ Bb+ Ber B+ Be+ BF+ Bg)
M/, Sharex Dynamics(india) Private Limited ; S "
Unit-1, Luthra Industnal Premises, 1 ml

AndnheriKurda Road, Sated Pool,

Andnern{East], Mumbai - 400072 XIl) Top Ten Shareholders as on March 31, 2020 other than Promoter & Promoter Group
TelMo: D222 8515604744

Webhsite www.sharexindis.com Mame ofthe Shareholdei Me. of Shares Held % of Holding
1 M5 Azura Prajects Private Limited 12B5024 &2
X} Distribution of Shareheolding as on March 31, 2020: 2 Mis Florence Securitie s Private Limited 7REARS S92
- 3 M-"s.‘lﬂ.‘_harr-_ered{:apﬁsl Ressarch Private Limiwed 414212 2.07
Mo. of Equity Mo of Shareholdar % oftotal Mo. of Share Amount 3% total of 4 M/s.Smeaton Developers Private Limited 150000 0.74
Shares Sharehoiders {InRs) Share Capital 5 Mr Ajay Rajendra Kejriwal 102000 050
1t0 5000 1556 74,45 2145990 1.08 : R o oo
ks Ms, Sunita Modi 3000 044
5001 ta 10000 202 2.1 1678190 0.84 8 Mr. Bhageria Basant Matdin 5EATT 0.28
10007 te 20000 107 i B 1459500 0.84 g M/5. Govind Patadia HUF 55044 028
20001 to 30000 60 2.87 1497560 075 10 Mr.Dhiraj Lalpuria 50000 0.25
30001 to 40000 4 154 432610 646 11 Mr Jitendra Kumar Bhagat 50000 .25
12 Mr. Bavra) Tibrewal 50000 (.25
N0 B THD 2 2y, i i 13 Mr.Vikash KumnarAgaraal 50004 (.25
50007 te 100000 51 244 4175350 208 14 Wra. Snahlata Bagariz B0 025
100001 wabove &0 248 186491440 v343 15 Mr.Sunil Kumar Bagaria 50000 (.25
:ﬁ;ﬂ 3 -s--,: Ew ﬁﬁq Tif-_will = ..é ; T 14 Mr Sandeep Mandawewala E:Uﬂdli} (.25
— | 17 Nir. hitesh Agarwal 50004 (.25
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Xy Address of Correaspondence

Compliance Officer RAT Agent:
Sharex Dynamics | india) Private Limited

1 Ea Mumba
TelNo: 022 BS15606/44
Website: www.sharexindia.com
Email Id: karishma_shah@cholceindia.com

Dematerialisation of Shares

L} wheora by the

namica (India] Private Limited & the Company’s

ites liko transter of Shares, transm) of shares rans tion ofsh

Dirsctors of the Company have delegared tha puthorne

n of name of the sharahe

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/- Sd/.

Kamal Poddar
{Managing Director)
DINMNo: 01518700

Mumbai
Date: September 5. 2020

TG | CHOICE INTERNATICINAL LIMITED
-4

Ajay Kojriwal
(Director)
DiNMNo: 03051841

ARNLUAL REPORT 2020

Cormespondance with the
Company

il [RTA) far Carying ouwt share felatéd

Iress, amongst athars

transmissian of shares, requests

Corporate o ming

CEOQ/ CFO Certification

Ry koW 5 tahall cenify that
v il ¥} E " vl i YA
P B Flow statomi o O il rche 120
el we state 1hat
by iditrae alahe e i any matenal fact or contair
I these staterments together presént a rue and 1&r view of the listed entily' s amamrs and arg (T

Compliare with existing accounting standards, apphicable laws and regulaticn

We further state that to the best of our knowledge and beliel, no tansaction entered in to by the

Company duringtheyaar, which are fraudulent, illegal aorviolatian of the Company's Code of Conduct

We are responsible for establishing and maintaining intarnal controls for linancial reporting and that we

have avalua the effectiveness of Internal Contral systems of the Company paraining to tinancia

rerorting o the L ymipany and havwe disclosad o tha Auditor v thi Budis Commitea. deficiencies i
e .'!.'_l'_,|::Jl| or oaration of | wernal contrala, if any, ol which we g awars andd the 8 8 i have takon o

proposes to take torectibty these deficenciey

We haveindicated to the Auditors 2nd the Audit Comimins
Sionitcant Change i A ERA COnT ¥ } rivacy o 1yt W Y

itk e 40 al stated el
Tances o scaaBtart-fracal ol vl v ' pr— - vy of
. A - i . " ’ 03 AL i i
For Choéce International Limited
¥ zmal Podds Mano; S
hManaging Direct [ in i i
DN No.: 015187
Wit
Diate: Sepiember S, 2020

raport
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AUDITOR'S CERTIFCATE REGARDING COMPLIANCE OF

LUNDITIONS OF CORPORATE GOVERNACE

T the Membems of Choice International Limited

We have sxamined the comphance of congditions of Corporate Governance by Choice intemnational Limited
for thie yeor ended March 31, 2020 as stipulated in Regulations 17, 18, 19, 20, 21,22.23.24 25 26,27 and
clauset (b) 1o (i) of sub-teguiation (2] of regulation 4& and Para C, D and E of Schedule V of the Securitiés and
Exchangs Board of india{ Listing Obligations snd Disclosure Requingments | Regulations, 2015 [ Collectively

refarred to as " SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015)

The: Compliance of conditions of Corparate Governance is the respansibility of the Company’s
Management. Our examination was catried aut in accordance with the guidance Mote on cemification of
Corparate Govermance, issued by the institute of Chartered Accountant of [ndia and was fimited te
procedures and implementation thersed, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliarnce of the

cunditions of Corparate Governante, [ s naither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial

statirnefity of the Company

in'our epdnion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given tous, We cenify that
the l:.nn'-;.-m--_,- has cx srrlled with the conditions r_|| l:r_jrj_lur.]:-(_' Govirnance as 51_|pul._1|_eu;:l. in the SERI Lp,t_-ru_';

;!I-gu lstrane, 2005

We state thal such complisncs I8 nother #0 assurance a8 1o the fulure Un.ﬂljllﬂ}' al tha C,n:li'nr_'mn_.,: nor the

efiiciency or effectiveness with which the management has conducied the affairs of the Company

For R M Mimani & Aszoctates LLP
Company Secretanei

Sdr.

Manao; Mimani

Partnar

ACSNMNo. 17083

CPMo: 11801

Mumbai
Date: September 5, 2020
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INDEPENDENT ALUDITOR'S REPORT
To The Members of Choice International Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Staterments

OPINION

Cher int

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE STANDALONE
FINANCIALSTATEMENTS
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Independeant Auditor's Report

standalona financial staterments,

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. Wealso:

Identify and assess the rigks of material misstatement of the
standalona financial statements, whether due to fraud or arror,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion, The rsk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from: error, 35 fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
imtentianal omissions, misrepresentations, or the overnde of
internal control,

Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to
the auditin ardar to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances. Under section 143(3){1) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expreéssing our opinion on whether the
Company has- adequate internal financial controls: system in
place and the oparating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonahlaness of accounting estimates and related
ditelosures made by the management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the
gaing concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whather a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubit on the
Company'sability to continue as a going concarm. [fwe conclude
that a material uncertainty exists we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report 1w the elated disclosures. in the
standalone financial statements ar, i such disclosures are
inadequate, to madiy our epinian, Cur tonclusiensare based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
ropart. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease 10 coNtinue 85 & going concerm.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
standalone firancal statemants, including the disclosures, and
whethar the standalone finzncial statements represent the
undarlying transactions and eventsin a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalene
financial staterments that, individually or in aggreqgate, makes it
probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may
be Influenced. We conzider guantitative  matariality and
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and
inevaluating the results of ourwork; and (i) to evaluate the effect
of any identified misstatements in the standalone financial
statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance
reqarding, amaong other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We alzo provide those charged with governance with a

statarmant that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationshi ps and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

REFORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY
REQUIREMENTS

1. As reguired by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on eur
auditwe repor, to the extent applicable that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and
explanations which ta the best of our knowladge and
beliel were necessary for the purposes of our audit

b

In our apinion, proper books of account as required by
law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from curexamination of those books,

c) The Balance Shest, the Statement of Profit-and Loss
including Other Comprehansive Incamae, the Cash Flow
Statemnent and Statement.of Changes in Equity dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the ralevant books of
FCCount,

d} In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financdial
statements comply with theé Ind AS apecified under
Section 133 of the Act.

On thie basis of the written representations received from
the directors as on 31stMarch, 2020 taken on record by
the Board aof Directors, none of the directors s
disqualified as on 3Tst March, 2020 from being
appointed as a diractor interms of Section 164(2) of the
At

fI ‘With respect to the adeguacy of the internal financial
contrals over financial raporting of the Company  and
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer 1o
our separate  Repoit o “Annexure AL Oui report
expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and
operating effectiveness of the Company's internal
financial cantrols overfinancial reporting,

With respect to the ather matters to be Included in the
Auditar’s Report in accordance with the requiremants of
section 197(14) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion
and to tha best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the
Company o its directars during the year s in accordance
withthe provisions of section 197 afthe Act.

o

h) With respect to the other matters to be Included in the
Auditor's Repont in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companias- (Audit and  Auditors} Roles, 2014, as
amended in our opinion and to the best of our
infarmation and according to the explanations given o
s

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending
litigations on its financial position as at the year-endin its
standalone financial staternents,

i, The Company did not have any long-term contracts
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including dernvative contracts for which there were any
material foreseeable losses asat the year-end.

iil, Thereware no amounts which were required to be
transferned to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company

2. As required by the Companies {Auditar's Report) Order, 2016
("the Order’] issued by the Central Government in terms of
Section 143{11} of the Act, we give in “Annexura B' a statement
anthe mattersspecified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

Independent Auditor's Report

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
{Firm’s Registration Mo, 1T7366WON-100018)
Sdi-
G.K Subramaniam
[FPartner}
(Membership Mo, 109837)
LOIMN: 25 09839AAAADOT0AD
Place: Mumbai
Diare: dth August, 2020

AMNNEXURE A" TOTHE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

(REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 1(F) UNDER ‘REPORT ON OTHER
LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS® SECTION OF OUR
REPORT OF EVEN DATE)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of Choice International Limited {"the Company™) as of
3stMarch, 2020 i conjunction with our audit of the standalone
financial statements of the Campany for the year ended on that
date.

MAMNAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL
CONTROLS

The Company's management is responsibile for establishing and
maintaining internal financial contrals ased on the intemal control
aver financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential companents of internal control stated in
the Guidance Mote on Audit of Intermal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Mote'}issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India: These responsibilities include tha
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
arderly and afficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
the Company's policies, the safequarding of s assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and arrars, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting record s, and tha timely preparation
of relizbla financial infarmation, as required under the Companias
Act, 2013,

AUDITORS" RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility s to express an opinion on the Company's
internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accardance with the
Guidance Note issued by the Institute of Charered Accountants of
India and the Standands on Auditing prescribed under Section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an
audit ‘ot Internal financial controls. Thoze Standards and the
Guidance Mote reguire that we comply with ethical reguirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain rezsonable assurance
about whether adeqguate internal financial controls. over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such contrals
operated eflectively in all material respects.

Clur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the adeguacy of the internal financial controls system over

financial reparting and their operating effectiveness, Cur audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included
cbtaining an understanding of intermal financial controls over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
axists,” and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal controls based on the assessed nsk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including
the assessment of the rsks of material misstaterment of the
standalone financial statements, whether dueto fraud or error.

We beligve that the audit evidenca wa have obtained, # sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit ¢pinion on the
Company's internal financial controls system  over financial
rEpOTnG,

MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL: OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING

A company's internal financial contrels over financial reporting is a
procass designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliakility of financial reporting and the preparation of standalons
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
genarally accepted accounting principles, A company’s Internal
financial controls aver financial reporting inclucles those policies
and pracedures that (1) perain to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detall, accurately and fairly reflact the transacticng
and dispositions of the assets of the company; {2} provide
reasonabile assurance that transactions are recorded a5 necessary (o
permit preparation of standalone financial statements in
accordarce with generally accepted accounting prineiples, and that
receipts and axpenditures of the company are being made anly in
accordance with authornsations of managemant and directars of the
company; and (3] provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention of timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, ar
disposition of the company‘s assets that could have a matearial effect
anthe standalones financial statements.

INHEREMNT LIMITATIONS OF INTERMAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS
OVER FINANCIALREPORTING

Because of thenherent limitations of intemal financial controls over
financial reporting, Including the passiblity of collusion or impraper
management averride of contrals, material misstatements due to
arrorof {raud may ocour snd not be detected. Alse, projections of
any evaluation of the imernal financial contrals over financial
reparting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reparting may become inadequate
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Independent Auditor's Report

because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
withthe policies or procedures may deteriorate,

OPINION

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the
explanationg given to us, the Company has in all material respects,
an adequata internal financial controls system over financial
raporting and swch intermal financial controls over  financial
reporting were operating effectively as at 31stMarch, 2020, based
on the critaria for internal financial contral over financial reparting
established by the Company considening the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Cwver Financial Repanting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of Indra,

For DELOITTE HASKIMNS & SELLS LLP

Chartered Accountants

(Firm's Reqistration Mo, 11 7366WA-T00018)
Sd/-

G.K Subramaniam

[Partner)

[Membership Mo, 10983%)
UDIN:201 07839 AA880090460

Place: Mumbai
Date: 4th Avgust, 2020

ANNEXURE BTOTHE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

{Referred to in paragraph (2) snder ‘Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements’ section of currepon of even date)

{i} Inrespectofthe Company's Property, Flant & Equipmeant;

[a} The Company has maintained proper records showing
full particulars, including guantitative details and
situationof Property, Plant& Equipment.

(B)The Company has & program to varify Propoery Flant &
Equipment onca in every 3 years-which; in our opinion,
the same (s reasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the
program; no Property Plant & Equipment were physically
verified by the Management during the year.

(e} According to the information and explanations given to
us and the records examined by us and based on the
examination of the registered conveyance deeds
provided tous, we report that, the title deeds, comprising
the immavable property of land and building, which is
fraohald, is held in the name of the Company as at the
balance shastdate.

lii) The Company does not have any inventory and hence
reporting underclause (i} of the Grderis not applicable,

(iii} According to the infermation and explanations given to
us, the Compary has granted |oans, secured or
unsecured, o companies covered In the register
maintamed under Section 189 of the Companies Act
2013 inrespectof which:

{a) The terms and conditions of the grant of such loans are, in our
opinion, piima facie, notprejudicial tothe Company'sinterast.

th) Theschedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest
has been stipulated and repayments or recerpts of principal
amountsand interest have been regular as perstipulations,

ich There is ne amount overdue for more than 20 days at the
balance shoot date,

{iv) In pur opinion and according to the infermation and
explanations given to us, the Company has complied with
the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013 in respect of grant of loans, making investmants
and providing guarantees and securities, as applicable

v According to the information and explanations givente us,
the Compary has not dccepted any deposit during the
year as provided under Sections 73 to 76 or any other
relevant  provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,
Accordingly, the provisions of clause (v) ofthe Order are
rot applicable. There are no unclaimed deposits with the
Companyany timeduring theyaar.

{vil Having regard to the nature of the Company's business /
activities, reporting under clause Avi) of the Orderwith
respect to maintenance of cost recerds under Section
1481 1ofthe Actisnot applicable,

vil) According tothe information and explanations givento us,
inrespect ol statutory diues:

(@} TheCompany has generally been regutar in depositing
undisputed statutory dues of Provident Fund,
Employess' State Insurance, Income-tax and Goods and
Servicas Tax, Service Tax, cess and other material
statutory dues applicabile to it to the appropriate
authorities.

We are Informed that the provisions of Custorm Duty is
net applicable to the Company.

(b} There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect
of Provident Fund, Employess’ State Insurance, Incamae-
tax, Goods and Services Tax, Service Tax, cess and other
matarial statutory dues in arrears as at 31stMarch, 2020
for a penod of more than six months from the date they
becams payable.

(e} Detgils of disputed Income-tax amount paid under
protestis given below:

Mame of | Nature Farm Pertod to | Amount | Amount
ke of Dues W L 1 the | Invalved |._.1|||_'|.-n|'rJ
it (Rs.)
lates
Income | |Income CIT ALY, 1,934, 494 -
Tax Tax | {Appeals)  2011-12

_Act, 1961 IDemand | B
AY., 14,601,300(4.601,300/

Tax Tax | (Appeals) ' 2017-18 |
Aot 19617 Demand

Incame | Income CIT
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[wii]

(i)

()

xi)

®ii)

{xiii)

[xiv)

In our apmon _and according w the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has nor defaultad in
the repaymernt of loans or borrowings to financial institutions
and banks. Further, the Company does nat have any foans or
borrowings from government and has not [ssued any
debentures,

The Company has not raised moneys by way of inmtal public
offer or further public offar {including debt instrumants) or
term loans and hence reparting under clause {ix) of the
Crader is notapplicabla.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the
information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the
Company and no material fraud on the Company by its
officars or employees has been noticed or reported during
thie yaar,

In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has paid managerial
remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals
mandated by the provisions of Section 1%7 read with
ScheduleViothe Companies Act, 2013

The Company is nota Nidhi Company and hence reperting
urder clavse (i) of the Ordar is not applicabie.

In our opirion end according to the information and
explanations given to us the Company is in cormpliance with
Section 177 and 188 of the Companigs. Act, 2013, where
applicable, far all transactions with the related parties and
the details of related party transactions have been disclozed
in the standalone financial statements etc. as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations gieen o ws,
the Company has made preferantial allotment of shares
warrantduring the yesr

Independent Auditor's Repaort

Irrrespect of the above issue, we further report that:

a} the requirement of Section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013,
as applicable, have been complied with; and

b) the amounts raised have been applied by the Company
during the year for the purposes for which the funds were
raized, other than temporary deployment pending
application

(xv} In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations giver to us, during the year the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors
ar directors of s subsidiary or assoctate company or
persons connected with- them and hence provisions of
Section 192 al the Companies Aet, 201 Jare natapplicable.

fxvi) I August 2018, the Company has surrendered the NBFC
license and awaits RBl approval for confirmation of the
cancellation of such licensea, Refer Note _ 1o the Standalone
Financial Statemeants.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Ragistration Mo, 1717 388WAW-100018)

Sd/-

G.K Subramaniam

{Partnar)

{Mambership Mo, T0%839)
UDIN:201098394A8A009040

Flace: Mumbai
Date: 4th August, 2020
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CHOICE INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET

(Rs. in Lakhs )

ASSETS

Non Current Assets:

{a) Property, Plant and Equipment

(b) Investment Property

(e} Intarpble Assets .

{d} Intangible Assets Under Development

(e] Financial Azsets
(v] Investranis B BB3.45
(i) Othare Financiz . 7 50463

{F) Ince ssats (Ne 80.63

Current Assats:

ta) Financal Assets
(i) Trade Receivablas 356,39 139.02
{1} Cash and "n:duh.E.r.]ul".'-alErﬂ.s 314,93 99713
(i1} Bank batance ather than (i 1.51 8.10

. (i) ; ] 2.672.74 )

| th) Other Current & ; 146,11

_ Total Assets 19,227.20 25,5956.97

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
: Equity
{a) Equity Share Capital 1 3 000, 2.000. 2 000,48
(bl Other Equity 502 77 90 70 Ty
13,824.77
Lishilities e

Mon Current Liabilities

ax Liabilites [Met)

Standalone
Financial Statements
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Standalone Financial Statements Standalone Financial Statemeants

CHOICE INTERNATIONAL LIMITED CHOICE INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS
(Fs. in Lakhs ) {Rs.in Lakhs )
T gl (e As at T Mote For the yvear =tg For the
r-,:=|,|r_|_|.._.,|_.. _'—"l.l';-"ll |:|1. 2018 F r.“'[ll._l_:lr.lr:- b o 0 March
| Current Liabilities [ Revenue from Operations 23 875.89 1.276.25 |
| (&) Financial Liabilities | Otherlncome 24 26.19 2197 I
(i) Borrowings 18 232994 90.37 10,624.21 | Tetellnivoass _— A |
n E
{ii} Trade Payables ! xpenses . | |
s— D‘  — —— d--- | Employee Benelits Expanse 29 78.38 121.34 |
t hps - M
| {2] Dues of rnlcrc.r anterprises an 1 . Finance Costs 56 154,31 564,95 |
small enterprises 19 KBl .41 0.75 —— o, = —E ——
; : : Drepraciation and Amortization Expense 27 1372 7180 |
1) Dyes of "Ed't':'“’ ”‘TI"” thary micro . o S 1200 Other Expenses 28 299 45 51311 I
LE 3 5 4 b 7 — - — - — — '
el ot calon S i ot L8 Zie i | Total Expenses 605.86 1,277.22 |
i tiii} Cther Financial Liabilities 20 = bl ALE | Profit / {loss) before exceptional items and tax (- 11} 296.22 21.00 |
; (b} Gther Current Liabilities P A543 2840 53,07 :W .E":tceprli.unai.items : [
| {c) Provisions £2 1.60 1.13 58.80 "hf Profit/(loss) before tax (III-1V ) 20622 1.00 |
| Total Liabilities 2,633.95 373.87 11,772.20 VI Tax Expense: S |
| Total Equity and Liabilities 19,227.20 14,244.55 25,596.97 | CurertTax 70.50 3235 |
e & e E | = | R T; I F _
summary of Significant Accounting Paolicies 1-2 { Sariwr.Yoars: T Crpange LA, I
Deferred Tax 27.90 (54.45) |
s — i ) ' — ) | Total Tax Expense GE.80 {2227 |
tes refe 1 ; i rt of the I stat t T L A, - e
R R VIl Profit/ (loss) for the period (VIIVIN) 197.42 43.27
| Will ©ther Comprehensive Income
This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of the even date. Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
| Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined bensfit abligations ERES 353
Tax EHect an above (0.47] (0.92)
For Daloitte Haskins & Salls LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Other Comprehensive Income for the year, net of tax 0.66 2.61
Chanered Accountants ! !
Firm Registration Number : 117366WAM-100018 Sdf- Sd- |IX Total Comprehensive Income for the year (VIl+VIll)
Karnal Poddar Ajay Kajriwal {Comprising Profit! (Loss) and Cther
Mansging Director Director i Flnmpmhenslw Incama for the year) . 198.08 45.88
{DIM-0151 B?U{’:I (DIM-03051841) | X Earnings Per Equity Share (Face Value INR 10 Per Shara):
| Basig(Rs) N 2% 0.99 0.80
G. K. Subramaniam Diluted ifts:) o4 ﬂﬂ_'% 0.80 I
Partner S/ Sdd-
Membership Number 1109839 Manaj Singhania Karishma Shah The notes referred to above are an integral part of the financial statements
Chiaf Fi ial CHfi G g
o N il et This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of the even date.
Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbal Place : Mumbai
Date ; August 04, 2020 ate : August Od, 2020 [ate : August 04, 2020 For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP For and on bahalf of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number : 117 3466W W 100018 Sd/- Sd/-
Kamal Poddar Ajay Kejriwal
Managing Director Director
(DIN-D1518700) {DIN-D3051841)
Sdi-
G. K. Subramaniam
Partner Sd/- Sd/-
Membership Number | 109839 Manaj Singhania Karishma Shah
Chief Financial Oficer Company Secretary
Placa : Mumbai Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Diate - August 04, 2020 Date - August 04, 2020 Date : August 04, 2020
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Standalone Financial Statements Standalone Financial Statements

STANDALONE CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE £ & || m e ) oy i
% s R & | = | w0 =
YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 [Rs. in Lakhs) . w || va e e g b o
£ - BT a o
: : = =1 o -
Farbiculars ) 2 T LT
| &. Cash Flow from Operating Activities - = -4 o =
| Met profit before tax 29622 21.00 E 4 ™ = gl )
Adjustments: o 2
| Depreciation and amaortisation 73.72 F7.a0 :E‘ =
| Finance costs 154.37 564.95 > = &
! o ] -
| Profit an sale of Property, Plant & Equipment - {0.21) i = m|s | " T« = a0 FES
:bmrtn:m sala of Investmeant (975} (45.95) i s o B o 4 % ﬁuﬁ _E E
| Interest Incorme (23.98) {1.18} = = g b = B = 2z = E’
[ 3 ]
:Frc-wmor'- for Emplc.l:.re-& benefit e-xpens-e-sr 1.92 Lz T E 2 = E g o
Operating pm'ﬁt before wnrkmg :apltal changes 492.46 &616.68 - e - E En ‘g % ﬁ E S f .:.E
[Mavements in assets and lakilities © o wl vl % g g g -
| Decraase/ {Increase) in Trade receivables (217.38) 3990 o = 12 !.:. - =1 =
increase / [Decrease) in Trade F'a:,ratﬂes 115.89} {B.24) o E % :g_‘ - i L
[Tncrease / [D@cmasu‘r] in Other Curn:-n'r FnharH:-aI lebl'lilm |:1 0.55] FOENY e ; i
Increase / [!'Jecrease] in Other Current Liabilities 17,83 i34.47} Lk
| DFCI‘EHE.E.’“HETEEEE:I in Other Current F-|I'|E|=|'H:|..=:L Asiets I:ﬂﬂ'?.?h’] Q.51 6 g = ﬁ ~
DECI‘EES-E.-"“HETE'EIS-EII in Other Current Assets 1523 75.04 e E w % { ﬁ
Du-:_raabzu"{lnr_redba:l " Dther Bank Eal:ﬁncea 0.58 U 78 %
[Incresse / [Duac_lease-] |r| Current F'r-::-ws“:rns IIEB 16:-
Cash Generated From Operations (207.13) (66.79) S e B e
[ Incorme taxes pald (73.75) 140,77} 3 47 § N E
| Net cash flow from operating activities MJ (280.88) (107.56) E '?“?. b ﬁ- E
I ok S e aiinele o - e
'B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities v o | ko | i =
Purchase of Property, Flant & Equipment (087} {0.81) 5 = L= E‘ *=
Purchase of Inta ngible Assel 12.25) {2.90) — § § ,.-% -E
Proceads from sale of Property, Plant & Equipment &.97 L | = E, [ = 8 .
Investment in Equity mstru ments nf 5.ub-=..|d|ary compary (2.600.00) (1,800.00) E = = » . B o :E =
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The Company uses valuation technigques that are approprate inthe
esrcurmstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair valus, maximizing the use of relevart observable inputs and
minimiging the use of unobsarvable inputs.

¥ Useoljudgmentand Estimates

The preparation of the financisl statements reguires the
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions inthe
application of accounting policies that affects the reparted amount
of assets, liabilities and the accompanying disclosures along with
contingent llabilities as at the date of financial statements and
revenue & expenses for the reporting period. Although these
estimates are based on the managemant’s best knowiedge of
curtint svents and actions, uncerainty about these assumpticns
and ettimates could result in outcomes different fram the estimates;
Differance botween actual results and estimates are recognised in
the year in which the resuls are known or materisfize ie.

prospectively

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical expenance and other factors, including expectations of
future events that are belisved 1o be reasonable under the
cireurmstances. The kay areas invelving estimation uncertainty,
higher degree of judgement or complesity, or areas whare
assumptions are sigificant to the financial statements include:

Il Impairmant of financial assers

i} Estmation of fair value measurement of financial assets and
Tiabsilities

i) Eflective interest rate

] Business modelassessment

¥} Provisions and Contingencies

i) Usehillife and expected residual value of assets

vil) Tax position Tor current t2x and recagnition of deferred tax
assets/llabilines

vill} Measurement of Defined Benefit Ohligations and actuarial
assumptions

i) Classification of lease and related discount rate

Wi, First-time adoption of Ind AS - mandatory exceptions and
optional exemptions

Owverall Principle:

The Company haz prepared the opening Balance Sheet as per ind
AS s of 1s Apal 2018 {“the transition date’) by recognising all
assets and liabilities whose recognition is required by Ind AS, not
recognising iterns of assets or habilites which are not permired by
Ind AS, by reclassifying items from Previous GAAP to Ind AS as
requined under Ind AS, and applying Ind AS in messurement of
recognised assets and liabilities. However, this principle issubject to
certain excoptions and certain cptional exemptions availed by the
Company as mentioned below:

Aol -

The Company has elected to messure propery, plant and
equipment. and intangible assets at its Previous GAAF carrying
amaount and use that Previous GAAP carrying amount as its deemed
costatthe date of transition e IND AS Le, Aprit 01, 2018,

Invastments in subsidiaries
Upan first-time adoption of Ind A5, the Company has slected 1o

account for its investments in subsidiaries at cost ie. at Previous

GAAF carrying value on tha date of transition to IND AS e, April 01,

2018,

A Summary of gignificant accounting policies

1. Cumment versus non-cumment classification

The Company presems assets and liabilines in the balance sheot

Based on current /non-current classification

An assat is troated as current when it is:

*  Expected to be realized or intended 1o be sold or consumed in
narmal sperating cycle.

= Heldprimarily forthe purpase of trading

*  Expectedto be realized within twelve months after the reporting
dite, ar

&  Cashorcash equivalent unless restricted fram being exchanged
of used to settle a liability for ot least twelve manths after the
raporting period

All other assets are classfied a3 non-curment

Aliabiliny is curmreny when:

*  Itis empected to be settled in normal operating cyde

* It is due 10 be setthed within twelve months aker the reponting
period, or

*  Thare is no unconditional right 1o defer the settlerment of the
lability for atleast twelve months after the reporting period

All other liabilities ara classifisd as non-current,

Dulerred 1ax assets and lizbilities are classified a8 non—curent assets
and Eabilities.

Based on the natore of products and services offered by ihe
Company, operating cycle determined is 12 monthe for the purpose
of current and non-current classification of assets and liahilities.

Thae operating cycle isthe time betwean the acquisition of assets for
procedsing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents.

2. Revenuerecognition

Revenue is measured at the fairvalue of the consideration received
of recevible. Revenus s recognized to the oxtent that itis probable
that the econcmic benefits will flow to the Company and the
revenue can be refiably measured and there exicts reasonable
cenainty of its recovery,

Sale of services

The Company recognizes mevenus on accrual basis when the
significant terms of the arrangement are enfarcasble, services have
been delvered and the collectability |s reasonably assured. The
mathad of recognizing the revenues and costs depends on the
nature of the services rendered. Revenue ie recognized when ne
slgnificant uncertainty exists asto its reallzation or collection.

Interest Income

Intorest income from financial assets b recognized when it i
probable that economic benelits will fiow 10 the company and the
amount of income can be measured refably. Interest income s
accrued on a time basis, by referance to the principal cutstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which i the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cosh receipts through the
expected life of the financial assets to that asset’s net carrying
amaunt on initial recognition,

Dividend Incoma

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholder's right to receive payment has been established
{prowided that it is probiablo that the economic benefits will llow 10
ﬂEmpﬂ“plﬂdﬂHlmmufhmnamb&mnuuudmﬂ;hPﬂ_

3. Property, Plant and Equipment

Land and buildings held for use in the production or supply of
geods or serviess, of for adminstrative purposes, s stated in the
Batance Sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impalrment losses, Freehald land i not depreciated.

Al iterns of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at
cost. Such cost includes the cost of replaced pan of the property,
plant and equipment and borrowing costs that are directly
atributable to the scquisition, construction of production of a
qualifying propeny, plant and equipment. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment is recognized s an asset i, and only
if, it is probable thm future economic benefits associated with the
wwm will flow 10 the company and the cost of the tem can be
measured rafiakly,

Praperties in the course of construction for production, supply o
adminfstrative purposes are carried a1 cost, less any recognized
impairment loss. Cost Includes professional fees and, for qualifying
assets, borrowing costs capitalized in accordance with the
company 5 accourting pelicy. Such properties are classified to the
appropriate categories of propeny, planm and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of thesae
asse1s. on the same basis as other properly assets, commences
when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Subsequent 1o recognition, property, plant and equipment
(excluding freshold land) are messured at cost less accumnulated
depreciation and accumulated impairmaent losses, When significant
parts of propary, plant and equipment are required to be replaced
in intervals, the company recognizes such parts as individual assets
with specific useful llves and depreciation respectively, Likewise,
when a major Inspection is perfformed, its cast is recognized in the
carrying amount of the plant and equipment asa replacemant cost
anly i the recognition criteria ame satisfied. All other repair and
mainterance costs ane recognized in the Statement. of Prolit and
Lossasincurmed.

Deprecation is recagnised so as to write off the cout of assets less
their residual values overthe useful ives as prescribed in Schedule I
of to the Companies Act, 2013, wsing the straight- line methad
["5LM"), Resiclual value is considered nil case of Computers, Sarvar
and natwork and 5% is considered in case of otherassets.

Butldings &0 Yoars

" Camputers and Printers,

| including Computer Peripherals 3Yoars

[ Office Equipments $¥ears
FumitureBFouees 0Years
 Motor Vehicles (Motor Car) BYears
SolarPlant 25 Yoors
Electric Installation 10 Yours |
Server B Netwark = & Yoars -
 Water Purnps and Borews|l SYears
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The carrying values of property, plant and ecuipment ara reviewsd
for impairmant when events or changes In circumstancey indicate
thatthe carrying value may not be recoverable.

The residual vales, wseful life and deprecistion method e
reviewed m each financial year-end o ensure that the amount,
methed and panicd of deprecation are consistent with previous
estimates and the expected pattem of consumption of the future
ecoromic benefits embodied in the iems of property, plant and
equipment.

An item of property, plant and equipmeant s derecagnised upon
disposal of when no future sconermic benefits are expoctod to arlse
from the continued use of the asset. Any galn or loss arlsing on
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plantand equipment is
determined &s the difference between sale proceeds and the
carrying amountof the assetand is recognised in profit o loss.

Transition to Ind AS

On ranaition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to cantinue with
the carryng value of all of ks properny, plam and egquipment
recognised a8 at April 1, 2018 measured a5 per the previous GAAP
asthe deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment.

4, Investrment Properties-

Investment propenies are properties that |s held for long-term
rentals yields of for capital appreciation {including propery under
construction for such purpases) or both, and that is not occupied by
the Company, in classified as investment property. Investrrent
properties are measuned nitially 2t cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent Lo inilial recogmition, investment properiies are stated
at cost iess accumulated impairment foss, if any. Though the Group
mEasures inmatmant property using cost based measurement, the
Hair value of investment property is disclosed inthe notes. Fairvalues
are determined based on an annual evaluabion performed by an
accredited maemal independent valuer, Investmant properties are
derecognised wither when they have been disposed ol or whean they
aré parmanently withdrawn from use and no future economic
biensfit is sxpacted from their disposal. The differsnce betwean the
net dispesal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is
recognised In profitor loss in the period of derecogmition

The Company has alected to continue with tha camying value for all
of its investment property as recognised in its indian GAAP financal
statements as desmed costat the trarsition date, viz, 1 April 2018,

5. Intangible Assets

Intangible asset including intangible assets under development are
stated at cost, not of accumulated amortlsation and sccumulated
impaimment losses, I any, Intangible assets acquired separately ars
measured on initial recognition at cost, The amonlzation period and
the @amonisation method ane reviewed a1 the end of each financial
year. The useful Ives of intangible assets are assessad as ether finite
or indefinite. iIntangible assets with finite lives are amonised overthe
usehul economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there iz
an indication that the intangible ssset may be impaired. The
amartisabion period and the amartisation method for an intangible
asset with & finite useful life are reviewed at least 1 the end of each
reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the
expected pattern of consumption of future ecanomic benafits
embadied in the asset are consldered 1o modliy the amortisation
perivd of method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in

CHOICE INTERNATIONAL LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2020 | §§




Standalone Finanoial Statements

accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible
assets with infinite lives is recognised in the statement of profitand
loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another
asset,

6. Segment Reporting

The main business of the Company isto provide support services to
the subsidianes and other group companies. Further, all activities
are carried out within India, Hence, there are no separate reportable
segmaents ag per Indian Accounting Standard (Ind As)k108 on
"Operating Segmeants”,

7. Foreign exchange transactions and translations

a) Initial recognition: Transactions in foreign currencies are
recagnized at the prevailing exchange rates between the reporting
currency and aforaign currency on the transaction date.

b) Conwversion: Transactions in currencies ather than Company's
functional currency are recorded on initial recognition using the
exchange rate at the transaction date. At each Balance Sheet date,
foreign currency monetary items are reported at the prevailing
closing spot rate. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting fram
the settlemant of such transactions and from the translation of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
ara generally recogrised in Statement of Prafitand Loss.
Mon-monetary assets and labilities are carried at historical cost
using exchange rates as on the date of the respective transactions
and are notretransiatad atthe reporting date.

8. Taxation
Current taxes

Income tax expense is recognizad n net profit in the statemant of
profitand foss excapt to the extent that it relates 1o items recognized
directly in other comprehensive income or eguity, in which casea it is
racognized in other comprebensive income or equity respactively,
Currentincometan s recognized at the amount expectad to be paid
to or recoverad from the tax authorities, using the tax rates and tax
laws that have been enascted or substantively enacted by the
balancesheetdate. The Company offsets, onayearto year basis, the
current tax assets and liabilities, whare it has legslly enforceable
right to do 50 and where it intends to settle such assets and liabilities
ananetbasis.

Deferred taxes

Deferred tax is recognized on differences betwesn the carmying
amounts of assets and liahilities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit
and are accounted for using the balance sheet liability method,
Deferred tax llabflities are generally recognized for all taxable
temporaty differences, and defarred tax assets are generally
recogmzed for all deductible temporary differences to the extant
that it Is probatsle that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible termporary differences can be utilized. Such assets
and Gahilities are not recognized if the temparary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition (otherthenina business
combination} of other assets and liahilities in & transaction that
atfects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit, Defermed
tax azsets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply In the pened in which the liability s settled orthe
asset s realised, based on the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted o substantively enacted by the end of the reparting
poriod,

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside the profit and loss
is recognised outside profitand loss{either i other comprehensive

income or in eguity)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient tawable profits will he available to allow all ar
partof the assetto be recovered.

Defared tax assats and liabilities are offset when thare is a lagally
enforceable right 1o set off current tax assets against current tax
lizbilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
tawation authority and the Company intends to sattle its current tax
assats and liabilities on a net basis.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) credit entitlerment (i e, excess of MAT
paid for a year over nommal tax [iability for that year) eligible for get
off in subsequent years is recognised as an asset in accordance with
Imd A% 12, Income Taxes, if thare s convincing evidence of it's
realisation;

MAT cradit is creatad by way of credit to the Staternent of Profit and
Loss, The Company reviews the same at each Balance Sheet date
and writes down the carrying amount of MAT credit entitlemnent to
the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that
Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period.

%, Impairmentof Mon-Financial Assets

At the end of each reporting period, the company reviews the
carrying amaunts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those sssets have suffered an
impairmant |oss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated ip arder to detarmine the extent of
impairment loss (if anyh When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset. the company estimates
the racoverabla amount of the cash-genarating unit ta which the
assot belongs, When a reasonable and consistant basis of allocation
can be wentified, corporate dssets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, ‘or otherwise they are allocated o the
smallest group of cash-generating Linits for which a reasonable and
consistentaliocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful ves and Intangible assets
rist yot available for use are tested for impairment at least annually,
and whenever therns is an indication that the asset may be impaired,
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use: Inassessing value inuse, the astimated future cash
flows are discountad totheir present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessmants of the fime value of
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of
future cash flows have nat been adjusted,

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-genarating unit] 15
astimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carryling amount of
the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amaunt. Animpairment loss is recognized in the profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset | or a cash-generating unit) is increased ta the
revisad estrmate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount doas not axceed the carrying amount that would
have beerndeterminad had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset { or cash-ganerating unit) in prior years. & reversal of an
impalrment loss isrecognised immediately in profitor loss,

10. Financial Instruments

A firancial instrurment is any contract that gives rise te a financial
asset of ore entity and a financial lability or equity instrument of
another entity

Financial Assets
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a) Initial recognition and measurement

Allfinancial assets are recognised initially at fair value, Purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market place
[regular way trades) are recognized on the trade date, i.e., the date
thatthe Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Oininitial recognition, a financial assetis classified as measured at;
*  Amortised cost

*  RVOCI-debtinstruments

* FVOC]-equity instruments

s FVTPL

Amortised cost - The Company's business inodel is not assessed on
an instrument-by-instrument  basiz, but at & higher level of
aggregated portfolios being the level at which they are managed,
Tha financial asset is hald with the objective to hiold financial asset in
order to collect contractual cash flaws as per the contraciual terms
thatgive rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payment
of principal andinterest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding,
Accordingly, the Company measures Bank balances, Loans, Trade
recewablas and otherfinancial instruments at amortised cost.

FVOC! - debt instruments - The Company measures its debt
instruments at FVOQCI when the instrument is held within a business
model, the objective of which is achieved by beth colleciing
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and the
contractual terms of the financial asset maet the SPP test,

FVOC! = aguity instrumonts - The Company subsequently measurnes
all eouity investrnents at fair value throwgh profit o loss, unless the
Caompany’s management has elected to-classify irrevocably some of
its equity instrumants at FYOCL when such instriments meet the
definition of Equity under Ind AS 32 Financial Instruments and are
not held tortrading.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsecuent 1o their inftial
recognition, except if and in the period the Company changes its
business model for managing financial assets:

Al financial assets not classified as measured at amomtised cost or
FVOC are measured at FYTPL This includes all derivative financhal
assets,

b) Subsequent measurement

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using effective interest method. The amortised cost
Is raduced by impairment logses. Intarast income, faraign exchangs
aaing and losses and impaloment are recognised in Statement of
Praofit and Loss, Any gain and loss on derscognition is recegnised in
Sratement of Profitand Loss,

Debt investmant at FWOC! are subsegu ently measured at fair value.
Interest incomea under affective interest inethad, foreign exchanga
aaing and losses and impaioment are recognised in Staement of
profitand loss, Cher net gains and losses are recognised in OCL On
derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCkane reclassified
to Statement of Profitand Loss.

For eqity investments, the Compary makes selection on an
instrumaent-by-instrurment basis 1o designate equity investrments as
measured at FYOCL These selectad investmants are measured at
fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value
recoqnized in othercomprehensive income and accumulated inthe
reserves, The cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified to Statement
of profit and loss on disposal of the investmeants, These investments
in equity are not held for trading. Instead, they are held for strategic
purpose. Dividend incomea recaived on such equity investmants are
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recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. Equity investments that
are not designated as measured at FVOC! are designated as
measured at FVTPL and subsequent changes in fair value are
recognised in Statement of Profitand Loss.

Financial assets at FWTPL are subsequently measured at fair value.
het gains and losses, including any interest or dividend income, are
recognisad in Statement of Profit and Loss:

¢] Dea-recognition of financial assets

A financial asset {or, whare appliicabie, a part of a financial asset or
part of 3 group of similar financial assets) is primarily derscognised
(e removed from the cempany balance sheetiwhan:

The rightsto receive cash flows from the azset have expired, or

The Company has transferred |ts rights to receive cash flows from
the assot or has assumad an obligation to pay the raceived cash
flovers im full without material delay ta a third party undar a 'pass:
through' arrangement; and aither (a) the company has transferred
substantially all the rsks and rewards of the asset, or (b the
company has neither transferred nor retainad substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
aszat

Whar the Cempany hag transforred s rights to receive cagh flows
from-an asset or has entered Into a pass-through arrengement, it
avaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards
of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred
control of the asset, the company continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the company's continuing
involvement. In that case, the company also recognises an
szsociated liakility. The transfarred asset and the associated liakility
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that
the company has retainad.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset = measured at the lower of the ariginal carrying
amountof the asset dnd the maximurm amount of consideration that
the company could be required 1o repay,

d) Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognises impairment lass applying the expected
credit loss (ECL) model on the financial assets measured at
amaortisad cost, debt instruments at FVTOC, fease recehwables,
trade recelvables, other contractual right to recelve cash or ather
financial assetand financial guarantea not dasignated asat FYTRL
Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses
with the respective risks of default oocurring as the welghts.

The Company measures the loss allowance for a financial
instrument &t an amount equal to the lifetime expected cradit losses
it the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased
significantly since inttial recognition. If the credit nisk on a financial
instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Company measures the loss allowance for that financal
instrumentat an amount equalto 12 months expected credit losses.
For trade receivables or @ny comrtractual right to receive cash or
other financial assets that result from transactions that are within the
scope of Ind AS 115, the Company always measures the loss
allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected cradit losses.

Furthier, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected cradit loss
allowance for trade receivables, the Company applies ‘simplified
approach’ permitted by Ind A% 10% Financial Instruments. This
expacted credit foss allowance is computed based on a provision
matrix which takes into account historical credit loss experience and
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adjusted for forward-looking information.

In view of the fact that the entire trade receivables are from its
subsidiaries and other group companies, there is no lifetime credit
loszes envpeacted by the Campany.

Write offs - The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is writtan-
off {eithar partially orin full} to the extent that there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the asset in its entirety or a portion
thereof, This is generally the case when the Company determines
that the borrower does not have assets or sources of incomie that
could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to
the write-olf and when there s no reasonabla expectation of
recovery from the collaterals held. However, financial assets that are
written-off could shll be subject to enforcement activities in order to
comply with the Company's procedures for recovery of amounts
due.

Presentation of allowance for ECL in the Balance Sheat - Loss
allawances for ECL are deductad from the gross carrying amount of
firancial assets measurad at amaortised cost.

Financial Liabilithes

a) Initial recognition and measurement

All fimancial akilities are recognisad initially at fair value and, in the
case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

b) Subsequentmeasurement

The measuremeant of financial habilives depends on their
classification, asdescribed below:

Financial rabilities at lar value thraugh profitor loss

Financial liabilites at fair wvalue through profit or foss include
financial liabilites held for trading and financial labilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through proficor
loss. Financial labilities are classified as hald far trading if they are
incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This
category also incledes derivative financial instruments entared into
by the comapny that are not designated as hedging instruments in
hedge re|a't|nn5hl|:|5 as defined by Ind-AS5 109 Separated
embedded derivatives are alse classified as held for trading unless
they are dezignated ac affactive hedg ing instrumants,

Gains or losses an liabilities held for trading are recognised in the
profitor loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value
through profit or |oss are designated at the inital date of
recagnition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 10% are satisfied, For
liabtlities designated as FUTPL, fair valus gains/ losses attributable
o changes in own credit risk is recognized in OC1, These gains/ foss
are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the company
may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity, Al ather
changes in farvalue of such liability are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss, The Company has not designated any financial
liability as at fairvalusthrough profitand loss.

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amonized cost using
the effective interest methad, except for contingent consideration
recognized In 2 business combination which i3 subsecuently
measured at fair value through profit and loss. For trade and other
payables maturing within ane year from the Balance Shaet date, the
carrying amounts approximate tairvalus due to the short maturity af
thesainstrurments,

Loana and barrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and bormowings are
subsequently mieasured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or
|mss when the labilities are derecogrised as well as through thi
effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amonised costis calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acguisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective Interest rate, Such amortisation is included as finance
costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial guarantee contracts
Afinancial guaranies contract is a contract that requires the issuerto
miake specified payments ta reimburse the halder for a loss itincurs
because o specified debtor fails to make payments when dua in
accordance with theterms of a debtinstrument,
Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are initially
measured at their fair values and, if not designated as at FVTPL, are
subsequently measured at the higher af:
* the amountofloss allowance determined inaccordance with
irmpairent requiremantsof Ind AS 109; and
* the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the
cumulative amount of income récognised in accordance
withthe principles of Ind A5 115,

c) Derecognition

A financial lisbility is derecognised when and only when the
abligation under the hability s discharged or cancelled or exprres.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, ar tha terms of an
evisting liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the deracognition of the original liabitity
and the mecognition of 8 new liability. The difference in the
respective carrying amounts s recognised in the statemeant of profit
ar loss

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and finzncial llabilities are offset and the netamount
is repored in the balance sheet if there s a currently enforceable
leaal right to offset the recognised amounts and thera i an intention
to settle on a net basis, to realize the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneausly,

11. Leases

The Company has adopted Ind AS 116 ‘Leases’ with the date of
initial application bemg Apal 1, 200%, The Campany’s lease assel
classes primarily consist of teases for Premises, The Company, atthe
incaption of a contract, assesses whether the contract is a lease or
not lease. & contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the nght to contral the use of an identified asset for a time in
exchange for a consideration. This policy has been applied to
contracts existing and entered into on or atter Apnl 1,2018,

The Company evaluates each contract or arrangement. whether it
gualifies as lease as defined under Ind AS 114 The Company as a
lessee The Company assesses, whether the contract is, or contains, a
leasa. A contract is, or contalns, a lease if the contractinvalves- a)the
use of an identified asser, b) the right 10 obtain substantially all the
econamic benefits from use of the identified asset, and c) the right to
direct the use of the identified asset.

The Company at the inception of the |ease contract recognises a
Right-of-Use {Roll) asset at cost and a corresponding lease Fahbility,
for'all lease arrangements in which it is a lesses, sxcept for leases
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with term of less than twehe months: {short term) and low-value
assets (assets of less than Rs. 10 Lakhs in valuel Cerain lease
arrangermaents includes the options to extend or terminate thie lease
before the end of the leaze term. ROLU assets and |esse liabilities
includes these options when it is reasonably canain that they will be
exarcised.

The cost of the ROU assets comprises the amount of the nital
maasuremant of the lease liability, any lease payments made at ar
before the inception date of the lease plus any initial direct costs,
loss any loase incentives received, Subseguently, the right-of-use
assats i3 measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation and
accumulated imparment losses,. i any. The ROU assets |s
depreciate_d using the straightline method from the
commencement date over the shorter of lease term ar useful life of
RO assets.

ROU assets are evaluated for recoverabillty whanever avents ar
changss in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may
not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the
recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell
and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis
unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely
independent of those from other azsets. |n such cases, the
recovarable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit
(CGEU tawhich the asset belongs:

For lease liabilities at inception, the Company measures the lease
liability at the present value of the lease payments that ara not paid
at that date. The lease payments are discounted using the interast
rate implicit in the |eaze, if that rate is readily determined, if that rate
is not readily determined, the lease payments are discounted using
the incremental barrowing rate.

Tha Company recognises the amount of the re-measuremeant of
lease llability as an adjustment te the ROU assets. Where the
camying amount of the ROU assets is reduced tozerp and there (s a
further reduction in the measurement of the lease llabliity, the
Cormpany recognises any remaining amourt of the remeasuremant
Iintha Statament of Profitand Loss,

For shortterm and low value leases, the Company racognises tha
lease payrments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis
aver the leaseterm.

12. Finance Costs

Finance costs include interest expense computed by applying the
effective interest rate on respective financial instruments measured
at amortised cost. Financial instruments Include debt and
borrowing, Finence costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and
Loss. Ancillary and other borrowing costs are amontizad on straight
line basis ovarthe tenure of the underlying debr and borrowing

13. Goodsand Service Input Tax Credit

Goods and Sernces tax input credit is accounted for in the books in
the parod in which the supply of goods ar service received s
accounted and when thera is no uncertainty in availing/utilising the
credits,

14, Dividend distribution te equity halders af the Company

The Company recognlzes a liability to make distributions to equity
helders of the Company when the distribution is authorised and the
distributicn is no langer atthe discretion of the Company. &z per the

Act, final dividend is authonsed when it is approved by the
shareholders and interim dividend iz authorized when itis approved

Standalone Financial Statements

by the Board of Directors of the Company

vl Provisions
Provisions are recognised only when;

* an entity has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
resultof a past event; and

* it is probable that an outlow of resources embeodying
erenomic henefits will be required to settie the obligation;
and

* 5 reliable estimate cam be made of the amount of the
ooligation

These are reviewsd st each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to
reflect the current best estimates.

Further, long term provisions are determined by discounting the
axpacted future cash flows specific 1o the lability, The unwinding of
the discount is recognized as finance cost. A provision for cnerous
contracls is meazured at the present value of the lower of the
expactad cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost
of cantinuing with the contract. Before a provizian is established the
Company recognises any impairment loss on the assets associated
with that contract,

Cantingent liakility is disclosed incase of:

g presant obligation ansing from past events; when it is not
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
sattle the obligation; and

8 a prasent obligation arizing fram past evants, when no
raliable estintate is possble,

Contingent Assets:
Contingent assets are not recognised Inthe financial statements

15. Commitments:
Commitments are future liabilives for contractual expenditure,
classified and dizclosed asfollows:
* estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on
capital accountand not provided for;
» uricalled lisbility on loan sanctioned and on investments
partly paid; and
» pther non-cancellable commitments, i any, 1o the extent
they are considered materal and relevant in the opinion of
managemeant

14. Eamings PerShare
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net piofit ar
loss for the year attrlbutable to equity shareholders by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year
Diluted earnings per shard adjusts the ' figures uzed in the
datermination of basic earnings parshare totake into account
» Tha after income tax effect of interest and ather financing
costs associated with dilutive patential equity shares, and
» Weighted average number of eguity shares that would have
been outstanding assuming the conversion of all the dilutive
potential egquity,

17. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks.
Cash equivalents are short-tarm balances (with an original matusity
af three months or less from the dawe of acquisition); and highly
lquid tirme deposits that are readily convertible into krown smounts
af zash and which are subject to insignificant risk ot changes in
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walue.

18. Statementof Cash Flow

Statement of Cash Flows is prepared segregating the cash flowsimao
operating, investing and financing activities. Cash How from
operating activities is reported using indiréct method adjusting the
net profit for the affects of:

i. changes during the pericd in inventories and operating
recewables and payables transactions of a noncash nature;

ii. non-cash items such as depracisbon, prowsions, deferred taxes,
unrealised foreign currency gains and losses, and undistributed
profits of associates and joint ventures; and

it all other items for which the cash effects are investing ar financing
cash flows.

Cash and cash equivalents {including bank balances) shawn in the
Statement of Cash Flows exclude items which arg not availabla far
ganeral use as on the date of Balance Sheet.

19. Employee Benefits

Short term employee benefits

Employee banefits falling due wholly within twelve months of
rendering the service are classified as short term employes benefits
and are expensed in the penod in which the employee renders the
related service. Liabilities recognised in respect of shor-term
employes banefits are measurad at the undiscounted amount of
the benafits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service
Long Term employee benefits

Company’s riet obligation in respect of long-term  employes
benefits is the amount of future benefit that employees have sarmed
in retuen for their servicain the current and pror periods, Long-term
employee benefit primarily consists of Leave encashment benefits
wharein employees are entitled to accumulate leave subject 1o
certain limits for future encashment/availiment, Long-term
compensated absences are provided foron the basis of an actuarial
valuation at the end of each financial year using Projected Uit
Cradit (PUC) Method, Actuanat gains/losses, if any, are recognised
immeadiately inthe Statement of Profit and Loss

Post-employment benefits

a) Defined contribution Plans

Provident fund: Contributions as required under the statute, made
to the Provident Fund (Defined Contribution Plan} are recognised
immadiately in the Statement of Profit and Loss. There is no
obfigation other than the monthly contribution payable to the
Ragional Provident Fund Commissioner.

ESIC and Labour welfare fund: The Companys contribution
paidpayable duning the year i Emplayee state insurance schame
and Labour welfare fund are recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss,

bj Defined benefit Plans

Gratuity liability is defined benefit abligation and is provided on the
basis of an actuarial valuation performed by an independent actuary
bazed on prajected unit cradit method, at the end of gach financial
year,

Defined benafit costs are categorized as follows:

i} Service cost {including currant service cosl, past sarvice cost, as
well a5 gains and lpsses oncurtailments and settiements)

{i} Netintergst expense or ncome

i1} Re-measurement

Re-measurements of the net defined benefit bability, which
comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets
(excluding interest] and the effect of the asset ceiling if any,
excluding interest), ara recognised in OCl net of taxas. The
Company detarmings the net interest expanse {income) on the net
defined benefit liability {asset) for the period by applying the
discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the
beginning of the annual period to the net defined benefit liahility
[azsm], taking into accaunt any changes in tha net defined benefit
liability (asset) during the period as a result of contributions and
benafit payrents: Net interast expense and other expenses related
to defined benefit plans are recognised in Statement of Profit and
Loss.

The Company’s net abligation in respect of gratuity (defined benefit
plan), is caleulated by estimating the ameount of feture banefit that
the employees have earned in the currént and prior periods,
discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan
assets. The retiremant benefit abligation recegnised in the Balance
Sheat represents the actual deficit or surplus in the company’s
defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this calculation is
recognised as an asset to tha extent of prasent value of any
econamic benefits available inthe form of refunds fromthe plansor
reductions inthe future contribution to the plans.

20, Collateral

T mitigate its credit risks on financial assets, the Company seeks 1o
use callateral, where possible. The collateral comes in various forms,
such a&s securities, letter of creditiguarantees, receivables,
inventones, other nonsinancial asset= and credit enhancements
suchas netting arrangements.

The Company provides fully sacured, partially secured  and
unsecurad loans toCorporates and individual,

21, Investmentin Subsidiaries

Subsidianes are all entities over which the Campany bas control, The
Company contrels an entity when the company is expesed 1o, or has
rights to, vanable returns from its invelvement with the antity and
hasthe ability to affect those returns threugh its power to direct the
felevant activities of the ertity.

Imvestment in subsidianes are measured at cost less accumulated
irmpairment, fany.
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{Rs. in Lakhs)

Mote 3 : Property, Plant and Equipment

20.84 &69.71 38.35 122.02 14.04 6.78 115.89 6,867.15

1.75

2,147.37

4,330.00

Gross Carrying Amount as at April 01, 2018

R3]

0.45

014

Additions { Transfer / Adjustments

26,55

2274

1

38

Deletion

17.19 46.96 38.35 122.02 14.04 6.78 116.54 684141

1.75

2147.77

4,330.00

As at March 31, 2019

n.e7

0.a7

Additions / Transfer

Deletion

6,842.28

17.19 446.94 38.35 122.02 14.04 6.78 117.41

75

1.

2,147.77

4,330.00

As at March 31, 2020

482.25

1519 3z 22,22 &7.18 049 5.97 77.86

0.68

260,65

Accumulated depreciation as at April 01, 2018

11 1227

047

8.33 4.00 7.83 4.04 12.0C .53

3395

Depreciation charge during the year

2274

Accumulated depreciation on deletions

24655

g}
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020
Maote d : Investment Froperty Mate 5 : Intangible Assets
{Rs.in Lakhs) {Rs, in Lakhs)
Investment ]
in Land ot Particulars

Gross Carrying Amount as at April 01, 2018 120,00 120.00
Additions ] 4 Gross Carrying Amount as at April 01, 2018 245.53 12.81
Bl — B B . Additions : 2.90
As at March 31, 2019 120.00 120.00 ' el 07 s
fPannE ' ' As at March 31, 2019 37.65 8.95
(s i o N it Additions - 2.0%
LAs at March 31, 2020 120.00 120,00

Dieletions
| Accumulated amaortisation and impairment

As at March 31, 2020 37.65 11.20

As at April 01, 2018
Armaortisation charge during the year -

Accumulated amortisation and impairment

Bisiagals _ As at April 01, 2018 222.98
As at March 31, 2019 . i | Amortisation charge during the year 553
| Amartisation charge during the year - - I Deletions £07.88
Bisposals - - As at March 31, 2019 20,63
| As at March 31, 2020 - - Amortisation charge dunng the year 5.04
 Met carrying amount as at March 31, 2020 120.00 120.00 I Deletions
Mot carrying amount as at March 31, 2019 120,00 120,00 Az at March 31, 2020 25.69 :
Nat chrpring Amelnnas S ApHIOY, 2018 e 2000 Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2020 11.96 11.20
Met carrying amaount as at March 31, 2019 17.02 8.95
Maote: Mt carrying amount as at April 01, 2018 22.54 12.81
(@] For investment property existing on April 01, 2018 i.e. its date of transition to Ind A5, the company has used Indiz GAAP carrying =
value as deemed cost. Note:

For Intangible Assets existing on April 1, 2018 |.e. its date of transition to Ind AS, the company has used india GAAFP camying value as

(b} Fair Value deeméd costs.

As at March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019, the fair value of property is Rs. 12,000,000
Intangible Asset under development comprises of Trademark under development
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

Note 6 : Investments {Rs, in Lakhs) ' The Company has sold 10,000 shares in Choice Corporate Services Private Limited to Cholee Equity Broking Private Lirmitad ot Rs 10/ -par
i : share at a consideration of Bs 1 lakh vide Share Purchase Agreement dated March 31,2020,

Particulars March 3 March 31,2019  Aprl 0 £ During the year ended March 31, 2019 Choice Merchandise Broking Private Limited (CMBPL) has merged with Choice Equity Broking Private
| . Limited {CEBPL) pursuant to the scheme of merger dated September (6,201 8 approved by Mational Company Law Tribunal. Cansequenty
; :::z::z:ia::‘;“ at““ﬂ“"'.‘:;:ﬂ;:’:‘;“ the company has been allotted 1 367,800 shares of CEBPLin place of 1,400,000 shares af CMBPL on Octaber 01 2018,
| 5,050,000 Equity Shares of Choice Capital Advisars Private Limited " The Company has sald 1,000,000 shares in Cheice Portfolio Managemant Servicas Private Limitad to Chaice Equity Broking Private Limited
| shares of Rs.10/- sach fully paid (March 31, 2019: 50,50,000; 5O5.00 L0500 505 00 atRs 10/- per share ata consideration of Bs 10012cs vide Share Purchase dgreement dated March 30, 201%

]

| ﬁ."Pn 12015 5,850,000) _ _ Y The Company has sold 10,000 shares in Cholee Wealth Managerment Private Limited 1o Cholce Eqguity Broking Private Limited at Rs 95/ per
| "Ml Equity Shares of Choica Carporate Services Private Limited of Rs.10/- share at a consideration of Rs 9.50 lakh vide Share Purchase Agreement dated March 31, 2020.
-an:hfull:.l palutMarch 31, 2019 10,000, Aprl 1, 2D13 10,000)" - 075 0.75

' 8.017.800 Equ o T Equll::.r E.rnkmg e i oF = " The Company has sold 10,000 shares in Choice Peers International Private Limited o Herlata Poddar and Sonu Poddarat Bs T0/-per share at

| L 1

| Re.10 each fully paid (March 31, 2019- 8. 017,800: Aprl 1, 2018: 6,650,000)  4,414.00 4,414.00 3,914.00 pransdnistonctBe Haghvide Shate Puttyisse Ao tipntQatid Juns 9 2017,
; il Equity Clasice ol Eholed: Masthardiss B.r.nking Brivata Lirnitad * The Company has invested in 9,000,000 shares of Choice Finserv Private Limited atvaluation of Rs. 20 per share on June 30, 2018, Furtherthe
; af As.10/- each ful!:.- Pa]d_ {March 31, 2019 Nil: April 1, 20718 1,400.0007 = 5 500.00 Company has sold s 2, 500.000 shares ata consideration of Re 5300 lacs at Rs. 20 per shara in Choice Finserv Private Limited to Cheice Equity
| T D 000 Equw Shares of Choice Portfalic Mar e m—— o Broking Private Limited vide Share Purchase Agreement dated March 30, 2009, Durning the year ended the Company has made an

| Private Limited of Rs.10/- each fully paid (March 31, 2019: 1,110,000, 110.89 11089 210.79 investmantin 10,000,000 shares atvaluation of Rs. 20 per shares anJanuary 20, 2020,
| AF“”' 1,2018; 21100007 | " TheCao mpany hassold 10,008 shares in Choice Techlab Solutions Private Limited to Chaice Equity Broking Private Limited at As 10/-pershare

EDD I'.'IEI I'.'II:I{I Equll}' Sha;es of Choice Consultancy Sarvices Private at a consideration of Rs T lakh vide Skare Purchase Agreement dated March 3%, 2020,

lelted of Rs_ 10/~ each fully paid (March 31, 20719 500,008,000, 301.00 301.00 301.00 -

The Company has sold 10,000 shares in Choice Retails Solutions Private Limited to Choice Equity Broking Private Limited at Bs 10¢-per shans

A ril 1, 2018: 10,0003
i ata consideration of Rs 1lakh vide Share Purchase Agreement dated March 21, 20210

E 10,000 Equity SF'Iares of Choice Wealth Management Private Limited
| of Bs.10/- each fully paid (March 31, 201%: 10,000; April 1, 2018: 10,000) 3 1.00 1.00 Druring the year the Comparny has sald its investment in Agua Pumps Infra Ventunes Limited of 30,00,000 equity shares at a consideration of

| Mil Equity Shares of Choice Peers International Private Limited of Rs.10/- Rs. 750 lacs vidle share Furchase Agreement dated March 30,2019,

' Eﬂch fully paid {March 31, 201%: 100,000; Aprif 1, 2018: 100,000} = 10.00 10.00 “ The Company has sold its investmant in Kisan Moulding Private Limited of 450,000 equity shares at a consideration of Rs. 535,05 lacs vide a
| 1 B, '.:uﬁ[jl I'JI'_'I{] Equity Shares of Choice Finsery Private Limited of Rs. 'I.l.'.].n" 3552548 1,552 54 2{!& I:II:I Share Purchase Agreement dated March 30, 2019,

| b full March 31, 2071%: 8,560,000; Aprl 1, Z2018; 2,060,000) !
| each tully paid (March 31, & ; i : " The Company has sold its investment in Gini and Jany Private Limited @ Rs. 126.40 per share on August 18, 2018 and Jaatvedas Construction

' 10,000 Equity Shares of Choice Tech Lab Solutions Private Limited of Company Private Limited @ Rs. 248 per share on June 30, 201 8 to Choice Finsary Private Limited.
| Rs. 10/ mach fully paid (March 31, 2009: 10,000; April 1, 2078: 10,000} 1.00 1.00
| 5 fai fi I fi i
‘ID 000 Equity Shaies of Cholce Retail Solutions Private Limited of Irvestrment at fair value through profitand loss reflect investment in quoted and unguoted equity securities
Ra 104+ each I'ully paid (March 31, 2019: 10,000; April 1, 2018; NilY 0.00 0.00
' Investment carried at cost - In Associates Mote 7 : Other Financial Assets (Non Current) (Rs, in Lakhs)

I.__. A

| M El:|mt§,.I S-har\es n:|f Aqua F‘umps In’rra "-"EnturEE erneted 4:!1 Rs ‘I'DJ"
|ear:|1fu||:,l paid (March 31, 2019: Nil; April 1, 2018: 5,952,4507 - - 1,487,902 Particulars

| Investment carried at Fair value through Profit or Loss {FVTPL)

i 5 A
s al =5 al =5 Gt

March 31, 2020 March 31,2019 Apnl 07, 2018

| Mil Equity Shares of Kisan Mouldings Limited of Rs. 10/- each fully paid :S‘E":U”L'?’ Deposits 4[” D? 1"—"93 2529
[ iMarrl'- 31, 2078 Nil: -'1=|.'irl| 1,200 8450000 . - &50.53 'Prepa|d Rentiﬂs 105.54 0.33 1.48
: Cther Investments - Unquntad Equh‘; Instruments [ | “Total . 506.63 17.26 26.77
| Nil Equity Shares of laatvedas Construction Company Limited of Rs.10/- * Refer Mote 34 (i) Related Party Discl S
eachfully paid {March 31, 2019: Nil; April 1,2018 ; 523,980)" : . 1,299.47 Roter Nuts Sl Retsesd Fafty Bivlpsdre
| Wil Equity Shares of Gini & Jor:-y an-:ed of RE, ‘I{lf each fully paid
| (March 31,2019 Nil: April 1, 2018: 400,000) - - 505.60
| Total 8,883.45 6,896.20 9,633.06 | MNote B : Income Tax Assets (Net) (Rs. in Lakhs)

Income tax assets 7 170,83 133.21
less: Provision for Tax ; .'32 35? téd 'D?]
Total 8D _ 77.78 69.19
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020
Mote 9 : Trade Receivables (Rs. in Lakhs) Mote 13 : Other Current Assets (Rs.in Lakhs)

As al Az at Asat Asat A5 at

Particulars

March 31,2020 March 31,2019 April 01, 2018 ramicUiars March 31, 2020 March 31,2019  April 01, 2018

Unsecured Balance with government authorities:
Considerad Good* 356.39 139.02 17852 - Goods & Service Tax Receivable 0.2 027 0.34
Tut_al 354639 139.02 178.92 I#.dvanca to ‘uf'end_u I 0.39 1 .‘?'5_’ EI.E_EI
* Includes recaivables from related pany for which rafer note ne.34{ii) Prepaid Expenses 10.73 22,32 52.8Y
Other Advances - 8,76 51.00
Security Depaosit 4.82
MNote 10 : Cash and Cash Equivalents (R, in Lakhss Goaminall bt e _ .
e Margin - Equity stock / Index futures 1.85
at Total 1611 31.34 106.38
March 31, 2019  Aprl D S ] bl
Balanc h Banks : - ,
{Pelances with Banks Mote 14 ; Equity Share Capital {Rs. in Lakhs)
- On Current Accounts 31435 &2.08 3182
Cash on Hand 0.58 0.44 i e As at As at As at
(e on e e B Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31,2019 April 91,2018
Cheques on Hand - 535.05
Total 114.93 597.13 31.96 i pthorieed; 0
= ——— — 2,01,00,000 (March 37, 2019 2.071.00,000,
April 01, 2018: 2,01,00,000) Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 2010.00 2010.00 2,010.00
Mote 11 : Bank Balances Other than (Note 12) Above (Rs. in Lakhs) 2.010.00 2,010.00 2.010.00
e As (b} lssued, Subscribed and Paid-up
Particulars 020  March 31,2019 April 01, 2018 2,00,04,800 (March 31, 2019: 2,00,04,800, April 01, 2018:
Bl i o B 2,00,04,800) Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up 2,000.48 2,000.48 2,000.48
- On Earmarked Accounts * 7.51 810 BBT Total S _ . 2bo048 200048 2,000.48
T-EEt,Bl 7.51 3_1'}.1 887 (e} Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reparting period
* Earmarked Bank balance represents amount on account of unclaimed dividend. Paid up Shares Capital
{Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars Mumber of shares Amount
Note 12 : Loans [Re. in Lakhs) |
As at April 1, 2018 200.05 2,000.48
A g As at Asoat lssuad during the yaar
March 31,2020  March 31,2019 April 01,2018 | AsatMarch 31,2019 200.05 2,000.48
'Secured, considered good lssued during the year .
_Lﬂ'ﬂ"ls' 5_'-':'*5"2-83 As at March 31, 2020 200.05 2,000.48
\Unsacined, consldured goad {d) Details of shares hald by sharehalders holding mara than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company:
[agvancakde: Emplagaes : L Eauity Shares As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019 As at April 01, 2018
Loarns to related parties*™® 267274 : 1,B68.20
. Shares held by Mumber of Shares %% Mumber of Shares %  Number of Shares %
| Cithers 17.74 207053 - ;
- Kamal Poddar 25.00 12.50% 25.00 12.50% 2500 12.50%
Total 2.672.74 1831 2.001.54
: . e — Arun Kumar Poddar 21.00 10.50% 21.00 10.50%; 21.00 10.50%
.S.EIEI_LI'Eld 395”1515&":“['“E5 gl'.lEl'l aS{:U:IH-LEral h‘,l r_h-E'{L.S[l’_}n".Elr AT AR LA L P A e v i e e mars: LR ot e b W ES LS SRR — - B T L AP R | o =L |
" Vinita Sunil Patodia 16.13 8.046% 1575 787% 1575 78BS
** Rater note no, 34(i) L = = it = e
Archana Anil Patodia 15.75 T.87% 1575 T87% 1575 J8%
Soru Poddar 1250 6.25% 12:50 56.20% 1250 6.25%
Sunil Kumar Patodia 1239 b 19% 11.00 5.50% 11.00 550%
Anil € Patadia 11.00 5.50% 11.00 550% 1100 5.50%
Azura Projects Private Limited 12.85 GA7% 12.85 5.42% 12.85 &643%
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Terms / rights attached to Equity Shares:

1 The Company hes only one class of equity shares having a parvalue of Rs.10 per share. Each sharehalder is eligible for one vote per share
held. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General
Meating. In the event of iguidation, the équity share holders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the company after distribution of
all preferential amountsin proponion to theirshare holding,

2 Inthe event of iguidation of the company, the hiolders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after
distribution of all preferential amaunts. The distribution will be propartion to the number of equityshares held by the shareholders.

Disclosure statemente of Preferential allotmeant

Basis the approval of the Shareholders at its Extra Ordinary Ganeral meeting hald on Deacémber 23, 2019, the Company has allotted 1.98
lakhs share warrants at a price of Rs 51 perwarrant (including premium of Rs 41 per warrant) on preferential basis an January 02, 2020, These
share warrants will be converted into equity shares in the ratio of 1:1 as per the terms of the offer. The Company has received Rs 2,269.50
|akhs on Decernber 31, 2017 and Rs.255.00 lakhs on January 02, 2020 as 25% of the consideration for shane warrants as per tha termaof the

offer,
Mote 15 : Other Equity (Rs, in Lakhs)
- Ag Az at
Particulars V31,2020 March 31,2019 April 01,2018
Share Application Money Pending &llotmeant 2,524.50
.5tatutc:r5-' Reserve 382.73 ag2.72 35060
_'Capilar Reserve 870 8.70 B.70
Security Pramium Reserve 6,392.17 6,392.17 6§,392.17
Revaluation Reserve 4170.22 4170.22 4,170.22
Retained Earmings L1113 ¥13.90 02,73
her Comprehensive Income 314 2.49 [0.13)
Total 1459277 11,870.20 11,824.29
(i} Statutory Reserve (Rs.in Lakhs)
Az at 5
March 31, 2020  March 31,2019 Apeil 01, 2018

Balance asat the beginning of the year 382,73 35040 304,57
Add | Additions during the year 3233 446,03
Balance as at the end of the year 382.73 382.73 350.60

It is created as per the terms of Section 45 -1C(1) of Resarve Bank of India Act, 1934 as Statutory Reserve.

(ii} Capital Reserve E iy L)
As at As at A at
March 31,2020 March 31,2019  Apnl 01,2018
Balance as at the beginning of the year 870 870 B.70
Add ¢ Additions during tha yaar -
Balance a3 at the end of the yesr B.70 8.70 8.70

Itis made out of capital profit earned. The same is not available for profit distribution
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{iii} Securities Premium Reserve: (Rs: in Lakhs)
Particutars _ 41 .":'T Aran oy H: .rjl' e A - FI at---- )
March-31, 2020  March 31, 2019  Apnl 01,2018
| Balance as at the beginning of the year 639217 46,3927 &8.392.07
| Add : Additions during tha yeaar - -
Balance as at the end of the year  6,392.17 6,39217 639217

| Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the provision of the

|Companies Act, 2013,

{iv) Revaluation Reserve Rz, in Lakhs)
. As al A% a As at
Farticulars March 31,2020 March 31,2019 Apnl 01,2018
Balance as at the beginning of the year (refer note below) 417022 417022

:;"-"u:id. .: Addibions during the year ‘ . EI'I ?0:2.2- .

‘Balance as at the end of the year 4,170.22 4,170.22 417022

It has been created on revaluation of freehold land at fair market value. The same is not available for profit distribution

Iv}) Share Application Money Pending Allotment {Rs, in Lakha)

A A, N
= ml As al 5 gt

Farticulars March 31, 202G  March 31,2019 April 01, 2078

Balance az at the beglnning of the year (refer note balow)

|Add : Additions during the year* 2,524.50 = :

‘Balance as at the end of the year  2,524.50 F s
*Basis the approval of the Sharsholders at its Extra Ordinary General meeting held on December 23, 2019, the Company has allotted
198,000,000 share warrants at a price of Rs 51 per warrant {including premidm of Rs 41 per warrant} on preferential basis on January 02, 2020,
Thezse share warrants will be converted into equity shares in the ratio of 1:1 as per the tarms of the offer. The Company has received Rs 2,249 50
lakhson December 31, 2017 and Rs.255.00 fakhs on January 02, 2020 as 25% of the consideration tar share wanants as per the terms of the

affer
{vi) Retained Earnings: {Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars "' A : e 4 i A
' Warmch 31,2020  March 31, 2009  Apnl 1, 2078
|Balance as at the baginning of the year 913,80 902.73 718,63
;ddfrleﬁij;ro‘rt.fiLoss:lior T-Fe year - 197.41 4!30 23{:113
\{Less): Transferred to Statutory Reserve® = (32.13) (46.03)

:I:LE'E..E:I: P'n.:pused Dividend
'Balance as at the end of the year '1,:F 1131 913.90 902.73

ketained earmnings: represents surplus / accumulated earnings of the Company and are available for distibution to sharehaolders.
*The Management has created a statutony reserve of Rs. Mil (March 31,2019 3213 lakhs-{March 31, 2018 Rs. 44,03 lakhs) as per the provisions
of section 45-1C of Reserve Bank ofIndia Act, 1934
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{vii) Other Comprehensive Income (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars

|Balance as at the beginning oFthe year 249 (10.13) (0.13)
Add J\ddlrl-::-nr. d-.,lr\ﬂg the ]-'P,ar .66 .81

:Bnh-n:e as at the end of the year 315 2.48 (0,13)

Other comprehensive income consist of remeasurement gains / losses on defined benefit plans, gain / (loss) of equity instruments carried
through FVTOCL.

MNote 14 : Provisions {R=, in Lakhs)

. As at
Particulars

March 3 ll, 2020

|Prawision for Em ployes Bengfits:
Brovision far Gratuity 659 6,27 902
| Total 6.5% 6.27 .02

Mote 17 : Deferred Tax Liabilities - (Net)

The major components of deferred tax Liabilities/ (Assets)
as recognized in the financial statements are as tollows: {Rs.in Lakhs)

Il

As al

April 01, 2018

;DE!{!J rrect Tax {Agsets ) Liabilities arising onaccount of timing differences n;

IMAT Credit Entitlement {75.11) (75.11) {58.89)
.F-:'rcrperl'y Plant and Eguipment - Depreciation 2BH.47 258.23 25522
F‘rnwslr:-n far pmplnyﬂ-p benefit expenses (3.41) [3.87) {0.08)
F‘rov sion for standard loan assets — - .
Deiursd Ta r_| n Fair Valu.:nlmn of Inuest-‘n&r ts . - 40,42
DE’rE rmed Tax on Fair wlue -JF Employes benefit expenses through Cther .
Lomprehemwe ICoTe 1.34 {I' 87 {004}
\Deferred Tax [Assets) Lisbilities (net) 211.49 183.12 ) 23665
Movement in Deferred Tax (Assets)/ Liabilities {R. in Lakhe)

Particulars

Credn
Entitlernant

As atApnI 1, 2013 (58.89) 5 {0.10) 40.42 23665
'Churged-" I:Crud tad]

T-:r Profit or Loss [16:22) am ((.82) (40.42) 154.45)
| Ta Diher Cumprﬂl"enswe Irucnrne - - 092 - 0.92
[MAT Credit Uil ' - : 5 o
'mm March 31,2019 (75.11) 258.23 - . 183.12
Cha rgedd ;Erednted].

!Tn Profit or Loss - 30.44 [.2.53] - 27190
| T Ohber Comprebensive Income - - 0,47 - 047
?#.-I- at March 31, 2020 (75.11) 288.67 {2.06) . 21149
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Note 18 : Borrowings [R5 in Lakhs)

A at Asal As at

Particutars March:31, 2020  March 31, 2019 Apnl 01, 2018

;SEEI..II'Ed Loans

Loans taken from financial Institutions™ F.367.40
|Bank Overdraft* m am a )
Unsecured Loans o o

-Ln:an takan ’rn:rm Related Parties 141 DU 90.34 i 15&- |‘.'ui1
-D[hﬁf Loans EI15 1:5 ‘ID[J 15
Total 2,329.94 90.37 10,624.21

_—

*Loans taken from Financial Institutions are securad against shares & securities placed as collateral by customers ta whom Inans has been

given.
** Bank owverdraft facility taken from Funjab Mational Bank for which asset cover details are given below:
al 211, Akal CHS Ltd, Bamanpun road, J B Nagar Andheri East, Mumbai- 59
b} C-58, Dominiain Prive Hillside Residences, Khandala Lonavala, Pune
¢) B-90d-BandB -904 . A Valenca co hsg soc, Hiranandam Gardans, Powal, Mumbai - 78
d} B-903-Band B-903 - A Valencia co hag soc ltd Hiranandani Gardens, Powai, Mumbai - 74

Mote 19 : Trade Payables {Rs, in Lakhs)
P As al Ag at As at
il March 31,2020  Mareh 31,2019 April 01, 2018
|Trade Payable
|Duieis to Micre Enter pruses and Small Ent-:-rphse:s 379 041 075
{}ther thaﬂ l'.-'lurro and ﬁrr'..all Enterp*uws F411 5338 &2.00
Total 37.90 53.79 62.75

*Based on information received by the Company from its suppliers regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
IMEME] Development Act, 2006 and relied upon by the auditors; details of amaount due to such vendars is-as below:

5 Mo Particulars

(it Principat Amount Outstanding 379 0.41 0.75
fii} Interest due on above and unpaid - - -
{ili) Interest due and payable for the penod of delay

{iv] Interest accrued and remaining unpaid

MNote 20 : Other Financial Liabilities {Current) (Rs. in Lakhs)

._-: I_ A5 at As at

Fartcutars } March 31,2019  April 01, 2018

'Current Pu'laturities of Long-Term Debt:

Debl:rntw-aa 31 D I.".'El
Interes.t accrued but not due + : 98.85
F’al,lable towards partll,' F|.F.|I|:| invastment - - 20443
E|:|L.||t).I Stack Option Premium . i 020
[Gither L Iabl-lt;.' - 1059 11.61
iFinancial Guaraniee Ohhgat:uun

:Tutal - 10.5% 717.70

*Mon Convertible Debentures referred above are ssued on provate placement basis which are secured against loans & advances. The
debentures areindex linked,
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Mote 21 : Other Current Liabilities

March 31, 2019

Statutory Dues 46.43

Mote 22 ; Current Provisions

A5 at

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2018

ia) Provision for Employee Benefits:

iR
As at

28.60
28.60

As at

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Aprd 07, 2

(Rs. in Lakhs)

A at

Fa pril o1 _ 20108

Provisian for Graturty 1.38 1:13 0.64
__ Provision for Leave E':'F?.“.h!""!?.m 022
(b} Others
Provision for interest on debanture A5.66
touﬁirg&r;-r.prdv:-sion against swndafd ir:-an asset-.; ZE.SD
Total 1.60 1.13 58.80

Mote 23 : Revenue from Operatians

For the Year e

Interest incoms 119.53
Incame from Buginess Support Services GE0.41
“!-iuhlerting incomea o .00
Profit on Sate of |nvestment 975
Total 87589
Mote 24 : Other Income

For the

March 3

Credit Balances Written off 1.85
Interest on Income Tax Refund

_ﬁm-fiu on sate of Fixed Assets

Derivativa Profit -
Mise. Incame 0.28

Intereston Depoasit 2394
Total _ 263F

115 | CHOICE INTERNATICRMAL LIMITED | ANNLEAL REPORT 2020

(Rs.ir Lakhs)

4695
1,276.25

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Standalone Financial Statements

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

MNote 25 : Employee Benefits Expenses
IRs. in Lakhs)

Far the Year ended

Particulars Macch 31 2020

'Salaries and Wages 75.27 11841
:-Elor'ltriblchnns to Provident and Other Funds .58 063
Etarfh';'eh.xm Expenses IEIBS D B-E-

| Gratuity Expenses .70 1.44
Total 78.38 12136

MNote 26 : Finance Costs
(Rs, in Lakhs)

Farthe Year ended

Particulars 5

March 31, 20240

Interest on Borrowings from Related Parties .04 24189
Interest an Bormowings from Others 16.83 740
.Ir-tums.l on Barrowings from financial Institutions 264,74
flm BU*FUW'I:‘S {E‘ﬁ Bamks '??.?3

Interest & Enrrnwm-gs Cost an Debentures . 43.4%
.Intere.-'.t on Deposi 2;.?.1'} 1.15% .
li_}t_he-r é-;u'—rl]'n:mg E_'.:}Stﬁ T3l:l-1- ;1@

| Total 154.31 554.95

Mote 27 : Depreciation and Amortisation Expense

(Rs, in Lakhs)

Particulars
| Depraciation on tangible assets (Reter Mote 5} &8.47 7227
:.;.mnrns.aiiu-n of lr:rs-l_n-gihle asseis {Refer Note 7) 506 553
| Tatal 7372 T7.80
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MNote 28 : Other Expenses {Rs.in Lakhs) Accompanying notes to the financial statements
Farticulars o . b iz MNote 30 - Contingent Liabilities and Commitments
{Bank Charges and Commission 045 0.07 | A Cﬂl‘lﬁl‘igﬂﬂt Liabilities* (RS n LEIkth
EREI'It 2930 58.54 . : : As at As at L
{Repairs & maintenance 20.50 e84 | Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 April 01,2018
|Rates & taxes 12.15 156.83 |
|Legal and professional 47.20 26719 | i} Incame tax demand contested by the Company 45.36 19.34 19.34
lInsurance Charges 0.85 058 | | Total 6536 1934 1934
Eler:trH:ltyCharges 23'}1 5‘35 | [*The Company does not expectany outflow of ecanomic resources in respect of above.
[Traveling & Conveyance expenses 1.66 1.85
|Communication expenses 5150 A7.44
[Canteen prpienuls 2093 oo S
;C-Urr_lputr_ér SxPanses 21.84 2814 | : ; Asat Asat
|CSR expenses - 337 Particulars March 31, March 31, 2019
:D;rﬂt{?r sithing fE.‘E'.E: , E'{’D 55& | iy *Corporate guarantees issued to Banks & Financial
|Advertisement & Business promotion expenses 233 [T Institutions an bekalf of subsidiaries 832314 B.492.45 1053873
[Brinting. 8 Stetionery 277 a5g R Rl 5 e Ml R T i i
1 : = Total 8,323.14 849245 10,538.73
[Payment to Auditors: 2 s St i —— e i —
|As auditar 18.00 18,00 *Tha above represants corporate guarantee utifisad for Choics Equity Broking Private Limited is Bs. 7229 68 lakhs (March 31,2019 Rs.5459.21
[Other matters 2.75 |akhs), for Cholce Finsery Private Limited s Rs MNil{ March 31, 201%:Rs, 1935,85 lakhs) for Choice Capttal Advisors Private Limited is Rs, 98,07
o o —— 047 o7z | |lakhs (March 31, 2019: R5.82,39 lakhs) and for Chaice Consultancy Services Private Limited is Rs. 995,39 lakhs (March 31, 2019 Re1014.01
[Previsi r | lakhs) Howeverthe overall senctionamountis ®s. 1072000 lakhs (March 31, 2019 : Rs. 26183.00 lakhs)
RGN OF StINCREHER R ARt : it
|Miscallaneous expenses B.42 14.63 |
|Loss on sale of Investment {ind As) H 15548 | B. Capital Commitments- Nil
[Tl o Bia1 | MNote 31 - Expenditure in Foreign Currency 1Rz in Lakhs)
: : i Bt oy laoe ol year - For the ye
MNote 29 : Earmnings/ (Loss) Per Equity Share {Rs. in Lakhs) arucuiars areh 21 0 Kareakia
i {Foraign Travellin
Particulars S Sl . ig valling
T e 1 Total . .
| et Profit after tax atrnbutabie to Equity Shareholders for Basic EPS 43,30
|Addftess: Adjustment relating to potential equity shares
iMet profit after tax attributable to equity shareholders for Drifuted EPS 197.41 4330 MNote 32 - Reconciliation of Tax Expenses and the accounting profit multiplied by India's Tax Rate {Rs.in Lakhs)
|Weighted average number of Equity Shares (In lakhs] outstanding during the year i orthe yvear e { Forthe year ended
For Basic EPS 200.05 200.05 e March 31, 24
:!:nrDFI%!l.Ed EPS 21235 EIEIU.CIE : Profit Before Tax 21.00
|{c) Face Value per Equity Share (Rs.) \Enacted Income Tax Rate 26.00%
|Basic EPS (Rs.} 0.99 0.22 |Tax @ 25% plus surcharge and education cess 5.46
fuilmed EPS [Es.} 0.83 0.22 | Tax effects of adjustments 1o reconcile expected Income tax expenses
|id) Reconciliation between no. of shares (in lakhs) used for o T'?EPQ‘T“—“-“ i""';;’""'? bz E"ZE;‘WF‘ i:.] ” —— _—
| : u xpenses that are not oe uctible for tax purpose . e
AL ARGMRECU IS Deductions available under income tax (40.10) (46.12)
|Mo. of shares used for calculating Basic EPS 200.05 200.05 | - — — -
| Add: Potential aquity shares 12.21 . Total . 70.89 3235
|Mo. of shares used for calculating Diluted EPS 212.25 200.05 {Incomie tax for sarlier year (0.97)
= -+ Incorme tax Expesnes rocognised in profit & loss TO.%0 3235
Deferred tax recognised in profit & loss 27,90 {54.45)
_T:utal tax Expenses recognised during the year 28.81 (22.27)

Effective Tax Rate 33.36% -106.05%
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Note 33 - Employee Benefit Obligations

1. Defined Contribution Plan
During the year, the Campany has incurred and recagnised the follewing amaunts in the Statement of Profit and Loss:

(Rs.in Lakhs)

March 3

Employer's Contribution to Provident Fund .43 0.4z 2.87

Employer's Cantribution to ESIC 016 021 296
[fatay, 0.16 0.63 5.83
2. Defined benefit plans

Gratuity [post-employment banefits)

The Coempany provides for gratuity to employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, Employess who are in continuous service for
a perod of 5 years are eligible for gratuity, The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/termination is the employees last drawn basic salary
permonth computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of years of service. The gratuity plan isa funded planand the
Company makes contributions to recognised/aporoved funds in India. The Campary does not fully fund the liability and maintains atarget leval
of funding to be maintained over a period of time based on estimations of expected gratuity payments

Gratuity

Thetollowing table sets out the amount recognisad in the balance sheetand the movemeants in the net defined benefit obligations over the yaar
are psfollows:

(Ra.in Lakhs)

Presant value ol

ul|||-:_1'.1|r|r'-||

1-Apr-18 .66
Jourment Service cost 0.74 074
Interest expensedincome) Q.7e (0.8 .53
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 146 {0.18) 1.27
Remaasuremants
[Ganplass from change in financial assemptions 0.04 0,04
Experience (gains)/losses {3.62) 13.82)
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income (3.58]) _ . ~ {3.58)
Employer contributions
Benefit payments . 0.0% 0,05
11-Mar-19 7.54 (0.14) 7.40

abiligation

01 April 2019 7.54 (0.14) 7.40
WCurment Service cost 1.13 113
Interest expensafincome) .58 0.58

Total amount racngnised-in profit or loss 1.7 - 1.7

Remeasurements
Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in

interest expense / {income) - .01} {0.01)
{Gain)/loss from change in financial assumptions a.73 0.73
Duse ta- Change in demagraphic assumptions 10.01) (0.01)
Experience {gansiiosses -:1 EiEu:I [‘! .3_5_]
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income (1.13) {0.01}) {1.14)
'Empl |':|',rer contributions

_BE neht payments s e s
:31-Mar-20 an (0.15) 7.97
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The net liability disclosed above relates to funded plans are as follows:

{Rs.in Lakhs)

Particulars March 31,2

Present value of funded ebligations an 754 ?.68
Fair value of plan-assets {0.75) i0.14)
Deficit/{Surplus) of gratuity plan 787 740 946

Significant estimates- actuarial assumptions and sensitivity
The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:

(Rs; in Lakhs)

Farticulars April 01,2018
Discount rata 4.85% 7.65% 7.70%
ISHIary growth rate (per annum) 6.Ulf|‘?5§. &.00% fc D05
Withdrawal rate (per annum) 5% at younger ages 5% at younger ages 5% at younger ages

reducing to reducing to reducing to
T at older ages 1% &t older ages 1% at older ages
Expected rate of return A B5% 1.465% Mot Applicabls
Martality Table Inctian Assured Indian Assured Indian Assurad
Lives Mortality Lives Mortality Lives Martality
(2012-14} Table (2012-14) Table [2012-14) Table
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is:

Impact on defined benefit obligation

Change in assumption surmption

March 31,2020 March 31, 2019 March 31,2020 | March 31, 2019
| Diseaunt rate ' 0.50% ' 0.50% | Decresseby | 577% | 5,44%
| Salary growth rate ' 0.50% ' 0.50% | increasaby | 292% | 2.05%
| Withdrawal rate I WRL x 1105 WR. = 110% Increase by I 1.22% | 2.15%

March 31,2020 | March 31,2019 | March 31,2020 | March 31, 2019 |
Discount rate [ 050% |  050% | Increaseby | 0 629% |  592% |
Salary growth rate [ 0.50% | 0.50% | Decreasaby | 275% | 7.00% |
Withdrawal rate I W.R, x 0% I WLR. x P0% I Decrease by I 1.27% I 227% l

The above sensitivity analyses are based ona change in an assumption while halding all other assumptions constant. In practice, thisis unlikely
to oceur, and changes in sorme of the assumptions may be correfated, When caleutating the sensithvity of the defined benefit abligation to
significant actuarial assumptions the same method (presant value of the defined benefit obligation caloutated with the projected unit credit
methed at the end ofthe reponting peried) has been applied as when calculating the defined benefitiability recognised Inthe balance sheet

Tha methods and types of assumptions used in praparing the sensitivity analysis did notchange compared tothe pror period,
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Risk Exposure

Through its defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed to @ number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed

Investment risk The present value of defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which is determined by
referance to markel yields at the end of the reporting period on governmaent bands. Most af the plan asset
irvestment is in fixed income sacurities with high grades and in government sacurites which are subject to
interast rate risk. & portion of the funds are invested in equity securities: The Company intends to maintain the bl SR B LA i SRR fc 3 S e B e S S B s b e i B o S B 3

above investrment mix inthe continuing years.

Interestrisk A decrease in the market yeilds in the government bond will increase the plan liability; however, this will be
partially offsat by an increase in the return on the plan’s debt investments.

Longewity risk The presant value of defined benefit plan liability is caleulated using a discount rate which is detarmined by
reference to the bast estimate of the modality of plan participants bath during and after employment, An
increasa inthe life expectancy of the plan participants will increaze the plan’s liability.

4 s ga sy ST AR TP P LA A AP P AP TP R AR U S

The present value of defined benefit plan lakility is calculated using a discount rate which is determined by
reference to the future salares of plan participants, As such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants will
increasa the plan's liability,

Salaryrisk o e R T L (R - S o T O W S R R R W R T SR . e .

Maturity profile of gratuity liability and Employer contribution
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4
a
a
z
§ d. Individuals owning directly or indirectly Kamal Poddar - Holding 1250 % of Capital in CIL v v W
£ interest in voting power that gives them Hemiata Poddar - Holding 4.25% of Capital in CIL . " v
= control & their relatives Suriil Patodia - Halding 5.50% of Capital in CIL L v v
s Vinita Patodia - Holding 7.87 of Capital in CIL v s ¥
B Anil Patodia- Holding 5.50% of Capital in CIL ¥ ¥ o
= Archana Patodia- Holding 7.87% of Capital in TIL ¥ v v
= Arun Poddar - Holding -10.50% of Capital in CIL ¥ ¥ v
pu Sanu Poddsr - Helding 6.25% of capital in CIL L L e
= Shreya Patodia - Holding 1.50% of Capital in CIL v s v
% Suyash Patedia -Holding 1.50% of Capital in CIL - ¥ v
= Aastha Patodia -Holding 1,.50% of Capital in CIL v ¥ ¥
= . | Ayush Patodia -Haolding 1,50% of Capital in CIL v v v
3 ir_a Enterprises over which (o) & (d) S. K. Patodia & Associates ¥ v <
S are able ro exercize significant The Byke Hospitality Ltd. v v ¥
;_! influence Hotel Relax Pvr Ltd. L L v
3 Manbhari Biofuel Pyt, Ltd, * ¥ ¢
5. K. Patodia Advisory Services Pyt Lid, & v ¥
Shrae Shakambhari Exims Private Limited (Formerly Known 32
Upton Infrastructure Pyt. Ltd.) ¥ o v
Agqua Pumps Pyt Lid. v o o
Wheresmypandit.com Pyt Lid v ¥ v
Samekit Learning Management Private Limited (Formerly knowm
a5 Gravotix Technelogy Private Limitad) ¥ ¥ ¥
Matarmistri Com Private Limited v
Thoughts Consultants aipur P Lin W with Chioice
Consultancy Services P L v ¥ ¥
VEC Consulting Private W with Choice Consultancy Services
Private Limited (w.ef January 15,2018) v ¥ ¥
Irfra Dey Consultants in SV with Choice Consultancy Services Pet Ltd v o
Samank Consumer Products Private Limited v W ¥
Samank Apparals Private Limited o ¥ ¥
Chioice Insurance Broking India Private Limited v v v
Mumbai Yaish Seva Sansthan ¥ ¥ ¥
Farmer's Evalvement Foundation « W v
Blazing Star Propenies Private Limited « W W
Armant Incense Enterprise (Partnership name, entered by Aastha Patodia) v v v
Closhoerize (Partnarship name entered by Shreya Patodia) v v ¥
De Starvings Couriers LLP v ¥ v
Chioice Strategic Advisors LLF o ¥
Lions Club of Mumbai Choice o ¥ v
Line Murnbai Choice Foundation o ¥
Rupang Propearties Private Limited L ¥
Anil Patodla HUF ¥ ¥ v
Sunll Patoclia HUF + o ¥
Arun Poddar HUF ¥ ¥ ¥
Kamal Peddar HUF L b v
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Accompanying notes to the financial statements

(i} Details of Related Party transactions during the year ended March 31, 2020 [Rs. in Lakhs )

r‘ rieL )

dars

(Transactions
|Equity investments in
{Choice Finservy Private Limited 2,000.00 - - - - 2,000.00
; ) 2,000.00 | - | i — | 2,000.00
|Sale of Equity investmaent in following companies to
|Chaice Equity Broking Private Limited
[Cheoice Carperate Servicas Private Limited 1.00 - - - - 1.00
{Choice Retails Soluticns Private Limited 1.00 - - - -
|{Choice Techlab Selutions Private Limited 1.00 - - . -
:Chﬂi{t‘.‘ Wealth Management Private Limited | 950 | - . - . ol | =l | ~ 9.50 |
; 7280 | 200~ | 0000000 | = | =) 10.50 |
ES&‘E of Equity investment in following companies to
|KMP and Relative of KMP
|Hemlata Poddar . . 5.00 - . 5.00
{Sonu Poddar | - | 2| 2 500 | - | 5.00
18 — 500 | 500 - 10.00
Loan Taken from -
{kamal Poddar - - 145.50 - - 145.50
[Choice Capital Advisors Private Limited . . A .
|{Choice Equity Broking Private Limited . + ¥’ : 3 N
|{Cheice Finsery Private Limited - - - - - -
A |Choice Consultancy Services Private Liméted | - | - [l - | = | < | -
3 . - | & | 14550 | 1] il 145.50
0 [Loan Repaid -
= |Kamal Poddar - - 4.50 - - 4.50
= (Choice Capital Advisors Private Limited - - - - - -
2 |Chaice Equity Braking Private Limited - B - - - -
5 [Chaice Finsery Private Limited 9036 - - - - 90.35
2, [Choice Consultancy Services Private Limited L | | e | | = | =
= T— 9036 & | 450 | | e (1 94.86
E |Loan Given to -
= |Ebalce Finsarid Private Lviag . : : : : i s A
2 [ L 2273 | 20| | =] - 2427 |
% |Revenue from Operations
C {Income from Business Support Services -
= |{Ehoice Equity Broking Private Limited 2446.51 . . . . 244.51
ﬁ |{Choice Wealth Management Private Limited 7146 . - - . 714
o) [{Choice Capital Advisors Private Limited 3993 : — = . 39.93
E |Choice Carporate Services Privats Limited 2.43 - - - - 243
= |Choice Consultancy Services Private Limited 138.77 - - - - 138.377
B [The Byke Hospitality Limited . . - . 85.05 85.05
= |5 K Patodia & Associates - - - - 139.54 139.54
o |hoice insurance Broking fncia Private Limited | ] g | t z 4 4122 | 2122 |
43480 i =l g 24581 | 680.61 |

)
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

(i) Details of Relatad Party transactions during the year ended March 31, 2020 {Continued...) {Rs. in Lakhs)

SIS UHIPLE [RIBUELL] SUD|EPURIS

OEGE ANCATH TENMNY | QLN TYRNOLLYNEZENI Z0HD | Gl

[Imerest on Loans

[Choica Finsery Private Limited 11914 - . . - 11914

11914 | - | . | - - _ 119.14

|Income from Subletting

:I:hr.u ce Equity Broking Private Limited 12,30 - - - - 12.30

| Chareo Consultancy Services Private Limited 5,00 - - - - &£.00

{Choire Finsarv Privata Limited 0.60 - < - - 0.60

\Chaoice Techlab Solutions Private Limited 31.50 - - - - 31.50

'S K Patodia & Associates 15.60 - | . . - 15.60

' ' 66.00 | s | . ' . ' . ' 66.00

|Finance Costs

|Intarest on Loans

{Cheice Finsery Private Limited 0.04 - - - - 0.04

| 0.04 | - - - - 0.04

|Employes Banefit Expenses

;Dlrectnr remuneration - - 30.03 - - 30.03

{5alary & allowances - c - . )

|Mare) Singharnia - - 17.40 . - 17.40

iKarishman Shah - - 11.90 - - 11.90

: ' i - | 59.33 [ . ' - ' 59.33

Other Expenses |

|Rent Expenses

| Choica Consultancy Sarvices Private Limited 12.00 - - - - 12.00

|Choice Capital Advisors Private Limited 0.12 - B - - 0.12

|Legal & Professional Expenses

[Choice Capital Adwisors Private Limited 11.00 - - - - 11.00

{Miscellenous Expenses - - - - - -

{zamank Consurner Products Private Limited | - - - | - 215 _ 315
2312 | - | . . 315 | 26.27

{Rs. in Lakhs)

|Balances outstanding at the end of the year

|Rent Deposits
|{Choice Consultancy Services Private Limited 250.00 250.00
{Choice Capital Advisors Private Limited 250,00 250.00
: _ 500.00 - - | - - 500.00
|Borrowings - Current [
(Kamal Foddar | - 141.00 . - 141.00
[ | - 141.00 | - - 141.00
|Loans - Current |
| Choice Finsery Private Limited | 267273 - _ - | - _ - _ 267273
! 267273 I - ! v ! " ! 24672.73
[Trade receivablos- [
[Choice Equity Broking Private Limited 92.64 . - : : 92.64
{Choice Wealth Management Private Limited 4.31 - - - - 4.3
:Chﬂrce Capital Advrsors Private Limited 21.67 - - - - 21.67
IChoca Corporate Services Private Limited 0.57 - . . - 0.57
|Choice Consultancy Services Private Limited 86.04 - - - - 86.04
Choica Techlab Solutions Private Limized 18.74 18.74
| Choice Finsery Private Limited 012 012
| The Byke Hospitality Lirmited - - - - 38.61 38.61
0 {3 K Patodia & Associates - - . . 80.51 80.51
o |Chaoice Insurance Broking India Private Limited - - - - 1319 13.19
i L 22409 | - | : 8 - | 13231 | 3546.39
= [Trade Payables
3 [Choice Consultancy Sernces Private Limited 1.08 1.08
= iSamank Consumer Products Private Limited 0.8% 0.89
=2 {Kamal Poddar - - 2.19 - - 219
£ {Manaj Singhania - - 1.05 2 - 1.05
= {Karishma Shah . - 0.92 | . - 0.2
= 5 | 5 416 - . 416 in
ﬁ |Mon Current Investments 3
= [Choice Equity Broking Private Limited 4,414.00 - - - - 4,414.00 &
% |Cheite Capital Advisers Private Limited 505.00 - - - - 505.00 o
e |Choice Consultancy Services Frivate Lirnitad 301.00 - . . - 301.00 i
= |Choice Porfolio Management Services Private Limited 110.89 - - - - 110.89 %1
ﬁ |Chaice Finserv Private Limited 3,552.54 - - - - 3,552.54 E
| . e e - . - . - = &
g 8,883.45 | - - . - B8,883.45 N
ha ] e
o ol
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— =)
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONMNE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

Accompanying notes to the financial statements

(i) Details of Related Party transactions during the year ended March 31, 201% {Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars

SIS UHIPLE [RIBUELL] SUD|EPURIS

OZ0E ARCdTH TenmRe | QEUWN TeROILYNEIEN 330HD | il

fTra nsactions
| Equity investrnents in
|Choice Finserv Private Limited 1,800.00 - - - - 1,800.00
L — | 180000 | - | m=l] — - | 180000
|Sale of Equity investment in following companies to
tChoice Equity Broking Private Limited
|Choica Finsary Private Limited 453.44 - - - - 453.44
[Cheoice Portiolio Management Services Private Limited F9.90 . . . . F9.90
553.34 | - - . . 553.34
|Loan Taken from -
{Kamal Poddar . - 110,00 . . 110,00
{Choice Capital Advisors Private Limited 36.00 - . - - 36.00
{Choice Equity Broking Private Limited 4.337. M - - - - 4.337.M1
{Choice Finsery Private Limited 2120.92 - - - . 212092
{Choice Consultancy Services Private Limived 100.53 | . . . . 100.53
6,595.16 [ - 110.00 . . 6,705.14
jLuan Repaid -
fkamal Paddar . . 110.00 . . 110,00
i 93.70 - - - - 3.70
{Choice Equity Broking Private Limited 4,606.05 - - - - 4,606.05
iChoice Finsary Private Limited 2,030.57 - - - B 2,030.57
[Chercs Congultancy Services Private Limited 100.53 - - - - 100,53
6,830.85 - 110.00 - - &6, 240.85
éLuan Given to -
{Chalce Consubtancy Services Private Limited 6535.65 - - . . 655.65
|Choice Corporate Services Private Limited 143.96 . - . - 143,946
{Choice Capital Advisors Private Limited 68.30 - - - ¥ &8.30
{Choice Equity Broking Private Limitad® §M.A5 - - - - 97115
|Chorce Finsary Private Limited 205.20 . . B . 905.20
{Choice Peers Intemational Private Limited 129.02 - - . . 129,02
{Choice Techlab Solutions Private Limited 452.30 - - - - 45230
{Choice Wealth Management Private Limited 271.00 - - - - 271.00
|Choice Partiolio Management Services Private Limited 25.50 - - - - 25.50
{Choice Ratail Solutions Private Limited 3.00 . . . . 3.00
{Samank Consumer Products Private Limite . - - . -
' 3.625.08 | - : . . 3,625.08

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars

Loan Repayment received from -
Choice Consultancy Services Private Limited B57.12 g = 2 = B57.12
Choice Corparate Services Privata Limitad 208.01 - - - - 208.01
Choice Capital Advisors Private Lirnited &8.30 . . . . 6830
Choice Equity Braking Private Limited 97115 - - - - 97115
Choice Finservy Pnvate Limited 905.20 - - - - P05.20
Choice Peers International Private Limited 27391 - - - - 273.91
Choice Techlab Solutions Private Limited 626,79 . - - . 52679
Choice Wealth Management Private Limited 453.25 - - - - 453.25
Choice Farfolio Management Services Private Limited 29.13 - - - - 2913
Choice Eetails Solutions Private Limited 10.00 - = = - 10.00
rarnank Consdmer Products Private Limited . - . 239,80 239.80
4.402.87 s = - 259.80 4,662.67 |
‘Advance received
Samank Consumer Products Private Limeted . . . - 410.00 410,00 |
2 2| 7 410.00 410.00 |
0 Advance amount repaid
o Sarmank Consumer Products Private Limited . . - . 410.00 410.00
4 ' | == . a | 41000 410.00 |
= | ! ! ! ! !
= Transfer of assets
% Chaice Finsery Private Limitad 6,76 - - - . &.76
B i ! pilis ! { ! L { L A
g . 6,76 | | N | « | 4| 6.76 Al
b Revenue from Operations
= Income from Business Suppont Sarvices
% Chaice Equity Broking Private Limited 267.56 - - - - 267.56 E
g Choice Wealth Management Private Limited 9.22 - - - - 0.22 z
= Choice Capital Advisors Private Limited 58.16 - - - - 58.16 &
% Choice Corporate Services Private Limited 618 - - - - 5618 g
£ Choice Consultancy Services Private Limited 144,85 - - - - 144.85 “_‘I’,
55 The Byke Hospitality Limited - - - - B85.15 85.15 E)
m 5 K Patodia & Assaciates - - - - 194,92 194.92 z
g Chaice Insurance Broking Indha Private Limited . - - - 4.33 4.33 )
| | } | } } :
o 485.94 : ; 5 284.40 770.36 g
2 ! | ! ]
= 3
ks &
e =
=] o

)
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

{1i) Details of Related Party transactions during the year ended March 31, 2019 (Continued...)

|Interest on Loans

ciee signiticant
g nes

{Rs. in Lakhs)

!l:'n-:ncra: Equity Braking Privata Limitad 0,20 0.20
|Chaice Consultancy Sanvices Private Limited 15.84 - 15.84
|Cheice Finsery Private Limited 602 - 602
{Samank Consumar Products Frivate Limited . 10.99 1099
22.06 10.99 33.05
Brokerage & DP Charges
|Choice Equity Broking Private Limited - - -
I
iFman:e Costs
{Interest on Loans
iI::h oice Equity Broking Private Limited 74.10 - 7410
glf:h.nir.e Consultancy Sarvices Private Limited 0.50 - .50
{Choice Finsery Private Limited 167.39 - 167.39
iDlher Borrowing Costs
{Choice Equity Broking Private Limited - - -
| 24199 : 24199
EEmp!wee Benefit Expenses
[ Director remuneration - 42.00 - 42.00
§5a|=1ry & allowances
?Manl:rj Singhania - 15.02 - 15.02
[iarishitnan Sheh ) s : 243
_ - 66,84 - 66,84
|Other Expenses
|Lions Club of Mumbai Choice - 0.50 0.50
|Lions Mumbai Choice Foundation - 1.64 1.64
i 2.14 214
NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020
(R, in Lakhs)

Balances outstanding at the end of the year
Short Term Borrowings
Choee Finsery Private Limited

Trade receivables -

Choige Equity Braking Private Limited

Cheoice Wealth Management Private Limited
Choice Capital Advisors Private Limited
Choice Corporate Services Private Limited
Chaoice Consultancy Sorvicas Privata Limated
The Byke Hospetality Limitad

S K Patodia & Associates

Chaoice Insurance Broking india Private Limined

Trade Payables
Kamal Poddar
Mano] Singhania
Karishma Shah

Iﬂtl'ber Current Assets
Cheica Fiasary Private Limited

Mon Current Investments

Choice Equity Broking Private Limited
Choice Capital Adwvisars Private Limited
Choice Consultancy Services Private Limited

Choice Finsery Private Limited

Choice Peers International Private Limited
Choice Wealth Management Private Limited
Choice Techlab Solutions Private Limited
Chowce Corporate Services Private Limited
Choica Retail Solutions Private Limited

}_

Choice Portfolio Management Services Private Limited

6.76
6.76

4,414.00
505.00
301.00
110.89

1,552.56

10.00
1.00
1.00
0.75
0.00

6,896.21

0.26
119
0.87
2.32

90.34

57.06
1.83
1.42
137

19.70

23.26

33.02
115

138.81

0.26
119
0.87
2.32

674
6,76

4,414.00
505.00
301.00
110.89

1,552,564

10.00
1.00
1.00
0.75
0.00

6,896.21
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

Accompanying notes to the financial statements:

1
= It R N e o oS W ocooocooooneN M~ TR - R - Z ; ]
L meRauele ~ogiel eRliel SSesRssSonen|y| RSes ez woas (N NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
= RaPHee R =mrewm B2LRIB 885282 °=B|lE SISI""EaS |2 >
o - S | omAANN * - N @ it FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020
I:'E - L ] - i~ - !
Mote 35 Reconciliation of Equity and Met profit
L L] . Er 3.:_ g L ] ] L] L] L3 L L] ' ] L S | g
oo = o A, Reconciliation of equity as at March 31, 2019
Lo B & |
(Fs. in Lakhs)
Particulars mpact
ASSETS
Men -Current Assets
! J J ' ' ¢ A ia) Property, Plant and Equipment ' 6,504 90 (120.00) &.384.90
b} Investmemt Property’ - 120.00 120.00
tc} Other Intangible Assets 22.54 = 22.54
id) Intangible Assets Under Developrment 1281 12.81
{e] Financial Assets
{1} Investmeants g.477.59 15548 F433.06
{il) Other Financial Assets 24,83 10,006} 26,37
it} Income Tax Assets [Met) 4919 - 515
Current Assets
] i i ] E E m % i [l ] i ] ] ] ] ] i ] 1 ] 3 ] ] ‘a:l FInEnEiHIAES&ts
Mmoo [i} Trade Recewables 178.92 17892
(i) Cash and Cash Equivaients 3194 3195
[ni}) Bank balance ather than above B.87 B.87
[} Loans 2.001.56 7,001.56
(b} Other Current Assets 106.39 106,39
_ Total Assets 23.441.55 155.42 23,596.97
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
P me ' ovoan | von | oa wor o ' re e PR Tk T TR T T Equity
P~ ta) Equity Share Capital 200048 - 2,000.48
I3 (b} Other Equity 11,709.58 11471 £1,824.29
s Non-Current Liabilities
{a) Provisions .64 0.39 .02
(b) Doaferred Tax Liabilities 19633 40.32 236,65
! . ' Current Liabilities
npg e #2'3| gs=gre3zews’ (3l gEszIsew |e SN
oo 2011 R = gl Ed) Lo pg e b | o ne B b (i} Borrowings 10.624.21 10,624.21
= || W e - () Trade Payables
Total cutstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises n.7s 0,75
= ! — = = Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises
and small enterprises .00 &2.00
= g ¥ (i} Other Financial Liabllities F17.70 717.70
?{ E E {b) Other Current Liabilities L3.07 &3.07
= E f'! .|:|:I Provisions 5880 588D
S 5 DTE 2 BRE T o« By ok BT Total Liabilities and Equities 25,441.55 155.42 25,596.97
k- = EEE E EEL -EE'DGI 8 B o EE :
= -E === _I—"D _'D_I—._:.':- .t_E-E_G = E .':l.-11:|_¢‘_._|'5
z Erus u £ BEa8 EgESS IS SESRERT
= B E E % 5 'E E =E E 1; ; d E 5 E £ 1:‘:’ E 25 ; = %’ E “* The Inclian GAAP figures have been reclassified to canfirm to Ind-AS presentation requirements for the purpase of this note
§ ? OSEE: £3 SeEE 0 FEESTE EISsaders
5 s 5PE3y 23 §Sopseiestsy |BpfBiSeicey
= 5 FSODU® S =g M E S O 8 28 Ed @ EZ2C gl
% COEEEw Oul EEe0zSScE¥uch |BELLE O EES
£ @E g 5 g3 sogm 8,0 oz as 12 8 P28 Eo
H{ S B3 Beigdifiiiifl IMieiiion
- Totnles g 50 (§83uezziiEgely EadE=5g8s1
= R2ac=523 a 8 cd sLEBGEEEC Rl | BEsafoTUcE
L] SEES3 R s 55 Cosl |EQges2sCcoEnE 335594853
ki :,.‘?E:mﬂ-ﬂ- EI'U_E'“_I’;“ _Eu:‘: ‘E'—'":E""EEE:'EO-’:'" *"ﬂ.-‘—"‘._‘“"ﬁg‘—‘E
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Standalone Financial Statements Standalone Financia! Statements

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

C. Reconciliation of Total Comprehensive Income for the year ended March 31,2019

(Rs. in Lakhs)
B. Reconciliation of equity as at March 31, 2019

[Rs.in Lakhs)

*The Indinﬁ-GMP.flg.urts have been reclassified to conform te Ind - AS pmllnn reguiraments for the pu}pnse of this note.

\Met Cash Flows from Oiperating Activities 47494 {9.582,53) {107.56)
[Met Cash Flews fram |nvesting Activities 2,631.0% 213873 1,770.32
(Met Cash Flows fram Financing Activities (11.542.14) 444 57 111,097.59)
Met Increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 564.40 0.78 56317
Cash and Caszh Equivalents az at March 31, 2018 40.83 31.96
#Cash and Cash Eqguivalents as at March 33, 2019 605.23 59713
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Particulars

[rre s

I AS requirements

Il A | Revenue from Operations
Revenue trom Operations 127425 1.27625
ASSETS Total Revenue from Operations 1,276.25 - 1.276.25
Mon-Current Assets Other Incoma 2007% 1.18 2197
{a) Property, Plant and Equipment’ 6,433.44 (120.00} 6,313.449 Total Income 1,297.04 1.18 1,298.22
tb} Investmant Property - 120.00 120.00 i E;‘F‘. s = = &
(g} Other Intangible Assots 17.02 . 17.02 { iy R !
{d] Intangible Assets Under Daveloprment 895 8.95 E“rnplcuyee Euristi Bugtive Hivaa ?'H.; I '3‘?
(4} Eiriaicks| Asaute Finance Costs 56380 1.15 564,95
d ! |rnn'|'_*"1rl‘|13nt# 6 95 31 & B96.91 Depreciation and Amortization Expense 7180 + 77.80
{ii} Other Financial Assate | 17.28 (0.02) 17.26 Othiar Expanses 35761 155.48 513,08
(f] Income Tax Assets (Met) 77.78 : 77.78 | Total Expenses N R 111743 _15%.76 1.2771% |
Ciircait Aniets I Prafit / (loss) before exceptional items and tax (- 1) 179.62 {158.59) 21.03
{a) Financial Assets [V Exceptional items B -
l:i:l Trade Recaivables 13907 13%.02 v PIT.}PIEI’"BSS} before tax ““ll"ﬁ” 179.62 l: 1 58.59:' 21.03
(i} Cash and Cash Equivalents 597.13 597.13 i T
(i) Bank balance other than abowve 810 B0 Current Tax 32.35 32.35
{iv) Loans 18.31 18.31 Earlier Yoars Tax Expense (3.17) (Q.17)
(b} Other Current Assets 31.24 11.34 Deferred Tax {13.21) 14124} {54.45])
 TOTAL ASSETS 14,244,58 (0.02) 14,244.55 Vil Total Tax Expense (VM) 1897 (41.24) (22.21)
L!AIBELI'I'I.E.S ;HHD EQUITY — —— ' WIll Profit / (loss) for the peried (WVIVIL 160,64 (11734} 43.30
Equity '|X Other Comprehensive Incoma *
{a) Equiity Share Capitsl 2,000 48 2,000.48 Wwerns ot will rot bie reclassifisd 1orprofit or logs
(b} Other Equity 11'5?0 22 {0.02) 11'51{;'30 Re-measuremant gaing (losses) on defined benefit obligations 353 3.53
Mon-Current Liabilities Tax Effect an above 10.52) 10.72
{a) Financial Liabilfies Other Comprehensive Income for the year, net of tax 2.61 2.61
(i} ‘Other Financizl Liabilities T0.5% 2 10,57 K Total Comprehensive Income for the year (VIll+1X) (Comprising
{b} Provisions &27 0.00 627 Profit/{Loss) and Other Comprehensive Income for the year) 160.64 (114.73) 45.91
{c) Deferred Tax Liabilibes 18312 - 183,12 T} , - T n = :
ver Inclian GAAP figures have baen reclassified to canfarm 1o Ind-AS presentation ragulrements for the purpose of this nota.
Current Liahilities Mlertes:
{a) Financial Liakilties 1, Pursuant to ind AS requirements, imvastment proparty s presented separately. Under FGAAR the same was presented as part of tangible
i1} Borrowings Q0.37 o037 assets, Tangible assets have been now divided into two categories under Ind AS viz. Praperty, plant and equipmentand investment property
{ii} Trade Payablas 2. All Investments except invastrments in group companies have been fair valued in accordance with Ind AS. 109, Investments are fair valued
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 041 041 through profit or loss. Under FGAAP the current investments were carrled at cost et of diminution in their value as at the Balance Sheet
Total autstanding dues of creditors ather than micra date. The long terminvestments wene carried atcost net of permanent diminution, if any.
snterprises and small enterprises £5 38 £3.38 3. Underind AS financial assets and liabilities are measured at fair value at the inception and subseguently at amortised cost or at fair value
(b] Other Current Lisbilities 28 40 a8 40 based an their classthication, Under |-GAAP the financial assets and liabilities were measured at cost.
(c) Provisions 113 1.13 4, Actuanal gains and losses partaining to defined bensfit obligations and re-measiurement pertaining to return on plan assete are recognised
- - — . in Other Comprehensive Income in accardance with Ind A% 19 and are not reclassified to profit or loss. Further, there are cartain other items
Total Liabilities and Equities 14,244 58 (0.02) 14,244.55 (as presented in D) that are accounted in Other Comprehensive income and subsequently reclassified to Profit or Loss in accordance with

D. Impact of Ind AS adoption on the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on March 31, 2019
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

(c) Quantitive Disclosures of carrying value / fair Value measurement hierarchy

Maote 36 Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 1 " Presentation of financial statements" s
for assets and liabilities

{Rs, in Lakhs)

(a) Current Assets expected to be recoverad within twelve months and after
twelve months from the reporting date:

(Rs. in Lakhs) Farticulars

|
Valuation

Particulars ’ Py [ R 4 ki | R I
; W A A Within | After {Level 1) | (Level 2} (Level 1) | {level 2)
|Financial Assets at Amortised Cost
L —— | | o ] " ] - ‘MNon Current |
hidatbdbniisnid e WU | SERI9 RRAE O - | TR Investment in subsidiaries 31/3/2020/ 8,883.45 . - 31312019 | 6,896.20 2|
Loans 12| 267274 - | 267274 18.31 18.31 | 7,001.54 - %,001.56 |Gither Financial Assets I1/3/2020) 506,63 NAE0T 17.26 - |
Other Current Assets |13 | 1611 | 16| 3134 | 3138 | 10638 | | 106.38 Ciivant
Trade Receivables 31/372020 356,39 - - (3132019 139.02
Cash and Cash Equivalents INE2020] 31493 - [A13R201e 59713
(b} Current Liabilities expected to be setteled within twelve months and \Bank Balance ather than abave Y '“3"'2':}2[:': 7.51 . - 3132019 .10 :
after twelve months from the reporting date: Loans 31/3/2020| 2,672.74 ) - [31/342009 18.31 |
{Rs, in Lakhs) Financial Liabilities at
? JAmortised Cost
As at March 31 ) 2015 2018 ‘Current
s AN e s T Tamean e Borrowings 31/3/2020/ 2,329.94 31/3/2019 | 9037 |
bk Note | Within | Afte Within | Afte Within | Alte _ Trade Payables 31/3/2020)  37.90 : - 33019 5379 . |
> |Gthar Financial Liabilities 317312020 - - - | 3VAR01Y 10.59 - |
[Trade Payable 19
;1a:ID|..|es of micro enterprises. to be continued.. (R ke
and small anterprises 3.79 : 3.79 0.41 § 0.41 0.75 : 0.75 itk

k) Dues of creditors other
than micro enterprises

and small enterprises 3411 - 341 53.38 - 53.38 H2.00 . &2.00 Bariciilars

[Cthar Financial Liabtlites 20 - - - 10.5% - 10.59 717,70 . 717.70 i)

1 1 1 | | | { { | { { Vatuation

Wdhar Currant Liabilities 2 4643 - A46.43 28860 28.60 £3.07 - 63.07

Provisions 22 1.60 | | w0 | 133 | 113 | 5860 | 5880 . (Level 1) | (Level2)
|Financial Assets at Amortised Cost [
| Mon Current
| Investrmeant in subsidiaries 17452078 5,649.54
| Investmeant in associate 1/4/20178 1.487.92
| Investment in Other Companies {Quoted) 1/4/2018 &90.53
[Investment in Other Companies {Unguoted) 1042078 1.805.07
{Other Financial Assets 1/4/2018 26.77
| Current
| Trade Receivables 144/2018 178.92
| Cash and Cash Equivalents 1/4:2078 31.96
| Bank Balance other than above 1/4/2078 B.87
| Loans 1442018 9.001.56
|Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost
| Current
| Barrowings 1/a/2018 10.624.21 . -
| Trade Payables 17472018 62.75
!Flther Financial Liakiltzes | 174720178 | 770 1l
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

Mote 37 Financial Assets at Amortised Cost Methoad

The carrying value of the fallowing financial assets recognised at amortised cost:
(Rs. in Lakhs)

! Py A et
Asat &5 at

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Men-Curreant Financial Assets

Others 50653 17.24 26,77
Current Financial Assets ' |

[Trade receivables 336.39 139.02 178.92
/Cash and Cash Equivalnats 31493 597.13 31.96
{Other bank balances 7.51 210 J.87
[ 247274 18.31 9,001.56
Others ETEE 31.34 106.38
Total 3,874.31 81116 9,354.45

Mate: The fair value of the above financial assets are approximately equivalent to carrying values as recognised above.

Mote 38 Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost Method

The carrying value of the following financial liabilities recognised at amortised cost:
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Ac-at As at April

Asat

Warch 31, 2020 March 317, 2019 01,2018

|Current Financial Liabilities

'Borrcrwings 2,329.94 F0.37 10,624.21
_Trade F"a.g,lal:_ﬂe E?PU 53.:{‘? 5275
Other Financial Liabilities e A8a? LT
Total 2,367.85 154,75 11.404.646

Mate: The fair value of the above financial liabilities are approximately equivalent to carrying values as recognised above,

MNote 39 Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss

The carrying value of the fallowing financial aszets recognised at fair value through profit or loss!
(Rs, in lakhsj

March 31,2020 Marech 31, 2019

Mon - Corrent Financial Assets

[|nvestments - - 5,435.6{."

Total - - 2,495.60
Mote: The above investments are quoted instruments in active markets and the same is recognised at fair value, Fair value measurement is
done considaring the Level -1 of Fair Value Higrarchy as per the Ind-A5 113,
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Mote 40 ; Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise of loans and borrowings, trade and cther payablesThe main purpose
ot these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations directly or indirectly. The Company's principal financial
assets include investments, loans, trade and ather receivables; cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its
oparations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk, The below note explains the sources of risk which the
entity i exposed to and how the entity manages the risk :

Measurement

Credit Risk Cash and cash equivalents, trade Aging analysis Biversification of
receivables, inancial instruments, and Credit rabings Existing cradit
Fixed Daposit with Banks, financial lirmits Unutilised from
assels measured at amortised cost, Consortium Bankers.
Liquidity Risk Borrowings and other labilities Rolling cash Availability of committad
flow forecasts Credit lines and

barrowing facilifies

Market Rizk - foreign exchange | Future commercial transactions, Cash flow farecasting Forward foreign
Fetognized tinancial liabilities not and exchange contracts
denominated in Indian Rupee (INE) Sensitivity analysis

Market Rizk - ntarast rate Lenig-Term barrowings at variable rates Sensitivity analysis Interest Rate Swaps

Credit Risk

Creditrisk is the risk that counterparty will not mest its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to
a finandial loss. The Company s exposed to credit risk from its aperating activities {prirmarily trade receivables) and from s
financing activities, Including Fixed deposits with banks andfinancial institutions and ather financial instrarments,

Financial instruments and cash deposits

Cradit risk from balanceswith banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company's linance department in accardance
with the Company's policy. Investrments of surplus funds are made generally in the fixed deposits and for funding to subsidiary
company. The investment limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefare mitigate financial loss to make
payrments for vendars,

The Company's maximum exposure to credit nsk for the components of the balance sheet at March 31, 2020 and March 31,
2019 isthe carrying amounts as stated in balance sheet except for balances of subsidiary company,

Liguidity Rizk
The Company monitors its risk of a shortage of funds using a liguidity planning tool.
The Company’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank loans

and unsecured loans, The Company has access to a sufficient variety of sources of funding which can be rolled over with
existing lenders, The Company believes that the working capitalis sufficient to meet its current requirements,
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

The table below provides details regarding the maturities of significant financial liabilities
as of March 31, 2020, March 31, 2019 and April 1, 2018:

(Rs:in Lakhs)

Tetal

Year ended March 31, 2020

| Securad Loans 1,373.78 - . - 1,373.78
Unsecured Loans 1,630.32 , : 1,630.32
.Trade FPayables 3790 . . - 37.90
. Othears .

Year ended March 31, 2019

_ secured Loans a1 - . 0.01

Unsecured Loans 90346 . . - 90.36
Trade Fayablas 5379 - - - 53.79
Others 1059 z E 2 10.59

Year ended April 01, 2018

‘Secured Loans 7.367.40 - 936740
LInsecured Loans 1,456.81 - - - 1,256.81

| Trade Payables 6275 ; = 62.75
_Dthers 11770 - - - 717.70
Mlarket Risk

Market risk comprises two types of risk: interest rate risk and currency risk, Financial instruments affected by market risk inclucle loans and
borrowings and deposits

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rat risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interast
rates. The Company's exposure ta the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily ta the Company's long-term debt obligations with
floating interest rates.

The Company manages its interast rate risk by having a balanced portfolio of fived and variable rate loans and borrowings. The Company’s
policy is to kesp balance between its bormowings at fixed rates of interest.The difference between fiked and variable rate interest amounts
calculated by referance to an agreed -upon notional principal amaunt.

The exposure of the Company 1o interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as unden;

(Rs.in Lakhs)

Yanable Rate Barrowing 2,329.94 -
|Fixed Rate Borrowing = 70,34
Tatal 2,329.94 20.35
Interest rate Sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates an that portion of loans and
barrowings affected, after the impact of hedge aceaunting. With all other variables held eonstant, the Company's profit before
tax iz aftected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:
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The exposure of the Company to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as under,

{Rs. in Lakhs)

March 31, 2020 (23.30)
23.30
March 31, 2017 + 1%
-1
Equity price risk

The Company’s unlisted equity securities are of subsidiary and deemed cost of the same are taken as previous GAAP carrying
value(i.e costof acquisition).

Note 41 : Capital Management

Farthe purpase of the Company's capital management, capital Includes issued equity share capital, securities premium and all
other reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Campany's capital management
is to masxirnise the value of the share and to reduce the cost of capital,

Tha Company manages ite capital structure and makes adjustmants in light of changes in economic conditions ang tha
requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company can adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, issue new shares, ete. The Company monitars capital using @ gearing ratio, which is net debt divided
by totaleguity. The Company includes within net debt interest bearing loans and borrowings, less cash and cash aquivalents.

(Rs. in Lakhs)

A} Net Debt
é-:.:-rrcwin_g_s .{Current and .l\ilun-'i“;.urrent-il 4',32 5 74 ‘?03? 1‘1},&2-«121 I
:Cash and cash equivalents 3T4.23 59713 31.96 |
Net Debt (A) 2,015.04 (506.76) 10,592.25
ST bincc e e i
Eciuit_-;' share r,ahiral Z,I‘Ij;l.‘.?r}.-.iﬁ 200048 - 2,000.48
Other Equity 14,592.77 11,870.20 11,824.29
Total Equity (B) 16,593.25 13,870.68 13,824.77
Gearing Ratio (Net Debt / Capital) Le. (A/B) 12.14% 3.45% Th62%

Note 42 : Segment Information:

Operating segrments are defined as components of an enterprise for which discrete financial information iz available that is
evaluated regularly by the chief operating decision maker, in deciding how to allocate resources and assessing performance.
The Group's chief aperating decision maker is the Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director. Pursuantto surrendering its
license. the main Business of the Company is investing and financing to the Subsidiaries and providing support services 1o the
Group Companies. The Company is in process of further reducing its existing investing and financing exposures to Companies
other than Subsidiaries. Further all activities are carried out within India.. Accordingly, Segment Reporting in accardance with
Ind Accounting Standard - 108 "Operating Segment” issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and adopted by
Companiestaccounting Standard) Rules, 201 5 isnot applicable to the Company,
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Note 43 : Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility:

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the company is not mandatonly required to spend on corporate social
responsibility (CSR) activities. However tha Company voulantarily made contribution of RsMil{March 31,2019 : Rs. 3.36 Lakhs)
towards C5R

Mote 44 ; Surrender of NBFC License

The Campany vide their letter dated August 20, 2018 had requested Reserve Bank of India (RBl} for canceliation of Centificate of
Registration as NBFC and accordingly has not carried out NBFC related activities during the year ended March 31, 2020

MNote 45 : COVID Impact

The outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic across the glabe and in India has contributed to a significant decline and volatility in the
global and Indian financial markets and slowdown in the ecanomic activities. The management of the Company have, based on
current avallable information, determined the carrying value of various financial assets after considering the patential macra
economicimpactand all available internal and external information uptothe date of approval of these financial statements

Mote 46 : Previous Years' Figures:

The financial statements have Baan prapared in accordance with the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
{Ind-A5) prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other recognised accounting practices and polices 1o
the extent applicable, The Company has adopted Ind-A% on April 01, 2019 with the transition date as April 01, 2018, and
adoption was carried ocut in sceardance with Ind-AS 101 - Firgt Time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards. The previous
period's figures have been regrouped or rearranged wherever necessary.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

S5d/- Sd/-
Kamal Poddar Ajay Kejriwal
Managing Director Director
(DIN-01518700) {DIN-03051841)

Sd/- Sd/-

Manoj Singhania Karishma Shah

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place - Mumbai Place : Mumbai

Date : August 04 2020 Date : August 04, 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To The Members of Choice Intemational Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
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at the

This is con
lodn impair

the mana

* Timely identification and classification of the impaired I
h alsg e anng the impact of recant
OVIDA1 2 regulatary eirculars
* Daetarrnining the probability of defaults based on histoncal
ergedit loss and astimation of lo vietn dedaults 1 on

value of colleverals and relevant factors

® |nputs and Judgementis used in determination
MR TSN Gy |"I|-'r,' &1 Variceu raet consideri
current wrtaln sconamic envimonmeant ar

HOWTHE KEY AUDIT MATTER WAS ADDRESSED IN THE AUDIT

1o identifi

buckets, key assumplions t plrpo
determination of mpairr nt pr complaten and
sccuracy of the data inputs used and manito f owerduoe

[elsi vl by Buiness anc Tir

leat check loans to examine the appr

Ehe recordedd am ati M (=TT W,

the statermant of accounms, [ndicatars of impairment,

expected crodit | provisitn ditional provisions made
on loans co g Nt uncertain  economic
arvironment  ansing  out o O 19 pandermic and
compliance with [dentification of and prowvisi g for ECI

@ s,

CHOMCE INTER TIQNAL LIMITED | ANNLUAL REPORT




Independeant Auditor's Report

»  Evaluation of management judgment, governance process
and review controls; and discussion on the process and
assumptions for identification of and provisioning far ECLon
loans with seniormanagemeant.

2. INVESTMENTS CARRIED AT FAIR VALUE (REFER NOTE & TO
THE COMSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS)

KEY AUDIT MATTER DESCRIFTION

The Group has Investments made in unguoted securities
aggregating to Rs,1,505.07 lakhs (net of provision for impairmant
R=3004akhs) as atMarch 31, 2020,

These investment are classified Lewvel Wil investment and the
valuation is based on a unobservable market inputs, The Group has
applied judgements in estimating the cash flows considering the
current uncamain aconamic anvirmnment with the ranae of possible
effects unknown to the Group arising out of the COVID 19
Pandemic. In view of the complesities and significant judgements
invalved we have considered the valuation of these investments asa
key auditmatter,

Howthe Key Audit Matter Was Addressed in the Audit
The prin¢iple audit procedures performed included following:

+ Tested the design and effectiveness of internal controls
implemented by the management in respect of valuation of the
investrments,

«  Apalyzed reasonableness of the determination of the
appropriste recovery rate and estimated cash flows.

*  Compared the management's assumption of discount rate,
cazh flow and comparable marketmultipleswith the supporting
evidence totest the reasonableness of assumptions used.

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
AUDITOR'S REFORTTHEREON

+  The Holding Campany's Board of Directors s responsible for
the prepamtion of other information. The other information
comprses the Directors’ Report including annexures to
Directars’ Repart, Management Discussion and Analyzis Report
and Reporton Corporate Governance, but does notinclude the
standalone financial statements and consolidated financial
staterments and our auditars' repart thereon, which s expected
toba made available to us after the date ofthis auditor's report.

*  Duropinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not and will not expross
any form of assurance conclusion therean,

* nconnection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statemants, our responsibility is te read the other information,
compare with the financial staternents of the jointly contrelled
operations, subsidiaries and associate audited by the other
auditors, to the extentit relates to these entities and, in doing sg,
place reliance on the work of the other auditors and consider
whether tha other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidatad financial statorments or our knowledge obtained
during the course of our sudit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstatad. Other information so far as it ralates to the
jointly controlled operations, subsidiaries and associate, s
traced from their financial statements audited by the other
auditors,

+  \When we read the Director's Report including annexures 1o
Diractor's report, Management Discussion and Analysis Report
and Report an Corporate Governance, if we conclude thatthere
is & material misstatement therein, we are required- to
communicate the matter to those charged with governance as
required under 54 720 'The Auditors responsibilities Relating
to Other Infarmation’

MANAGEMENT'S RESFOMSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINAMNCIALSTATEMENTS

Thie Helding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the
matters stated in section  134{5) of tha - Actwith respect to the
preparation of these cansolidated financial statementsthat give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position,
consolidated financial performance including other comprehensive
incame, consolidated cash flows and consolidated changes in
equity of the Greup including its associate in accordance with the
Ind AS and ather aceounting prineiples generally accepted in India
The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the
Group and of its associate are responsible for maintenance of
adeguate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and its associate
and for preventing and detecting frauds and othet imegularities;
selection and application of appropriste sccounting  policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, Implementation and maintenance of
adaquate intemal financial controls, that were operating affectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the actCourting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and tair view and are frea from material
isstatement, whether due to fraud or errar, which have been used
for the purpose of preparation of the conselidated financial
statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, asaforesaid.

In prepanng the consalidated financlal statements, the respective
Baoard of Directors of the companles included in the Groupand of its
associate are responsible for assessing the abllity of the respactive
entitias to continue 85 a going concern, disclosing, as applicabla,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting urless the respective Board of Directors  either
intands to liguidate their respective antities or to cesse operations,
ar has no realistic alternative butto do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companias included inthe
Group-and of it5 associate ane also responsible for oversesing the
financial reparting process of the Group and of its associate.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Cur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the ronsolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstaternent, whether due ta fraud orermar, and to issue an
auditors repartthatincludes ourapinion. Reasonableassuranceiza
high level of assurance, but is not 3 guarantes that an audit
conducted in accordance with 5S4z will always: detect a material
miisstatermant when it exists. Misstatermgnts can arize from fraud or
arror and ara considared matarial if, iTI-EH'l'iEI'LIEH:,' orinthe aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influsnce the economic
decisions of users taken an the basis of these consclidated financal
statements.

As part of an auditin accordance with SAs, we exgrcise professional
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judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
corsalidated financial statements, whether due 1o fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks; and obtain audit evidence that |5 sufficient and
appropriate to provide 3 basis for our ppinian, The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud s higher
than far one resulting from errar, as fraud may invalve collusion,
forgery, Intentioral omissions, rmisrepresentations, or the
averride of internal control,

*  Obtainan understanding of internal financial cantrol relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that ane
appropriate in the circumstanczes: Undersection 143(311) of the
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on
whether the Holding Company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the. reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclasures made by the management.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the
going concern basis of accounting ‘and, based on the audit
evidence obfained, whether a matenal uncerainty exists
related to events of canditions that may cast significant doubt
on the ability of the Group and its asseciate to continue as a
going concern, fwe conclide that a material uncertainty axists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements ar, if
such disciosures are inadeguate, to modify our gpinion. Qur
conclusions are based on the audit evidence oblained up to the
date of our auditer’s report However, futdre -events or
conditions may cause the Groupand its associate to ceass to
continueasa gain—g ConCar,

s Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and contant of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disciosures;
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in @ manner that
achievesTair presentation

*  Ohbtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial infarmation of the entities ar business activities within
the: Group and its associate to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We ara responsible for the
dirgction, supervision and performance of the audit of the
financial statements of such branches or antities or business
activities Included in the consolidated financial statemants of
which we are the independent auditors. For the other branches
or entities or business activities included in the conscliclated
financial statemerits, which have been audited by the other
suditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the
direction, supanvision and perfarmance af the audits carried out
by them, We ramain solely responsibile forour auditopinion.

Materiality is. the magnitude of misstatements in the
consalidated financial statements that, individually ar in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions ol a
reasonably knowledgeable user of the consolidated financial
statements may be influenced. We consider guantitative
materiality and qualitative factors in (1) planning the scopeof our
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audit work and in evaluating the results of aur wark; and (i) to
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements In the
consolidated fnancial statements,

Wa cammunicate with thosé charged with govemance of the
Holding Company and such other entities included in the
consolidated financial statements of which we are the
independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control thatwe identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant athical
requirements regarding independeance, and 10 communicata
with them all relationships and othier matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
whernaapplicable, related safeguards,

From the matters communicatéd with those charged with
governance, we detérmmine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidatedfinancial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key auditmatters. We
describe these matters in our auditar’s report unless law or
regulation precludas public disclogiure about the mattér or
when, in extremely rafe circumstancas, wa detarming that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse conseguences of dning 50 would reasnnabl}.' b
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
cornmunication.

OTHER MATTERS

(a} e did not audit the financial statements of a jointly controlled
operations included in the standalong financial statements of
the company included in the Group whose financial statements
reflect total sssets of s, 36,33 lakhs az at 31 sthMarch 2020 and
totsl ravenue of Rs: 193 lakhs for the year ended on that date, as
considerad in the respective standalone financial statements of
the cnrnpa.rlie; included in the Groug. The financial statements
of the jointly controlled operations have been audited by the
otherauditors whose reports have been furished to us, and our
opimgn in so far as it relates to the amounts and. disclosures
included in respect of the fointly controlled operations and our
raport interms of subsection | 3) of Section 143 of the Adt, in so
far as it relates to the aforezaid jointly controlled operations, 15
based solely on the report of such other auditors.

(b)) Wa did not audit the financial statements of sk subsidianies,
whose financial staterments reflect total assets of Fs. 2 437.72
lakhs as at 31stharch, 2020, total revenuesof Rs. 1,384 95 lakhs
and net cagh inflows amounting to Rs. 2246 lakhs for the year
ended on that date, as considared in the consolidated financial
staternents These francial statements have been audited by
other auditors whose reports have bean fumished to us by the
Managemant and our opinian on the consolidated financial
statements, insofar as trelates to the amournts and disclosures
included in respect of these subsidiaries, and our repar in terms
of subsection (3) of Section 143 of the Act, i sofar as itrelates to
the aforesaid subsidiaries is based solely on the reports of the
otherauditors.

B We did not audit the financial infermation of a subsidiarywhose
financial infarmation reflect total revenues of Rs, 0.54 lakhs for
the paricd 1stapl 200 91 2%th June 2019, as considerad in the
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consolidatad financial statements. The consolidated Tinancial
statements also include the Group's share of net profit of Rs. Mil
for the year ended 31st March, 2020, as considered in the
conszolidatad financial statements, in respect of an associate
whose financial information have not been audited by s, These
financial information are unaudited and have been fumished 1o
us by the Management and our opinion an the consolidated
financial staterments, in so far as it relates to the amounts and
disclosures included in respact of the subsidiary and associata,
is based solely on such unaudited financial information. In.our
opinion and according to the information and explanations
given o us by the Management, these financial information are
mot materialio the Group,

Cur opinion on the consolidated financial statements above and
our repert on Gther Legal and Regulatory Regquirements below, s
rot medified in respact of the above matters with respect to our
rliance an the wark done and the reponts of the other auditars and
the financial information certified by the Managemant.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGALAND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

1. Asrequired by Section 143{3)of the Act, based on our audit and
on the consideration of the reports of the other auditors on the
separate financial statements of the jointly controlled operations,
subsidiaries and associate referred to in the Other Matters
section above wa repart, to the extent applicable that:

a) We have sought and abiained all the informatian and
explanations which to the best of aur knowledge and befief
ware necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
consglidated financial statements.

b

Incur opinion, proper books of account as required by law
relafing to preparation of the afaresaid consolidated financial
statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books and the repons of the othor
auditors,

¢} The Conselidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated
Statermant of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, the Consolidated Cash Flow Staterment and the
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by
this Heport are in agreement with the relevant books of
account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the
congolidated financial statéments.

dl In our opinien, the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements comply with the Ind 4% specified under Section
133 cltheAct

B

On the basls of the written representations received from the
directors of the Holding Company as on 31stMarch, 2020
taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Company ancd
the meports of the statutory auditors: of ite subsidiary
companies and associate company incorporated in India,
none of the directors of the Group companies and its
associate company incorporatad in India is disqualified as an
IstMarch, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms
of Section 164 (2} of the Act,

f) wWith respect to the adequacy of the intermal financial cantrals
over financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of
such . controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure
A'which 15 based on the auditors’ reports of the Holding

company, subsidiary companies and associate company
incorporated in India to whoem internal financial controls over
financial reporting is applicable. Our repon expresses an
unmodified opinion an the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of internal financial controls over firancial
repoting of those companies

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the
Auditor's Report in accordance with the reguirements of
section 197(16) of the Act, as amendod, in our opinion and to
thie best of aur infarmation and according to the explanations
given to us, the remuneration paid by the Halding Company
to its directors during the year is in accordance with the
provisionsof section 197 of the Act.

h

=

With respect to the other matters to be included in the
Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies
tAaudit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion
and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given tous:

il The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of
pending litigations as at the year-end on the consclidated
financlal position of the Groupand its associate,

il} The Group and its associate did not have any material
foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including
derivativa contracts asatthe year-and,

i} Therewere noamounts which were required to be transferred
tathe Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Halding
Company, and its subsidiary companies and associate
campany incorparated m India.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Charered Accountarts
(Firm's Reglstration Mo, 117 366M0W-100078)

Sdf-

G.K Subramaniam

{Partner]

(Membership No, 109837)
LIDIMN: 20107837 AAAADMNATEZ

Place; Mumbai
Date: 41h Auwgust, 2020
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ANNEXURE “A" TOTHE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REFORT

{Referred to in paragraph 1{f} under ‘Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements’ section of curreport of even date)

Repaort on the Internal Financlal Contrals Over Financial Reparting
undar Clause (i} of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 {"the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the Choice International Limited (hersinafter referred
to as "the Holding Company”™) as of and far the year ended 3¥st
March, 2020, we have audited the intermal financial contrals aver
financial reporting of the Holding Company, its subsidiary
companies and its associate company, which are companies
incorporated in India to whom internal financial controlz ower
financial reporting isapplicable, as of thatdats.

MAMNAGEMENT'S RESPOMSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL FINAMCLAL
CONTROLS

The respective Board of Directors of the Helding company, its
subsidiary companes and associate company, which are
companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing
and maintaiming internal financial controls based on the internal
control ovar ?inariciar reporting - criteria established by the
respective Companies considering the essantial companents of
imernal contral stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Interpal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reperting {the "Guidance Note")
issued by the Institute of Chartered. Accountants of India, These
responsibilities Include the design, (mplementation and
maintenance of adeguate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ansuring the arderly and efficlant conduct
of its business, including adharance ta the respective company's
policies, the safequarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and -errars, the aceuracy and completaness of the
accounting records, and the timely pre paration of reliable financial
information, as required undar the Companies Act, 2013

AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITY

Qur responsibility 15 to exprass an opinion on the Internal financial
controls over financial reporting of the Holding Company, its
subsidiary companigs and associate company which are companies
incorporatéd in India, based on our audit, We conducted our audit
in accordance with the Guidance Nate issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing,
prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2073, 1o
thie extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, Those
Standards and the Guidance Mote reguire that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and parform the audit to sbtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate intemnal financial
controls aver financial reporting was established and maintained

andif such controls aperated effectively inall material respects,

Clur audit involves pedorming procedures to obtaim audit evidence
about the adequacy of the intemal financial controls system over
financial reporting and their operating effectiveness, Qur audit of
intemal financial controls over financial reporing included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a matarial weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, The
procedures selected depend on the avditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstaterment of the financial
statemnents, whether duetofraud or error,

W brelieve that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit
evidence abtained by the other avditers of the subsidiary
companias and associate company which are companies
incorporated in India, in terms of thelr reporns referred to in tha
Oither Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinicn an the Intermal financial
contrals system aver financial reponting of the Halding Campany, its
subsidiany companiss and asseciate company which are companies
incorporated in India and where such reparting under Section
1433 ef the Act is applicable.

MEAMING OF INTERMAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING

A company's internal financial contrel over financial reporting is &

Independent Auditor's Report

praocess designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
refiability of ftinancial reparting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purpeses in accordance with genarally
accepted a-smunting principles. A company's intermal financial
contral over financial reporting Includes those pelicies and
procedures that {1} penain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accu mteif and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2] provide reasonabls
assurance thal transactions are recorded as necassary 1o permit
preparation of financial statements in aceordance with generally
acceﬁted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures
of the company are being made only in sccordance with
authansations of managament and directors of the company; and
(3] provide reazonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
stataments,

INHEREMT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS
OVER FINANCIALREFORTING

Because of the inherant limitations of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, including the possibilty of coliusion or improper
managemernt override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may ccour and not be detected, Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial
raporting to future perods are subjact to the risk that the interral
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequats
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
withthe policies or procedures may detariorate

OPINION

In our opinicn, to the best of sur infermation and accarding to the
explanations given to us and based an the consideration of the
repons of the other auditors referred to in the Other Matters
paragraph bielow, the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies
and its associate company which are comparies incorporated in
India, and where such reporting under Section 143(3) sz applicable,
have, inall material respects, an adequate internal financial controis
systarm aver financial reponting and such internal financial controls
over financial reparting were ogerating effectively as at 31stMarch,
2020, based an the criteria for internal fnancial control owver
financial reporting established by the respective companies
considering the ezsential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Intarmal Financial Contrals Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Acoourtants of India:
OTHER MATTERS
Cur aforssaid raport undar Saction 143(3)1) of the Act an the
adequacy and operating effectveness of the internal financial
controls overfinancial reporting insofar as it relates to sik subsidiary
companies, which are companies incorporated in India, and whers
such reparting under Section 143(3) s applicable, is based solaly on
the corresponding reports of the -auditors of such companies
incorparated in ndia,
& jointly contralled operation of the subsidiary company which is
nata Company ircorporated inIndie, towhom repanting an internal
timancial contrals system over financral reporting i= not applicable
and hence no reporting under the internal financial controls system
overfinancial reporing has been made.
Reporting on internal financial controls systam  over financial
reparting with resped to an associste company 15 not applicable
and hence no reparting under the internal financial controls system
overfinancial reporting has beenmade.
Ouiropinionis notmodified inrespect of the above matters,

Far DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP

Chartered &ccountants

{Firm's Regstration Mo. 11 7366W - 100018)
Ld/-
G.K Subramaniarti
{Fartnar)
{Membership Mo, T09839)
LD 20109837 4A8A0MNB952
Place: Mumbai

Drate: dthAugust, 2020
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E SHEET

sperty, Flamt and Equipr

() Ir tment Propery
1} Goodwll
(di Crther Ir|r,1.r':€ e
(o) Intangible As Un Development
i Financial Asse

(i} Investments

fia] Loans

Lini} Chther Financial Assets
(9} Income Tax Assets
(h) Deferred Tax Assets

ther Non-Current As

Goodwill on Cansolidation

Current Assets;
| thb) Financial Assets
. {1} Trade Recelvables
(i) Cash and Cash Equivalants
(i) Bank balances other than abo
(v} Loans
[v) Other Financial Assets
[c] Othar Current Assets
Total Assets
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Liabiiities
Non Current Liabilities

{al Fimancial Lighslitios

{i} Bourr

(i} Other Finas

3,733
1,344.98
11,779.B3
2 054,94
54000

50.280.48

38096

185
78704

219.01

Consolidated Financial Stateme

{Rs. in Lakhs )

As at

Aprl 01, 2018

6.007.78

3
ra 50

.06
295

2,000.48
15,353.24

17.353.72

175.48
238.25

219,44
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Charered Accountants

CHOICE INTERNATIONAL LIMITED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

BALANCE SHEET {Rs.in Lakhs ) FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 {Rs.in Lakhs |
Particulars Farticulars

| Current Liabilities | Revenue from Dperations ER 12,695.73 11.460.30 |
| (o} Financial Liabilities ' Total Revenue from Operations 12,695.73 11,660.30 |
I {ii Trade Payables — - _ o |
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and | Other Income 3z 539.B8 470.91 |
small enterprises 4.9 &.14 A, 8é !
;Tmal outstanding dues of creditors other than ! Total Income _13’23L _12'& I
micro ertterprises and small entarprises 26 717:88 915.26 979.32 LW Expanses !
I . : Operating Expenses 33 2,696 58 218255 |
kbl o Ll el AR Employee Berefits Expense g 374676 PRI I
fil) Othar Flr'l-:mmal Liabilities 28 ¥1.39 7294 208.55 FiAa e ot ) g 1 .?2;::’.?1’;1 2..11.34.5.3 |
[ I:h:I _Clthur Current Lmbl lities 29 1 E,_S?S._H? 1 1..:46-1.4& 6__5&1 30 . | Dep reciationand Amortization Expense Tk T 34554 T HTAET |
| (c) Provisions 30 140.89 77.55 273.60 | Other Expenses a7 1,897.20 1,980.64 |
’ | Total Expenses B 1141524 1090529 |
| Total Liabilities 28,960.14 30,042.58 26,473.10 (1l Profit/ [loss) before excaptional items and tax i I} 1,820.35 122592 .
B it a T bt L AR B o i el { v Exuprtin-nitiltams I
: 'V Profit/{loss) before tax (V) 1,820.36 1,225.92 i
| Total Lisbilities and Equities 3028048 472veA0 i VI Tax Expense: i
Summary of Significant Accounting Folicies 1-2 | Current Tax A4B0.50 14806 |
The notes referred to above are an integral part of the Conzolidated financial statements | Earlier Years Tax Expense (18.30] {102.85) |
) ) Deferred Tax 115.08 29984 |
This is the Balance Sheet raferred ta in our report of the aven data. Vil Total Tax Expense 577.26 345.07 i
Will Profit for the year from continuing operations (V-Vil) 1,243.11 BBO.85 i
X Share of Profit from Associates E (1241) |
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLF For and on behalf of Board of Diractars Lns: on Dnspus-al of Assaciati Z 279.05 H
|

'ﬁamm of Profit from Associates 14,2431 585.39

Mama | E:r = :’:ﬁr o Items that will not | be rEtlEES.H’iEd i~ prnfrt or foss |
anaging Director rector — e e {
" i fi fi A
\DIN-D1518700) | DIN-03051841) Re- measuren Fnr gams :Iosses}l on defined benefit ab igations 13z EB E:Z |
Fair Valuation Galn/ {Loss) on Investmant 'If:-? 20 (, 397, DD] |
Tax Eﬁect on above ME’ 1?] - 3.‘.’.6"?1. ; i
Sdi- . Other Cnmpreherrslve Income/ {Ll:ms!l furthe - year, net uftax 134.60 {1,011.47) i
G. K. Subramaniam X Total C-umprahﬂnilw Income for the fear {IX+X)
Paricey St S~ {Comprising Profit/ (Loss) and Other Comprehensive
Manaj Singhania Karishma Shah =
i) 2 Incomae for the year) 1.3772.71 (422.08) |
Chief Financial Officer Campany Socratary i |
KII Earnings Per !Ei:|ult3|I Shnre [Face- Value Rs 10 Per Ehare] 38 [
| Basic [Rs)) ] 1243 B.80 i
Place : Murmbal Place : Mumbiai Place : Mumbal [ Diluted (R=:) 1243 a80 [
Crate ; August 04, 2020 Date : August 04, 2020 Diate : August 04, 2020 S-Ll.ll'l"-li:l'l;_i;.ﬂf Significant Aceounting Palicies 1.2 T

The Motes refarred are an integral part of these consalidated financial statemeants.

This is the Staterment of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of the even data.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Charterad Accountants Sd/- Sd/-
Kamal Poddar Ajay Kejriwal
Managing Director Director
[CHM-0151 8700} {DiM-03051841)
Sl
G. K. Subramaniam
Partner Sdf- sd/-
Manoj Singhania Karishma Shah
Chief Financial Officer Company Secratary
Placa : Mumbai Place : Mumbay Place : Mumba
Date ; August 04, 2020 Date : August 04, 2020 Date - August 04, 2020
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

Particulars

March 31, 202

(Fs.in Lakhs )

the year ended For the

0 March 3

Particulars

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

Consolidated Financial Statements

(Rs.in Lakhs )

| A, Cash Flow from Qperating Activities Sale of Investment in Associate Company 1,.488.21 |
| Net profit before tax 1,820.36 1,225.92 \Movement in Other Bank Balance (303.26) 2.710.15 |
Mjuﬂmm :Ir'-terest Received 492.30 38804 |
| Depreciation and amortisation 34554 316.69 Dividend Recejved - 10.38 |
{ Fmam:e costs 1,729.76 203453 |Net Cash used in Investing Activities (B) 1,258.64 5 dﬂE BE |
| Interest Income (492,30} {388.04) ' C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities I ]
, | Balance written off -:I.'.I.-4_5‘.l [.11}.3.'5] \Proceeds from Share Appllcatlon Moy 252450 [
{ .ﬂxlluwanm -::-r credlt Ioss 52‘2& 2?51 Iﬁepa_',rment of Current and Mon Current Borrowings (2,302.81) (812,57} |
Fanr Value Gain on Investment 11711.54) (2,339.88) Finance costs (1,729.74) (2:034.53) [
| [Galn} foss an sale of Assets 2:27 [{J -El'?] Nlt Ca;h from Hnandng Activities {C} (1,508.07) {2,34?.'&} I
l | Provision f far Standard loan assets, Bad & Doubtful Debts, Bad debts written off | 1677 ‘? l33 | Net cash Increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivaflaﬂts (A+B+C) _W _{m}_ |
Dwrdend Income - i’l'l}.EIE-] {Cash and cash equwalanls at i;'l;-IEII'IﬂIﬂ[J of the yaar 1.361.37 2.42??20 _|
iGaln:u’ Loss on sale of Investment 134.51 3245 {Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the yoar 3733.23 1,361.37
I-ﬁ;m_ra-til-'l!-; profit before working capital changes 3,597.16 896.78 ' Net cash Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalent 237186  (1,067.83) |
Mn'.nements in assets and lizbilities : .No‘ta:
[ Decreas.e.-'{lnc:_'ga_sf_:l in $Ecu rities h-eld Tar__t[aff_: "Uén "32 [1 653 *ﬂl"] The notes referred to above are an integral part of the financial staternenis
Decreasﬁu’{tnuease:I in Trade rEfewahles (2 3?8 1 T:l 5 028,60 This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of the even date.
1ru:rease.n' [Decrease} in Trads Payables [1 '?E.E.'Ii:l [&Z.FB]
Increase / [Decrease) in Other Mon-Current Financial Liabilities (30.00)
Increase .-‘ fﬂecreas.e] in h'.:.].;her Nl:m Current LIabIlIt[ES n!EIdS:l 'H}E:EE .
:.1r|v:rea.5|=_- .Ir [ﬂecrease] in Cl'ther Cu rrent Flna m:ral anl:nhtles 13 45 [435.41) For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors
I oA Chartared Accountants
i Increase { [Decrease) in Dther Currem Llabllrhes o 1I:I"5' 43 492315 el Sel/-
; Decraase."{increase] in Other Non Current Financial Assets 47.54 [255:97) Kamal Paddar Ajay Kejriwal
| Decreasedincrease) in Other Mon Current Assets 255 58.89 Managing Director Director
;_D-acrﬂaser'{Fncrea:ielli'l_[:;lher Current Financial Assets 3.4019’9 1"1.?_6_5.-.5_'?] S (DIN-01518700) (DIN-03051841)
| Dacreaseincreasa) in Other Current Assels 18&.24 {117.07) G Eubiramaniam
Incréase / [Decrease) in Long Term Provisions 243 47 64 Partner &d/- Sd/-
| Increase / [Decrease) in Current Provisions 751 T"ETDB Mangj Singhania Karishma Shak
- : Chief Financial Officer Company Secratary
Decmase#tmreamj In Financial assets - loans |:3 343 52:| {147 36}
c""h Gerietaten F”’"'” Operations B 95 13,308, 22’ t: f?ﬁ;.ffﬁ, 2020 ;!:;E::::;r:? [;4, 2020 Pr::.:::::::;r:;a[;d, 2020
1nccme taxes pa1d [3?2 éf:] -.3‘!45 34
Net cash flow from operating actvties (A) 26029 _ 42z
B. Cash F.I.::lllv.I fl.'.nm Investing Activities
E Purchase or canstruction of Fived Assets {inchading capital
wn-rk in-progress and r.apltal advanres] (BB.18) "l 08, -li!::l
.l!'u::q uisitian of Tangable Assets th n:rugh Eusmpas Cnmhlnatsnn ; { 335 (}ﬂ:l
| Pmceeds from Sale of Fixed Aszets 1,011.94 63.22
F'urrJ1a59 of rntanglhle .-"-"|55E'1‘.'5 1155.28) {1,335.85)
Acqms:-tiun of Intangibie Assets through Business Combination - 48640 'I:I
| Proceeds from disposal of Intangible Azsets - 41301
; (Purchase} / Sale of Investment acaa 4,124.22
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

A : Equity Share Capital (Equity shares of Rs 10 each lssued, subseribed and fully paid}

=
on
L]

MNumbers of Shares Amount

(in lakhs) [Ks. In lakhs)

Particulars

Balance as at the April 1, 2018 Z,000.48
Changes n equity share capital during the year 2078-201%

Balance as at March 31, 2019 2.000.48
Ch

} e shana capital during the year L0 2.2020
nce at the March 30, 2020 ' 2,000.48

B : Other Equity {Rs. in Lakhs )

8.70 6,392.17 417022 397259 BA9.9B 1577531

58%.3% 587.39
(1.091.47]

(39.54)

h 31, 2019 : ’ 6,392.17 4,170.22 4.522.44 {(141.48) 15353.24
v income for the yaar ) ]
1.243.11 1,243,111
134,60 134.60
2690 - [26,90)
2,524.50

Hd.41 6441

Balance as at March 31, 2020 2,524.50 41857 639217 417022 5,803.06 (6.88) 19,319.86

The notes refarred to above are an II'ITF!'I'.]I.'.| part of the consalldated financial statements

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP For and an behalf of Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants
Seld S5d/
Kamal Poddar Ajay Kejriwal
Managing Director Director
(EIN-GT518700) (DIN-03051841)

Sdi-

G. K. Subramaniam

Partner Sd/- Sd/-

Karishmas Shah

Company Secretary

ca : Mumba
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR
THEYEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

Choice International Limited {hereinafter referred to as "the Holding
Company™) is.a public limited company domiciled in India and
incorporated undar the provisions of the Companies Act 1956, The
registered office of the Company is located at Shree Shakambhari
Corparate Park, 156-158 Chakravorty Ashok Society, 1B MNagar,
Ancheri (E) Mumbai - 400099, Maharashtra, India.

The Holding Company's shares are listed on the Bombay Stock
Exchange (BSE).

The Holding Company along with its subsidiaries (collectively
referred 1o 85 “the Group™) and an associate is an integrated and
diversified financial services group. They provides services like
Broking & Distribution, Investment Banking, Financizl services to
Business Adwvisary, REQUIE-IIDF"J Compliances to Government
authonties B other corporate entities; Retall Loan distribution,
Mutual Fund distribution, technical services and other ancillary
SErYICas:

2. SIGMIFICANTACCOUNTING POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies
adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements. These accounting policies have been consistently
appled to all the years presented by the Group unless otherwise
stated.

A. Basisof Preparation
i Statement of Compliance

The eonsolidated financal staterments of the Group have bean
prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards [Tnd
AS') notified under Section 133 of the Companies dct, 2013 ( ‘the
fct’) read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 as amended from time totime 2nd other relevant provisions of
the Act,

The Group has adopted Ind ASfram 15t April 2019 and the finaneial
statements for the year ended 315t March 2020 are the Group's first
Ind AS Financial Statements, However, the effective date of
transition o Ind A5 is 15t Apil 2018, being the beginning of the
earliest pariod for which the Group needs to present comparative
information,

The transition to Ind A% has been carried out fram the erstwhile
Accounting Standards notified under the Act, read with relevant
rules ssued thersunder, guidelines issued by the REl and other
genarally sceapted accounting principles In India (eollectively
rafarred to as ‘the Previous GAAP'). The impact of transition. has
bean meorded in the opening reserves as at 15t April 2018 and is
provided fn Note 46, The coresponding comparative previous
parind a5 presented inothese financial statements have been
restated/reclassified in order to conform to current year
presentation,

The adoption of ind A5 has been carried out in accordance with Ind
A5 107 First time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards, An
axplanation of how the fransition to Ind AS has affected the
previously reported financial pesition, financial perfermance and
cash flows of the Group s provided in Note 3and 4,

The accounting policies are applied consistertly 1o all the periods
presentad in the financial statements, including the preparation of
the opening Ind A% Batance Sheot as at 1st April 2018 being the
‘date of transition 1o Ind 45"

ii. Functional And Presentation Current.

The Group’s presentation and functonal currency is indian Rupeses:
Allfigures appearing in the consolidated financial statements are in
Indian rupees in lakh rounded off to two decimal places as
permitted by Schedule lito the Act. Per share data are prasented in
Indhian Rupeetotwodecimal places,

iii. Basis of Measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
historical cost basis except for certain financial assets and liabilities
are measured at fair value as explained in the accounting policy.
Historcal cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services. Further
aszets and liabilities are classified as per the normal opearating cycle
(determined as 12 months)

iv. Preparationof Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Campany has sunmendened its MBFC license therefore
as per tha format prescribed under Division || of Schedule 1 to the
Companies Act, 2013, the holding company presents the Balance
sheet, the statement of Profit and Loss and the Statement of
Changes in Equity,

. Principle Of Consalidation And Equity Accounting
Subsidiaries-

The consalidated financial statemants have comprised financial
statements af the Company and its subsidianies, subsidiaries are all
antities (including structured entities) aver which the Group has
control, The Group controls anentity when the Group is exposed 1o,
of has rights to, variable returns from its invelvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power to direct
the relevant activities of the entity, Subsidiaries are fully
consclidated from the date on which cantrol 15 transferred 1o the
Group. They are deconsclidated from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of sccounting as used 1o account. for
business combinations by the Group,

The Group combines the fimancial statements of the Holding
Company and its subsidianies line by line adding together like items
of assets, liabilities, eguity, iIncome and sxpenses. Intercompany
transactions, balances and unrealized galns on transactions within
the Group are eliminated. Unrealized losses are also eliminated
uriless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
transferred asset Accounting policie: of subsidiaries have bean
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group

Non-controlling interests in the resufts and equity of subsidiaries are
shown separataly in the consalidated statement of profit or loss,
consolidated statement of changes In eguity and balance shest
respactivaly. Statement of Protit and Loss Including Other
Comprehensive Income [OCH s attributable to the equity holders of
the Holding Company and to the non-controlling interest basis the
respective ownarship interest and such balance is attributed evern if
thisresults in controlling interestis having a deficit balance

157 f CHOICE INTERNATIONAL LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Associates-

Asspciates are all antities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control or joint contral. This is generally the case
where the Group holds benween 200 and 50% of the voting rights
Investments in associates are accounted for wsing the equity
method of accounting {see (i) below) after initially being
recognized at cost.

Equity Method-

Under the equity method of accounting, the inwestimants are initially
recogrized at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognize the Groug's
share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investes in prafit
or lass, and the Group's share of other comprehensive income of the
investes in other comprehensive income, Dividends received or
receivable from associates and joint ventures are recognized as a
reductioninthe carrving amount of the investmant.

When the Group's share of losses in an equity-accourted
investment equals or exceads its interast in the entity, Incheding any
other unsecured longtevm receivables, the Group doss not
racognize further losses, unless it has incurred obligations ar made
payrments on behalf of the otherentity

Unrealized gains on transactions betwean the Group and its
associates and joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the
Group's interest in these entities, Unrealzed losses are also
aliminated wunless the transaction provides evidence of an
impalrment of the asset transfared, Accounting policies of squity
accounted investee:s have been changed where necessary to
ansire consistency with the policies adopted by the Groug.

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-contrel ling interests that do
not result in a loss of contral as transactions with equity owners of
the Group. A change in ownership interest results in an adjustment
between the carrying amounts of the controlling and non-
controlling interests to reflect their relative interests [n the
subsidiary. Any differance between the amount of the adjustment to
non-controlling interests and any consideration pad or received is
recoghized withineguity.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity account far an
investment because of a loss of contral, joint control or significant
influence, any retained imterest in the ertity is re-measurad to its fair
value with the change in carrying amount recognized in profit or
loss. This fair value becomes the initial carrying -amount for the
purposes of subsequently accounting Tér the retained interest 4d an
associate, joint venture or financal asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recagnized in other comprebensive income in respect of
that entity are aceourted for asif the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts
previgusly recognized in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profitor loss.

It the ownership Interest in an aszociate s reduced but joint contral
or significant influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the
amounts previousty recognized in other comprehansve incarme ara
reclasstfied 1o profitor loss where appropriate.

wi, Fairvalue measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received on sale of an assetor
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants &t the measurement date in the principal ar, in'its

Conaclidated Financial Statements

atisence, the most advantageous market 1o which the Group has
actess a1 that date,

The best estimate of the fair value of a financial instrument on initial
recognition is normally the transaction price: I the Group
determines that the fair value on initial recognition differs from the
transaction price and the fair value is evidenced neither by a quoted
price in an active market for an identical asset or lability nor based
on & valuation technigue that uses only data from ohzardable
rrarkets, than the financal instrument is inltially meassred at fair
vilue, adjusted to defer the diference between the falr value on
initial. recognition and the transaction price. Subsequently that
difference is recognised in Staterent of Profit and Loss on an
appropriate basis over the life of the instrument but no later than
when the valuation is whaoily suppored by observable marker data
orthetransaction is closed out,

All assets and liabilities for which fair valus is measured ordisclosed
in the consolidated financial statements are categorised within the
fair value higrarchy, described as follows, based an the lowest level
inputthatis significant tathe far value measurement as a whole:

s Lovel 1 - Valuation using quoted market price in active markets:
The fair value forfinancial instrurments traded in active markets atthe
reporting date s based on their quoted market price, without any
deduction for transaction costs. A market is regarded as active, if
transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient
fraquancy and wolume to provide pricing infermation on an
ongoing basls.

* Level 2 - Valuation using observable inputs: If there Is no quated
price in an ackive market, then the Company uses wvaluation
technigques that maximise the use of relevant obsarvable inputs and
minimisa the use of unobservable inputs, The chosen valuation
technigue incorporates most of the factors that market participants
would take into account in pricing a transaction,

= Level 3 - Valuation with significant unobservable inputs: The
valuation technigues are used only when fair value cannct be
determined by using cbservable inputs. The Company regularky
reviews signiticant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments.
Levei 3 aszets are typicaily very illiquid, and fair values can only be
calculated using estimates.

The Group uses valuation tachniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant obasrvable inputs and
minimisingthe use of unobservable inputs

vil. Useofjudgmentand Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires
the management to make judgments, 2stimates and assumptions in
the application of accounting policies that aflects the reported
amount of assets, liabilities and the accompanying disclosures
along with eontingent liabilities as at the date of consalidated
financlal staterments and revenue & expenses tor the reporing
period. Although these estimates ara based on the management’s
best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about
thase assumptions and estimates could result in gutcomes different
from the estimatas. Difference betweean actual results and estimates
are recognised n tha year in which the results are known or
materfalise Le. prospectively.

Estimates and judgermernts are cortinually evaluated and are based
om historcal expedence and other factors, including expectations of
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future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circurnstances, The key areas involving estimation uncertainty,
higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions are significant to the consolidated financial statements
include:

il Impairment offinancial assets

i} Estimation of fair value measurement of financial assets and
liabilities

iir]  Effactve interest rate

iv] Business model assessment

v} Prowvisionsand Contingencies

vil Usefullife and expacted residual value of assets

vil) Taw pesition for current tax and recognition of deferred tax

assets/liabllites

viii) Measurement of Defined Benefit Obligations and actuarial

assumptions

i) Classihcation of leaseand related discount rate.

Further an entity is consolidated as a subsidiary if tha Company has
contral aver the said entity based an the managemant eval uation of
investrents and related agreements’ deeds and determineg that the
Group has contral over the said entity in terms of Ind AS5-110 an
Consolidated Financial Statements. Control shallinclude the nghtio
appoint majority of the directors or to contral the management or
policy decisions exercisable by a persom or persons acting
individually or in concert, directly or indirectly, including by virtue of
their shareholding ‘or management rightz or share halders'
agreaments or voting agreemaents or in any other manner.

wiii. First-time adoption of nd AS - mandatory exceptions and
optional exemptions

Owverall Principle:

The Group has prepared the opening Balance Sheet as per ind AS as
of st April 2018 ("the transition date”) by recognising all assets and
liabilities whaose recognition is required by Ind AS, not recognising
itemns of assets or liabilities which are net permitted by Ind A%, by
rE-cIHSEif'ylng items from Previous GAAP to Ind AS as required under
Ind AS, and applying Ind AS 0 measuremant of recognised assets
and liabilities. Howewer, this principle s subject ta certain
exceptions and certain optional exe mptions avalled by the Group as
mantioned below:

Deemed cost for propery, plant and equipment and intangible
assals-

The Group has elected ta measure property, plant and equlpmert,
and intangible assets at its Previous GAAP carrying amount and use
that Previcus GAAP carrying amount as its deemed cost at the date
oftransition to IND A5 Le 01 stApril 207 8.

B. Summary of significant accounting policies
1. Current versus non-current classification

The Group presents assets.and Habilities in the balance sheet based
oncurrent fnon-current classification,

Anassetis treated as current when it is:

* Expected to be realized or intended to ba sold ar consumed in
narmal operating cycle.

s Held primartly forthe purpase of trading

*  Eupected toba realized within twelve months after the reparting
date, or

* Cashorcash equivalent unless restricted from heing exchanged
or used to settle 3 fability for at [east twelve months afier the

raparling period
All other assets are classified as non-current.

Aliability is currentwhan:

*  |tisexpected to be settled in normal operating cycle

* |tis due to be settled within twalve months after the reporting
period, or

*  There is no unconditional right to defer the settlemant of the
liability tor at least twelve manths after the reporting period

All atherliabilities are classified as non-current.

Defarred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-currant assets
and liahilities.

Based on the nature of products and services offered by the Group,
apearating cycle determined is 12 manths for the purpose of current
and nan-current classification of assets and liahilities:

Thie sperating eyele is the time Between the acquisition of assets for
processing and theirrealisation in cash and cash equivalents:

2. Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
ar receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated customer returms,
rebates and aother similarallowances.

Sale of services

The Group recogrizes ravenue on accrual basis when the significant
terms of the arrangement are enforceable, services have been
delivarad and the collectability is reasonabiy assured, The method
af recognizing the revenues and costs depands on the nature of the
services rendered, Revenue is recognized when no significant
uncertainty exists asto its realization orcollaction,

Imterest income

Interest income from financial assets s recognized when it is
probable that economic bensfits will fiow to the Group and the
ameunt of income can be measured reliably. Interest incame 15
accrued on a time basis, by reference to the prineipal outstanding
and at the effactive interest rate applicable, which i5 the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expacted life of the financial assets to that asset's net carmying
amaunt on initial recognitian,

Income from sale of investment

Gains or |osses on the sale of investments are recognised N
Statement of prﬂ'ﬁl and loss an trade date basis as the differenca
betwaan fair value of the consideration received and carrying
ammountal the investmaent securites,

Dividend Income

Dividend ncome from investmemnis & recognised when the
shareholder's right to receive payment has been established
[provided that it is probable that the econamic benefits will flow to
the Group and the amount ot income can be measurad raliably).

Brokerage Income

Brokerage income in relation 1o'stock broking activity is recognised
on trade date basis,

3. Property, Flantand Eguipment

Land and buildings held for use in the preduction or supply of
goods orservices, or for administrative purposes, are stated in the
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balance sheet alt cost less accumulated depreciation and
sccurnulated impairment losses, Freehold land is not depreciated.

Allitems of propery, plant and equipment ane initially recorded at
cost. Such cost includes the cost of replaced pam af the property,
plant and equipment -and borrowing costs that are  directly
attributable to the acguisition, construction or preduction of a
gualifying property, plant and egquipment. The cast of an item of
property, plant and equipmient s recognized a= an asset i and only
if, it is probable that future economic benefits assocated with the
itarn will flow to the group and the costof the item can be measured
reliably

Froperties in the course of construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, fess any recognized
impalment loss. Cost includes professional fees and, for gualifying
assets, borrowing costs capitalized in accordance with the Group's
accounting policy. Such properties are classified 1o the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and
ready for intended use. Dapreciation of these assets, on tha sama
basis as other propey assets, commences when the assets ane
ready for theirintended use,

Subsequent to recognition, property, plant and eguipment
{excluding freehold land} are measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and actumulated impairment lnsses. When significant
parts of property, plant and equipmant are required to be replaced
inintervals, the group recognizes such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depraciation respectively, Likewlse, when a
major inspection is perfarmed, ts cost is recognized in the carrying
amount of the plant and equipment as & replacement cost only if the
recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance
costsare reCognized in the Statement of Profit and Less as incurred,

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated owar their
expacted useful lives on the same basis as owned assets. Howsver,
when thare s no reasonable cerainty that ownership will be
chtained by the end of the leasa term, assets are depreciated over
the shorter of the lease term and useful lives.

Depraciation is recognised 50 as to write off the cost of azzets (ess
their residual values overthe useful lives as prescribed in Schedule ||
of to the Companies Act, 2013, using the straight- line mathod
{"SLM"), Residual value |s considered nil case of Computers, Servar
and netwark and 5% is considered in case ol othar assats.

Description of Asset

Buildings &0 Years
Computers and Frinters, including Computer

Peripherals 3 Years
Ciffice Equipments 3 Years
Furmniture & Fixtures 10 Years
Motor Vehicles (Motor Car} B Years
Motar Vehicle (Motar Cycle) 10 Years

Solke Pt e

Electric Installation 10 Years
Server & Metwork # Years
Water Pumps and Borowall 5 Years

The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed
for impairment whan events or changes in circumstances indicate
thatthe carrying value may not be recoveralla.

Consolidated Financial Statements

The residual values, useful life and depreciation method are
reviewed at each financial year-end to ensure that the amaount,
method and percd of depreciation are consistent with previous
astimates and the expocted pattern of consumption of the future
economic benefits embaodied in the ems of property, plant and
equipment.

Anitern of propery, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
dispesal or when nefuture ecanomic benefits are expectad to arise
fram the continuad use of the asset. Any gain or foss arising on
disposal or retirement of an iterm of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between sale proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset andis recognised in profitor loss.

Transitionto lnd A5

Oin transition to Ind A%, the Group hias elected to continue with the
cafrying value of ali of its property, plant and equipment recognised
as at Aprl 01, 2018 measured as per the previous GAAP as the
deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment,

&, |rwestiremt Propoitisg

Invastment properies are properties that is held for fong-term
rentals yields ar for capital appreciation {including property under
construction for such purpases) or both, and that is not occupied by
the Group, is classified as investment property. |Investment
properties are measured initially st cost, incloding transaction costs,
Subsequent tomitral recognition, investment properties are stated
at cost bess aceumulated impairmant loss, if any, Though the Graup
measures investment property using cost based measurement, the
fair value of investment propeny is disclosed inthe notes: Fair values
are determined based on an annual evaluation perdformed by an
accradited extemnal independant valuer Investment propertias are
derecognised either when they have been disposed of ar when they
are parmanently withdrawn from use and no futire economic
benefit is expectad from their disposal. The difference betweanthe
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset s
recognised in profitorlass inthe period of derecognition.

The Group has elected to continue with the canying value for all of
its investment property as recognised in its Indian  GAAP
consalidated financial statements as deamed cost at the transition
date, viz, April 01,2018

5.  Imangible Assets

Intangible aszet inciuding intangible assets under developmant are
stated at cost, net of accumulated: amortsation and accurmulatad
impairment losses, f any. Intangible assets actuired separately are
measured oninktial recognition at cost, The amontization period and
the amonisation method are reviewed at the and of each financial
year, The useful lives of intangibile assets are assessed as either finite
arindefinite. Intangible assets withfinite lives are amortised overthe
useful economictife and assessedfor impairment whanever there s
an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amortisation pertod and the amortisation method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful Iife are reviewed at least at the end of each
reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the
axpected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits
ambodied in the asset are considered to modify the amantisation
period or method, as appropriste, and ame reated as changes in
accounting - esfimdtes. The amortisation expense on intangible
asseta with infinite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and
ioss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of angthar
assel.
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&. SegmentReporting

The Group opersles oparatbons predominately relales to lour
business segment le Broking & Distribution services, Adwisory
services, NBFC servicas and T Services Business segments have
been identified as separate reporntable segments as per Ind-A5 108,

7. ForeignCurrencles

The group's consolidated financial statements are preserted in INR
{rounded offtolakhs), which is also the groups functicnal cumency.

Transaction and balances

Transactions in foreign curencies are initially recorded by the
Group in their functional currency spot rotes at the date the
transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchangs at

tha reporting pesiod,

Exchange differences ariting on the settlemant of monetary iteimne o
on translating monelary fems are recognized in the statement of
profitor loss except

* exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to
assats under construction for future productive use, which are
intludedin the cost of thowe assets whan they are regarded as an
adjustment to Interest costs on those forelgn currency

borowings;

* oxchange differences on transactions entered into in order to
hedge certain foreign curency risks

®= gxchange differences on monetary items recevable from or
payable 1o a forelgn operation for which settlemant Is neither
planned nor likely to aecur (therefore forming pan of the net
investment inforeign oparation), which are recognised initially in
other comprehensive income and reclassified frem equity to
profitor loss on repayment of the monetary itoms.

MNon-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical costin
s foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates as at the
dates of the initial transactions. Nan-monetary items measured at
fair value in & farsign currency are transiated using the exchange
rates at the date when the falr value was determined, The gain or loss
arlsing on translation of nor: manetary tems measured at fair value
I treated in line with the ecognition of the gan or loss on the
change in fair value al the iterm (L. translation differences on items
whote fair volue galn or loss i recognised in OC or prolit or loss are
also recegnised in OC] or profit or loss, respectively),

B Taxation

belirraiil tanes

Inceme tax xpense is recog nleed in net profit in the statemant ol
profit and loss exceptto the extent that it relates o items recognized
directly in other comprehensive income or euity, In which case it is
retognized in other comprehensive income or equity respectively,
Currentincome tax is recognized at the amount expected to be paid
1o of recovered from the tax authorities, using the tax rates and tax
lows that have been enacted or substantively enacteel by the
balsnce sheet date, The Group offsets; on a year to ywar basis, the
current tax assets and llabilities, where it has legally enforceable
rightte doso and where it intends to settle such assets and llabilities
an anet basis.

Delorred tanas

Delermed tax is recognized on differences between the canrying
amounts of assets and fabilites in the consalidated financial
staternents and the corresponding tax bases used in the
camputatian of @xable profit and are accounted for using the
balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generalfy
recognized for all taxable temparary differences, and defarred tax
assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary
differencesto the extent that it is probable that taxabie profits will be
aviilable agatnst which those deductible temporary differences can
be utifized. Such assets and fiabilties sre not vecognized i the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the inital
recognition {other than in a business combination) of ather assets
and liahilities in a transaction that affects neither tha taxable profit
riaf tha accounting profit.

Detarred tax relating to items recognised outside the prafitand loss
s recagnised outside profit and loss (either in other comprehensive
INCOITiE oF in Squity).

The carrying amount of defermed tax assetz is veviewsd a1 sach
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer

probable that sufficient taxable profiss will be available o allow all ar
pant of the asset to be recovered,

Dafarred tax assets and llabilities are offset when there s a lagally
enforceabla nght to set off current tax assets againgt currant tax
liabilities ancl when they relate 10 income taxes levied by the same
tawation authority and the Group intends 1o settle its curent tax
assets and labilities on a net basis

% ImparmentofNon-Financial Assats

At the end of each reporting periad, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whisther
thera is any indication that those assets have suffered an impalement
loss, If any such indication exists, the recoverable amaunt of the
assot 19 estimated in order 1o determine the extent of impairment
loss (if any). When it is not possible 1o estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
icdentified, corporate: assets are lso allocated to individual cash-
genatating units, or otherwise thay are allocated to the smallest
group of eash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified,

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and imangible assets
nat yel availabte for use are tested for impairment at lsast annually,
and whenever there isan indication that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the highar of fair value less costs of disposal
and value In use. In assassing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rato that reflocts current market assotsments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted

if the recoverable amount of an asset {or cash-genemating uni) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the assel (or cash-generating unit] & reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment lassis recognized inthe profitor loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amaunt of the asset{ or a cash generating unit) is increased 1o the
revised estimate of its recoverabie smount, butsothat the (ncreased
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carmyng amount does not exteed the camying amount that would
hava been determined had no impeirmaent loss been recegnised for
the asset | or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognisad immediately in profitor oes.

10, Financial instruments

& financial instrurment |s any contract that glves rlwe to a financial
asset of ane entity and a financial liability or equity Instrument of

S
Finanoia Assans
a) nitzl recognman and measurement

All financial assets are recagnised initially at fair value plus, in the
case of financial assets not recorded at faie value through profit or
loss, transaction costs that ara attobutable to the acquisition of (he
financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within a time frame eaablished by requlation or
eonvention in the market place (reqgular way trades) are recognised
on the trade date, Le., the date that the Group commits 1o purchase
orsefl the asset.

b)  Subseguent measurement
Enuity instrumenis

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair
value. Equity instrumants which are hield for trading are classified as
at FVTPL For all other equity instruments, the Group may make an
inevocable election 1o present subsequent changes in the fairvalye
in OCL The Group makes such slection on an instrument-by-
instrument basis. Tha classification is made on witial recognition
and 15 rrevacable.

Dividands from such investmaents.are recognized in profit or loss g
other incame. There Is no recycling of the amounts from OC to Profit
and Loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Group may
transfer the cumulative gain or lasswithin equity,

Equity mstrumenis subsequently messured m fair vaiue through
pmhnrlussmmmmdﬂh:mfmmhihhmgnmmgﬁmd
inthe statement of proft and loss.

] Depecoghition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, 2 part of a financial asset ar
part of a group of similar financial assets} is primarlly derecognised
ILe.removed framthe group's balance sheet) whisn:

The rightsto receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

The Group has translemred its rights to receive cash flows from the
asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the receved cash flows in
full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’
arrangement, and aither (a} the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
atset, but hastransferred control of the a=set

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
an asser of has entered into a pass-through srrangement, it
evaiuates i and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards
af ownership, When it has neither tansferred nor retained
substantially all of the risks and rewards of thie assot, nor transferred
control of the asset, the group continues to recagnise the
transfarred asset 1o the extent of the greup's continuing

Consolidated F'ln.lm:i._‘i Sl_memem;

involvement. in that case, the group alse recognises an associated
fliabilty. The transferred asset and the associsted llability are
moasuned on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
group has retained.

Continuing involvemnent that takes the form of & guarantee over the
transfarred asset is measurad at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the group could be required to repay.

d) impairmentol financial assets

The Group recognises impairment loss applying the expecied
credit loss (ECL)} model on the financial assets measured at
amortised cost, debt instruments at FYTOC! lsane receivables,
trade receivables, other contractual right to recalve cash or other
financial assetand financial guarantes notdesignated as st FVTPL

Expedted credit losses are the weighted sverage of credit |osses
with the respective risks of default occurming ss the weights.

The Group measures the loss allowanice for a financial instrument at
an amount equal to the lifetime expecied credit loases if the credit
risk on that financial Instrument has incressed significantly since
initial recognition, If the credit risk on a financial instrument has not
increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group measures
the loss allowance for that inancial Instrurnent atan amount equalto
12 months expacted credit lasses.,

For trade recewvables or any contraztual night 1o receive cash or
other financial assets that result from wransactions that are within the
scope of ind A5 115, the Group always measures the loss allowance
at an amount 2qual to lifetime expected creditlosses.

Furthar, for the purpose of maasuring [fstime expecied credit loss
allowance for trade recelvables, the Group applies ‘simplhified
approach’ permitted by Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments. This
expacted credit loss sllowance is computed based on & provision
matric which tfakes ino account historical creditloss experience and
adjusted for forward-looking Informatian

For loan given measured at amortised cost or FYTOC, except for
investments in equity instruments. Group follows a 'three-stags'
model for impairment based on changes in credit quality since
il recognition.

Stege 1 [Performing Assetd] - ingludes financial assets that have not
had a sigrificantincresse n credit rfisk since initial recognition orthat
have low credit risk atthe reponting date. Forthese assets, 1 2-manth
ECL is recognised and intarest income is calculated an the gross
carrying amount of the asses (that is, without deduction for credit
allowance). 12-month ECL are the portion of ECL that results from
default events on a financiel Instrument that are possible within 12
muonths atter the reparting date, i the credit risk has not significantly
incraesed since inithal recagnition

Stago 2 {Underperforming Assets with significant increase in credit
ik since inital recognition) - Includes financial Tnatruments that
have had a significant incresse in credit risk since inftinl recognition
[unless they have low credit risk at the reporting date) but that do not
have objective evidance of imparment. For these assets, ifetime
ECL are recognized, but interest incame is calculated on the gross
currying amount of the assets. Lifetime ECL are the expected eredit
losses that result from all possible default events ovar the expected
Il of ths instrument.
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Stage 3 (Non-perfarming or Credit-impared assets) - includes
financial assets that have objective evidence of impairment at the
reporting date. For these aszsets, |ifetime ECL is recognised and
interest income 5 recognised on MNet esxposure (that is Gross
carrying amount less Provision for Expected credit losses)

Financial Liabilities
al  Initial moogritionand measurement
All financaal liabilities are recognised intizlly at fairvalue and, in the

case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs,

b)  Subssquent measursmeant

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fairvalue through profitor loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upaon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or
loss. Financial labilities are classified as hald for trading if they are
incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term, This
category also includes derivative financial instraments géntered into
by the group that are not designated as hedging instruments in
hedge relationships as defined by Ind-A5 10%. Separated
embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless
they are designated as effective hedging instrumeants.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the
profitorloss.

Financial liabilities designated upon Initial recegnition at fair value
through profit or loss are designated at the iniGal date of
recagnition, and anly if the critera in Ind A5 109 are satisfied, For
liakilities designated as FYTPL, Tair value gains! losses attributable
tos changes in own credit risk is recognized in OC1L These gains/ foss
are not subsequently transfered to P&L. Howaver, the Group may
transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes
infair value of such lizbility are recagnized in the statement of profit
ar lass. The Group has not designated any financial liability as at fair
value through profitand loss,

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amartized costusing
the effective interest method, except for cantingent consideration
recognized in a business combination which s subsequently
measured at fair value through profit and loss. For trade and other
payables maturing within ona yéar from the Balance Shest date, the
carrying amounis approximate fair value due to the short maturity of
thesainstrumeants.

Loansand borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and Bomowings are
subsequently measured at amorised cost using the offective
interest rate merhod. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or
loss when the [iahifities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate amortization process.

Amaortised cost 15 calculated by taking intoaccount any discount or
premiun on acquisition and lees o costs that are an integral part of
the efective interest rate. Such amortisation s included as finance
costsin the staternent of prafitand loss,

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantes contracts issued by the group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the

halder for aloss it incurs because the specified debtor fails 1o make
& payment whan due in accordance with the terms of g debt
instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recogrised initially as
a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that ane directly
attributable to the issuance of the guarantes, Subsequently, the
liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance
determinad as per impairment requirements of Ind A5 109 and the
amount recagnised less cumulative amortisation

g} Derscognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liakility is discharged or cancelled or expires, When an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially differant terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treatad
as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognised inthe statement of profitor loss

d) Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is repored in the balance sheet if there is a curmently enforceable
legaf nght to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a netbasis, to réalise the assets and settle the liabilitias
simultarieously.

11. Loases

The Groyp has adopted Ind AS 116 ‘Leases’ with the date of initial
application being April 1, 2019, The |sase asset classes primarily
consist of leases for Premizes. The Group, at the inception of a
contract, assesses whether the contract is alease or not leaze; A
contract |s, or contains, a lease f the contract convays the night to
contral the use of an identified asset for a time in exchange for a
cansiduration. This policy has been applied 1o contracts existing
and entored into on orafter Apnl 1, 2018

The Group evaluates each contract or arrangement, whether it
qualifies as lease as defined under Ind AS 1 14. The Group asalessee
The Group assesses, whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease it the contract involves- a) the use of
an identified asset, b} the right to obtain substantially all the
econamic banefits fram use of the identified asset, and &) the right to
direct the Lse of the identified assot.

The Group at the inception of the lease contract recognises a Right-
of-Use {Rol)) asset at cost and & corresponding lease liability, for all
lease arrangementsinwhichit iz & lesses, except forlsases with term
of less than twelve months (short teren ) and low-valus assets. Cartain
|ease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the
lease before the end of the |ease term, ROU assets and lease
labilites Includes these aptions when |t s reasonably certain that
they will be exercised.

The cost of the RO assets comprises the amount of the initial
measurement of the lease liahility, any lease payments made at ar
before the inception date of the lease plus any initial direct costs,
less any lease incantives received. Subsequently, the right-of-use
assets is measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any, The ROU assets is
depraciated using the straightline method from the
commencament date over the shoner of leaze term or useful life of
ROU assels,

RO assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or
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changas in cireumstances indicate that thelr carrying ameunts may
not be recoverable, For the purpose of impairment testing, the
recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair valie less cost to sell

ancl the value-in-use) s determined on an individual asset basis

unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely
independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the
recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit
(CGUtowhich the aszet balongs.

For lease liabilities at inception, the Group measures the |ease
liability at the present value of the lease paymants that are not paid
at that date, The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicitin the lease, if that rate is readily determined, if that rate
is not readily determined, the lease payments are discounted using
the incremental borrowing rate,

The Group recognises the amount of the re-measufement of leass
liability as an adjustmant to the ROU assets. Where the carrying
amount of the ROU assets is-reduced ta zero and there s a lurthar
reduction in the measurement of the lease liability, the Group
recognises any femaining amount of the remeasdrement in the
Sratement of Profitand Loss,

Forshom-term and low value lzases, the Group recogrises the lease
payments as an operating expense an @ straight-line basls over the
leaseaterm.

12. Finance Cost

Finance costs include interest axpanss computéd by applying the
affactive interest rate on respective financial instruments measurad
at amorised cost. Financial nstruments include debt and
bormawing, Finance costs are charged 1o the Statemert of Profitand
Loss. Ancillary and other borrowing costs are amiortised on straight
line basis owerthetenure of the underhying debrand borrowing.

13. Goodsand Service Input Tax Credit

Goods and Services tax input credit is accounted for in the books in
the period tn which the supply of goods or sarvice received |s
accaunted and when thare is no uncartainty inavailingfutilising tha
cradiis,

14, Dividend distribution to equity holders of the Group

The Group recognises a liability to make distributions to equity
holders of the Growp when the distribution |5 authorised and the
distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Group. As per the
Act, final dividend is authorized when it i= approved by the
shareholders and interim dividend is authorized when itisapproved
by the Board of Directers of the Graup.

15. Provisions
Provislons are recognised anly when:

* an entity has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
resultof a pastevent; and

* it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic banefitewill be raguired to sattle thie obligation; and

* a raliable estimate cam be made of the amount of the
ohligatian

These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted 1o
reflectthe current best estimates: '

Consolidated Financial Statements

Further, long term provisions are determined by discounting the
expacted future cash fows specific to the liability, The urnwinding of
the discount is recognised as finance cost. A provision for onermus
contracts is measured at the present value of the lower of the
expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected netcost
af continuing with the contract, Before a provision is established, the
Group récag,nises any impairment loss on the assets assaciated with
thatcontract.

Contingent lability is disclosad in case of;

* & present obligation arising frem past events, when it is not
probable that an outflow of resources will bie required 1o setle
the obligation; and

* apresentobligation arising from past events, when no reliable
astimate s possible.

Contingent Assets:

Contingent assets are not recognizsed in the consolidated financial
statements

T1é. Commitments:

Commitments are future liabilities for contractual expenditure,
classitied and disclosed astollows:

astimated amount of contracts remaining Lo be executed on
capital account and not provided for,

= uncalled iability ontoan sanctioned and oninvestrents partly
paid; and

* gther non-cancellable commitments, if any, to the extent they
are considered material and relevant in the opinion of
managament.

17. Contingent Liabilitias

A contingent liability s a possible obligation that arises from past
avents whose existence will be confirmed by the eccurrence or nan-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the
control of the Group or a present obfigation that is not recognized
because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, The Group does not recognize a
contingent liability but discloses its existence i the consolidated
finsncial staternents. Paymants in respect of such labilibes, fany are
shown as advancas,

18. Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or
ioss for the year attributable to equity shareheolders by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the
determination of basic earnings pershare to take into account

® Theafterincome tax effect of interestand ather financing costs
associated with dilutive potential equity shares, and

* ‘Weighted average number of eguity shares that would have
been outstanding assuming the conversion of all the dilutive

potential equity,
19.Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks,
Cash equivalents are shon-term balances {with an original maturty
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of three months or less from the date of acquisition), and highly
liguid time deposits that are readily convartible imo known amounts
of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in
value,

20. Employas Benefits
Shart term employes benelits

Employee bensfits falling dus whally within twelve months of
rendering the service are classified as short term employee benefits
and are expensed intha period in which the employes renders the
related service, Liabilities recognised in respect of shor-term
employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of
the benafits expected to be paid in exchange for the refated servica.

Long Term employee banafits

Groups net obligation in respect of long-term employes benefits is
the amount of future benefit that employees have earmed in return
for their service in the tument and prior periods. Long-term
employae benefit primarily consists of Leave encashment benedits
wherein employees are entitled to accumulate leave subject to
certain limits for future encashment/availment, Long-term
cumpensatedaﬁsances are provided for on the basis of an actuarial
valuation at the end of each financial year using Projected Uinit
Credit (PUC) Method, Actuarial gains/losses, if any, are recognised
immediately inthe Staterment of Profitand Loss

Post-employrment benafits
a) Defined contribution Plans

Provident fund: Contributions as required under the statute, made
to the Provident Fund (Defined Contribution Plan} are recognised
immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss, There is no
obligation other than the monthly contribution payable te the
Regional Pravident Fund Cammissioner,

ESIC and Labour weffare fund: The Group’s contribution
paid/payable during the year to Employee state Insurance schems
and Labour welfare fund are recognized in the Statement of Profit
and Loes:

bl Delined benefit Plans

Gratuity liability is defined benefit obligation and is provided on the
basis of an actuarnial valuation performed byan independsnt actuary
based on projected unit credit method, atthe end of each financial
yEar.

Defined benefit costs are categonsed asfollows:

il Service costlincuding curment service cost, past service cosl, as
well as gainsand losses on curailments and settlemants)

i} Metimerestexpense orincome
i) Re-measurament

Ra-measurements of the net defired benaht labildy, which
comprise actuarlal gains and losses, the return on plan assets
{excluding interest} and the effect of the asset ceiling {if any,
excluding interest), are recognised in O, net of taxes, The Group
detarmines the net interest expanse {income) on the net defined
benefit akility (asset) for the period by applying the discount ate
used bo measure the defined bensfit abligation at the beginning of
the annual period to the net definad benefit lisbility (asset], taking
inta account any changes in the net defined banefit liability {assat)

during the period as aresultof contributions and benefit payments.
Metinterest expense and othar expensas related to defined benefit
plans are recogrised in Statement of Profitand Loss

The Groups net obligation in respect of gratuity {defined benefit
plany, is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that
the employees have earned in the current and prior periods,
discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan
assets. The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the Balance
Sheat reprasents the actual deficit or surplus in the Group's defined
benaft plans. Any surplus resulting fram this caleulation s
recognised as an asset to the extent of present value of any
aconamic benefits availablein the form of refunds fromthe plans or
reductions inthe future contributien to the plans

21, Share-based Payments

Shared based compensation benefitz are provided to employees
via Vakrangee Limited Employes Stock Option Flan.

Emiplayes optiong

The cost of equity-settled transactions is. determined by the fair
value of the options granted at the date when the grant is made, The
fair value of options granted under the Employee Option Plan is
recognised as an employes beanefits expense with a corresponding
increasa in equity. The total amount to be expensed is determined
by refarence ta the fair value of the optians gramed:

v ncluding any market parfarmance condtions (e, the
Group's share price)

¢ axcluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditiens | e.g. profitability, sales
growth targets and remaining employee of the entity over a
specified time period], and

= Including the impact of any nonwesting conditions (8.9, the
requirement for employes to save or holding shares for a
speciic period of time.,

Thetotal expenses is recognised over the vesting period, which is the
peried over which all of the specified vesting conditions afe to be
satisfiect. &t the end of sach pericd, the Gioup revises its estimates
of the number of options that are expected to be vest based on the
pon-market vesting and sarvice conditions, it recognises the impact
of the revision ta ordginal estimates, i any, in profit ar loss, with a
corresponding adjustrment toequity,

22. Collateral

To mitigate its credit fsks on financial assets, the Group seeks to use
collateral, where possible. Tha collateral comas in various farme,
such a5 securities, letter of credit/guarantess, receivables,
imventories, other non-financial assets and cradit enhancements
such asnetting arrangements,

The Group provides fully secured, partially secured and unsecured
loansto Corporates and individual.

23, Businesscombinations

Acguisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method as per nd AS 103 - Business Combinations, The
consideration transfarred in a business combination is measured at
fairwalue, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-clate fair
values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities Incurred by
the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
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intarests issued by the Group in exchange for contral of the
acquires, Acquisition: related costs are generally recogrised in
Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifisble assets acquired and the
liabilities sssumed are recognised at their fair value at the
acquisition date, except that:

Deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets related to
amployes banefit arrangements are recognised and measurad in
accordance with Ind AS 12 Income Taxes and Ind AS 19 Employes
Benefits respectively,

Goodwillis measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquires, and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held squity
interast in the acquiree (if any) over the nst of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liahilities
assurmed.

Mon-contralling intenasts that are present ownership interests and
antitletheir holders to & propontionate share of the entity's net assets
in the event of liquidation may be fnitiaily measured at the

Consolidated Financial Statements

noncontralling interests' proportionate share of the recognised
amaunts of the acquiree’sidentifiable nat assets,

24, Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a husiness is carried at cost
established at the date of acguisition of the business less
accumulated imparrment loss if amy.

For the purpose of impaimment testing, goodwill is allocated 1o each
of the Group's cash genarating units (CGU) that s expected to
benafit from thia synergies of the combination,

A CGU 1o which goodwill has been allocated is tested far
impalrment annually, or more frequently when there is an indication
thatthe unit may be impaired, if the racoverahle amourit of the CGLU
is less than its carrying amount, the impalrment loss is allozated first
o reduce the carrying amaount of amy goodwill allocated to the unit
and then to the other assets of the units prorata based on the
carrying amount af sach asset in the unit any impairment [oss or
acodwill iEnot reversed insubsequent period

On disposal of relevant ©GU the attributable amount of goodwill is
included inthe determination of the prafit or less on disposal.
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Met earrying amount as at April 01, 2018

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

Mote 3 : Property, Plant and Equipment

{Rs.in Lakhs )

Particulars

Gross Carrying Amount as at April 01, 2018 4,330.00 2,823.80 40544  247.21 38.35 162.85 14.04 22538 125 22070  8,470.77
Additions / Transfer / Adjustments 953,11 24.14 .00 0.10 11.71 1037 1,008.45
Disposals 38,08 2514 63.22
ﬂ-&ﬁuisitinns through business combinations 344685 0.7d 26592 171,57 TA5.04

Los#;_nn Dspo&als

As at March 31, 2019 4,330.00 3,776.90 1.75 73835  231.77 3835  428.86 14.04 237.09 1.25  402.66 10,201.03 S
Additions / Transfer : 27.50 45.80 026 1422 8818
Disposals 953,11 0.01 16597 970.08

Less. on account of sale of Subsidiary 224 15.85 18,09

As at March 31,2020 4,330.00 2,823.80 1.75 764.01  277.57 3835 42911 1404 20427 125 41688 9,301.04
Accumulated depreciation as at April 01, 2018 30178 0.68 27376  B187 2222 7554 049 B502 042 10708 94886
Depreciation charge during the year 44638 0.33 J7.0% 37.29 404 1747 @53 2753 002 31,98 24489
Acquisitions through business combinations 33058  0.43 23697 151,52 71950 -'
ﬂ;cum Lrl._al-e;:l-de;rﬂ-:ia_tjuu on-d:é;l;tions _E':EE6 _2_5. 14 &_.3.40_ :
As at March 31, 2019 348.16 1.02 64517 94,45 2626 32992 1,03 11255 053 29056 1,849.65
Depreciation charge during the quarter 42.91 033 7079 43.47 404 2169 053 2547 012 3800  247.36
Accumulated depreciation on deletions {0.85) 0.7% 812 804

Less- on account of sale of Subsidiary 1,68 a 8.05 9.74

As at March 31, 2020 391.08 135 71513 13793 3031 35082 156 121.84 0.65 32856 2,079.21

Met carrying amount as at March 31, 2020 4,330.00 2,432.72 0.40 48.88  139.65 8.05 7829 1248 8244 0.60 88.32 7,221.82 2
Met carrying amount as at March 31,2019 433000 3.428.74 0.74 9318  137.32 12,09 9894 13.02 12454 071 11210 835137

| 1.07 13168  165.34 16,14 8730 1355 14036 0.83 113462 752191

433000 2522.02

For Property, Plant & Equipment existing on Apnl 81, 2018 Le. its date of transition to Ind AS, the company has used India GAAP carrying value as déemed costs.

1 Pioperty, Flant and Equipments pledged! mortgaged as security

Office Buitding of the Group of Rs, 214,776,824/ is under charge against overdraft facility availed by Choice Equity Broking Private Limited (wholly owned subsidiary). Office Premises
worth Bs. 4 014, 181 69/~ is mortagaged against loan taken for it from Axis Bank and Office Premised worth Rs. 26 984 744/- is mortgaged against loan taken for it from ICIC] Bank.
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Consolidated Financial Statements Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

Mote 5 : Intangible Assets

(Rs. in Lakhs) Mote & : Investments (Rs. in Lakhs )

at

March 31 March 31

Imresl:rnent carried Elt cost- In Assnﬂates.

Gross Carrying Amount as at April 01, 2018 AbB.ET Z 435.83 z N|I Equity 5harﬂs nf .ﬂ'-.qua Pumps Iﬂfra Ventures Limited r:uf
Laddiiony 495.43 0.26 14.96 47500 .Rs 100- Eachfullypald{fv‘larch 31, 2019 Ml AprlICH 2018: 59‘52lakh5:| - - 1_..??';'.3.-3. |
| Disposals 207 8B ) 40513 024 lakhs Equity shares (March 31 209 N-I April I:I1 2018- NIL)
s o ; Samekit Learning Managemeant Private Limited {Formerly known as
55 on Disposa g - B Gravotix Tebnologues Private Limited} @ Rs. 10 sach 024
An:quls.ltl{:uns thmugh Eus.lness Combination 6401 - r
ek ; . —r -‘.}tha-r Inuutnwnis Unquoted Equity Instruments
| As at March 31, 201? 1.613.32 0.26 45.66 825.00
N : 5.23 lakhs {March 31,201%: 5.23 lakhs; April 31, 2018: 5.23 lakhs ) shares
| Additions 2197 ' 349 of Rs.10/- each Jaatvedas Construction Company Limited * 1,299.47 1,299 47 1,269.47
Ci Is &.76 - 34.54 ] |
| | e 4 Lakhs Equity Shares of Gini & Jony Limited of Rs. 10/ each fully pald
| As at March 31, 2020 1.754.34 0.26 14.36 825.00 {March 31, 2019 4 Lakhs; April 01, 2018: 4 Lakhs) ** 205.60 505.40 505.60
| Bccumulated amortisation and impairment Queted
| Asat April 07, 2018 34921 3 ? a5 Investment carried at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FYTOCI)
| Amaortisation charge during the year .97 0.03 - - 10 lakhs Equity Shares of The Byke Hospitality Limited of Rs, 10/- each
Disposals 207,88 ; tully paid {March 31, 2019: 10 lakhs ; Apnl 01, 2018; 10 lakhs) A50.00 2B0.50 1,4677.50
| Acquisitions through Business Combination 861.17 . . . Wil Equity Shares of Kisan Mouldings Limited of Rs, 10/ sach fully
As ak ilﬂaﬂ:haT,?m? 1.'0?4-47? {“m = — | |:|.aH:| (March 31, 20'!‘3' Mil; .-ﬁ.pn! 1 20]3 4, 5 lakhs} - 2 &00.53
| Amaortisation charge during the year 9016 0.03 . = 0098 lakhs Equity Shares of GSL SEcu rities L nmﬂed ::uf Rs 104 each
i fully paid (March 31, 2019: .0098 lakhs; April 01, 2018: .0098 lakhs) 0.02 0.02 0.02
| Disposals 1.71 | |
As at March 31, 2020 1,170.92 0.06 = . 22 1akhs Equm-' shares of La wre:.hwar Pol;.-mers Limited of Rs,10/-
t each fully paid (March 31, 201%: .22 lakhs; Apnl 01, 2018: .22 lakhs] 3.61 .60 1.7
| Met carrying amount as at March 31, 2020 583.42 0.20 14.356 825.00
' Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2019 538,85 0,23 A5.84 825.00 Mil Eguity shares of Vakrangee Limited of Rs.01/- each fully paid
| ’ . (March 31, 200%: 1.50 lakhs ; April 01, 2018: 2.25 lakhs) - 75.52 41,77
| Net carrying amount as at April 01, 2018 117,44 - 43583
: Total 1,958.97 216711 6,001.98
Mote: " ThE Group, subsaguant to the year &r:-d on June 29, 2020, -suld its investments in Jastvedas Construction Company Limited warth Rs.
For Intangible Assets existing on April 07, 2018 i.e. its date of transition te Ind AS, the company has used Inidia GAAP carrying value as 129947 lakhs for a consideration of Rs. 1342.35 lakhs. Further the group is in the process of completing this sale transaction as at date.
deemed costs.

** During the vear the group made fair valuation of lrvestmaeant in Ginl & Jony Limited threugh Probit & Loss account and booked
Impairment loss of Rs. 30,000,000 on investmeant in Gini & Jony Limited.
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Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

Mote 7 : Loans (Rs. in Lakhs )
Particulars As at A at As at
RS March 31,2020  March 31,2019 Apnil 01, 2018
{Secutiry Deposits 7444 20.75 B2
?Luans & advances to others 017 032 7.99
Total T4.63 21.07 95.90
Note 8 : Other Financial Assets {Rs, in Lakhs )
Particulars As at As at A= at
RSt March 31,2020 March 31,2019 April 01,2018
Fixed Deposits 25,00 2500 524
| Security deposits to stock exchange 27226 31820 181.00
| Othear Security deposits 9295 FH25
Prepaid Rertals (000 0.23
Interest Accrued an Deposit 4464 243
| Total 394.67 442.21 186.24
MNote 9 : Income Tax Assets (Net) {Rs. in Lakhs )
Particulars sl |'I !
{Advance taxes (net of provisions) 36173 377.43 324.23
[Tatal 361.73 377.43 324.23

Mote 10 : Deferred Tax Assets - (Met)
The major camponents of deferred tax Assets as recognized in the financial statements are as follows: {Rs, in Lakhs )

As at As al As at

i ke Mareh 31, 2020 March 31,2019 April 01, 2018

| Deferred Tax Assets arising on account of timing differencas in:

EI"."IAT Credit Entitlement 1310 17.24 5.58
EI'-.'.rcr|.:|er'ry. Piar& a.nd Iéq.mprnen: - Dapreciation (1 I.. ?3.‘ -:1‘5'..2-‘5'3 I:1.I5il_'|l-
| Provision for employee benefit expensas 614 283 4034
:FTGwsmn for Standard Loan ASEET; 1481

. In'-upéllrrne nt loss on Investment 41.73

:Deier."ed Tawan Fair vlaue of Employéee benefit expenses thraugh

| Othar comprehansive income (1.61) 6.26 0.%5
;Deﬁ.‘!red Téu: an Fair Valuation of Investments 13:25 57,32

:ﬂ-rlinﬂl‘jaiiﬁr‘l of loan a5 per EIR (040} 22

{Allowance for Expected Crodit Loss 1.96 .39 0.05
:Elrc.-ught Forwand Losses 2.73 3.32

| Deferred Tax Assots (net) 8198 9977 4534
;D@!esred Tax Assats routed through Profit & Loss 5540 (3.98)

Do reﬂ Tax Astets muted thiou g’;'u Other Comprahensive Income (45.72) 57.40
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

MNote 11 : Other Non-Current Assets

s at

Particulars March 37, 2020

Consolidated Financial Statements

(Rs.in Lakhs )

As at

April 01,2018

| Security deposits to stock exchange
Other Secu rl.T:,r de Qs ts
Prapaid Rent 351
.i:'re;:laid Expenses
“Fi;c-E:j d-E'.FHIISi{ l:lmth i";"la-t;..lr't-y u:lf more Lh_arl 12 .Mﬂl"l'[i‘.'-iil'. :
Inteeest .i'i-'.r_:crued an Dep::;il

Total 351

MNote 12 : Securities held for trade

2970

458 1.35
1.48 8.03 |
25.00
0.87
6.06 5495 |

(Rs. in Lakhs )

Az al As at

March 31, 2019 Aprl01, 2018

) . As al
ERTHCUIAn March 31, 2020
Securities held for trade
| Shares and Securities ™ 306091
an.l T R _E.E:ﬁu‘;']

* Fair value has taken as Nil for securities which are suspended for trading at the stock exchange,

MNote 13 : Trade Receivables

3.637.23 1.978.33

3,637.23 1,978.33

{Rs, in Lakhs )

et s As at Az a
articulars March 31, 2020 March 31,2019

Secured

Considered Good 7341.3% 4,789,594 10,108:62
.Llnse:urer;l

Considered Good LI 1.947.57 1.510.00
Less: Allowances for impairmaent losses (145.42) [63.57] {43.60]
Total 2,104.28 6,673.94 11,675.02

Note 14 : Cash and Cash Equivalnets

5 at

i March 31, 2020

(R=. in Lakhs )

Az at A5t

March 31, 2019 April 01, 2078

Balances with Banks :

- In Current Accounts 3,731.30
| Cash on Hand 1.93
- Cheques on Hand

Total 373323

82439 242647
193 2.73
535.05
1,361.37 2,429.20
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

MNote 15 : Bank Balances Other than (Note 14) Above

Particulars

As P

March

As at

March 31,2019

(Rs. in Lakhs )

A5 d

April 01,2018

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

MNote 18 : Other Current Assets

4 A5 at
Particulars

March 31, 2020

Consolidated Financial Statements

(Rs.in Lakhs )

As at

f\.pr:l |::'1_ E':” E:

!Eala nces with Banks -

Ir; Iéarma rked |‘5-."_;EIJLI-P|L5 '.n" ‘:;ﬂ 'E'I{II BSB
iFixed Deposits {Lien) 1,357.47 1,053.62 3746299
5T::_|t-=|l 1,364.98 1,061.72 3,771.87

Note 16 : Loans

Particulars

gSEL'l.I rad, considered good

?Lu:}an against sharas & Securities
fLu-an eli-g:]alnst property

5Ur|:5£.|-cu.r-e:.|, EDI‘ISidEIé‘d’ good
Ef';ﬂargln Monay with stock exchanga
EAdvances to Employees

|Loans to related p.a-rhE:s

ESE\curity Deposits

;Dthe rs. -

iTutaI

Mote 17 : Other Financial Assets

Particulars

| Carried at amortised cost

B72.49
257419

7.65
490.87

779443
11.779.83

Az at

March 31,

A5 at

tarch 31, 2019

2556.13

70.19

23852
74.92
5,550.11
8,489.87

|
A% al

March 31, 2019

(Rsin Lakhs )

A5 at
April 01, 2018

506283

198.87
46,70
259.80
5984
2,493.44
8,161.48

{Rs, in Lakhs §

fs at
Aprl 01, 20718

{Security Deposts 3307 2529
E-F'.reuaid. Deposit 1.48
|Acerued Income 145,75 48 47

Receivable from Exchange 180.83 1,926,686 171.10
[Unbilled Revenue 169.95 410.66 461.97
[Less: Allowance for Cradit Less {7.88)

[Margin Money 8,525.00 10,037.59

EH-nan'[&ntt'n::xn monegy receivable _1I:I 24 Z'é_.21 4570
Total 9,056.96 12,447.59 706.74
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Bafance with government authorities:

G-:rncls. &.-SEF\I'IEE Tax Fd;?cer-.-al;l;e- : ?4[)8
| Advance to Vendors £4.38
F.’repaid Expenses 18441
'Other Advances 21513

_I"."Iargln - Ecquirty stk ."_Irl dax futures

:Irlteresl accrued on margin deposit

.Pranaid éxpenses

Total 540.00

Note 19 : Equity Share Capital

A .
s at

Particulars

A020

f'-.-"l;.r-:l'u EI 1 2L

As at

March 31, 2019

{Rs. in Lakhs )

April 07,2018

Authorised :
| 200,05 lakhs (March 31, 2019: 200,05 lakhs, April @1, 2018:200.05 lakhs)

{Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 200048 2.000.48 2.000:48

' 2,000.48 2,00048 2,000.48
-ls._s_ued, _Sj:ir-_sl:.ribed and Paid-up

200.05 lakhs (March 31, 2019 200.05 lakhs, April 01, 2001 8: 200,05 lakhs)

|Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up 200048 200048 200048
Tatal 2,000.48 2,000.48 2,000.48

The Company has ane class of equity shares having a par valug of R5.10 per share, Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held,
The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the sharsholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In
the avent of liquidation, the equity share halders are eligible to recaive the remaining assets of the company after distribution ef all

praferantial armaounts in proportion to their share halding

ib) Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year

Equity Shares

Ax At

Particulars

i}

March 37, 2

Balance as at the Beginning of the year 200.05

LAdd: Shares issued duiing the year

Balance as at the end of the yaar 200.05
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

() Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company:
{Rs.in Lakhs )

Equity Shares

lKamal Poddar 25.08 12.50% 25.00 12.50% 25.00 012
:FH’UI'I Kumar Poddar 21.00 10.50% 21.00 10.50% 21.00 0.10
[Vinita Sunil Patodia 1613 8.06% 15.75 7.87% 15.75 0.08
:ﬁ\fch ana Amil Patodia 15.75 T.87T% 15.75 7.87% 15.75 0.08
ESUI'IIJ Paddar 12.50 &.25% 12.50 4.25% 12.50 0.04
!5urul Kumar Patodia 12,39 A 19% 11.00 5.50% 11.00 0.05
E.ﬁ.nll C Patodia 1100 5.50% 11.00 5.50% 11.00 0.05
EJ\zura Projects Pyt Lid, 12,85 H42% 12.85 6. 42% 12.85 (.04
Note 20 : Other Equity {Rs. in Lakhs )
Particulars s o '_- o . q ﬂl, e
March 31, 2020 March 31,2019 Apr il 07, 2018
{Share Application Maney Panding Allotmant 2.524.50
'Statutory Reserve - 418.57 391,67 352.13
Capital Reserve 870 870 8.70
:5::r:u|'rt;-.r Preemium Resarve &39217 639237 639217
Revaluation Reserve 4,170.22 4170.22 4,170.22
|Retained Earnings 5.803.06 4,522.44 3,572.59
;t}ther Comprehensive [ncome ~ (6.88] (141.48) 869.98
{Genaral Resarve 952 952 v
Total 19,319.86 15,353.24 15,775.31
(i) Share Application Money Pending Allotment: [Rs. in Lakhs )

at

F-?:l-l II:IIE:_‘II"T-, 2 f'\-'1.'-]r-:|'| 3 1 ; _:I-_'I 1 o ‘r'l'|r||"| |.:, 1 : ':_i[':,'l :::

Balance as at the beginning of the year -
Add : Additions during the year * 262450

EB.aJanoe 21 at the end of the year 2.5};{.50 . . |

* Basis the approval of the Shareholders at its Extra Ordinary General meeting held on December 23, 2019, the Company has allottad
1,%8,00,000 share warrants at a price of s 51 per warrant {including premium of Bs 47 per warrant) on preferential basis on January 02,
2020, These share warrants will be converted into equity shares in the ratio of 1:1 as per the terms of the offer. The Company has received
Rs 226950 akhs on Decamber 31, 2019 and Be.255.00 lakhs on January 02, 2020 as 25% of the consideration for share warrants as per the
tarms of the offer,
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Consalidated Financial Statements

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

(i) Statutory Reserve (Rs. in Lakhs )
: As at
Particulars April 01, 2018

{Balance as at the beginning of the ye=ar 39147 A52.13 30610

Add : Additians during the wear 26,90 39.54 4603

| Balance as at the and of the yvear 418.57 391.67 352.13

It iz created as per the terms of Section 45 -1€(1) of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 as Statutory Resarve

{iii) Capital Reserve [Rs..in Lakhs )

As at

March 31,2009 Apnil (

Balance as a1 the baginning of the year B.70 870 .70

Add : additions during the year

Balance as at the end of the year B.70 8.70 a.70
It is made out of capital profit earned. The same 1= not available for profit distnbution,
{iv} Securities Premium Reserve: {Rs. in Lakhs )
As at
L2009 Apnl 01, 2018
Balance as at the beginning of the year &,392.17 5.372.17 6; 35217
‘Add ; Additions during the year - - -
Balance as at the end of the year 6,392,117 &.392.17 6,392.17

Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the pravision of the

Companies Act, 2013,

(v} Revaluation Reserve (Ra.in Lakhs)
A at Az a
March 31, 2020 March 31,2009
Balance as at the beginning of the year 417022 417022
Add : Additions during the year . 5 417022
Balance as at the end of the year 417022 417022 4,170.22

It has baen created on revaluation of freghold land at fair markat value. The same is not available for profit distribution,

{vi) Retained Earnings: {Rs. in Lakhs )

NP As at A at As at
aruchars March 31,2020 March 31,2019  Aprl 01,2018

_Belance as at _The heginning of the year ¢.5_2 2.4 3.??2_.5::?_ 2,541.13

Add/ (Less): Probity {Loss) for the year 1,243.11 58739 1,479.02

(Lessy: Transfered 1o Statutory Reserve 26500  (39.54F  (47.58) |

Add: Reversal of Loss due to cessation of subsiciary &4.41

Balance as at the end of the year 5.803.06 4,522.44 397259

Retained earnings represents surplus  accurmulated earnings of the Company and ara availabla for distribution to shareholders.

CHOKCE INTERNATIONAL LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2020 | 176




Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

{vii}) General Reserve (Rs. in Lakhs )

A r
A5 gt

Farticulars Ry 4
|'|_1|'|.||__I_.l|ul'_- I.':-,.i-::.:-” |_||I 2018

Ealance as at the beginning of the year 952 0.52 Q.52
a'-'l-.dd .J'-'-.ddm-;}nf. dur-r'-g the :,'ear : - x
Baian:e ac at the end of the year 9.52 9.52 9.52

Amounts set aside from retained Barnings as a reserve to be utilised for permissible general purpose as per law,

Cither comprohansive income consist of remeasuremeant gains / losses on defined Benefit plans, gain / (lass) of sguity instruments carried
through FVTOCI,

(viii) Other Comprehensive Income (Rs. in Lakhs )
Bl As at A5 at A5 gt
SIHEHISIS March 31, 2020  March 31,2019 Apnil 01,2018
Balance as at the beginning of the year [147.48] B&R.98 B74.29
Add ; Additions during the year 13460 (1.611.4a) (4.31)

Balance as at the end of the year {6.88) (141.48) 869.98

Other comprehensive income consist of remeasurement gains / losses on defined benefit plans, gain / (loss) of equity instruments carried
through FYTOCH

Mote 21 : Borrowings (Rs.in Lakhs )

Farticulars

{Sacured loans

{Term loan from Bank * 437.35 496.93 55245
I.'E'-\.I'S! Current maturity of leng term borrowings Enﬁ 37 60.68 cufl {I'EI ||}
Total 38096 43625 48842

*The outstanding amount loan U1 Rs il ':M-:irl:h 31, 2019 Rs. 5.23 lakhs/- 1A|:u'|| 01, 2018-Rs.17 .46 lakhs/-] was taken hcn'n ICICH Bank Llrnlted
and is secured by way of first charge on Vehicle at Mumbai, The said loan carries interest at 10.14% p.a. and it is pavable in Equated
Monthly Instaiments ("EMI®) of Bs.112 053 till July 2019 and last instalment of Bs.(.88 [akhs payable in August 2019

*The outstanding amount loan of Re.229 87 lakhs/{ March 31, 201%-Rs.2, 64.73 lakhs), (Apcil 07, 2018- Rs.302.38 Lakhs) was taken from Axis
Bank Limited and is secured by way of first charge on office premizes at Mumbai. The said loan carries interest @ 1 Year MCLR +1.75%
[presently at 10%). The loan is repayable monthly ending in October 2024

*The outstanding amount loan of Rs. B.26 lakhs/s (Mareh 31, 201% - Rs.10.03 lakhs) {Aprl 01, 2018- Rs.Nil) was taken from HDFC Bank and
is secured by way of first charge on Vehicle at Mumbai. The loan is repayable in Equated Monthly Installments ("EMI"] of Rs. 21 lakhs/-
ending in December 2023,

*The D-.Jtst.anding amaunt of loan of Rs: 442 lakhs/- (March 31, 2019 Rs. 12.95 [akhs/-) (March 31, 2018-Rs. 1889 lakhs) was taken from
ICICH Bank and is sacured by way of first. charge on Vehicle at "ul'lurnbdl Tha loan is repayable in monthly principal instalmeants and interast,
ending in February, 2021,

*The outstanding amaount of loan of Rs, 195.59 lakha/.(March 31, 201% Rs. 207.58 lakhs/ (March 37, 2018 Re. 218,87 lakhs) was taken fram
ICICH Bank and is secured by way of first charge on Office Premises at Delhi. The loan is repayable in monthly principal instalments and
intarest, ending in May, 2030,

Mote 22 : Other Financial Liabilities {Rs.in Lakhs )

As gt

P et i > ol ’
rartic |___|,:|_r 5 'llr'l!'- o 4 7 : .:'. ;__ ! March 31201 c I_-"', VB | || I:__| |

Securlty DE_st.it F]:li_]{!l :'H} EID _ 34} {H} _
| Tartal 0.00 3'0 ﬂﬂ = 3ﬂ ﬂﬂ 1
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Mote 23 : Provisions (Re. in Lakhs )

AL
Particulars Asat
darticulars Aocil 01,2018

Prowision tor E!1|p|uyree Benefits:

Provision far Gratu:t\; 18511 151,61 103.53
Cnrmngcnt provision against standard loan assets 249.07 2250 |
Total 18591 175.68 _ 12603

MNote 24 : Deferred Tax Liabilities - (Met)

The major components of deferred tax Liabilities/ (Assets) as recognized in the financial statements are as follows:
(Rs.in Lakhs )

Particulars

Deferned Tax { Assets) Liabilitres arising on account of timing differences in:

MAT Cradit Entitlement I:E‘? 51:1 { ':ﬁE Jé:l (174.40)
Fro;::-f_:r:r:,'. Plant .an-ci-Equ pment - Depreciation 49300 39803 34209 |
Provision for employee benefit expanses ':'.-"t B2) [36.3-4] {22..2;2"]
 Deferred Tax on Fair value of Em p;nyen;- henefit exp:e-ﬁ;-e;s th rough

Other Comprehensive Income 829 5.568 305.13
Deferred Tax on Faur".l'.alu&t-nn nf Inve stments {U ??:I (.31 41,92

| Amortisation of loan as par EIR o 0.38 0,51 1 3%
Allowanes far I:s-:p;-n:red l‘.':redlt Loas Bé E.l.‘.l:l : {JBE [H 1T'I:I-:I
Frovision for EHL‘IE"H(‘S (393) 19.22)

[ Daferred Tax Asset on G{:n:dwrll [Fni:.‘ As] 2B.49 2869 -
'Jefe rred Tax L-ahntlty on BV, m‘ Inventor} {Ind As) 455.38 317.70 G447
Frnwsmn for Doubtful Debts - _Iféﬂl_ - |
Deferred Tax (Assets) Liabilities (net) _ 787.04 538325 540.76
Deferred Tax Liabilities routed thmugh Profit & Loss 17044 2‘?5 E-E

Dﬂerr&d Tax Liabilities routed through Other Enmpmhmswa Income 248 {299.31)

MNote 25 : Other Non-current liabilities {Rs_in Lakhs |

Franchisee deposit 2190 215,44 113325
Total 219.0 219.44 113.25
MNote 26 : Trade Payables [Rs. In Lakhs |

Particulars

Trade Fa:.ra ble

Dues to Micro | Emerprases and Small Enterpflses' 491 £.14 486
Other than Micro and small Enterprises 717.88 1526 97232
Tatal 72279 221.40 o84.18

“Based on information received by the Company from its suppliers regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
(MSME) Development Act, 2004 and relied upon by the auditors; detsils of amount due to such vendors is as below:
S.Mo. Particulars

[} Principal Amount Outstanding 4.9 .14 4.86
{1l Interest dua on above and unpaid -

[} Interest due and payable far the penod of delay

(v} Interest acerued and remaining unpaid

CHOICE INTERNATIONAL LIMITED | ANNLUAL REPORT 2020 | 178




Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

Mote 27 : Borrowings {Rs.in Lakhs )

Particulars

|Secured Loans

|Loan from Financial Instutians™ LY 631146 11,058.87 |
{Bank Crverdrafi™ 7.053,.32 .:: 147,56 5.698.19
E[Jnei:uantl,.un!s"‘ 575.00 - -
|Unsecured Loans

[Loan taken from Related Parties 295,77 11.21 9.80 |
!.oan fr-::-m Flnanclal Instn'ruhoﬂs - 52 18:2 -
|Other Loans 815.15 - 10015
;Ctlrn mercial Papers from other partias®™** 5.0856.13 5,094.54

| Total 13.85%.06 16,106.59 15,8567 ﬂ‘]

*Loans taken from Financial Insttotions are secured against shares & secunties placed as collateral by customers, directors, relatives of
directar and fellow subsidiary at rate of interest of 10.80% for tenure of 12 months,

“* The averdraft facility taken from Axis bank at rate of Interest #.95% p.a, which is repayable on demand, The above overdraft facility is
primarily secured by way of hypothication on current asset and covered by parsonal guarantee by Mr Kamal PoddarDirector) and
Corporate guarantee of M/s Choice Internatioanl Limited {the parent company).

** Bank overdraft facility taken from Punjab National Bank for which asset cover details are given below:-

a) 211, Akal CHS Lrd, Bamanpuri road, J B MagarAndhen East, Mumbai- 59

b)) C-56, Dominia in Prive Hillside Residences, Khandala, Lonavala, Pune

c)B-904 - B znd B - 904 — A Valancia ea heg socHiranandani Gardens, Powai, Mumbai- 76

d)B-903-Band B-%03 - A Valencia oo hsg soc ltd Hiranandani Gardens, Powai, Mumbai - 74

** The bank cverdraft facility taken from Axis Bank Limited is secured by way of hypothecation of currant assets.

#*Dunng the year the Company has issued 115 debentures & Rs. 0.5 lakhs- per unit on private placement basis, These are nan
convertible and reedemabla debentures with coupon 37% and secured by way of hypathication on receivables and current assets,

****The Group has cutstanding Commiercial Papers aggregating face value of Rs 54.45 lakhs/- {net proceeds Rs 4,955.20 lakhs/- and
interest acorued thereon Rs 130092 lakhs/-) [Previous year Rs 54,45 lakhs (net proceeds Rs 5,011.70 lakhs and interest accrued but not due
thereon As B2.84 lakhs)]. The Commercial Papers carry interest 10% p.a. and are repayable within a short term period from the date of
alletrnant.

Mote 28 : Other Financial Liabilities
{Rs. in Lakhs )

Particulars

(Current Maturities of Long Term Debt 5639 60.66. 37403
[Interest accrued but not due 3500 12.26 13452
Total 91.39 72.94 508.55
Note 29 : Other Current Liabilities

{Re.in Lakhs )
Farticulars
S'la-..u tary Dues 494,24 433.33 38005
|Advance from Customers 11,085.22 10,449.50 511878 |
Franchlsena and other depnsnts ?':]ﬂ{l' 61 i}D" '
Fayables towards l:apltal assets - 396,00 53.76 |
Fayahles towards Partly paid Investment . r »?,‘-?'l& 43 |
|Other Payables 924.43 10463 67728 |
Ma:gm Monay Deposi - 15.00
j‘n:'-ta ] '  12,573.89 11,464 Z&’a  6,541.30 |
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Mote 30 : Current Provisions

{Rs.in Lakhs )

Farticulars

F'rowsu:m far 'Gra'lmty 7532 7336 238 |
|F'r¢w|5|nn fnr LE-aVE- Encaqhme nt 1 Eﬁ-l’s — o
.F'ru-vmurl far Tax 53.93 0.10 271.22
(Others R 40 |
ETDHI 140.89 77.55 273.60 |

Mote 31 : Revenue from Operations
{Rs.in Lakhs )

Farticulars

Eﬁemnuo from Sale of Services %247 80

[interest incame 141633 i
'irlc'ér'r}é from Business Support Services 24581 1
Sublel‘l‘.lng Income 15.40 - |
("aln an sale nf securities held fc}r trade (1 E-f;.:d'.i’} 1 ZS.ﬁ? |
|Fair Value gain on Securities held for trade 8617.76 210.26 i
IDeEa;-ped Payrnent Charges 1,142.01 130351 |
|Cther Fees and Charges 194.69 14894 i
Tutal 12,695.73 11,660.30 i

Mote 32 ; Other Income
{Rs, in Lakhs )

Far the yvear ender

Farticulars N N i March ek

Interest Income on

|
|-Bank Deposits 14.80 268.12 I
| Others 477.50 119.92 |
'Credrt Balances 'ln"l.-rjtten off 4 ?S. ED EH i
||r-|:|-_1n=5l: on Rar'-t DEpUslt -IInrJ #.a!l 3_[]"5' 2 46 |
|Rent Received 13.19 1.40 |
'|EI‘E; on lncome Tax Refund 21 531 |
E':-_aln an mie of Investments 5544 E|21 [
'F'r-c:-FT on sale of Fixed Assets 281 |
Ilé'rc:nf:t on sale |;|’r Mutual Fund - 0.09 |
|Drerivative Profit - DBO |
|Misc. Income 1.58 . i
if—air Value Gain on Investment (36,72} 12,63 [
:.Dl.wde nd Income - 10.38 |
Total 539.88 470.91 i
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MNote 33 : Operating Expenses Mote 36 : Depreciation and Amortisation Expense
(Rs. in Lakhs ) (Rs, in Lakhs )
& Far the vear ended R P For rl year ende:
Particulars r"."!.'r_-l.'-:h.r '_j';” :E'.'I,II.I-_L.- Particulars gt
:Prcrfe-ssznna. Fees /Sub Contract Charges 51 349 ¢1 *27 DE‘PFE"'E'“‘:'” i tangl_h'e askaly tﬁefer Mate 5] 24 ?1‘[‘ _2'_44 6%
é5u|::r Brl:lkerdge -| 45-'?5 92 1 Uﬂ'4 gz | |Amortization of intangible assets [%fer Nnte 6:1 9B.18 72.00
\Commission Expenses 19.01 9937 TQ““ _ 34554 -7
'Cc:mnu\‘er and Software Expenses 29838 19428
Depository Charges 51.51 5661 ' Mote 37 : Other Expenses
Mambersh:p and Eub-y:np'u:rn Charges 14.62 17.78
LF“"* Line Expenses 47.20 37.87 _ Doz For the year ended
Exchange Charges 213 393 ki g
[Cither Oerm!ng !Expmsas Z 5_11. 32 33?[) . .?LE”PE’ELPW”' Experses 1_.5_6 _:.2.'“
C{mtra ctual Expenses —— HCIE'D | Bank Char:,es and Commission 2.89 11.63
Total 2,696.58 218255 ‘Ient 176.27 17680
Rﬂpalrs & maintenance 5.92 9281
Note 34 : Employee Benefits Expenses Ratey &igues sl 20443
) kh Lu:ngal and r_lrcnfeasnan.al 29253 115,14
\Rs. in Lakhs) {Imsurance charges 352 __1 1._I:IE
B icylars or the year ended or the year ended E"|_ECTI|<,IT:|! L'harg B5 7131 _ 53583"
ST March 31, 1% Traveling & Cnn'.reyan:e expenses 13084 20574
-_.ala-rles and Wages 4.571.35 A 26565 C“'nrn rr:.un:catmn EXpEnaes ]30 10 1 74. 5“
Contributions to Pravident and Other Funds 160.02 9987 | |Canteen expenses 64, :’i 4017
|5taff Welfare Expenses 14, T‘f‘ 21 315 Erm P:T_; b FTEMEE gglia— 2071
f { aim & Dispu :
Ti 4 746.16 4 1 == i
- el s = ﬂ- C SR | empenzes - 3.37
Guesthouse Hpﬁnses
[ Director sitting fEES 5__I;I{I 550
Mote 35 : Finance Costs | Adve risement & Business premation expenses 157469 175.78
i F'nrmng & Smnonary 35.68 5227
(Rg. in Lakhs )
Payment to Auditors ) )
Particulars ""tdtuTJF:.l ﬁ.u-dnt Faes 53.33 53.00
. : Tax Audit Fees 1.30 155
;Interest on Borrowings from Related Parties 209 = Crther Matters 4.56 1352
f|,,mm.5[ on EEJI'I'L.'IW‘I"I"\_.'?-G from Others 16.80 740 [ L-:\ss on fair va!ud.tlnn of investmants 200,00
!|I‘ITE"I"F!'5T on Bomowengs from financial Instittions 359 80 1.028.14 ' Provision on standard loan assets 636 1.05 =
{Interest on Debentures 3532 43.4% Mlatﬁllanunus il o 1?55_'8_{' 21392
:Inte-rr_a st an Borrowings from Banks 548,77 560,50 L'ms el EE:E ?::-LF:FEM ciii iig 1- 55-43
oss on sale of PPE . -
|t tEB s Cost = | P 459 08 g5.47 rHEE g
IDnt:rP‘-EL DFFOWZ-Q rztoitoobliacibtidbaleiblld 2ol s SEARR { Bad Debts written off (net of allowances for dobutful debts Rs. 24.09 lakhe) 15.82 1.23
Bl ki iR 308, | Allnwances fﬂr dnbuﬁ'ul r]el:uTs 11482 3424
||'| teres,t on Dﬂpm“ e w . 1£ | [Membership & Subscription Charges 0.55 081
Tma'l _1729.78 203453 5l.|r|dq.l Balance Written off A4.33 10.52
| D niticn iF: .50
[Rental Expenses _2:3 T
|Total 1,897.20 1.980.64
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Mote 38 : Earnings/ (Loss) Per Equity Share

{Rs.in Lakhs )
Particulars e E ..E',I.I.dEU
March 31, 2020
;NEI: Profit after tax attributable to Equity Shareholders for Basic EPS 1,243.11
;Aﬂd fLess: Adjustment relating to potential equity shares
Eth profit after tax attributable to equity shareholdars for Diluted EPS 1,243.11 880.85
'WE|ghtﬂ-d i &1 number of Eqmty Shares {In Lakhs} uuistandlng dur:ng. the s
For Basic EPS 200.05 200.05
‘Fﬁr Diluted EPS 212,25 200.05
I{EH_:BI.'.'E -‘u-";l:ié;er Equity Share (Rs.) - _1_l1-:ﬁﬂ ) 1- E;CI'D
-Basu: EPS {Rs ) &8.21 4.40
'Diluted EPS (Rs.) 5.86 440

Note 3%9- Employee Benefit Obligations
The Group has classified the various benefits provided to employees as under:

1. Defined Contribution Plan
During the year, the Group has incurred and recognised the following amounts in the Staterment of Profit and Loss:

(Rs, in Lakhs )

For the

s 5 wEal St
Particulars o

March 31, 2

|Em pEnyer's Contribution to Provident Fund &2.40
I:r'npin_:,rer s Ccnmbutmn =] ESPC 2665
L 9605

2. Defined benefit plans

Gratuity [post-employment benefits)

The Group provides Tor gratiity to employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, Employees who are in cantinuous service fora
period of 3 yearsare aligible for gratuity, Thie amountof gratuity payable on retirement/ termination is theemployees last drawn basic salary per
menth computed propartionataly for 15 days salary multiplied far the number of years of service. The gratuity plan is a funded plan and the
Group makes contributions to recegnisedfapproved funds in India. The Group does not fully fund the atility and maintains a target lavel of
funding to be maintained over & period of time based on estimations of expected gratuity payments,

Gratuity

Thefollowing table sets out the amount recognised inthe balance sheet and the movamenits in the net defined banefit obligations overthe vear
are as follows:
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{Rs.in Lakhs )

Present vatue of

Farticulars abiigation
1 -Apr-18 105.89 105.89 |
[Tra n*.-.fer Ir'|.Ir [Out] Dbllqatlun ’5‘3 ﬁE 9345 |
Current Serwrp cost "it‘: ?1 - 5154’1 [
[Interest :e::pt-nsa.’[nnmrw] 7.81 (0.38) 8.20 |
Tntal amount recognised in profit or loss 64.02 {0.38) C eaa |
Rﬂmwwmmmw T |
[Galn'l.u’lnsﬁ fram chan gein financial ES'ierﬂr.lt'll:II'IS 1.59 I:{II_H] 2{}"? i
'E nr:u?néncc iganr'-.,ll.“losses {31.35) (3135 |
[Return on plan aszats excludung amounts included in interest income . [0.02) 0.02 |
Total amount recognised in other cnmpﬂahqnslva income (29.77) (0.53) ) [2?,'2'4} I
Employer ECII'ItrII:IIJtIEIHS T .74 (4.74) |

enefnl payma nts (0.18) (0.05] 013 |
[Cn merger of aubsldlary (2.86) - (3) i
31-Mar-19 23076 5.79 22498 |

Presant value of =air valus of

Particulars cbligation ' isnels £ B
01 April 2019 230.74 5.79 224,98 |
[Transfer Inf (Out) obligation (01.78) 078 |
ECl.:lrrimt Service cost 4777 M‘.-?? |
| Interest Pmense![mmme] T-?_JiE -D_.E 1 1_?:.51-1_ |
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 8523 0.21 85.02 |
Remeas urements - [
R&turn o plan assets excluding amicuwnts |r||:|uded if Interest expénsefincama) 023 023 |
.[Gam!u'ln-ss from ch ange n financial assumphions T - 2828 |
lG am:u'lu:rss fram ch ange in demographic assu n3p1|Dﬁ£ {0.29) (029 |
_xpenence l:galns:l-"lnsses {41 l'.'l?:l - 1'4.1 am I
| Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income {13.08) 0.23 (1 3'..3.1} |
|Employer E;:!I'ITril:thID;"lE = - |
Benefit paymants 13501 (35.01) |
lan sale ufsuhsu:hary GS‘? 0z ﬂ'ﬂ? “i
31-Mar-20 266.53 610 26043 |

The net liability disclosed above relates to funded plans ars as fallows:

{Rs.in Lakhs |

Particulars

{Fresant value of funded obligations 264.53 23076 105.89

Fair value of plan assets 6.10 377 - |
| - {
| Daficit Surplus) of gratutty plan 260.43 22458 105:89 |
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Significant estimates- actuarial assumptions and sensitivity
The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:

{Fs, in Lakhs )

Particulars March 31,2019 April 07, 2(
[Diserunt rate 45.85% 7.65% 170% I
EEaIar}- growth rate [per annum) &.00% &% 58.00%

} |
|Withdrawal rate (per annum) 5% at youngerages 5% at younger ages 5% at younger ages
reducing to 1% reducing to 1% reducing to 1%

at older ages at oider ages at older ages |

EEme-:ted rate al return 4.85% 7.65% Mot Applicable I
_ Indian Assured Indian Assured  Indian Assured Lives
{Maortality Table Lives Martality Lives Mortality Mortality (2004-08)
{2006-08) Tabla (2006-08) Table Table

Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is:

Impact on defined benefit obligation

|.-:|".'-_'Ir'.-5‘:l':" Iy ._-I':i':'.i_IHIF'II T

March 31,2020 | March 31,2019 |

| March 31,2020 March 31,2019 |
| Diseount rate | 0.50% 0.50% | Decrease by | 24743 | 215.00
ESHIBW grawth rate ! 0.50% 0.50% [ Increase by | 28247 24373
{Withdsawal rate | W x 110% WiR. % 110% | Increase by | 26677 | 231,72
Impact on defined benefit obligatian

Jecraass in assurmption

Change in assumption

| March 31, 2020 March 31,2019 | | March31,2020 | March31,2019 |
”Disct:unt rate | D.ED-?-% I D.ED-% - Increase by | __-.?_Eéu.EE | -E'!#b.?d
Salary growth rate | 0.50% 050% | Decreaseby | 20992 | 217.08
Withdrawal rate | W.R. % 0% W.R. x 70% Decrease by | 25484 | 228.55

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change In an assumption while holding all other assumptions canstant. In practice, this is unlikely
to pccur, and changes in seme of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to
sigrificant actuanal assumptions the same method (present value of the defined benafit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit
method atthe end of the reporting penod) hasbeen applied aswhean calculating the defined benefit lizbility recognised in the balance sheet,

The methods and types of assumptions usedin preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the prior period.
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Risk Exposure

Through its defined benefit plans, the Compariy is exposed to a number of risks, the maost significant of which are detailed

Investrment risk | The present value of defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which is determined by
reference to market vields at the end al the repanting penod on government bonds, Mast af the plan asset
Invastmant is in fixed income securities with high grades and In government securites which are subject ta
interest rate risk. A partion of the funds are invested in equity securities: The Company intends to maintain the

above investment mix in the continuing years,

Interest nsk A decraase in the market yeilds in the governmant bond will increase the plan hability; however, this will be
partlally offset by an increase in the return on the plan's debtinvestments.

Langewvity nsk Tha presant value of detined benefit plan liability is caleulated using a discount rate which is determined by

reference to the best estimate of the morality of plan participants both during and after employment, An

increase in the life expectancy af the plan participants will increase the plan's liability,

Salaryrisk | The present value of defined benefit plan liahility is calculated using a-discount rate which is determined by
reference to the future salares of plan participants. s such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants will
increase the plan's Hakility.

Maturity profile of gratuity liability and Employer contribution

Expected contributions to post-employment benefit plans forthe yearending 31 March 2020-are Rs. 73.14 lakhs (as at March 31,
2019: Rs. 73.14 lakhs).

The weighted average duration (based on discounted cash flows) of the defined benetit obligation is 14.62 years {15.31 yers
2018-19). The expected maturity amalysiz of undiscounted gratuity is as follows

| (Rs.InLakhs) |

Lessthan one year | 6,15 :

[ Betwesn 1-2years | Q.04 Il
Between 2-5years | 2548

Chver Syears | BO.OO

Total i 120.67 |
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40 Segment information :

{RBz. in Lakhs)

The Company has identified Business segments as its primary segment, Businass segments are primarily MBFC services, Broking & Distribution
services ,Consulting & Outsourcing services and Technical Services. Revenues and expenses directly attributable to segmants are reported For the ed 31 March, 2
under.each reportable segment. All other expenses which are not attributable or allocable to segments have been disclosed as unallocable |
expansas. Assets and liabidities that are directly attributable or allocable to segments are disclosed under gach reportable segment. All other Particulars
assats and habilities are disclosed as unallocable. Fixed assets that are used interchangeably amongst sagments are not allocated to prirmary
and secondary segmants

(Fs.in Lakhs )

Segment Assets 13,017.80 24.5Y8.47 R.241.34 S05.EZ 2917 50,280.45 50,280.45
bameitare:  omEmR RS TR T T _— | Segment Liabilities | 592230 | 1859595 | 299541 @ 20437 | 1,24191 | 2896014 | 2895014 |
bt hnical & 3 ! I | !
& Carvices | Una wents)| (Ente -] Capital Expenditure - - - - 243.44 243.44 243.44
services | Distribution [ Outsourcing | { Depreciation and Amortisation . . . 34554 34554 34554 |
| SegmentRevenue | Lelsde | 820721 | 0 333344 | Y0531 | 0 22060 | 1448258 | Other Non Cash Expenses [ [ ' '
Less: Inter-segment Sales / Income | 57.82 3.44 71383 | 20702 22489 | 1,246.99 e AL - 0 e ] e e
1 1 | ' { - All far Credit L : 0.51 2083 0.5%0 52.24 52.24
Total Revenue External 1,417.93 8,503.78 261962 | 69850 423 | 13,235.59 Wil s | sl | | . | .
I -raal ——— o‘f;:h T F I H I Provision for Standard Loan Assets 34638 - - - . 356.36 36.36
EE'Q ment as.a PE‘I'CE'I'I'.'EQ‘E‘ Df
total revenue of all segments 011 D64 0.20 0.05 (0.04) |
Segment Result: Profit / {Loss)
before interast and taxes 252.63 1.977.02 35.18 [24.41) (470.046) | 1,820.37
Profit befora tax | 1,820.37
| Less: Tax expense ' ' | | | 577.28
| et p.r-n.fn after tax | l | . 1.,243.11 {Rs. In Lakhs )
Met Profit for the Year 1,243.11
| Dther Comprehensive Income | . . | : . 134.60
Total Comprehensive Income [ [ 137772

Particulars

(Rs. in Lakhs )

For the year ended 31 March, 20

P icGlars Segment Assets 993458 | 2451575 8,499 48 484,72 395978 | 47.396.30 | 47,396.30
Segment Liabilities 887103 | 1881425 1,238.65 144.15 974.53 | 30,042.61 | 30,042.61
. i - . — . Capital Expenditure ; 2 - : 2,344.30 2,344.30 | 234430
Segment Revenue 1.550.25 7.143.48 402923 &13:5% F0.85 12,427.41 — - == — | i L { | o || == ]
Less: Inter-segment Sales / Income | 245,50 | 3741 | 565.96 | 113.35 - | 129622 | Depreciation and Amortisation . = . = 31669 31669 | 31669
Total Revenue External | 130475 | 477207 | 348327 | 50025 5085 | 1213119 | | Gther Non Cash Expenses | | | | ' | | 1
Total Revenuea of each | | 1 1 1 1 1 |
Segment as a percentage of [ [ [ [ [ _ Allowance for Credit Loss - 0.z0 2488 242 . 27.51 | 27.01
total revenue of all segments . 9B4% . 51.17% . 26.17% | 1.78% 0.6%% . . | P e e L Pasiate 1.05 ) } . i 1.05 | 1.05
Segment Result: Profit / (Loss) |
before interest and taxes 29688 1,113.62 12526 34.28 (344.14) 1,225.90
| | | | : | a2
Less: Tax expense | 345.07
| Mat profit after tax I I I . | I . g80.82
' Net Profit for the Year ' ' [ | | i | 880.82
Share of Loss from Associate | ' ' | i . (zan)
' Loss on Disposal of Associate | ' ' | | i | 279.05
' Profit for the Year after share of | ' ' | | ' | 58935
Profit from Associate
_l..;.I"tlil‘ler {:;mprehaﬁve Income [ | {1 ,0; 1__a?1_
Total Comprehensive Income : ' : ' ' | 1422100
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

Consolidated Financial Statements Consolidated Financial Statements

F g - NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
— == =] = === £
3 % STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020
g 2|88 |8/8(8|8|3|2
b - L o e L= : r:l o o M e v H
o | e i & | 42 The aggregate amount of assets, liabilities, income and expenditure of the
A = Jointly Controlled Operation included in CF5 is as follows
=11 = {Rs.in Lakhs )
o | o m|emlw e =
o |2 | =12 2|5
= i c |2 Particulars biarch
m Jdarch 31,
= : [
™ SIEIE E]'E-QIE.F}‘.& = :“:l-l‘_"f“ﬁ_“ |
- e - X 1
E E % VE E = E el It & ihlun Current Assets |
k' B o DO L= |Deferred Tax Assets .48 .23 |
§ 2822|138/ 5/%8 |
B o|l—|d |n|o|=®|3|o|= |Current Assets [
E @ £ |~ |2 |
‘3 P | RSN [ 1 & | [ | i E |{a] Financial Assets |
@ o [mlw 2 ml= e I
£ = rﬁ Rl B E = 5'3 b e 'ﬁ 3 {i) Trade Receivablas &.43 7.33 2374 |
i &N ml— |5 |0 G & T i
E- a L = = % g {ii} Cash and Cash Equivalents 0.29 0.27 0.34 |
2 slglele|lalislsisle = i |ib) Current Tax Assets 10.92 13.47 |
- e —
£ E|BF & (bl8 =8 " () Other Current Assets 10.94 10,96 1114 |
o o | 4 o fek
E ) =y F28g|Eg (i) Liabilities '
£ 8 ®BU| 8 :
g 3 g 15 S5EY 50 (a) Financial Liabilities |
£ - A e18 ] —
E ry e ] - (i) Trade Payables 7.37 932 3951 |
= - =® o | —
-] P et Rt P B B o e et vy | =] 2 |{b) Cther Current Liabilities - : 1.81 |
) il B o ) B R i B 8 = i - -
o B | ey R | e e e e e L P l{e) Provisions 0.01 - - |
2 - - R T il s R i
£ = b A ol
] ves i~ i -
= Em|e | mele e = |6 £ E Ib) Details of Income and Expenditure
E ol B 0 o B B Tl B Y 2 g Ry Eakha §
z R2Ig 2R G F 7S = ’ S
=2 - — o ['m L= E=] 4
§ R 3 g | 8 : :
5 s zlelclelglEglgls | 3 Farticulars March 31, 20
g 2RIZISIEISE 2| L
E i (= (F el g g o | tiii) Incame 0.97 9.24
3 2 = > E &2 e i e e 5
@ :; R e O e 3 | tiv) Expenditure 0.94 4.04
§ Ri=(E|8(3 &8 2|8 =
= || o= = = = || =
o |0 | =t oo =
ﬁ 12 R S e £ 43 - Reconciliation of Tax Expenses and the accounting profit multiplied by India's Tax Rate
. ! —— 2 2
4= = = = 1Rs.in Lakhs )
& @ [ i 1 "
2 = = -
g i & ol ;
s 2232232223 3 § : Particulars March 31,
i = a A Wlgd [ B B
= 3 = =
-2 o | Profit Before Tax 1,820.35 [
= e | [ =Lt T A e
:.E I ! g ; |Enacted Income Tax Rate (%) 27.82% : |
_E 3 - E ¢ E |Income Tax Expenses calculated at applicable income tax rate 506.42 [
o & prrrll - = I |
b= i; 2 ,FE = ";" d §3 | Tax effect of adjustments to reconcile expected income tax expense
§ <k i IE;“ : = 53 |to reported income tax expense: |
2 S| |E - = P % E £ E |Expanses that are not deductible for tax purposas 27653 146.79 |
o . = | wn |'g — = = = oo .. . fo 2t o el LA L Sl SN et -
pe E1512|1212]8 5 2 5 a % 3 5 | Deductions available under income tax (391.99) (423,95) |
1 = YW= B = 5 @ 3 U = & ek gt A 1
: FEE[2(5(5]z|3E| 5 ¢ THNE Othr 6953 T
3 LR R E: 53 |58 | |
| ‘D k = . + = E - [ |
£ SlZlE|2| % 2|e|xl2| E B % 4 Total 480.49 148.06 |
£ 5 E = % T | = i 2 & .E 2 E £ 5 2 g = [Ineeme Tax for Earlier Year {18.31} [102.60) |
= e ] = = = = =% |
% £ 2|5 £ .E g2 AEE: ] a E g E & E {Income Tax Expenses recognised in Profit & Loss 480.49 148.06 [
o : i &9 & | - & ! | |
‘E‘ % uE' = & L;: lf* = % o ~_; g E = o E ;; | Deferred tax recognised nProfit & Loss 115.08 299.6 |
A 1 | & 2 ] = e fs % AR AR y |
E 3|3 218158138/ 6 ¢ 35 52 Total Tax Recognised in Profit & Loss 577.25 345,07 |
e I ™ e = N [ - g = = = ¥ s 1 1
§ i Al R R R o O : & i \Actual Effective Income Tax Rate 31.71% 28.15% |
; { — | | . e I - I T - ? | g E - i
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44 Ralated Party Disclosure :

{)Details of Related Parties -

|&. Asgociate Companies
|
|

|l Koy Managermant Persannel
tKMEP) and their relatives

0202 LOdEs WKy | aaLm Tynaiynsain asions | LBl

le: Inclividuals owning directly or
indirectly interest in voting power that
gives them control & their relatives

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

44 Ralated Party Disclosurae :

{)Datalls of Related Parties -

o. Erterprises overwhich (b} & (c)
are able to exercise significant influence

' Bl | DEOE LHOETH TRNMNY | GALIWT T9NCLSNEE LN THOHD

Samekit Learning Managerment Private Limited (Formerly known
as Gravotix Learning Management Frivate Limited *

[ Agua Pumps Infra Veritires Limited [APRLY
Choice Realty Pvt. Lid. (Subsidiary of APIVL)

Karmal Poddar (Managing Director)

Hemlata Poddar {Mon-executive Director)
Arun Poddar {Relative of KMP)

Sonu Poddar [Relatve of KMP)

Santosh Kumar Poddar {Relative of KMP)
Manju Poddar (Relative of KMP)

Mesnu Poddar(Relative of KMPF)

Ajay Kejriwal (Execuitve Director)

halti Rajendra Kejriwal {Relative of Diractor)
Babita Ajay Kejriwal (Relfative of Directeor)
Vijay Rajendra Kejriwsl (Relative of Diractar)
Rajendrakumar Kejriwal | Retative of Director)
Mano) Singhamia (CFO)

Savita Singhania (Relative of KMP)

Karishma Shah {Company Secratarny)

Fraful Shah [Relative of KMP)

Falguni Shah {Relative of KMF)

Kamal Foddar - Holding 12.50 % of Capital in CIL
Hemlata Paddar - Holding 4.25% of Capital in CiL
Sunil Patodia - Holding 5.50% of Capital in CIL
Vinita Patodia - Holding 7.87 of Capital in CIL
Anil Patodia- Holding 5.50% of Capital in CIL
Archana Patodia- Holding 7.87% of Capital in CIL
Arun Poddar - Helding -10.50% of Capital in CIL
Sonu Poddar - Holding £.25% of capital in CIL
Shreva Patodia - Holding 1,50% of Capital in CIL
Suyash Patodia -Holding 1.50% of Capital in CIL
Aastha Patodia -Holding 1.50% of Capital in CIL
Ayush Patodia -Holding 1.50% of Capital in CIL

5. K. Patodia & Associates

Tha Byke Hospitality Ltd,

Hotel Relax Pyt Lad.

Manbhan Biofuel Pyt Lid.

5.k Patodia Advisory Services Put Ltd,

Shree Shakambhari Exims Private Limited
(Formerly known as Uptan Indrastructure Pyt Ltd, )
Anua Pumps Pyt Ltd.

Wheresmypandit.com Pyt Lid

Samekit Learning Management Private Limited
(Formerly known as Gravotix Technology Private Limitad}

Motormistri Com Private Limited

Thoughts Consultants Jaipur P-Lin 2V with
Chaice Consultancy Services FL

WAC Conaulting Private IV with Choice Consultancy Services
Private Limited (w.el January 15,2018)

Infra Dev Consultants in IV with Choice Consultancy Services Pyt Ltd
Samank Consumer Products Private Limited

Samank Apparels Private Limited

Cholce Insurance Broking India Private Limited

Farmer's Evolvement Foundation

Mumbal Vaish Seva Sansthan

Blazing Star Properties Private Limited

Anant Incensa Enterprize (Partnership entered by Aastha Patodia)
Closhoerize |Partnarship entered by Shreya Patodia)

De Starvings Couners LLP

Chizice Strategic Advisors LLP

Lions Mumbai Choice Foundation

Rupang Froparties Private Limited

Optimoe Investment Advisors Private Limited

Ajay Kejriwal HUF

Wijay Kejriwal HUF

Anil Parodia HUF

Sunil Patodia HUF

Santosh Poddar HUF

Arun Poddar HUF

Kamal Paddar HUF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

{i}): Details of Related Party transactions during the year ended March 31, 2020
{R=. in Lakhs )

Felative o [ KMP

Sale of Equity investment in follewing companies to

KMP and Relative of KMP | _ |
IHumIam Poddar | - | 5.00 | : | < L] < 5.00 |
'Sonu Poddar [ ] ] 500 | ] | 500 |
_ - | 5.00 . 500 | - | - | 10.00 I
ILnan Given to | | | | . |
{Sarmank Apparels Private Lienited . : 40,15 4015 |
SK Patodia & Associates - | 46034 | 460.34
IC_h-_oire Paars InTern'-aTi_fma_-l Private l.imite_c | - | = | : | m— | 1350 ! 13‘5{} |
| 51399 51399
[Loan Repayment received from _ _ | | _ | |
Samank Apparels Private Limited - - . - 20.18 2048 |
:‘:‘: K I-_‘atnd'-.a & Aszociates . - - . - &10.48 41068 ;
IClinire Fiers insatmlianal Dvple binited _ - - | - | =L, SARES | A0S |
| - | - | = | - | 73945 | 739.45 i
ILDBI!I Taken from - | | |
_K_a mal Poddar | - | 27550 _ - | s | | _2?'5.5'3 |
IChnicE Insurance Broking India Private L|_|_T|-'ted | - | - . - . s | 37.88 . 37.88 |
Choice Pears International Private Limited - - - - 20.42 2042 |
|Loan Repaid - | _ I
IKa rmal Poddar . - | 29.50 | - . L LY s | 29.50 i
ICHDi'L'E‘ Insurance Broking lrdia Private |__Lr‘:"‘|itad | | - . - . s | .50 . 2.50 |
Choles Pears International Private Limited 882 8.82 |
Ravenue from Operations ;
Income from Business Support Services - | 1
[The Byke Hospitality Limited [ | : | ' | 8505 | B5.05

|S K Fatodia & Associates ' 2 1] | = | = | 13954 | 139.54

|CRolce Insurance f!;::;'-ciﬂg India Private Limited | - | - . | S | iz | 122 |
e e s Al v e e L { ! ] ! it | o

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

[Rs.in Lakhs )

Particulars Asenriates Relative of KMP

Incame fram Subletting
.5 K Patodia & Associates - - - . 15.460 15.60 |
_ 15.60 1 5.60 |
Income from Professional Fees | | | | | | |
:Samaﬂk Apparels Private Limited | | [ : | 1.25 1.25
|Samank Canumear Products Private Limite | - | - [ - il | 152 1.52 !
The Byke Hospitality Limited | = | : | | = | 57220 | 572.20 |
[SK Patodia & Associates | | _ | | 662 | 6.62 |
|Choice Peers International Private Limited | 2 | | oy | =l | 023 | 0.23 |
[Cholce Insurance Broking India Private Limited | =} = 2= =1} 217 | 237 |
. 583.98 583.98 |
|Income from Brokerage | { | | | [
\Ajay Rajendra kejrival ! = | 093 | = - | 003 |
\Ajay R Kejriwal (HUF) . _ . . 003 | 0.03 |
[Malti Rajendra Kejriwal | - | - o2 | | - .02 |
Vijay Rajendra Kejriwal _ =] =] 002 | -] =] 0.02
|Rajendrakurnar kejriwal | - | * | Do | . ol | 0.0%9
|Kamal Paddar | ‘ | 13:29 | r | | = | 13.29 |
[kamal Poddar {HUF) | . | = | = | sl | g.14 | 014
Arunkumar Poddar | - | mmes | - | - | -] 27.68 |
[Hemlata Kamal Podda | . | 0.37 _ o= | | = | 0.39 |
Santosh Kumar Poddar | || s | 0.22 | Sl | | 0.2z i
Manju Poddar . - _ - . can | : e 010 |
Meenu_Poddar _ | | 021 | _ | 021 |
Vijay R Kejriwal Huf | | S| L 3| Q12 | 012 |
|Santosh Kumar Poddar Huf | - | - [ - | = Q.07 | 0.07 |
[Sunil Patodia | | . . | 0.23 - | 0.23 I
(Sunil Patodia HUF . | | E | | 011 | 011 |
\Vinita Patodia . =1 ] il T 0.22 = 1 022 |
Api| Patodia | | | | 0.03 [ 0.03 I
[Aril Fatodia HUF | - | - [ - | 00 | 0.00 :
|Archana Patodia | - | . [ - | oon | = | 0.00 |
|Shreya Patodia _ | | [ 003 | | 0.03 |
{Karishma Shah | | 0.05 | | | | Q.05 |
Savita Singhaniz =1 001 | - - | 001 |
4144 | 066 | 052 | 047 | 4310 |
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

1

(Rs. in Lakhs )

Particiutars fe L Ratative

[Other Incomae {Sale of Scrap)

SIS [BIOURLL] PRISEHOSUOT
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[The Byke Hospitality Limited = = - - 3.35 3.36
i | ' i ' ' 336 | 3.36
|Interest on Loan {Incomea) [
ii’:hnice Pears International Private Limitad [ - - 980 | G.80
‘Samank Apparels Private Limited ' i ' | 1128 | 11.28
5 K Patodia & Associates | | | 36.74_| 36.74
! | 57.82 | 57.82
|Interest on Loan (Expenses) I
?Ehni:e Insurance .Hrnking india Private Limited - I - | . _— 209 | 209
I— | | T | | 209 | 209
Director Remmuneration | | i o
Ikamal Poddar _ = | 5252 | _ = = | 52.52
: _ - | 5252 | , | , 52.52
|Salaries & Allowances |
|Manaj Sinnghania | | 1740 | 17.40
[Karishma Shah ' I 1190 | 11.90
|Ajay Kejrwal | | 2100 | 21.00
Vijay Kejriwal | = = | 1020 | ) ' 10.20
i ' : 2| 50.30 | 1020 | - 60.50
{Other Expenses |
(5K Potodia & Assaciaies | | | | | 05 | 156
samank Cansumer Preducts Private Limited - 470 | 470
| S - - . l . ! 318 318
{Current Financial Assets- Loan |
[Samank App avels Private Limited [ 10815 | 108.15
%5 ¥ Patodia & Assooiates | - W\/270 | 38270
i ' = | = | o | 5 | 49086 | 490.86
;Hurrowin-gs Current | I | I . I
(Choite Insurance Broking India Private Limited [ 2638 | 28.38
{Choige Pears International Private Limited | : 159 | 11.59
Kamal Poddar - ' | 24600 | =] ] 246,00
IArun Poddar | %.80 9.80
o T | = | 255.80 | 2| 3997 | 295.77

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

(Rs. in Lakhs )

Relative of KMP

iTradi receivables.

The Byke Hospitality Limited ' ) 2| S| = ] 51283 | 512.83
SK Patodia & Assoclates ' ] ' ' [ 8244 | T B264 |
|Choice Insurance Broking India Private Limited I - I - : = - 1362 | 13462 |
[Samank .ﬂ.apparels Private Limited I - . - I - . - 135 | 1.35 I
:'Ea'r"r'-:mk Consumer Products Private Limited | I 107 | 107 :
|Santosh Kumar Poddar - - 13:73 - - 1373 |
Meenu Poddar | | ' 70z | | ' 17.02 |
\Manju Poddar [ I | = | 784 | = || : | 7.84 |
\Anil Patodia huf | aal | 001 |
I.&n:hana Patodlia | - | - . | .01 | i | 0.01 I
|Shireys Patoidis | ==t - | L il 003 |
i - | 0.00 . 3859 | 004 | 611.52 | 65018 I
Ll e | _ . | _ | !
Bk ConsimerNadie: Tt Hlnies | 2— = == =H L i
g Kamal Poddar _ = 875 | - | Al - | 875 |
ol _h&a noj 5i_ng‘-'1 ania | - | 1_.|:IS | - _ = |l = | 1ﬂ5 |
z |Karishma Shah | _ 2.37 . | | 2.37 |
o 5 K Patodia & Associates - - - - .51 051 |
& (Sunil Patodia huf | & 1 | s | ] a9z | 092 |
2 |Anil Patodia [ % 1l il = | 102 | = | 102 |
E |50 vash Patodia I I I - I .04 = [ 0.04 I
e (Savita Singhania | 2| 004 | ) z | ] : g
g : 1217 _ 0.04 | 1.06 | 232 | 15.55 I ‘Ei
Hé (Other Current Liabilities | | | _ | | | g
= |5 Patodia & Associates - - - - 1.10 1.10 . a
E | [Choice Insurance Broking ndia Frvata Lirted i — =] | 2 o7 | om | 2
2| | _ | | | _ 188 98 | 2
3 Non Current Investments _ | . _ _ . .
% Samekit Learning Management Private Limited 311
é .(Formerl\',-' knm\.-n as Gravotix Tﬁchnnlf.:g}l Private I.E.m:'rﬁr:!:l . 0.24 | - | - . = - | 0.24 | %
© 0.26 | : | 2 = E 0.26 I f',.*
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

(ii}): Details of Related Party transactions during the year ended March 31, 2019
(Rs.in Lakhs )

Particulars

SILSULIBIEG [BI0LBUL] PEIRROEU0T

OZ0E LYCdTd TonNNy | Q3L ToYMNOEY NEI LN 3H0HT !

Loan Taken from - [
[kamal Poddar ' ' 22000 | ' ' ' 22000 |
I | | 22000 | > | =] | 22000 |
[Loan Repaid -

Kamal Poddar ' 3 ] 22000 | z | | 2 | 22000 |
[ ' 22000 | ' | ' 22000 |
jj_ﬂ.-m = oty | . ! == = = ek o
E‘Samaﬂk Apparels Private Limived . . £8.18 BB.18 :
S K Patodia & Associates - - [ - - 175,34 175.34 |
;Laan Repayment received from - | | . _ | ) :
éSamank Consumer Products Private Limited | - | - . - | -] 259.80 . 259.80 |
.5 K Patodia & Asseciates | - _ - . - . - 25.00 . 25.00 |
[ 284.80 | 284.80
iAdvance:‘ recaeived | | . . | | ;
ISarnaﬂk Consurner Products Private Limitad | - | _ - | | 41.00. | 41.00 |
[ 41.00 | 41.00 |
Advances amount repakd .
f..;mank(-:;'waumer F"rgdu{'tq Private Limited | = [ . . = - - | 47.00 . 41.00 1
’ ' ' ' ' ' 4100 | |
fFIEIu'enue from Operations ;
Income fram Business Support Services

The Byke Hospitality Limited - . - - 85.15 85.15 . !
S_K Fatodia & Associatos | | . | _ | 194.92 | 194.92 |
Choice Insurance Broking India Private Limited - - - - 433 4.33 |

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

{Rs. in Lakhs )

[neome from Brokerage & Other Charges

Ajay Rajendra Kajriwal - .EI-.I:H - - - U.IHI |
. .ﬂ.'.| ay R Kejriwal {.HUF:I . - | . . - | 0.04 | 0.04 |
[ Malti Rajendra Kejriwal - . 0. - - 0.01 |
. Vijay Rajendra Kejriwal [ - | - . 003 . 3l | | 0.03 :
Rajendra kumar Kejriwal - . L3 - - 0.03
Kamal Poddar 707 | 7.07 :
Karmal Poddar (HUF) - - - . 4720 47.20
Arurkumar Poddar . - . . . 0.01 - = 1 s | 0.01 |
. Santosh Kumar Poddar [ - [ . 0.0& . 2 || 2 | 0.04 i
E I Meenu Poddar . = . = I 011 [ - | = | 011 |
s | Vijay R Kejeiwal Huf s ] - - | -] 012 | 0.2 :
5 Santosh Kumar Poddar Huf | _ . - | = | gg2 | 0.02 |
% 7.08 _ 027 | | e 33912 !
i | Professional Service Charges {ll _ _ _ | _ | o
= . T.-he B}lﬁ!ﬂ“uspitallw LII'I:‘_I'I:E'I'_" ] | - | - . - _ = || EU.EI_.UC‘. . 2ﬂﬂﬂ'ﬂ | g
E | Samank Consumer Products Private Limitad - - - - 3.00 3.00 | g
g : S K Patodia & As:.;ucia*es - - - = ] .F.'_'zn.dﬂ' 75.40 : %
£ . 278.40 . 278.40 z
g | Other Income _ | _ _ _ _ : %
g | [ (Dvisendiocoms | | ] | | o | ww | g
% Rent Income . - . s ] x| 1.20 . 1.20 : %
"% 11.20 11.20 I 5
=
=

4

)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

Particulars

Intarest on Loans

Samank Consamer Products Prvate Limited

Felativa af EMP

10.99

(Rs. in Lakhs )

10.99

L

SILSULIBIEG [BI0LBUL] PEIRROEU0T

Samank Apparels Private Limited 0.20 0.20
I 5 K Patodia & Associates 0.38 0.38
I 11.57 11.57
I Employee Benefit Expenses
:_D i.recae::-r ramunaration 4500 42l:I-D
| Salary & allowances
_ Manol Singhara 15.02 15.02
_ Karishma Shah S.B3 .83
. .II*EJ-:TI}' KE|r|jwal 21.00 E‘i_.l:l-ﬂ
Wijay Kefriwal _ 1020 10.20
I B7.84 | 10.20 w804
_ Other Expenses
: & K Patodia & Associabes a7 1.77
| Ligns Mumbai Chaice Foundation 28.94 28.94
| Lions Club of Mumbai Choce (.50 0.50
3t 1
Secuirties Pledeged for lean
: Kamal Poddar H.j? = 8.37
| Hemlata Poddar 7486 e : 94.86
[ Arun Poddar [ 159.03 [ [ | 159.03 |
103.23 159.03 - - 252,26 :
. Balances outstanding at the end of the year o . Sl [ - o
: Short Term Burruwings | | . . | | |
Arun Poddar - - - - 9.80 Q80 |
' | ' ' | 9.80 9.80 |

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

{Rs. in Lakhs )

IShurt Term Loans & Advances

iﬁamani:. Apparels Private Lim ted | - | - . a2 | z || 8818 | B8.18

|5 K Patadia & Associates [ @ ol | ' | 150.34 | 150.34

: ' ' ' ' 238.52 238.52

|Trade receivables -

[The Byke Hospitality Limited ' ' ' = | ' 26526 | 245.26

S K Patodia & Associates [ = ] g S | 3302 | 33.02

|Choice Insurance Broking India Private Limited 1 | . | = . ||| 137 | 127

i k_;.h e - o5 = i:l_.iahi

|Hemlata Kamal Poddar - . [ EH - . 0.01

[Kamal Paddar ' ' 93.42 | ' ' 93.42

[Meenu Poddar ' i | =i ooz | =2 il < | 0.02

fﬂ.run!ﬁumar.F.‘Udl:!al [!:li.;lF:I [ [ . . - [ U:I:I:I . U.ﬁ"ﬁ
P \kamal Poddar (HLIF) - | - | - | =3l 002 | 0.02
,5 |Wijay R Kajriwal Huf - - - 1.75 1.75
g . ' ' 9342 | 034 | : 30134 | 395,09
Z |Trade Payablas
2 [Kamal Poddar j I 02 | | 1 | 026
it :M:ar:n__i Singhania - 119 - B - 119
2 Karishma Shah [ = 087 | ﬁ Z -] 087
= |5 K Patodia & Associates - | | <v8 | i
= L ' ' | 232 | - -] 298 | 5.30 o
5| | g
5 Other Current Liabilities =
2 | Vi Refondin Keiva | | =i oo | | | o7 4
B |Rajendrakumar Kejriwal - . o.M - - 0.01 &
E i5.ar|t4:|:ih Kumar Paddar Huf . - . - . 026 | =il | | 0.26 3
3 f ' e 1| . 034 | = 11 < | 0.34 o
% iDther Non Current Liabilities [ . . [ . ] ;:-'
:J |Cheice Insurance Broking India Frivate Limited | | : ' | 30,00 | 3000 |
= : [ I ' ' I 2000 | 30.00 :3:.

g
p
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- MNote 45 : Reconciliation of equity and Statement of Profit & Loss
[
g8 IR 2|8 o B =S = A Reconciliation of Equity as at April 01, 2018
o || == - | o So - o ;
= HHIE {Rs.in Lakhs )
Particulars ETLTLY o impact
| Assets
ﬁ 1 Mon - Current Assets
% ' R P PO Y I AETS] e M all I s s il 5 Property, Plant and Equipment’ 764218 (120.00) 7.522.18
— lvestment Property’ 120,00 120.00
)
Goodwill an Consalidation 2.95 2.95
e 2
E Other Intangible Assats 117.45 ‘ 117 .46
<1 Intangible Assets under Development 43583 - 435.83
g | | Financial Assets
i, | | O O A I Investmant in Equtiy Shares’ 466422 1.337.76 6,001.98
% 218 2 [218] |3 sial 8 |5ls Loans' 95,91 (0.01) 95.90
b il = = |7 T T [T Other Financial Assats 186.24 R 186.24
o
Income Tax Assets [Met) 324.23 = 32423
<f
U}J Deferrad Tax Assets 45.07 0.27 45.34
% Other Mon-Current Assets 6495 - 5495
= S . T N [ L G SN ST [ NN N (NS S . G T T ) ST N BEE S D b 13,579.04 1,338.01 14,917.06
e . XA
O [ 2 Current Assets
e D= Y =F [ =l i ' -
te ey o o Securities held for trade 1,746,480 231,73 1,978.33
L Ly [ e= — [
E Financial Assets
Lid (1) Trade Recelvables” 11,671.93 309 11,675.02
E (i) Cash and Cash Equivalents 242920 - 2429.20
LE {iii) Bank balance other than (i) above T ITVBT - 3, FI1:B7
E {iv) Loans & advances B141.48 - B,141.48
3 {v) Cther Financial Assets” J06 B0 (0.048) 0474
E} Othier Current Assets H09 19 - a9 1%
“-’-ZI = 29,097.06 234.76 29,331.83
g ] TOTAL 42,676.10 157277 44,248.89
L =
o
] =
£ £
< E &
= 2| |2 5
&) bl = = o
o £ "_2 &£ B
w |.m =
5 @ §| |2 S ”
o £ £ 2w g5 2
& E _'E E is n e Elml 8l
T 3 2lE |2 AEAE 35 3 ¥ 3
= o EI-—F & g R M i al ™
3 3 %3] |B e _| 3| |[glE| |22 2P [5]<
S SEIE| |&ly| (BlalaElel=iBl T3 (S8 2|85 |k
| 5 2 3 |9 SR 9G| 2| BEIET El.S RN Bl 5
HJ"r £ 2 E E E:tu u?‘:ﬂ!i}:l = | E|E :E"ﬁ 0 ;B & -.*.-:g al E a:.:
= el |RIE| |slmiTEl22 558 |8 a2 =g |58
—_ | W | o
O & SIE5| [Bis| B 2iczazE BT BB |BS2Elg [£E
zZ £ @016 laizl [FIE5 8525 [Hld] [Sleli Tl 8|4
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Consolidated Financial Staternents

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

A, Reconciliation of Equity as at April 01, 2018
{Rs. in Lakhs )

Particulars

{I  EQUITY & LIABILITIES

1 Eaumy

~ Equity Share Capital 2,000.48 200048 |
Chher Equity - 14.617.92 1,157.39 15,775.31

Total Equity T 16,618.40 115739 17,775.79

—— B |

2 Non - Current Liabilities '

Financial Liabilities: I
Borrowings” 493 59 (517} A88.42
Other Einancial Liabilities 30.00 - 30,00
Frovision & 119.42 &4 126.03
Deferred Tax Liability (Met} 124,82 413.94 540.74

| Other Non-Current Liabilities 113.25 - 113.25 .
! 883.08 415.38 1,298.46

3 Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 14,867.01 . 16,847.01

Trade Payables

{a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 484 . 4.85
_nli.lgn.:l_ﬁ';t.;nutstandirl-g dues of creditars other than micro
____Shmerpliseun el Grlutynde i - STowe |
Oither Financial Liakilities B0O&.55 - E(&.55
Other Current.l:iat;il.i.t.i.ez_ 6.5“.30 - ﬁ5413l{] I
__ Provision 27340 : 21340 |
25174.65 - 2517465 |
| ToTAL 42,6763 1572.77 4424889 |

* The Indian GAAFP figures have been reclassified to conform to Ind-A5 presentation requirements for the purpose of this note.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

B. Reconciliation of Equity as at March 31, 2019

{Re, in Lakhs )

Particulars
| Assets [
1 Mon- Current Assets |
' Propeny, Plant and Equipment' 8,471.37 {120.00) 835137 |
Inwestment Propeity” i 120.00 12000 |
 Goodwil 783.33 41.67 825.00 |
Goodwill on Consolidation 555 - 2-’9:5_|
Other Intangible Assets 539.08 - 539.08 |
Intangible Assets under Development 4564 . 4546 |
Financial Assets
Investment in Equtiy Shares © 2,34%-.80 1YR2.09) 21467.1
Loans 21.08 (0.02) 2107 |
Other Financial Assets ' 44489 [4.58) 44221 I
Income Tax Assets (Net) 377.43 - 37743
Deferred Tax Assets * 41.65 5812 99.77 |
Other Mon-Current Assets 1.48 a4.5% &0 [
13,080.72 (82.41) 12,998.31
e SMEas D
Securities held for Trade 249525 114199 3.637.23
Firancial Aszets
{i) Trade Receivables’ & 69835 {24.42) 4,673,594
(i) Cash and Cash Equivalents 136137 i 1,361.37
i) Bank balarcs otharthan (i) sk 1.061.72 - 106172
© (iv)Loans & advances 848987 N 848987
w} i'_:?.d'ler F.lna ncléi-..;'-'kﬁs-ets "1.2..44.?75’5.' - ]244?5":?
Other Current Assets T26.27 - 72527
33,280.42 1,117.57 34,397.99
TOTAL 46.391 A4 1,035.146 47,396.30
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Consolidated Financial Staternents

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

B. Reconciliation of Equity as at March 31, 2019

Particulars

{ EQUITY & LIABILITIES
1 o
[ .Eq u.lt.y Share C.aplt;|
Di-f:lel _qu.ut}l
Total E.'.qult'_ur
12 Non - Current Liabilities
I Financial Liabilities
Borrowings
Cther Financial Liabilitias
Provision”
Creferred Tax Liability [Net)
Other Man-Current Liabilities

|3 Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings

I Trade Pa}.'ahles

(a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprisas

{Rs. in Lakhs )

2,000.48

1) Total cuvtstanding dues of creditors other than micra
entarprises and small enterprises

Ciher Financial Liabilitios
Other Current Liabilities
Provision

TOTAL

2,000.48
14,659.94 £93.28 15,353.24
16,660,44 693.28 17,353.72
439.86 (3.61) 436,25
30,00 30.00
171.20 4.49 175.68
197.24 241.01 538.25
21944 219458
1,057.76 341.89 1,399.64
16,104.59 16,104.59

iss 614 614 |

915.26 15,24
72.94 7294
11,464 44 11,464 44
77.55 77.55
28,642.94 . 28,642,94
46,361.14 1,035.17 47,396,30

* The Indian GAAP figures have bean reclassified 1o confarm to Ind-AS presamation requirements for the purpose of this note.
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Consolidated Financial Statements

STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

C. Reconciliation of Total Comprehensive Incame for the year ended March 31, 2019

Particulars

{Rs. in Lakhs )

Impact

il Income [
| Revenue from Operations 10,749.73 910,57 11,640.30 |
| Otherincome 435.82 3509 47091 |
| Total Revenue 11,185.56 94566 1243121 |
III Expenses - i
i . D|;E;ating Expenses 218255 x 2,182.55 !
| Empioyee Benefits Expense 4 36414 2674 4.390.88 |
| Finance Costs 2031.82 M 203453 |
i I:-?Eprec.ianun E‘: Amnrtisatu:ln 35336 {41 6?] 3‘66? |
[ Other Expenses 1.796.56 184.08 1.980.64 |
| Total Expence 10,733.43 171.87 10,905.30
il Profit Before Tax (111 45213 77380 122592 |
IV Tax Expense / {Benefit): |
i {a) Current Tax 148.06 . 148.06 |
. tb) (Excess} ) Short Provision of Earlier Year Tax (102.85) - (10285 |
: _{:}Defen-'edTi it el oot v = rer L |
! 118.95 226.13 345.07 |
V. Proftfor the Yoar (1Y) 33318 547.67 89085 |
Share of Profit from Associate (12.12) [0.2%) {12.41)
| Losson Disposat of Associate 27905 - 27905
~ Profit for the Year after Share of Profit from Associate 42.01 547.38 589.39 |
(W1 D;'.'hqr Comprahensive Income |
i Fair Value of Employes Banefit Chligation 28.62 28.462
| Fair Valuation Gain (Loss) on lnvestment. {1,397.00) (1,397.000
i Tox Effect on above 356,91 356
Vil Other Comprshensive income for the period * (1.011.47) qo147) |
iy‘lll Total Comprehansive income Fnrthu_ pariod 42.01 (464.09) (422.08) |

*The Indlan GAAF figures have been reclassified to confarm to Ind-AS presentation reguirements for the purpose of this note
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Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

Motes:

1. Pursuant to Ind AS requirements, investment property is presented separately, Under |-GAAP tha same was presented as part of tangible
assets. Tangible assets have bean now divided into two categories under Ind AS viz, Property, plant and equipment and Investment property

2. Al Investments except investrments in group companies have been fair valued in accordance with Ind AS 109, lnvestments ane fair valued
through profit or loss; Under FGAAP the current investrments were carried at cost net of diminution in their value as at the Balance Sheet
date.The longterm investments were carried at cost net of permanent diminution, if any.

3. Under Ind AS financial assets and llabilities are measured at fair value at the inception and subsequently at amortised cost or at fair value
bazed on their classification, Under FGAAP the inancial assets and liabilities were measured at cost.

4. "The provision is made against trade roceivables based on "expected crodit loss” model as per Ind A5 109, Under F-GAAP the provision was
made whanthe recelvable turned doubtful based on the assessment on case to case basis,”

5. “Underind A5 23 borrowing cost is calculated following effective rate ofinterest (EIR} method as described under Ind AS 109, Uinder -GAAP
barrowing cost was computed by applying the coupon rate to the principle amount for the pernod with consequential impact in the asset
iterns where borrowing cost is capitalised/inventorised. Borrowings are recognised at fair value at the inception and subsequently at
amortsed cost with interest recognised based on EIR method.

&, Actuarial gains and losses pertaining to defined banefit obligations and re-measurement pertaining to returnon plan assets are recognised
in Other Comprehansive Income in accordance with Ind AS 19 and are not reclassified to profit or loss. Further, there are certain other items
{as presented in OCH) that are accounted in Other Comprehensive Income and subsequently reclassified 1o Profitor Loss in accordance with
Ind A% requirements,

D. Impact of Ind AS on the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2019
(R, in Lakhs )

Particulars

I Cash Flaws from Oparating Activities (1,201.43) {2,423.14) {3 .624.59)
él:’,ash Flows from Iﬂ;.r.QSTII}E; Activities 3064 T”? - 2337 5,403 Elé .
ECash Flows from Financing Activities (293256} 85,44 2,847,172} I
;I:'let Increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (1,067.82) (0.01) {1,067.83) .
Cash and Cash Equivalants as at March 31, 2018 242920 242920 I
Casl- and Cash Equivalents as at March 31, 2019 1,341.37 1,361.37
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 21, 2020

MNote 46:- Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 1 * Presentation of financial statements”

[a) Current Assets expected to be recoverd within twelve months and after
twelve months from the reporting date:

Particulars

MNote Mo

Consolidated Financial Statements

{Rs. in Lakhs )

{Becurities held for Trade
;.Tﬁ de Receivables
Ei’.‘.'i?'-ﬁl"lﬁ

.Clﬂ'ler Financial Aszets

| Other Current Assels

12 3,060.91 3,060.91 | 343723 | 3,637.23
13 | 910828 | | 910428 667394 | | 6,673.94
16| 11.779.83 11,779.83 | 548987 | 8,489.87
17| 90569 | - | 905696 | 1244759 | | 12,447.59
18 | 54000 | 54000 72627 | | 72827

(b) Current Liabilities expected to be recoverd within twelve months and after
twelve months from the reporting date:

Farticulars

MNota Mo

{Rs, in Lakhs )

Trade Fayables
Bormowings
Oither Financial Liabilities

{ Cnher Curnent Liabilities

76 722.79 722.79 921.40 | 921.40
27 | 13.859.06 | | 13,859.06| 1410659 | | 16,106.59
28 | 9139 | - | erae| 7294 | _ | 7294 |
29 | 1287380 | | 12573.89| 1146446 | | 11.464.46 |

{c) Fair Value heirarchy of financial assets and liabilities measured at Fair Value :

{Rs.in Lakhs )

| Fimancial Assets
Irvestments (Other Than

Loans- Man Current

Other Financlal Assets-
Man Current

. Tr&r].é,t Reneh.'ah.]-es

| Loans- Current

{ Fin_anc'!al_ljabl lities

Cither Mon Current
Financial Liabalities

| Trade Payabie

| Barrowings- Currant

| 352.63 .

3.637.23 |

805.07 | 2,167.70
- | - | 207 |

| 44221 |

3,637.23

- | - | 667394
' | 8.489.87 |
12,447.59

436.25

30.00
92140

: - 16,106.59 |

I Subsidiaries and Associates) & .84 195507 = 1,958.71
7 - - 74,63
8 | = 394.47
Sacuritivs held for trade 12 | 3.060.97 3.080.91
13 .104.28
T . 4
| 16 - [11,779.83 |
{ Other Financial Assets- Current 17 _9.056.96
| Borrowings: Mon Current 21 EBD.*M:
22 0.00
6 | T227%|
27 | - [13.859.06
28 |

[ Cther Current Financial Liabilities|

#13%|

72594
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

{d) Quantitive Disclosures of carrying value / fair Value measurement
heirarchy for assets and liabilities

{Rs.in Lakhs )

Asat March 21, 20

Farticulars i
Vvailatian

| Financial Assets measured at
Fair Value through Profit and Loss

| Mon Current

| Irvestment in Equity Shares of

| Other Companies | 31/3/2020| 364 344 | - |31zi2019 | 8213 8213

| Current

Securities Held for Trade | 31/3/2020| 3,080.91 3,067 - (3342019 3,637.23 3,637.43

'
| Financial Assets measurad at Fair

| Value thraugh Cither

| Comprehensive Income

Mon Current

| Investment in Equity Shares of
| Other Companies

| 31/3/2020( 450.00 450.00 - | 31EEOTR) 280.50 28050

Investment in Equity Shares of [
[ Qther Companies 31/3/2020) 1,505.07 - 150507 |31/32019 ) 1,805.07

: Finarcial Assets at Amonised Cost
| Non Current

| Investmant in Associstes I37352020| 0.246 - 312019 |

| Loans 31/3r2020| 74.63 - . |31/3r2019 21.07 -

| Tither Financial Assets | 314320200 394.67 IS | 44221
| Current

| Trade Receivables

| Loans

[ Cither Financial Assets

31/3/2020| 9,104.28
31/3/2020111,779.83

| 31/3/2020] 9,056.94
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31/3/2019 | 6,673.94
31/3/2019 | 1,361.37
131/3/2019 | 1,061.72
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

Mote 47:- Financial Assets at Amortised Cost Method

The carrying value of the following financial assets recognised at amortised cost:
{Rs.in Lakhs )

Boe o As at April

it March 31,2019 01,2018

Mon-Current Financial Assets

| Loans 74.63 21.07 95.90 |
Other Financial Assets 39457 4421 18524 |
Current Financial Assets o - R
| Trede Receivables 9,104.28 667394 11,675.02 |
| Cash and Cash Equivalners 3,733.23 1.361:37 242920
| Other Bank Balances 1,364.98 1,061.72 377187 |
| Loans 11,779.83 8,489.87 814148 |
[ Cthiers 9.056.96 12,447.59 70674 |
| Total 35,508.58 30,497.77 27,026.45 |

Mate: The fair value of the abiove financial assets are approximately equivalent to carrying values as recognised above.

Mote 48:- Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost Method

The carrying value of the following financial liabilities recognised at amorised cost:
{Rs.in Lakhs )

As at Aa at

March 31, 2017

Particulars

March 31, 2020

| Non-Current Financial Liabilities

| Barrowings 38096 436.25 48842 |
__'-';_Hher Fl_n_el_'uc_m! Ejf'l_l‘;r_i.ll!:.l.?ﬁ-.. .00 30.00 30.00
Current Financial Liabilities :
| Borrowings 13,859.06 16,106.59 16,867.01 |
Trade Payable 722,79 $21.40 984,18 |
| Other Finandal Liablitias 9139 72.94 7294 |
| Total 15,054.20 17,567.18 18,442.55 |

Mote: The tair value of the above financial lisbilities are approximately equivalent to carrying values as recognised above:

Mote 49:- Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss

The carrying value of the following financial assets recognised at fair value through profit or loss:
{Rs.in Lakhs )

Particulars

March

|Mon Current Financial Assets
[Investments 3.64 82,13 740.02
[Total 3.64 8213 740,02

Mote: The above investments are quoted instrumants in active markets and the =ame is recognised at fair value.
Fairvalue measurement is dene considering the Level -1 of Fair Value Hierarchy as perthe lnd-A5 113,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

In assessing the impairment of financial assets under the expected credit loss model, the Group defines default when a loan
obligation is overdue for more than 90 days (net of subsequentreceiptz as on the repornting date)and creditimpaired.

Mate 50:- Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income

The carrying value of the following financial assets recognised at fair value through ether comprehensive incame:

(Rs.in Lakhs ) (Rs.in Lakhs )
Particulars i e - bl e i b o
March 3 ) : 01. 2018 Particulars March

| NaiyGurrant Findincial Ascats ) - _ Gross Stage 1 (DPD< 30 days) Performing asset and 12 monthh ECL 11,792,461 8,344.74
| Investrments 4350.00 240.50 1.677.50 Less ; Impairment loss allowance hil43 24,07

Total 450,00 280,50 1,677.50 Met Stage 1 Assets 11,732.18 8,320.4%9

ECL Provisson Coverage 0.51% 0.29%
Note 51 : Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies Gross Stage 2 (30-DPD< 90 days) Under performing assets increase
The Group's principal financial liabilities comprise of loans and borrowings, trade and other payablesThe main purpase of in credit risk and Lifetime ECL
these financial liabilities is 1o finance the Group’s operations directly ar indirectly. The Greup’s principal financial assets include Less | Impairment loss allowance
investments, loans, trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations, MNet Stage 2 Assets
The Groupis exposed to mia rket rizk, credit ri.sk and liquidity risk. The below note explains the sources of risk which the entity is | Ect Fravision Coverags .
exposedtoand how the entity managesthe risk : (Racin Lakha ) Gross Stage 3 {DPD>90) Non-performing assets credit impaired and lifetime ECL -
5.in 5

Less ! impairment loss allowance
surament Wig TIEn N-tStnguEAsuu
ECL Provision Coverage

Credit Risk Cash and cash eguivalents, trade “Aging analysis “Diversification of |
receivables, financial instruments, and Credit ratings Existing credit Total Loans & Advances -
Fixed Deposit with Banks, financial [irviits Linutilized fromm Less : Impairment loss allowance
assets measured ot amortised cost, |  Consortiem Bankers, Met Loans & Advances -
Liguidity Risk Barrowings and other labilities Rolling cash Awailability of committed BC- Prowision Coverage
flesw foracasts Credit lines and

Financial instruments and cash deposits

borrowlng facilities '
drolinasin Craditrisk from balanceswith banks and financial insttubionsis managed by the Group's finance department in accordance with the Campany's

Market Risk - foreign exchange | Future commercial transactions. Cash flow forecasting Forward foreign policy. Investments of surplus funds are made generally in the fired deposits and for funding to subsidiary company. The investment limits are
Recognised financial liabilities not and exchange contracts setto minimize the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss to make payments forvendars,
denominated in Indian Rupee (INR) Sansitivity analysis
Markst Risk . ot : T T b e at varlAEIE Ak T P hosi e rda RS The Group's maximurm exposure to credit nek for the companents of the balance sheet at March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019 is the carrying
| iRt ! bt oo | SRRIIDER | e v TR amounts as stated in balance shest excoptior balances of subsidiary company
Credit Risk Liguidity Risk

Credit risk Is the risk that counterparty will not meet its abligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to The Group manitors itsriskof a shontage of funds using aliquidity planning toal,

a financial loss. The Group is exposad to credit risk from itz operating activities (primarily trade recesvables) and from its

! : il i ) . o pfa B {fi The Group's abjective is to maintain a balance between captinuity of funding and flaxibility thaough the use of bank leans and unsecured loans,
financing activities, including Fixed depasits with banks and financialinstitutions and other financial instruments:

The Group has access to a sufficient variety of sources of funding which can be rolled over with existing lenders. The Group believes that the
An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major customers. In addition, a large warking capital issufficlent to meet its current requirements.

nurnber of minor receivables are grouped inte homogenous groups and assessed for impairmant collectively. The maximum

exposureto creditrisk atthe reporting dateis the carrying value of each class of financial assets disclosed in Note 11.

Cn account of adoption of Ind-AS 109, the Group uses expectad credit loss model to assess the impairment loss or gain. The
Group uses a provision matrix to compute the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables. The provision matrix takes
Inte account available external and internal credit risk factors and the Group's historical experience for customers.

The Group has made adjustments in ECL Madesl to consider the impact of the Covid-1% pandemic on the provision. The
probability of default has been aszessed considering the |ikelihood of increased credit risk and conseguential default due to
pandemic. The impact on collateral values is also assessed for determination of loss given default and reasonable haircuts are
applied wherever necessary. The moratorium benefit wherever extended has been taken into consideration for staging of
loarisinthe Modal.

The Group offers loans secured by real estate’housing property/investments. In order to migate credit risk, the Group also
seeks collateral appropriate to the product segmant and also ensure that Loan to value ratio is maintained as specified by
requlator.

An Impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date based on the facts and circumstances existing on that date to
identify expected losses on account of tirme value of money and credit risk. The credit guality of Loans and advances measured
at amortised cost s primarily assessed by the Days Past Due |DPD) status and other gualitative factors leading toe increase in
credit rigk
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

The table below provides details regarding the maturities of significant financial liabilities as of
March 31, 2019, March 31, 2018 and April 01, 2018:

[Rs. in Lakhs )

Particulars -1 Yea -5 i Tatal

Year ended March 31, 2020

\Secured Loans 7.718.39 125.30 115.32 144,92 8,103.92
:l.lnﬁe::urﬂd Loans .ﬁ,.1 ‘?I"J:I-ﬁ. - - - &, 19 .';'.Elﬁ
iTrade Fayables T22:79 - - - 722,79
[Githers 12,665.28 : 12,665 .28
Year ended March 21, 2019

Secured Loans. 10,539.70 125.11 112.86 202 84 10,980.50
:L.l nsacured Loans 5.627.57 - - 262157
Trade Payables 921.40 - : 2 921.40
(Cthers 11,537.40 > : . 11,537.40
Year ended April 01, 2018

|Secured Loans 16,821.09 126,58 109.20 260.24 17,317.10
?U;'lsa_ture-dul:nans 109.95 = 3 109.95
| Trace Payables QB&18 : TE4.18
Others 7.049.85 : : : 7,049 85
Market Risk

Market risk comprises two types of risk: interest rate risk and currency risk: Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and
barrowings and deposits

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of & financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. The Company’s exposureto the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company's long-term debt obligations with
floating mterast rates.

The Group manages its interest rate risk by having a balanced portfalio of fixed and variable rateé loans and borowirgs, The Group's policy isto
keep balance batween it borrowings at fised rates of interest, The difference between fired and varable rate interest amounts calculated by
raference toan agreed -upan noticnal principal smount.

The exposure of the Company to mterest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as under;
(Rs.in Lakhs )

March 3

i‘u’ari&ble Rate Borrowing i ] ]
1424002 16,542 84 1735543

hxedﬁdlu éﬂrrm.\'l;'-g_ |
| Tatal 1*’2.__24(],{!2 1 E.542.B4 1 ?_.__355,43

Interest rate Sensitivity

lhe following table dermenstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans and
barrowings affected, after the impact of hedge aceounting. With all sther variables held constant, the Company's profit bafore
tax is affected through the impact an floating rate barrowings, as follows:
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(Rs.in Lakhs )

Effect on Profit

Particulars
March 31, 2020 + 100 142.40
-100 (14240}
March 31, 2019 +100 165.43
100 {165.43)
Foreign Currency Risk

Forgign currency risk is the risk thatthe fairvalue orfuture cash flows ofan exposure will fluctuate hacause of changes in forgign exchange rates,
The Company's exposure to the nizk of changesin foreign exchange rates relates to purchase of raw material of chemical and fertiliser products
from out of the India, The Company manages its foreign curmancy risk by hedging the payables as an when considered necessary, When a
derivativa is entered into for the purpose of being a hedge, the Company negotiates the terms of those derivatives to match the terms of the
hedged axposure. The Company hedges its exposure to fluctuations an tha translation into INR of its foreign payables in farsign curréncies and
by using foreign currency option or foreard contracts

Foreign Currency Sensitivity
The following tables dermonstrate the seasitivity to areasonably possible changas inforeign exchange rate, with all otharvariables held constant.
The impact onthe Company’s profit before tax s dueto changes in the fair value of monetary assets and labilities.

(Rs. ir Lakhs)

Eariciilar Effect an
articutars F'r‘-jf.if |:||:‘-'i'|:|r|: T G
March 31, 2020 + 5%
- 5%
March 31,2019 + 5%

- 5%

Mote 52 ; Capital Management

Far the purpase of the Group's capital management, capital includes fssued equity share capital, securities premium and all other reserves
attributable to the equity holders of the Group. The primary objective of the Group's capital management is to maximize the value of the
share and to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group manages s capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the
finaneial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group can adjust the dividend payment to-sharehiolders, issue new
shares, etc. The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratic, which is net debt divided by total equity. The Group includes within net dabt,
interest bearing loans and borrowings, less cash and cash squivalents.

{Rs. in Lakhs )

Particulars
A} Net Debt
;Bﬂrrowirsgs [Currant and Non-Cumrent) 14,240.02 16,542.84 17,355.:43
%Cash and cash r—.q;ai\raFF.-ntﬁ . E.-'n.{:"?ﬁ..?* 2..;1??3.09 £.201.07

| = Net Debt (A) 19,338.23 18,965.93 23,556.50
BJ Equity
{Equity share capital 2,000.48 2,000.48 2,000.48
Other Equity 19,319.84 15,353.24 15,775.31 |
- Total Equity {B) 21,320.34 17,353.72 17,77579 |
\Gearing Ratio (Net Debt / Capital) i.e. (A / B) 90.70% 109.29% 132.52% |
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Mote 53 : Contingent Liabilities not Provided for;
{a) (Rs. in Lakhs)

Az at

March 31, 2020

Income tax matters under dispute ® 110.25 19.34
Total 110.25 19.34 19.34

*The Company does not expect any outflow of economic resources in respect of above.

{b) Corporate Guarantee Issued to

As at

March 31, 2020 March
Corporate guarantess issued 1o Banks & Financial Institutions - 241373 1,938,046 35975
Total 2413.73 1.938.04 3.999.75

“The above represents guarantee given to bank and financial mstituion on behalf of subsidiary, Gross gurantee given to Choice
Equity Broking Private Limited Rs 3,000.00 lakhs { March 21, 201%: 5500.00 lakhs), {(April 01, 201 8; 4000.00} out of which utlised
Rs 2115.50 lakhs { March 31, 2019: 164500 lakhs); (April 01, 2018: 3999.75 lakhs) and to Choice Consultancy Services Private
Lirmited Grose Rs 300.00 lakhe { March 31, 2019: 300.00 lakhs) out of which utlised R 298.23 lakhs, (March 31, 2019: 293.04
lakhs).”

MNote 54 ; Capital and Other Commitments:

Capial Commitments : Mil

MNote 55 : Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility:

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the company.is not mandatorily required to spand an corporate social responsibility (CSR)
activities. However the group voulantarily made contribution of Rs Nil (March 31, 2019 : Rs. 3.36 Lakhs) towards TSR,

MNOTE 56 : EXPENDITURE IN FOREIGN CURRENCY

Particulars

5 Al
1

March 31,2019

Foreign Travelling Expenses 2.09
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Mote 57 : COVID impact

The outbreak of COVID- 19 pandemic across the globe and in India hascontributed to a significant decling and volatility inthe
global and Indian financial markets and slowdown in the economic activities. The management of the Group have, based on
current available information, determined the carrying value of various financial assets after considering, The potential macro-
gconomicimpact and all available internal and external information up to the date of approval of these consolidated financial
Statements

Based on the current indicators of Future economic conditions, the Group considers the carrying value of the aforesaid assets
appropriate,

The extent to which the COVID-19 pandemic will impact future results of the Group will depend on future developments,
which are highly uncertain, including, among other things, any new information concerning the severity of the COVID19
pandemic and any action to contain its spread ormitioate its impact whether government-mandated or elected by the Graup.
Given the uncertainty over the potential macro-ecanomic condition, the impact of the glabal health pandemic may be
different fram that estimated as at the date of approval of these consolidated financial results and the Group will continue to
closely monitor any material changes to future economic conditions, which will be given effect to in the respective future
period,

Mote 58 : Previous Years' Figures:

The financial staternents have been prepared in accordance with the Companies {Indian Accaunting Standards) Rules, 2015
[Ind-AS) preseribved under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 201 3 and other recognised accounting practices and palicesto
the extent applicable. The Group has adopted Ind-AS on April 01,2017 with the transition date as April 01, 2018, and adoption
was carried out in accordance with Ind-A% 101 - First Time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards. The pravious period's
figures have beenregrouped or rearranged wherever necessary,

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Sd/- Sdy-

Kamal Poddar Ajay Kejriwal
Managing Director Director
(DIMN-01518700) (DIN-0305184%)

Sd/- Sdy-

Manej Singhania Karishma Shah

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place: Mumbai Place : Mumbai

Date : August 04, 2020 Date © August 04, 2020
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Notice

CHOICE INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
CHOICE HOUSE, SHREE SHAKAMBHARI CORPORATE PARK, PLOT NO 156-158,
J. B. NAGAR, ANDHERI (EAST), MUMBAI - 400099
Tel No: +91-22-6707-9999; Fax: +91-22-6707-9959
Email Id: info@choiceindia.com; CIN No: L67190MH1993PLC071117

Notice is hereby given that 27th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the members of Choice International Limited will be
held on Wednesday, September 30, 2020 at 11.00 A.M. through Video Conferencing / Other Audio Video Media, to

transactthe following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1 Toconsiderand adopt:

A) Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2020 and the
reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

B) Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year ended March 31,2020 and the

reports of the Auditorsthereon.

To appoint a Director in place of Mrs. Hemlata Poddar (DIN No: 02931322), who retires by rotation and, being

eligible, offers herself forre-appointment

Place: Mumbai
Date: September 05,2020

Registered Office:

Choice House, Shree Shakambhari Corporate Park,
PlotNo.156-158,J.B.Nagar,

Andheri (East),

Mumbai-400099

Email Id: info@choiceindia.com

By Order of the Board of Directors
Sd/-

(Karishma Shah)

Company Secretary
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‘ Notice Notice ‘

NOTES 10 Asmandated by SEBI, effective from April 1,2019 that securities of Member of the Company after sending of the Notice and holding v NowenteryourUserID

General instructions for accessing and participating in the 27th AGM listed Companies Shall be transferred only in dematerialised form. shares as of the cut off date, should follow the same procedure for a ForCDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,

through VC/OAVM Facility and voting through electronic means In oArder.tofacilitate-transferofshgrg(s) i-n view of the above an-dto e-Voting as mentioned below. b ForNSDLE Charscts: DPIDfollowsd byBDigits ClisntiD,

including remote e-Voting: avail various beneﬁts of dematerlahsa.’uon, Members are advised 22 The voting results will be declared on receipt of Scrutinizers Shareholders holdi h in Physical F hould ent

1 In view of the continuing Covid-19 pandemic, the Ministry of to dematerialise share(s) held by them in physical form. Report. The voting results along with the Scrutinizer's Report will < Foﬁ(r)eijgtresrreo isltr;gr;ez vj:tisti;r;Coﬁlcaan QUIETEIE SICak

irs(” " ideits ci 11 As per SEBI Circular dated 20th April, 2018 Shareholders whose be placed on the website of the agency www.evotingindia.com 9 pany:

Corporate Affairs ("MCA") has vide its circular dated 5th May, 2020 P p . ngind N vely. if . d for CDSL's EASI/EASIEST
read with circular dated 8th April, 2020 and 13th April, 2020 PAN and Bank details are notmapped:- and also on the website of the Company www.choiceindia.com, Vi ter.natlve y, i youlare.regxstﬁre ./(;r ds s . e-
(collectively referred to as (“"MCA circular”) permitted the holding e Shareholders holding shares in physical mode are requested within 48 hours after the conclusion of the 27 th AGM of the iirv;ﬁe?' &O:aZ?nus?E_ln er tltopsi.n V\é\;ve\lziceniil:lslagzt;ne rc;mu
of the Annual General Meeting ("AGM") through VC / OAVN, to compulsorily furnish the details to the Share Company and will also be submitted to the BSE Limited (BSE) 9 Y . 9y , 9 N =Y

: ; ) where the shares of the Company are listed successfully log-in to CDSL's EASI/EASIEST e-services, click on
without the physical presence of the Members at a common Department/Registrar & Share Transfer Agent. Feny ' e-Voting option and proceed directly to cast your vote
;%ZU;‘(lpAcotT)pliSEEﬁ M(/ILth :he prgvgslionstéf the Cgrgpaniles Act, v Sharehaldors Telding shares i eleerenie mstde: 75 THE INTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDRES FOR REMOTE E-VOTING electronically.

ct”), istin igation an isclosure . . . : . .
Requirements) Regulations 20%5(“SEE?I Listing Obligations”) and rqugsted to furnish the details to their respective Depository AREASUNDER M errer the: rage Vereton as displayed snd sk on
MCA Circulars, the AGM oft’he Companyis being held through VC Farfisipant(DR); | Thervoling peviod begins on September 27, 2020 st 02.00.4M Login.
/OAVM ' et 2 < 12 In case of Joint holders, the Member whose name appears as the and ends on September 29,2020 at05.00 PM . During this period Vi If vou are holding shares in demat form and had loaged on to
: - : : shareholders’ of the Company, holding shares either in physical b nolging ) 99
) o first holder in the order of names as per the Register of Members wwwievotingindia.com and voted on an eatliere-voting of an

2 Generally,a member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is of the Company will be entitled to vote atthe AGM form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date (record : 9 e . 9 y
entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on a poll instead of o ) ' ) date) of September 23, 2020 may cast their vote electronically. company, then your existing password is to be used.
himself and the proxy need not be a member of the Company. 13 ;qus;ant LO thehplgo‘l"s'ggs ?f iec?:on 108 of t?l\jl Companies AC:;' The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL forvoting thereafter. If you are afirsttime user follow the steps given below:
Since this AGM is being held through VC / OAVM pursuant to the read with, hule oithie Lompadnies (Vanagement an i ; i
MEA. Circulars phys?cal attendagnce of membpers has been Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of ! Zhirehol(liders tv\ého P;iredflreatdy t\iﬁted ptr‘|or o it FieaUig
dispensed Withl. Accordingly, the facility for appointment of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations atewouldnotbeentitiedtovoteattne mee mgvenge, ]
proxies by the members will not be available for the AGM and 2015 (as amended), and MCA Circulars dated April 08, 2020, April it The sharghqldgrs siiesld Jog oo io the s=vefing website
hence the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed 13,2020 and May 05, 2020 the Company is providing facility of wwwevetingindiacon,
herato. remote e-voting to its Members in respect of the business to be iv Clickon”Shareholders” module.

3 Corporate Members are required to send a scanned copy transacte_d R thls purpose, the Company Ahas
(PDF/JPG Format) of its Board or governing body Resolution / ente.red'm.to an agreement \.N.Ith. Centrgl Depository Serwcgs
Authorization, etc authorizing its representative to attend the (Indig) Limitedl (CDSL) for facilitating veting fhreugh cleitonic For Shareholders holdi h inD t F d Physical F
AGM thratgh Ve EA M enit bahalf andtavotethotigh rmees means, as the authorized e-Voting's agency. The facility of casting i e s
e-voting togthe scrutinizer by email through its registgred email voiRsbysmembsr using remote e-voting asrwel axtheievoting
addressto info@choiceindia.com. system onthe date of the AGM will be provided by CDSL. PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax

4 In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No 14 Thiss Wembiets eant fain e iThl i e VEASEUN made 13 Depgrtment(AppIicableforboth dematshate ol derssweal a8
17/2020 dated April 1y3 2020pthe Notice calling the AGM has. min s before @nd after the selicduled Yime of the physical shareholders) ; ;

e |oade5 S Thi: e baita of thegCom I commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the
www. cho?ceindia com. The Notice can also be accessedaronzthe mentioned in the Notice. The facility of participation at the AGM Company/Depository Participant are requested to use the
websites of the Stock Exehamges fe: BSE limites b through VC/OAVM will be made available to atleast 1000 sequenceR_PAtmeer sent by Company/RTA or contact
www.bseindia.com. The AGM Notice is aIsé) c.iisseminated on the members on first come firstserved basis. This will notinclude large Company/R-
website of CDSL (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting Shareholders (Shargholders holding 2% or more Shareh0|din9)l Dividend Bank Details OR Date of Birth (DOB) Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy
facility and e-voting system during the AGM) i.e. Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial format) as recorded in your demat account or in the company
www.evotingindia.com Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination recordsin ordertologin.

Ib holdi ) h i el o] d and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship If both the details are not recorded with the depository or

5 Mem ers helding shapes [0 Slectionis fomm are reguesieg 1o Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM company please enter the member id / folio number in the
reg;)s_t'er/ “pgate ﬂ;e” POStaL ‘fdresi ijma"badcz;‘f;')te'epgot”e/ without restriction on account of first come first served basis. Dividend Bank details field as mentioned in instruction (v).
mobile numbers, Permanent Account Number mandates,
nominations, power of attorney , bank details such as name of 15 The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through

: VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose of ascertaining the
éigia;‘i kif?ﬁgfg:gigfon:; ?Zﬁzirga”ni?a?;wggﬁ‘t’:;'Fasri querumiunderSedian 08 sithe Companics ACLEUTE: ix Afterenteringthese details appropriately,clickon “SUBMIT"tab.  xiv Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK" if you wish to view the
maintaining Demat Accounts. 16 The AGM has been convened through VC/ OAVM in compliance x  Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly entire Resolution details.

& Kembars holding shares e physial form sre fecuested o with applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with reach the Company selection screen. However, shareholders xv Afterselectingthe resolution you have decided to vote on, click on
registery updatertheir posta address Sl axidess telephans/ MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020 and MCA Circular holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ “SUBMIT". A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to
siEhile murdkes. BAK mandates, e ————— No. 17/2020 dated April 13,2020 and MCA Circular No. 20/2020 menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login confirm your vote, click on “OK", else to change your vote, click on
Attorney, bank details such as name of the bank and branch dated May 05, 2020. password‘in the new password field. Kindly note thfat this “"CANCEL" and accordingly modify yourvote.
details, bank accounts number, MICR code, IFSC code, etc., with 17 The Equity Share Transfer Registers will remain closed from passwgrd is to be also used by the demaF holders for voting for  yvi Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be
the Registrar and Transfer Agent i.e. Sharex Dynamics(India) Thursday, 24th September, 2020 to Wednesday, 30th September, resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to allowed to modify yourvote.

Private Limited by sending an email to support@sharexindia.com 2020 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of Annual General Vcl)tffl PrO\I"qed thatl company OFC’jtSdfor e—vo;mg through CDS!J— xvii You can alsotake a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here

7 Non - Resident Indian members are requested to inform Sharex Meeting. i L 1s strongly recommended notto share your passwor to print” option on the Voting page

. . . o ) . ) . . . . with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password '

Dynamics(India) Private Limited immediately on:: 18 M/SR. M.. Mimani &Assomaties LLP, Company, Eractlcmg C.c>rhpany confidential. xviii If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then
a. The Change in the residential status on return to India for Secretaries, has been appointed as the Scrutinizerto scrutinize the . For shareholders holding shares in physical f he detail b Enter the User ID and the image verification code and click on
permanentsettlement; and remote e-voting process as well as the evoting system on the date xi For shareholders holding shares in physica form, the detalls can be Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system.

i of 27 th AGM in a fair and transparent manner. used onlyfore-voting onthe resolutions contained in this Notice. ' ' ‘ , ' .
b. The particulars of the bank account(s) number and address of i Clickonthe EVSN for the rel Choice | ional Limited xix Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL's mobile app “—
the bank, if notfurnished earlier. 19 The Member who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to i lie h(?nht & . orthe relevant <Choice International Limited> Woting?” The mVoting mpp can be-downloaded frofm respectie
cinate | tovote. :
8 Wamibsrs afending Hie AGH Hhrough V& /OAIM shall s the AGM mayalse attend /parficipatain AGM throushVC/ OAYM _ onwhiehyeuchoosetovare Store. Please follow the instructions as prompted by the mobile
! butshall notbe entitle to cast their vote again. xiii On the voting page, you will see “"RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” : : :
counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under d et th & fion "YES/NO" f fing. Select th app while Remote Voting on your mobile.
: T ; : ) n in m ion rvoting.
Section 103 of the Act. 20 TheVgtmg r'ght,Of Membe@ shall be proportion to their shares in Z tijr?aYEz Oreng ai d:s(i)eroThe - Y(ES i(in ﬁes ihii oj Process for those shareholders whose email addresses are not

9  Since the AGM will be held through VC/ OAVM, the Route Map is the paid up equity share capital of the Company as on cut off date. ’ " . S & ek registered with the depositories for obtaining login credentials for e-

; : ) . assentto the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to g . X ‘ =
notannexed in this notice. 21 Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and becomes a the Resolution voting forthe resolutions proposed in this notice:
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Notice

1 For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like
Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the share
certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of
PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card)
by emailto Company/RTA email id.

2 For Demat shareholders -, please provide Demat account detials
(CDSL-16 digit beneficiary ID or NSDL-16 digit DPID + CLID),
Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement,
PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self
attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card)to Company/RTA email id.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE AGM
THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER:

1 Shareholder will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM
through VC/OAVM through the CDSL e-Voting system.
Shareholders may access the same at
https://www.evotingindia.com under shareholders/members login
by using the remote e-voting credentials. The link for VC/OAVM will
be available in shareholder/members login where the EVSN of
Company will be displayed.

2 Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through
Laptops/IPads for better experience.

3 Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use
Internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance during the
meeting.

4 Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or
Tablets or through Laptop connecting via Mobile Hotspot may
experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective
network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN
Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

5 Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions
during the meeting may register themselves as a speaker by
sending their request in advance atleast seven days prior to
meeting mentioning their name, demat account number/folio
number, email id, mobile number at (company email id). The
shareholders who do not wish to speak during the AGM but have
queries may send their queries in advance seven days prior to
meeting mentioning their name, demat account number/folio
number, email id, mobile number atinfo@choiceindia.com. These
queries will be replied to by the company suitably by email.

6 Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker
will only be allowed to express their views/ask questions during
the meeting.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS FOR E-VOTING DURING THE
AGM ARE AS UNDER:-

1 The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the
instructions mentioned above for Remote e-voting.

2 Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM through
VC/OAVM facility and have not casted their vote on the
Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not
barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting
system available duringthe AGM.

3 If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting
available during the AGM and if the same shareholders have not
participated in the meeting through VC/OAVM facility , then the
votes cast by such shareholders shall be considered invalid as the
facility of e-voting during the meeting is available only to the
shareholders attending the meeting.

4 Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be
eligible to attend the AGM. However, they will not be eligible to
vote atthe AGM.

xx Note for Non - Individual Shareholders and Custodians

e Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI
etc.) and Custodians are required to log on to
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www.evotingindia.com and register themselves in the
"Corporates” module.

e Ascanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp
and sign of the entity should be emailed to
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

e After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be
created using the admin login and password. The Compliance
User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to
vote on.

e The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval of the
accountstheywould be able to casttheirvote.

e A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney
(POA) which they have issued in favour of the Custodian, if any,
should be uploaded in PDF formatin the system for the scrutinizer
toverify the same.

e Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required to send the
relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. together with
attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory who
are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the Company at
the email address viz; info@choiceindia.com (designated email
address by company) , if they have voted from individual tab &
notuploaded same inthe CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer
to verify the same.

If you have any queries orissues regarding attending AGM & e-Voting
from the e-Voting System, you may refer the Frequently Asked
Questions (“FAQs") and e-voting manual available at
www.evotingindia.com, under help section or write an email to
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact Mr. Nitin Kunder (022-
23058738) or Mr. Rakesh Dalvi (022-23058542) or Mr. Mehboob
Lakhani(022-23058543).

All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic
means may be addressed to Mr. Rakesh Dalvi, Manager, (CDSL,)
Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 25th Floor,
Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower
Parel (East), Mumbai - 400013 or send an email to
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call on 022- 23058738 / 022-
23058542/43

Annexure to the Notice

Notice

Details of Directors seeking re appointment at the Annual General Meeting scheduled to be held on September 30, 2020 (Pursuant to
Regulation 36(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements), Regulation 2015.

Name of the Director

Date of BirthAge

Date of Appointment

Relationship with Directors & Key
Managerial Personnel

Expertise in specific Functional area
Qualification

Board Membership of other Listed Companies
Chairman/ Member of the Committee of
the Board of Director

a) Audit Committee

b) Nomination & Remuneration Committee
¢) Stakeholder Relationship Committee
No. of Shares held in the Company

Hemlata Poddar

(Reappointment)

March 08, 1982

January 30, 2020

Non Executive

Spouse of Managing Director
Management Practices

Post Graduate in Political Science
NIL

Yes

NIL

Yes - Member
Yes - Chairperson
8,50,000

Note:

1. Detailed profile of the above Director is given as part of the Annual Report. The Directorship, Committee Memberships and
Chairmanships does not include positions in foreign companies, unlisted companies and private companies, position as an
advisory board member and position in companies under section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013.

2. The proposal for re-appointment has been approved by the Board pursuant to the recommendation of the
Nomination & Remuneration Committee considering their skills, experience and knowledge and positive outcome of performance

evaluation.

Place: Mumbai
Date: September 05,2020

Registered Office:

Choice House, Shree Shakambhari Corporate Park,
PlotNo.156-158,J.B.Nagar,

Andheri (East),

Mumbai-400099

Email Id: info@choiceindia.com

By Order of the Board of Directors
Sd/-

(Karishma Shah)

Company Secretary
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